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Directors' report

The Directors of Euroclear pic are pleased to present their report, together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of Euroclear plc and its subsidiaries (the ‘group’), for the year
ended 31 December 2009 A review of the group’s business, resulits for the year and future
developments, along with a description of the principal nsks and uncertainties facing the group,
1S set out in the annual report within the Chairman’s statement on page 12, the Chief
Executive’s review on page 16 and the Financial review on page 84, all of which should be
read in conjunction with this report

Results and dividends

The group results for the year are
shown in the consolidated incorne
statement on page 10 The loss
attnibutable to the Company's ordinary
shareholders for the year ended 31
December 2009, including an
impairment charge of €185 rmillion,
amounted to €38 million compared with
a €262 million profit for the year ended
31 December 2008

The Board is pleased to propose a final
dividend of €11 46 (2008 €20 43) per
ordinary share for payment on 11 June
2010 to shareholders on the register at
the close of business on 30 Apnl 2010
This ddend 1s ewrdence that even in
the current difficult market conditions,
the group stays committed to deliver
long-term value to shareholders, 1t
leaves sufficient means for the group to
finance its strategic objectives

Principal activities

The Company 1s a holding company
which owns, directly or indirectly, the
entire 1ssued ordinary share capital of
various companies operating in the
European post-trade market
infrastructure, including, inter alia,
Euroclear SA/NV, Euroclear Bank,
Euroclear Belgium, Euroclear France,
Euroclear Nederland, Euroclear UK &
Ireland, EMX Company Limited
(EMXCo), Euroclear Finland and
Evroclear Sweden and the recently
acquired Xtrakter Limited (Xirakter)
(full ist1s provided in Note Il on pages
98 and 100 of the parent Company
financial statements)

These main group companies are
engaged pnncipally in providing
clearance and settlement systems and
related services for domestic and
international secunties transactions,
covenng bonds, equities, investment
funds and denvatives While Euroclear

SAINV provides system development
and support services, the other entihes
mentioned act as Central Secunties
Depcsitones {CSDs) for Belgian,
Dutch, Finnish, French, Insh, Swedish
and UK secunties whilst Euroclear
Bank acts as an International CSD
(ICSD) for international secunties
EMXCo acts as an investment-fund
order-routing company

On 30 Apnl 2009, Xtrakter became part
of the Euroclear group Xtrakteris a
provider of market data, operationai
nsk management, trade matching and
regulatory reporting services to the
global capital market Xtrakter also
provides information services for fixed
income instruments and owns a system
named TRAX, a trade matching and
transaction reporting system

Business review
Key business parameters

The Euroclear group's financial
performance 1s measured in terms of
net fee Income and net interest iIncome
set against operating costs These
were influenced by several key dnvers
n 2009

- Net fee income 1s manly a
functicn of the value of securiies
deposited in the group's (i}CSDs,
the number of settlement
transactions and the daily vatue of
collateral provision outstanding
The billing of bonds 1s based on
nominal value and prowides a
stable base, while for equities their
market value 1s taken into
consideration, as detalled in the
‘Performance highlights’ section
on page 6 of the annual report

. Net interest income 1s denved
mainly from the prevailing interest
rates and the leve! of cash
balances deposited by chents

While the level of chents’ cash
balances throughout 2009
confirmed that Euroclear 1s
perceived as a low nsk
counterparty and safe harbour, the
record low interest rates had a
negative impact on interest
earnings

«  Operating expenses decreased
significantly in 2009, confirming
the effectiveness of the cost
containment programme

Operating highhghts

*  The value of securities held for
Euroclear chents at the end of
2009 was a record of €20 2 tnllion,
12% higher than the €18 1 trdlion
at year-end 2008

=  Turmnover, or the value of
secunties transactons settled,
was €513 5 tnlion in 2009, an 8%
decrease compared wath the
€559 8 trillion reported in 2008
This was largely due to lower
overall trading actmity

*  The number of netted transactions
settled in the Euroclear group
increased by 14% to a record
179 6 milhon m 2009 compared
with 157 3 million in 2008

= The combined daily value of
collateral provision cutstanding in
Euroclear Bank and Euroclear UK
& treland rose by 28% in 2009 to
€544 2 bilhen from €424 3 bilhon
at the end of 2008

Reinforced reputation in 2009
despite market conditions

While the 2008 financial cnsis, and the
economic recession that followed,
made 2009 a challenging year for all
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market players, Euroclear's low nsk
prafile and strong nsk management
culture have contnbuted to protect the
Company's sohid reputation

Operating income for the year
amounted to €334 milion, €204 million
less than in 2008 The loss for the year
reached €38 milhon, including a €185
millon impairment charge, compared
with a €262 million profit in 2008

In 2009, in hne with its commitment to
share economies of scale with the
markel, Euroclear announced further
tanff reductions

The 2009 end-of-year headcount
decreased by 221 full-time equivalents
compared to 2008 (excluding the
employees from Xtrakter that joined the
group In 2009), as a result of non-
replaced departures following the
external hinng freeze across the group
and successful deployment of staff due
to our internal mobilty programme

Financial performance highlights

The detailed results for the year are set
out on page 10 of the financ:al
statements

Loss for the year reached €38 milhion
for Euroclear ple consolidated, due to
the difficult market conditions in 2009,
especially the interest rate
environment, and a €185 million
mparment on ESES, Euroclear UK &
Ireland and NCSD In 2008, Euroclear
plc's profit reached €262 million

The normahised profit for the year
reached €111 million, when excluding
the imparrment charge, the dividend
received from LCH Cleamet group
Lirmited, the realised gain on the
redemption and sale of LCH Clearnet
Group Limited shares and the realised
gain on the re-purchase of Hybnd Tier |
debt

€ million
Loss for the year (38)
Adjustments
Impairment charge 185
Dividend received from
LCH Clearnet Group Limited {18)
Realised gain on disposal of
LCH Clearnet Group Limited
shares (17
Realised gain on re-purchase
of Hybrid Ther | debt {2)
Tax effect of the above 1
Normalised profit after tax
for the year 1"

Operating ncome reached €534
rrulion, 18% below 2008, whereby the
decrease in interest income accounts
for 91% of the reduction The income
for 2009 includes the €18 million
dividend recelved on the participabon in
LCH Clearnet Group Ltrmited and the
€17 million capital gain following the
redemption and sale of Euroclear's
participation in LCH Cleamet Group
Limited

Net interest income reached €98
muflion, a 65% reduction compared to
2008, due to histoncally low interest
rates throughout the year The USD
and EUR overnight interest rates
decreased, on average, from 2 1% and
3 6% in 2008 to 0 2% and 0 8%
respectively in 2009 Average deposils
dropped by 9% and average overdrafls
by 42% as clients’ focus on hiquidity
management and reduction of interest
costs increased Interest income in
Euroclear stems pnncipally from
Euroclear Bank's overnight redeposits
of clients’ cash batances [t also stems
from the investment of Euroclear
Bank's capital, retained earnings and
the proceeds from subordinated debt

Net fee and commission income,
decreased by 6% to €759 million,
reflecting the impact of market
conditons and tanff reductions to
mantain the competitiveness of the
group Net fees and commission
income represents 81% of 2009 total
operating income A significant share of
Euroclear’s fees and commussion
income s generated by fixed income
secunties and in particular by the
depot, for which safekeeping fees are
charged on the necminal amount
Furthermore, the large government
stimulus packages financed by debt
1ssuance helped sustain business
reslience in Euroclear, which
contnbuted to protecting group
revenues

Administrative expenses decreased
by 5% to €749 millson in 2009 as a
significant multi-year cost reduction
programme built on a large range of
measures such as Lean (to increase
efficiency and improve productiwity),
automation and procurement spend
management inihiatives covenng all
non-personnel related expenses, The
programme started in 2008, was
pursued and extended Itis aimed at
reducing the operational cost base by
about 25% by 2012 compared to 2008
plans {using comparable bases), with a
significant part of the effort frontloaded
in 2009-2010 At the end of 20089, cosis
had been reduced by 18% against this
objective

On a fully comparable basis, the cost
base decreased by 12% in 2009

Operating loss before tax reached

€0 5 miflion, compared with an
operating profit of €347 mullion in 2008,
reflecting the consequences on mcome
of the difficuit market conditions and
goodwill impairment

tmpairment charges were recognhised
for a total amount of €185 muthan, spht
between ESES €10 milhon, Euroclear
UK & Ireland €75 million and NCSD
€100 million This is due essentally to
the expected impact of TARGET2
Secunties (T23), expectations that
market recovery will be slow and
mederate in the aftermath of the
financial cnsis and some specific
market developments

Dividend ¢on 25 March 2010, the
Directors decided to recommend a
dividend distribution to shareholders of
€43 9 milhon, representing €11 46 per
share {compared with €20 49 per share
in 2008} This dwvidend level 15 1n fine
with Euroclear’s multi-year dividend
policy and reflects Euroclear's
continued commitment to ensunng
shareholders are adequately
remunerated for their capital
investment, as well as the objectives of
the group regarding capital strength
under the current market environment

Balance sheet total assets stood al
€11,003 million on 31 December 2009,
down €2,447 millron on the previous
year Throughout the year, the level of
deposits and loans 15 influenced to a
large extent by the leve! of setilement
actity in Euroclear Bank

Total shareholders’ equity decreased
by 3% to €3,133 milion in 2009 This
variance I1s mamly explained by the
payment of the 2008 dividend in June
(€78 5 million) and the loss of the year
after imparment (€38 mullion}

The group continues to have strong
regulatory capital with Tier 1 and tota!
ratios of 34% at the end of 2009
compared with 44% at the end of 2008
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Share capital

The share capital of Euroclear plc on
25 March 2010 1s as shown in the
table

Post balance shoet events

There have been no significant events
between the year end and the date of
approval of these accounts which
require recogmtion or disclosure in the
financial statements

Business development

The Euroclear group’s philosophy i1s
that the best way to provide
shareholders with returns aver the
medium term 1s to lock after its clients
so that they continue to keep business
with, and to bnng new business to, the
Company That requires Euroclear to
be able to help clients handle extreme
market events, to mamntain low-nsk
systems for the settlement of
transactions and the safekeeping of
chent assets, and to retain a high
qualty staff Above all, the ability to
retan and attract busimess requires
investment in new services and
faciiies

Market conditions in 2009 mean that
there is now an even greater need to
develop solutions that provide for
greater transparency, lower nsk and
increased access to iquidity, with
market infrastructures the natural
prowiders of genenc solutions for the
market

ESES successfully launched

ESES, the muiti-market transaction
processing platform for harmonised
setttement and custody services for the
Euronext market, was successfully
completed in January 2009 With ESES
in ptace, clients can seftle cross-border
transactions between Belgium, France
and The Netherlands as domestic
transactons Euroclear Bank adapted
its procedures accordingly following the
launch

Increasing efficiency through
integration

Throughout 2009, good progress was
made in integrating the entities that
recently joined the Euroclear group

By integrating EMXCo's fund order
routing services with our fund offerings
in the (1)CSDs, we have been working
to provide a global, end-to-end
automated fund processing semice In

Authorised lssusd

{€ Danaminated) Numbar  Nomnal vshue MNumber Nomnal value
Ordinary shares of €1 aach 3 330 558 3 330 556 3 330 658 3 330 558
‘S’ shares of €1 aach 500 120 500 120 500 120 500 120
Unelassiind shares of €1 each 169 324 169 324 - -
Total 4 000 000 4 000 000 3 B30 676 3 830 678
!E Denominated)*

F POV 1 stering shares of £1 each 50 000 50 000 50 000 50 000
Undler Firancial Reporting {IFRS), the WO NG rxdeerabls stedng shares ane comidansd an debt inlhe

conaofdated fnenclal statemants of the group

2009, we rolled out the second phase
of the ink between EMXCo and
Euroclear UK & Ireland Thus provides
the UK funds industry with the first
automated, integrated order routing
and settlement sernice through a single
point of input

Euroclear's acquisiion of Xtrakter in
2009 has already benefited mutual
chents of Euroclear Bank and Xtrakter
through the use of automated
transaction information flows, from
trade matching to settlement This
eliminates trade matching duplication,
and reduces the number of unsettled
transactions, post-trade costs and
nsks

Some of the group CSDs already have
well developed issuer services,
ncluding Euroclear Finland and
Euroclear Sweden, and we are [ooking
to extend such services across all our
CSDs The European Commission IS
working on new legislation to remove
the barners that currently force issuers
to 1ssue secunties m therr own
domestic market, which would further
enable issuers to choose where they
issue secunties As aresult, our CSDs
are poised to attract more issuance,
and more revenues, if we develop
competitive 1ssuer services across the
CSDs of the group

Single Platform modified approach
to meet changing market neads

Development of the Single Ptatform
further progressed in 2009

While maintaining our key goal of
removing systems fragmentation, and
harmonising diffenng local market
standards and practices in the
Eurcpean markets we serve, we
revised the roll-out plan for the Single
Platform in response to the changing
financial and competitive landscape

Thus will allow us to better take
advantage of the opportunites offered
by the European Central Bank's T2S
setttement platform Immediate focus 1s
on those areas where there 1s currently
a strong market need the
standardisation for corporate actions
and the need for efficient hquidity

generaton throughout the financial
sector A key element alsc remains the
Common Communcation interface
{CCl), which will prowide all Euroclear
clients with an industry-standard single
access to our services

We intend to continue to develop the
project to bning the processing of client
transactions onto a single platform and
provide a single point of access for
chents of the group’s six CSDs and
Euroclear Bank Considenng the
difficulies that Euroclear has
encountered in Single Platform
Custody testing, Euroclear 1s
proceeding with the Single Platform in
a more modular fashion, phasing the
efforts required both by Euroclear and
the market to provide greater rehability
both in the requirements and in the
timetable

Ongoing service enhancements with
a flexible approach

In addition to the mayjor service
improvements that the Single Platform
will deliver, we continue to focus on
areas where we can make a difference
now, especially where new needs have
ansen as a result of the financial cnsis

Addressing the need for ncreased
liquidity, 1n 2009 Euroclear Bank
launched an automated collateral
allocation interface between its triparty
module and the collateral management
systems of several central banks

Euroclear Bank also extended its
coverage to the Korean market in 2009
Euroclear's heightened presence In
Asia has also allowed Eurcclear Bank
to become the first ICSD tc launch
same-day cross-border settlement
services for four Asian markets and to
open the real-ume processing window
earler in the day in Europe, extended
deadlines introduced 1n 2009 for eight
countnes now enable clients to input
instructions as close as possible to the
local market deadlines
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In 2008 Euroclear Bank introduced a
dedicated EquityReach operations
department, prowviding clients with a
comprehensive end-to-end equities
service with increased dedicated
support for both custody and
settlement This offering 1s proving
attractive to chients, with our efficient
Euronext equities service seeing
continued take-up from leading
international broker dealers

Working to improve transparency

With the prospect of increased
regulation after the cnsis has come the
need for increased transparency

Euroclear Bank's QerivManager,
designed to help denvatives market
players mitigate bilateral counterparty
nsk for therr entre OTC denvatives
activity, was upgraded in 2009 to
increase user-fnendliness

In addiion, we are playing an active
role in the loans market, following the
launch of Euroclear Bank's LoanReach
in 2008 In 2009 the launch of an
automated trade matching service was
a first major step towards reducing
operational nsk — providing greater
transparency and increasing efficiency

Research and development

For the sixth consecutive year, the
Euroclear group has nvested heawvily in
research and development as part of
the implementation of the new business
model These investments are linked to
the resotlution of functional and
technological challenges related to

. consolidation the setup of IT
pregrammes capable of
processing the consolidated
volumes of transactions,

. harmonisation the development of
the single communication layer for
our clients including standard
messages,

. performance the development of
sophisticated algonthms capable
of supporting even extreme
requiremnents in terms of overall
settlement efficiency and peak
settlement, and

. resihence the development of
synchronous procedures in our
data centres capable of supporting
tugh volumes, high secunty
features and a wide range of
operating systems

The group continues to Invest in market
research in line with its rmission to
provide increasingly commoditised
market infrastructure services

Euroctear 1s a founding member of
TransConstellation, an orgamisation
promoting Belgium as a centre of
excelience in financial transaction
processing Dunng 2009, a number of
Euroclear group employees attended
the training modules offered by the
TransConstellation Academy, a traming
cenfre run in coilaboration with the
Solvay Business School in Brussels

Risk management in the Euroclear
group

Euroclear was not directly affected by
the nsks that matenalsed during the
financial cnisis and continued to npple
through the real economy in 2009 This
high degree of insulation reflected the
single purpose onentation of the group,
as well as its low nsk profile and its
track record of conservative nsk
management The group did of course
see indirect effects through business
volumes and enhanced stakeholder
interest in nsk management and
controls

Well estabhished risk management
culture and ngorous standards

Euroclear has a well established nisk
management culture, shared by all
areas of the organisation Risks are
managed under a comprehensive
Enterpnise Risk Management (ERM)
framework, with policies related to each
of the relevant nsks and a governance
structure that makes clear the
responsibilihes for momitoring and
control

Euroclear's ERM framework 1s based
on relevant market and regulatory
standards These include the work of
the Committee of Sponsonng
Orgamzations of the Treadway
Commussion (COSO), which has
established a common intemal control
model aganst which companies may
assess therr control systems They also
include SO 31000 2009 pnnciples and
generic guidelines on nsk management
and I1ISC 27001 2005 for Information
Secunty, as well as standards and
guidelines issued by the Basel
Committee on Banking Supervision
The larger Eurcclear entibies publish
audited Statement on Auditing
Standards (SAS) 70 control reports to
inform clients and other stakeholders
about their control environments In
addition, each of the group CSDs and
Euroclear Bank complete and publish

annually the Disclosure Framework for
Secunties Settlement Systems, which
15 one of the requirements for
comphance wath the Recommendations
for Securities Settlement Systems,
published by the Eurcpean System of
Central Banks (ESCB) and the
Committee of European Securthes
Regulators {CESRY), and by the
Committee on Payment and Settlement
Systems (CPSS) and the International
Organization of Secunties
Commissions (I0SCO)

In 2009, Euroctear continued to
implement Basel Il Euroclear worked
towards fulfiling the terms and
conditions that accompanied the
accreditation received in 2008 from the
Beigian Banking, Finance and
Insurance Commussion (CBFA) to use
the AMA to calculate capital
requrrements for operational risk under
Pillar 1 A final regulatory decision on
the AMA methodotogy 1s expected in
the coming months After finalising its
Intemal Capital Adequacy Assessment
Process (ICAAP) framework under
Pillar 2 t1n 2008, Eurociear ensured that
it was implemented at the level of the
relevant entibes In December 2009,
the CBFA imtiated the Supervisory
Evaluation Process under Pillar 2, the
process 1S ongong and the prudental
supervisor plans to prepare a letter to
be sent to Euroclear soon Ftnally,
Euroclear made a public disclosure in
Ine with Pullar 3 of Basel Il for the
second time in 2009

That report was extended compared to
the previous year with, for example, the
inclusion of a chapter on hquidity nsk
management

In 2010, Euroclear will continue to
strengthen IT change management and
assoclated activities, in view of the
mportant launch schedules for the
major Single Platform programme and
will further strengthen financial controls

The self-assessment processes that
form part of Euroclear's ERM
framework will be fully based on the
controls matunty model

In 2010, Euroclear will also focus on,
among other things, stress-testing
liquidity nsk, and on following
regulatory developments closely, with a
view to ensuring that forthcoming
regulaticns do not unintenbionally affect
the efficient and proper functioning of
secunties markets and Euroclear’s role
as a market infrastructure
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Banking nsk management

Euroclear Bank manages its banking
nsks according to demanding
standards

The specific role of Euroclear Bank in
financial markets offers a high level of
protechion against cradit risk As a
settlement inshtution, its exposures are
concentrated within a business day,
which significantly hmits the probability
of an unantcipated default, all the mere
s0 as Euroclear Bank’s client base
consists mainly of highly-rated banks
and other financia! insbtutons, such as
central banks In addition, Euroclear
Bank almost exclusively grants credit
secured by tigh quahty collateral, with
close to 99% of its client credit
exposure collateralised In addition,
Euroclear Bank also incurs treasury
exposure resulting from the placing of
chents’ end-of-day positions in the
market with high quality counterparties,
using repos whenever possible

Ligudity 1s necessary for Euroclear
Bank to perform its settlement
operations efficiently Euroclear
therefore has a strong hiquidity sk
management framework, whereby net
funding requirements are adequately
measured and monitered The
framework alsc allows for a high level
of preparedness to cope with
unexpected hquidity shocks caused by
either an operational or credit event To
be able to cover such iquichty
shortfalls, Euroclear Bank has reliable
and tested committed contingency
hquidity sources and it 1s roling out the
legal and operational means to re-use
immediately the collateral pledged by
its customers, up to the level of ther
debits

For its daily hquidity needs, Euroclear
Bank can rely upon a large network of
cash correspondents and settlement
banks and direct access to TARGET2
With its excellent name in the market,
Euroclear Bank has access to a broad
range of counterparties

Market nsk arises as a by-product of
the investment of Euroclear Bank's
capital, and from vanations in business
earnings and hedging strategy The
interest rate and foreign exchange risks
that it faces are hmited by the nsk
tolerance level set by Euroclear Bank’s
Board of Directors This 1s determined
by the economic capital allocated
annually for such risks, This 1s
reinforced by intemal daily market
hmits, such as Value at Risk, and legal
or regulatory imits

Euroclear Bank enters into currency
forwards in order to protect its revenue
stream from adverse movements in
foreign exchange rates, such
transactions are classified as cash flow
hedges In addition, forex hedging 18
used by the companies of the
Euroclear group to economically hedge
the farr value of some specific habiities
expressed in foreign currencies

Finally, Euroclear SA/NV hedges its
foreign currency exposure assoclated
with its net investment in foreign
subsidiary undertakings Unrealsed
and realised exchange gains and
losses are recorded on the balance
sheet until the disposal of the net
investment with the relevant amount
being transferred to the income
statement when a dividend i1s received
As a general rule, such hedge
contracts are rolled over every three
months

Under IFRS, the results of interest rate
denvatives contracts qualifying as
hedges under Belgian GAAP must be
recorded directly in the income
statement

Going concern

Note lll, on pages 22 tc 40 of the
financial statements, includes the
group’s objectives, policies and
processes for managing its capital, its
financial nsk management objectives,
detalls of its financial instruments and
hedging activibes, and 1ts exposures to
credit nsk and hquidity risk

The group has appropnate financial
resources and, as a consequence, the
Directors beleve that the group is well
placed to manage is business nsks
successfully despite the current
uncertain economuc cutlook

After making enquines, the Directors
have formed a judgment, at the time of
approving the financial statements, that
there 1s a reasonable expectation that
Euroclear plc has adequate resources
to continue to operate for the
foreseeable future For this reason, the
Directors continue to adopt the going
concern basis in preparing the financial
statements

Dhsclosure of branches

Euroclear SA/NV operates three
branches in Amsterdam, London and
Pans and in Apnil 2008, Euroclear Bank
opened a branch in Honhg Kong

Directors

The Directors of the group who have
held office during the penod 1 January
2009 to the date of this report are listed
on page 118

Directors' interests

The Directors of Euroclear pic have no
interest 1n the shares or 1n oplions over
shares of the parent company, or any
of the other companies in the group

Directors’ options

Directors of Euroclear plc do not
participate in a stock option scheme

The Belgian-based members of the
Euroclear SA/NV and Eurcclear Bank
SA/NV Management Committees and
certain members of their semor
management participate in a stock
oplion scheme Under the overall group
remuneration strategy approved by the
Board of Directors, participants in the
scheme receive up to 10% of therr
vanable compensation 1n the form of
stock options

Under the current plan, the Company
grants stock options on shares in the
Sicav ING (L) Invest EMU Equity (Cap)
Simultaneously, the Company buys
stock options on the Dow Jones
Eurostoxx 50 in order to cover its
exposure

Corporate governance

The Euroclear group's commitment to
high standards of corporate
governance continued throughout
2009 Full details of the imtiatives
undertaken by the group in relation to
corporate governance are set out on
page 70 of the annual report

Market value of land and buildings

Euroclear Bank owns 51% of an office
bullding in Brussels through a joint
venture between its whoily-owned
subsidiary, Calar Belgium, and Cabesa
which has the remaining 49% interest
in the property Calar Belgium's interest
in the buillding 1s now recorded in the
conscolidated balance sheet at a
depreciated cost of €32 mithon
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Euroclear France owns two office
buldings located in the Paris area,
minor portions of which are subject to
third party rental agreements The
buldings are recorded in the
consolidated balance sheet at a total
depreciated cost of €11 million

Euroclear Properties France also owns
property in the Paris area These
premises host one on the group's data
centres and are included n the
consolidated balance sheet at a
depreciated cost of €17 milion

There i1s no indication that the related
market values would differ significantly
from these depreciated costs

Euroclear people

Like all financial institutions, Euroclear
faces increased pressure from
competitors and the continuing
challenge of decreasing its operating
costs In order to remain competitive
we have decreased our headcount in
2009, for the first tme in our history
and it1s expected that further
headcount reduction might be
necessary in the years ahead ofus To
achieve these headcount reduction
objectives we have given priority to
Internal staff mobility and we
encourage staff to take on temporary
assignments acrass the group

Eurcclear recogmises that employee
traning and development and strong
leadership have strategic importance in
helping the Company achieve its
business mission and objectives

In line with our continuing focus on
service excelience and our commitment
to hsteming to cur people, Euroclear
also works to maintain a constructive
relationship with cur different social
partners

In this more competitive and changing
environment, our people remain more
than ever our most valuabie asset This
15 why we are committed to continue to
provide our people with opportunities
for growth

Corporate social responsibility

As the finaneial crisis has shown, it s
important for companies to be aware of
the social and economic impact of therr
operations Long-term sustainability
and professional competence are the
foundations upon which Euroclear has
built its leadership of the past 40 years,
and with which we aim to continue to
lead, including in our corporate
responsibility strategies

We strongly believe that demonstrating
social and environmental leadershup
helps to build the trust of the public and
of employees, and can strengthen a
Company's reputation among all its
stakeholders, including its shareholders
and clients It 1s our view that
companies that recognise the value of
corporate responsibility are better able
to attract and retain employees who are
both technically proficient and inchined
to thunk long term

QOur core corperate responsibility 1s
intrinsic to our specific role as a leading
provider in post-trade market
infrastructure services in the domestic
and intemational financial markets We
have succeeded 1n bnnging stability
dunng the financial crisis and its
aftermath, thanks to our long-standing,
consistent adherence to low-nsk
policies and the resilience of the state-
of-the-art processing infrastructure we
have built in recent years

In parallel, as a user-owned, user-
governed organisation, we have a duty
to deliver for the long-term benefit of
the market by continuously enhancing
efficiency, thereby reducing the cost
and nsks for the markets we serve
This in turn can contribute to the
creation of wealth and well-being Our
ongoing work to integrate systems and
harmonise market practices helps to
create a more effictent market

Eurociear 1s also convinced of the
value of corporate responsibibty in its
maore conventional sense Wae have
robust policies and a variety of
iniiatives i place to protect and offer
opportuniies to people, both within and
outside of the Company We attach the
utmost iImportance to equalty, integrity
and ethical conduct and are firmly
committed to health and safety We
also aim to mintmise the use of our
ptanet’s resources, while making
sustainable business decisions in the
best interests of the group

Euroclear supports and contnbutes to
the development of the community by
providing financial assistance and other
forms of support to social not-for-profit
associations We encourage and
support charites in the countries where
Euroclear operates, in particular those
n which our staff or their relatives are
personally active

Chantable contnbutions
The total chantable donations given by

the group and its subsidiary
undertakings during the year ending 31

December 2009 was €496,000, a
portion of which was donated through
the indwidual "gift matching’ scheme in
which Euroclear offers to match every
donation its employees make to
chantable organisations that meet the
programme's cntena Part of the
donations, €95,000, 15 pad to
chantable orgamisations in the United
Kingdom

Employment of disabled persons

A policy of non-discnmmation
underpins Euroclear's employment
policy Opportunibies are provided for
people with disabiliies according to
therr capabilities

Supplier payment policy

The group’s policy concerning the
payment of its trade creditors s to
discharge suppliers’ invoices for the
provision of goods and services in
conformity with the terms and
conditions of the purchase within
previously agreed payment terms For
all rade creditors, it1s the group's
policy to agree the terms of payment at
the start of trading with that suppher
{usually 30 days after recept of
invoice), ensure that supplers are
aware of the terms of payment, and
pay in accordance with its contractual
and other legal obhgations

Political donations

No poliical donations were made
dunng the year

Disclosure of information to the
auditors

The Directors who held office at the
date of approval of this Directors’ report
confirn that, so far as they are each
aware, there 1s no relevant audit
information of which the Company's
auditors are unaware, and each
director has taken all the steps that
they ought to have taken as Directors
to make themselves aware of any
relevant audit information and to
establish that the Company's auditors
are aware of that mformation
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Non-statutory audit services

The amount of fees charged to
Euroclear plc and its subsidianes for
non-statutory audit services amounted
to €728,000 Detalls of fees for audit
and non-audit services are provided in
note Xill on page 53 of the financial
statements

Auditors

PrncewaterhouseCoopers LLP have
indicated their wilingness to continue in
office A resolution to reappoint
Prcewaterhouse Coopers LLP as
auditors of the group will be proposed
at the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting on 27 May 2010

Insurance
Directors benefit from Directors' and

officers' liability insurance purchased by
the Company

By order of the Board

gl

Sir Nigel Wicks
Chairman of the Board
25 March 2010
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Statement of Directors' responsibilities

In relation to the financtal statements

The following statement, which should be
read in conjunction with the independent
auditors' reports on pages 94 and 117,1s
made with the purpose of distinguishing
for shareholders the responsibilibes of the
Directors from those of the auditors in
relation to the financial statements

The Directors are required by the
Comparnies Act 2006 to prepare financial
statements for each financial year Under
that law the Directors have prepared the
group and parent company financial
statements in accordance with
International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the
Eurapean Union In prepanng the group
financial statements, the Directors have
also elected to comply wath IFRS, 1ssued
by the International Accounting Standards
Board (IASB) The financial statements are
required by law to give a true and fair view
of the state of affars of the group and the
parent company at the end of the financial
period and of the profit or loss of the group
and the parent company for that penod In
preparing those financial statermnents, the
Direclors are required to

- select sutable accounting palicies and
then apply them consistently,

- make judgments and estmates that are
reasonable and prudent,

- state that the financial statements comply
with IFRS as adopted by the European
Unien and IFRS ssued by 1ASB, and

- prepare the financia statements on the
gong cancem basis, unless itis
inappropnate to presume that the group
will conbinue In business

The Directors confirm that they have
complied with the above requirements in
prepanng the financial statements

The Directors are responsible for keeping
adequate accounting records that are
sufficient to show and explain the
Company's transactons and disclose with
reasonable accuracy and at any tme the
financial posiien of the group and the parent
company and enable them to ensure that
the financial statements comply with the
Companies Act 20068 They are also
responsible for safeguarding the assets of
the parent company and the group and
hence for taking reasonable steps for the
prevention and detection of fraud and other
uregulanties

The Directors are responsible for the
maintenance and integnty of the corporate
and financial information included on the
group web site, www euroclear com
Legslabon in the United Kingdom
governing the preparation and
dissemination of financial statements may
differ from legislaton in other junsdictions

Each person who i1s a director at the date
of approval of this report confirms that

- sofar as the director 1s aware, there s
no relevant audit information of which
the Company's auditors are unaware,
and

- each director has taken all the steps
that he/she ought to have taken as a
director to make himself/herself aware
of any relevant audit information and to
establish that the Company's auditors
are aware of that information

This confirnation 1s g'ven and should be
interpreted 1N accordance with the
provisicns of Section 418(2) of the
Companies Act 2008

By order of the Board

AU

Sir Nigel Wicks
Charman of the Board
25 March 2010
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Consolidated income statement
For the year ended 31 December 2009

{€000) Notes 2009 2008
|nterest income A\l 138,174 531,790
|nterast expensa Al (39,944) {247 995)
Nat interest iIncome 98,230 283,795
Fee and commassion income Vi 1,103,468 1,214922
Fee and commission experse Wil (344,743} (407,131)
Net fee and commission mcome 758,725 807,791

Net interest and fee income 856,955 1,091,586
Dwvdend ncome v 17,814 4451

Realised gains on avallablefor-sale financia assets X 33,770 -
Realsed gains on fnanaad liabilihes measured a amorbsed cost X 2,088 -
Net gans cn firanocal assets and Iabilites held for tradng X 10,452 19,050
Net gans/Josses) on foragn exchange {2,141) 10,251

Other operating ncome X 14,829 12,739

Operating Income 933,767 1,138,077
Admunsiratve expenses bl (749,346) (790,768)
Imparment v (184,912) @272
Operating profit'{loss) before tax (491) 347 037
Taxaton XV, XVI (37,900) (85,356)
Profit{loss) for the year (38,391) 261,681

Faor the companies included in the group, see Note ! to the parent company financial statements

The Notes on pages 15 to 93 form part of these financial statements
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

For the year ended 31 December 2009

2009 2008 ll
(€000} Notes Gross Tax Nat Gross Tax Neot |
|
Changes in Cther comprahensive income
Available-for-sale financial assets XX, 20V {10 351} (65) (10,416) 8,672 (3,080) 3,592
Cash flow hedges KX, XKV {2,596} 1,163 (1,433) (169) (223) (392)
Hadge of net investments in foreign cparations 2401, XKV {13,968) - {13,966) 21,701 - 21,70
Forewgn cumency translation reserve 200V 27,453 - 27,453 (49,925) - {49,925}
Defined benefit plans 2001 10,877 (3,384) 7,493 {34,929) 11,515 {23,414)
Other comprehansive incoma for the year 1,417 {2,2886) 9,131 (56,650) 8,212 {48,438)
Profit(loss) for the year (491) {37.900) (38,391) 347,037 {85,356) 261,681
Total Comprehensive income for the yoar 10,926 (40,186) (29,260) 290,387 (77.144) 213,243 |

The Notes on pages 15 to 93 form part of these financial statements

1"
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Consolidated statement of financial position
As at 31 December 2009

{€000) Notes 2009 2008
Assets

Cash and balances with central banks xXvil 945,344 1,020,166
Loans and advances Xvill 6,544,348 8,735,921
Availlable-for-sale financial assets XIX 1,274,321 1,103,176
Held-lo-matunty financial assets xx 298,729 299,551
Financial assets held for trading XX 6,022 19,251
Denvatives used for hedgmng xal 268 5123
Current income tax assets xv 16,845 21,857
Deferred income tax assets L] 155,845 155,241
Other assets X 252 228 369,073
Pre-payments and accrued income XX 89,066 97,462
Property, plant and equipment X 127,015 145,376
Goodwll and intangible assets poedt] 1,292,508 1,478,082
Total assets 11,002,539 13,450,379
Liabliities

Deposits from central banks 20V 1,493,662 469,757
Deposits from banks and customers 200/KH 5,542,157 8,546,523
Financial habites held for trading XX 4,136 5,667
Denvatives used for hedging pedl] 2,683 2,142
Cther labilities XXIX 264 948 561,893
Accruals and deferred income 200K 202,195 222,191
Current income {ax liabilities 4,811 27,159
Defemed income tax habilities Xl 2985 6825
Provisions for labilities and charges peodl 9,197 5,836
Pension deficit 200CH 43 143 56,033
Subordinated habilihes poed(]] 299,245 305,106
Redeemable preference shares pes (17 14 13
Total liabilities 7,869,156 10,209,245
Shareholders’ equity

Called up share caprtal XV 3,831 383
Share premum account 143 223 143223
Other reserves 20001 1,164 598 1,188 507
Retained eamings 1,821,731 1,905,573
Total shareholders’ equity 3,133,383 3,241,134
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity 11,002,539 13,450,379

The Notes on pages 15 to 93 form part of these financral statements
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Consolidated statement of changes In equity

For the year ended 31 December 2009

Share Other Rotained Total
(€000) Notes Capital premium reserves oarnings equity!
At 1 January 2009 3,831 143,223 1188,507 1,905,573 3,241,134
Changes in Other comprehensive income for 2009
- Avallable-for-sale financial assets XXXV - - {10,416) - {10,418}
- Cash fiow hedges X0 - - (1,433) - {1.433)
- Hedge of net investment in foraign operations X0V - - (13,966} - {13,966)
- Foreign currency translation reserve HHA - - 27,453 - 27,453
- Transfer to legal reserve predy] - - 4,453 (4,453) -
- Transfer to non distnbutable reserve 20000 - - 55,000 (55,000) -
- Defined benefit plans - - - 7,493 7,403
- Transfer to retained earnings 20 - - (85,000) 85,000 -
Loss for the year - - - (38,391} (38,291)
Dividends paid 200KV - - - (78,491) (78,491)
At 31 December 2009 3,831 143,223 1,164,598 1,821,731 3,133,333
At 1 January 2008 3,831 143,223 1,185,232 1,793,594 3,125 880
Changes in Other comprehensive income for 2008
- Avatable-for-sale financial assets 2000V - - 3,582 - 3,592
- Cash flow hedges X0V - - (392) - (392)
- Hedge of net investment in foreign operations 2001 - - 21,701 - 21,701
- Forengn currancy translaton reserve X0V - - (49,825) - (49,925)
- Transfer to legal reserve 200031 - - 28,299 (28,299} -
- Defined benefit plans - - - {23414} (23,414)
Profit for the year - - - 261,681 261,681
Dvidends paid 20XV - - - (97,989) (97.989)
At 31 Decomber 2008 3,831 143,223 1,188,507 1,905,573 3,241,134

The Notes on pages 15 to 93 form part of these financial statements
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Consolidated statement of cash flows
For the year ended 31 December 2009

(€000)__ Notes 2009 2008

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash generated from operations XN (2,138,647) (2.825,768)
Tax pakd (61,723) (111,404)
Net cash from operating activities (2,200,370) (2,937,192}

Cash flows from Investing activities

Acquisiion of subsidianes (net of cash acquired) XLi {4,682) (431,071)
Purchase of available-for-sale financial assets XX (1.3890,248) (1 439,530)
Proceeds from redemption of avaitable-for-sale financial assets X, XIX 1244,725 1,648,000
Proceeds from redemption of held-to-matunity financial assets xx - 50,000
Purchase of property, plant and equipment xX00 (11,053) (50,946)
Purchase of intangible assets XXV (7,707) (11,949)
Sale of property, plant and equipment 14 6
Dividends received Vil 17 814 4,451
Net cash used in investing activities {150,137) {231,039)

Cash flow from financing actlvities

Interest paid on redeemable preference shares XXX IV {1) (1)
Interest paid on subordinated llabilities (12,708) (12,705)
Repurchase of subordinated habiity XXX (3.890) -
Equity dwvidends paid heetli] (78 491) (97 989)
Net cash used in financing activities (95,080} {110,695)
Net increasel{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (2,445,597} {3,278,926)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year X 9,744,826 12,583,624
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents (90,494) 435128
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 200Vl 7,208,735 9,744,826

The Notes on pages 15 to 93 form part of these financial statements

These accounts were approved by the Board of Directors on 25 March 2010 and signed on s behalf by

Vot W

Sir Nigel Wicks, Chairman of the Board
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i General information

Euroclear plc (the Company) and its subsidianes (together, the group) arrange for the provision
of clearance and settiement systems and related services, including banking services In the case
of Euroclear Bank, for domestic and international secunties fransactions, covenng bonds,
equities and investment funds

Euroclear plc 15 a imited hability company and s incorporated in the United Kingdom The
address of its registered office s

Euroclear plc

2 Lamb's Passage
London EC1YBBB
United Kingdom

The Company 1s domiciled m Switzerland, with its executive office located at
Baaremmatte

6340 Baar

Switzerland

The full hst of subsidianes of the group can be found in Note || to the parent company financial
statements
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Il Accounting policies

Basis of preparation

The group prepares its consolidated
financiat statements in accordance with
International Financial Reporting
Standards and Intemational Accounting
Standards 1ssued by the Intemational
Accounting Standards Board (IASB), and
interpretations 1ssued by the international
Financial Reporting Interpretation
Committee (together IFRS), endorsed for
use by the European Union (EU}

The conschdated financial statements
have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, as modified by the
revatuation of certain financial instruments

The EU has not endorsed IAS 39 Fmancial
Instruments Recognton and
Measurement as 1ssued by the |IASB,
deciding instead to amend some of the
hedge accounting requirements The
group has not applied these hedge
accounting requirements and has therefore
effectively also complied with IAS 39 in full
as 1ssued by the IASB

1} Adoption of new interpretations and
amendments to standards

The following standard, amendments to
standards and interpretations, potentally
relevant to the Euroclear group, became
effective on 1 January 2009

- IFRS 8 Operating Segments

- Amendments to IAS 23 Borrowing
Costs

- Amendments to IFRS 2 Share
Based payments — Vesting
Condiions and Cancellatons

- Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation
of Financial Statements A Revised
Presentation

- Amendments to IAS 32 and IAS 1
Puttable Financtal instruments and
Obligations Ansing on Liquidation

- Amendments to IFRS 1 and IAS 27
Cost of an Investment in a
Subsidiary, Jontly Controlled Entity
or Associate

- Improvements to IFRS issued by the
I1ASB in May 2008

- Amendments to 1AS 27
Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements

- Amendment to IAS 39
Reclassification of Financial Assets
Effective date and Transition

- Amendment to I1AS 39 Financial
Instruments Recognition and
Measurement - Elgible Hedged
Items

- Amendments to IFRS 7 Improving
disclosures about Financial
Instruments

- IFRIC 12 Service Concession
Armrrangements

- IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty
Programmes

- IFRIC 15 Agreements for the
Construction of Real Estate

- IFRIC 16 Hedges of a Net
Investment i a Foreign Operation

- IFRIC 18 Transfers of Assels from
Customers

The applicaticn of the new standard
and amended standards has impacted
the disclosure of segmental reporting
and financial instruments, and the
presentation of the financial
statements The apphcation of the
interpretations has no impact on the
entity’s financial statements in this
period of inibal application

2) Interpretations and amended
standards endorsed by the EU but
effective on 1 January 2010

The group has chosen to early adopt the
revision to IFRS 3 Business combinations
As aresult, costs directly attnbutable to an
acquisition, which were in the past
recognised as part of the cost of the
acquistion, are now expensed In
accordance with the transitior arrangements,
the treatment of pricr years' acquisthons has
not been restated

The group has chosen not to early adopt

- Amendments to IFRIC 9 and IAS 39
Embedded Denvatives

- Amendments to IAS 32
Classification of Rights Issues

- IFRIC 17 New Interpretation on
Non-Cash Distnbutions

The applcation of this interpretation and
amended standards will have no matenal
impact on the enhty's financial statements
in the penod of iInital apphcation

Summary of significant accounting
policies

The principal accounting policies apphed
in the preparation of these consolidated
financial statements are set out below
Unless otherwise stated, these policies
have been consistently applied to all the
periods presented

Consolidation

Subsidianes are all entiies over which the
group has the power to govern the
financral and operating policies generally
accompanying a shareholding of more

than cne half of the voling nghts
Subsidianes are fully consolidated from
the date that control 1s transferred to the
group They are de-consolidated from the
date that control ceases

In accordance with IFRS 3, the cost of an
acquisition i1s measured as the far value of
the assets given, equity instruments
1ssued and habilities incurred or assumed
at the date of exchange Costs directly
attributable to the acquisition are

expensed ldentifiable assets acquired and
liabiiies and contingent habilittes assumed
In a business combination are measured
imibally at therr fair values at the acquisition
date, irespective of the extent of any
minority interest

The excess of the cost of acquisiton over
the far value of the group's share of the
identifiable net assets is recognised as
goodwill if the cost of acquisition s less
than the fair value of the group’s share of
the net assets of the subsidiary acquired,
the difference 1s recogruised directly in the
income statement

Inter-company transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between
group companies are eiminated
Unrealised lcsses are also eliminated
unless the transacton provides evidence
of imparment of the asset transferred
Where permitted under local legisiation,
the accounting policies of subsidianes
have been changed to ensure consistency
with the policies of the group

Busingss combinations involving entities
under common control were specifically
excluded from the scope of IFRS 3
Business combinations The group has
therefore appled the guidance provided by
IAS 8 Accounting polictes, changes in
accounting estimates and errors, which
requires management to consider the
requrements and guidance in other
intermnational standards and interpretations
dealing with similar issues Management
have therefore apphed the UK GAAP
requrrements of Financial Reporting
Standard (FRS) 6 Mergers and
acquisitions, for such business
combinations involving entities under
commoen control This standard allows the
assets and llabilites of the parties to the
combination to be retained at ther book
value

Segment reporting

An operating segment 1S a component of
an entty that engages in business
activities from which it may eam revenues
and incur expenses
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Il Accounting policies {(continued)

Operating segments are reported In a
manner consistent with the internal
reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker The chuef operating
decision maker, who i1s responsible for
allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments,
has been identified as the Euroclear
SA/NV management committee

Foreign currency translation

1) Functional and presentation currency
ltemns included n the financial statements
of each of the group’s entities are
measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment 1n which
the entity operates ('the functional
currency’) The consolidated financial
statements are presented in euro, which (s
the Company’s functional and presentation
currency

2) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are
translated into the functional currency
using the exchange rates

prevaling at the dates of the transactions
Foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at
year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and habilites denominated in
foreign currencies are recognised in the
Income statement, except when deferred in
equily as qualfying cash flow hedges and
quahfying net investment hedges
Transtation differences on non-moenetary
tems measured at fair value through profit
or loss are reported as part of the farr value
gain or loss Translation differences on
other non-monetary items are included in
the foreign cumrency translation reserve

3) Group companies

The results and financial posibion of all the
group's entihes that have a functional cur-
rency different from the presentation cur-
rency are translated into the presentation
currency as follows

- assets and habilities for each balance
sheet presented are translated at the
closing rate at the balance sheet date,

- Income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average
exchange rates for the penod, and

- the resulting exchange differences are
recogrised in the foresgn currency
translation reserve

On consolidation, exchange differences
ansing from the translation of the net
investment in foreign entities, and of
borrowings and other currency instruments
designated as hedges of such

investments, are taken to shareholders’
equity, in the foreign currency translation
reserve and hedge of net investments in
foreign operations reserve When a
fareign operation 1s sold, such exchange
differences are recognised in the income
statement as part of the gain or loss on
sale

None of the group companies has used
the currency of a hypennflationary
economy as its funchonal currency

Goodwill and farr value adjustments
ansing on the acguisition of a foreign
entity are treated as assets and Labilites
of the foreign entity and translated at the
closing rate

Revenue recognition

1) Interest income and expense

Interest income and expense are
recognised in the income statement for all
nstruments measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest rate method
This 1s a method of calculating the
amortsed cost of a financial asset or
hability and of allocating the interest
income or interest expense over the
relevant accounting periods

The effective interest rate i1s the rate that
exactly discounts the eshmated cash pay-
ments or receipts over the expected life of
the instrument to the net carrying amount
of the financial asset or financial hability
When calculating the effective interest
rate, the future expected cash flows are
estimated after considenng all the
contractual terms of the instrument but not
future credit losses

Group loans to, and deposits from, banks
and customers are pnncipally related to
Euroclear Bank Participants’ cash
accounts operated in connection with therr
securties setlement activity, with
balances generally changing on a daily
basis Time deposits and the re-deposits
of surplus funds rarely have matunties of
more than three months and accordingly
the effective interest rate method 1s not
used

Interest income and expense on
denivative instruments are recorded in
profit and loss on an accrual basis

2) Fee and commission income and
expense

Fee and commission income and
expense, which respechively represent a
return and cost for services rendered (e g
safekeaping, setlement and custody), are
recognised tn the Income statement when

the related serwice ts performed Rebates
granted are deducted from fee and
commission income when declared

Fee and commission Income and expense,
which represent a return for credit nsk
borne or which are in the nature of interest
{secuntries borrowtng), are recognised in
the income statement over the penod of
the loan, or on a systematic basis, over the
expected Iife of the transaction to which
they refate, net of rebates granted

3} Divdends

Dividends on availlable-for-sale equity
nstruments are recognised in the income
statement when the group's nght to
receive payment 1s established

4) Gains and losses on disposals

Gains and losses on disposals of property,
plant and equipment, determined by com-
paring proceeds with the carmying amount,
are included in the iIncome statement in
other cperating income and administrative
expenses respectively

Financial nstruments

Financial assets are classified into held-to-
maturity investments, avallable-for-sale
financial assets, held for trading, or ioans
and receivables The group has not desig-
nated any financial instrument as at far
value through profit or loss

1) Held4o-maturity investments
Heldto-maturity investments are non-
derivativa financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments and fixed
maturities that the group's management
has the positive intention and ability to hold
to matunty In accordance with IAS 39, the
disposal of any more than an insignificant
amount of held-to-matunty assets will
result inthe entire category being tainted
and reclassified as avallable-for-sate for a
period of two years (provided no further
tainting occurs) Held-to-maturnity assets
are recognised in the balance sheet on
settlement date at fair value plus any
directly related transaction costs They are
subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method less
any imparment losses

2) Available-for-sale investments
Avallable-for-sale investments are those
financial assets including debt secunties
and equity shares which are intended to be
heid for an indefinite penod of time, but
which may be sold in response to changes
in the group's financial envircnment
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1 Accounting policies {continued)

Available-for-sale investments are
recognised in the balance sheet on
settlement date at far value Gains or
losses arising from changes in the fair
value of such assets are recognised
directly in equity, until the asset 1s either
sold, matures or becomes impaired, at
which ime the cumulative gain or loss
prevously recognised in equity 1s released
to the iIncome statement Interest revenues
are recognised using the effective yreld
method The farr value of listed debt
secunties and equity shares reflects the
published pnce at the balance sheet date
In the case of investments with no listed
market pnce, a valuation technique (e g
recent transactions between willing and
knowledgeable parties, discounted cash
flows and market mulhiples} s applied
Where the fair value of unlisted equity
investments cannot be rehably measured,
they continue to be valued at cost

3) Held for trading
A financial asset 1s classified as held for
tradtng f it1s

- acquired for the purpose of selling
or repurchasing in the near term,

- part of a portfolio of rdentified financial
instruments that are managed together
and for which there 1s evidence of a
recent actual pattern of short term profit
taking, or

- adenvative that s not a designated and
effective hedging instrument

4} Loans and receivables

Leans and recervables are non-denvative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market They are initially recognmised in the
balance sheet on settlement date at farr
value plus directly related {ransaction
costs, if any, when cash is advanced to the
borrowers They are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method

Long-term loans or receivables that carry
no interest are intially recognised at the
net present value of all future cash receipts
discounted using applicable market
interest rates at ongination The difference
between nominal value and net present
value 1s recognised in the income
statement over the Iife of the investment
using the effective interest rate

Borrowings

Borowings are recegnised initially at far
value, being the i1ssue proceeds (fair value
of consideration received) net of
transachon costs ncurred Borrowings are
subsequently stated at amortised cost, any
difference between proceeds net of
transacthon costs and the redemplion
value is recogmised in the income
statement over the perod of the
borrowings using the effective interest rate
method

Preference shares, which camry a
mandatory coupon, or which are
redeemable on a fixed or determinable
future date, are classified as financial
habilihes and are presented in other
borrowed funds The coupon on these
preference shares is recogrused in the
ncome statement as interest expense

Denvative financial instruments and
hedge accounting

All derivative financtal instruments are
recognised, and subsequently re-
measured at farr value Denvative fair
values are determined from quoted pnces
In active markets where availlable Where
there 1s no active market for an instrument,
far value 1s denved from prices for the
derivative’s components using appropriate
pncing or valuation models

Gains and losses ansing from changes In
far value of a denvative are recognised as
they anse in profit and loss, unless the
derivative 1s part of a qualifying hedge

Hedge relationships are formally
documented at inception The
documentation includes dentification of
the hedged item and the hedging
instrument and explains the nsk that 1s
being hedged and the way in which
efiectiveness of the hedge relationship will
be assessed at inception and dunng the
period of the hedge If the hedge 1s not
highly effective In offsetting changes in far
values or cash flows atinbutable te the
hedged nsk, consistent with the document-
ed risk management strategy, hedge
accounting 15 discontinued In such
cireumstances, amounts retamned in equity
are iImmediately recycled to profit and loss
The group may enter into three types of
hedges hedges of changes in the fawr
value of a recognised asset or hability or
firm commitment {far value hedges),
hedges of the variability in cash flows from

a recognised assel or hability or a forecast
transaction (cash flow hedges), and
hedges of the net investment in a foreign
entity (net investment hedges)

1) Fair value hedges

Changes in the far value of denvatives
that are designated and which qualfy as
fair value hedges are recorded in the profit
and loss account, together with the gain
and loss on the hedged item attributable to
the hedged nsk

2) Cash flow hedges

In the case of a cash flow hedge, the
portion of the gain or loss on the hedging
instrument that 1s determined to be an
effective hedge should be recogrised
directly in equity and released to profit and
loss when the forecast transaction affects
profit and loss The ineffective portion of
the gain or loss on the hedging instrument
15 recognised iImmediately in the profit and
loss account

3) Net investment hedges

A hedge of a net investment in a foreign
operation 15 accounted for similarly to cash
flow hedges The portion of the gain or
loss on the hedging instrument that 1s
determined to be an effective hedge 1s
recognised directly in equity and released
to profit and loss on disposal of the foreign
operation The ineffective porbion of the
gain or loss on the hedging instrument 1s
recognised immediately i the profit and
loss account

Impairment of financial assets

The group assesses at each balance sheet
date whether there 1s objective ewidence
that a financial asset or group of financial
assets classified as held-to-matunty,
available-for-sale or loans and receivables
15 impared A financial asset or portfclio of
financial assets is impared and an
impairment loss recognised where there 1s
objective evidence that an event occumng
after imbal recogmition of the asset, has
adversely affected the amount or timing of
future cash flows and this effect can be
reliably estimated

For financial assets carned at amortised
cost, the amount of the mpairment loss 1s
measured as the difference between the
carrying amount of the financizl asset and
the present value of estmated future cash
flows discounted at the original market rate
of retun for a simitar financial asset
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Cash flows relating to short-term
recetvables (less than three months)
generally are not discounted Impairment
losses are recognised immediately in profit
and loss If, in a subsequent period, the
amount of the impairment or bad debt loss
decreases and the decrease can be
related objectively to an event occurmnng
after the recognition of the onginal loss,
this loss 1s reversed The reversal shall not
result in a carrying amount of the financial
asset that exceeds what the amortised
cost would have been had the imparment
not been recognised at the date the
impairment i1s reversed

For financial assets carned at farr value, If
there 1s objective evidence of impairment
of an avallable-for-sale financial asset, the
cumulative net loss (difference between
amortised acquisition cast and current far
value less any impairment loss previcusly
recognised in profit or loss) that has prew-
ously been recognised 1n equity 1s
removed and recognised in the income
statement If in a subsequent pernod, the
far vatue of an avalable-for-sale debt
instrument increases and the increase can
be objectively related to an event occuming
after the loss was recognised, the loss may
be reversed through prcfit or loss
Imparrments on tnvestments in equity
securities cannot be reversed

Purchase and resale agreements

Secunties purchased under agreements to
resell (reverse repos') are recorded as
loans and advances to other banks or
customers, as appropnate The difference
between the sale and repurchase prnce 1s
treated as interest and accrued over the
Iife of the agreements using the effective
interest method

Secuntes sold subject to repurchase
agreements (‘repocs') are not entered into
by the group

Goodwill and intangible assets

1} Goodwli

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost
of an acquisition over the far value of the
group's share of the identfiable net
tangible and intangible assets of an
acquired entity at the date of acquisition
Goodwill 1s carned at cost less
accumulated impairment lesses and tested
for impairment annually or more frequently
where events or changes in circumstances
indicate that it might be impaired For the

purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to cash-generating units, the
smallest identfiable group of assets that
generates cash inflows that are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other
assets or groups of assets I impairment
1s identified, the camytng value of goodwill
15 written down to its net recoverable
amount Imparment lcsses are
immediately recogmsed in profit and loss
and are not subsequently reversed

2) Computer software

Computer software hicenses are
capitalised con the basis of the costs
incurred to acquire and bnng to use the
specific software

These costs are amortised on a straught-
ine basis

Costs associated with the development
phase of computer software being deve-
loped by, and for use of, the group are
capitalised only when the following can be
demonstrated

- technical feasibility,

- intention to complete,

- abilty to use or sell the asset,

- generation of probable future economic
benefits,

- availability of technical, financial
and

- other resources, and

- reliable measurement of
attnibutable expenditure

Borrowing costs that are directly
attnbutable to the acquisition or
development of software are considered as
part of the cost of the software

The cost of intemally developed software i1s
amortised using the straight-line method
over its estimated useful ife Impairment
tests are performed annually or more
frequently if events or circumstances
indicate that the asset might be imparred

Casts associated with mantaining or
upgrading computer software programs are
recognised as an expense as incurred

3} Other intangible assets

At the tme of a business combination, part
of the cost might be attnbuted to one or
more intangible assets when these are
separable or anse from contractual or other
legal nghts (such as contractual customer
relaticnships), prowded a fair value can be
measured rehably

For each asset, the expected useful ife ts also
assessed Where this 1s a finite penod, the

cost of the asset will be amortised using the
straight-ine method over that penod The
estimated useful lfe 1s assessed to be
indefinte when, following an analysis of all
of the relevant factors, there 1s no
foreseeable imit to the penod over which the
assel 1s expected to generate net cash
inflows In such circumstances, the cost will
not be amortised

The amortisation penod and amortisation
method for assets with a finite life are
reviewed at least at each financial year-end,
and changed when necessary

For assets with an indefinite Ife, impairment
tests are performed annually or more fre-
quently if events or crcumstances indicate
that the asset might be imparred

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at
cost less accumulated depreciation Where
an item of property, plant and equipment
compnses major components having differ-
ent uselul ives, these components are
accounted for separately

Borrowing costs that are directly attinbutable
to the acquisition of an asset are considered
as part of the cost of the asset

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's
camying amount or are recognised as a sepa-
rate asset, as appropnate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits asso-
ciated with the item will flow to the group
and the cast can be measured reliably All
other costs are charged to the income state-
ment during the financial penod n which
they are incurred

Depreciation on property, plant and equip-
ment 1§ determined using the straight-line
method to allocate the depreciable amount
(difference between the cost and the residual
value) over its estimated useful Ife

Land i1s not depreciated

Laases

Contracts to lease assets are classified as
finance leases where they transfer substan-
tally all the nsks and rewards of ownership
of the asset to the customer Contracts not
deemed to be finance leases are treated as
operating leases
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Assets provided under finance leases are
included wathin fixed assets at cost and
depreciated over thesr economic useful ives
takung into account anticipated residual vak-
ues

Operating lease income and charges are
adjusted where relevant by lease incentives
and are recogmised on a straightdine basis
over the life of the lease

When an operating lease 15 terminated
before the lease penod has expired, any
payment required to be made to the lessor,
or recaived from the lessee by way of
penalty, 1s recognised as an expense Inthe
penod in which termmation takes place

Cash and cash equrvalents

For the purposes of the cash flow state-
ment, cash and cash equivalents compnse
balances with an onginal matunty of not
more than three months, including cash and
non-restncted balances with central banks,
and loans and advances to banks and other
customers

Provisions
Prowisions are recognised where

- there s a present obligation ansing from a
past event,

- there 1s a probable outflow of resources,
and

- the outflow can be estmated rehably

Prowsions are recognised In respect of oner-
ous contracts where the unavoidable costs
of the future obhigations under the contract
exceed the econormuc benefits expected to
be received

Contingent habilittes are possible cbligations
whose exstence depends on the outcome of
one or more uncertain future events not
whally under the control of the group For
those present obiigations where the outflows
of resources are uncertan, or in the rare cases
where these outflows cannct be measured
rehably, this will give nse to a contingent ha-
bility Contngent habiktes are not recognised
in the financial statements but are disclosed,
unless they are remote

Employee benefits

1) Pension obhigations

The group operates a number of post-retire-
ment benefits schermes for ts employees,
including both defined contnbution and
defined benefit pension plans

A defined contnbution plan 1s a pension
plan under which the group pays fixed
contnbutions nto a separate entity and has
no legal or constructive obligation to pay
further contnbutions

A defined benefit plan 15 a post-employment
benefit plan other than a defined
contnbution pilan

The hability recogrised in the balance sheet
n respect of defined benefit plans 1s the
present value of the defined benefit obhiga-
tion at the balance sheet date less the farr
value of plan assets, together with adjust-
ments for unrecognised actuanal gans or
losses and past serwice costs The defined
benefit obhgation 1s calculated annually by
independent actuanes using the projected
unit credit method The present value of the
deftned benefit obligation i1s determined by
discounting the estimated future cash out-
flows using interest rates of high-qualty
corporate bonds that are denominated in
the currency in which the benefits will be
paid, and that have terms to matunty
approxmating to the terms of the related
pension liabiity For countries without a
deep corporate bond market, reference 1s
made to the redemption yield on
government bonds

Al actuanal gans and losses ansing from
expenence adjustments and changes in
actuanal assumptions are recognised in
equity in the penod in which they occur
Past service cost 1s recognised in the profit
and loss account over the average penod
until the benefits become vested If the ben-
efits are already vested, the past service cost
13 recognised immediately

The costs of defined contnbution plans are
charged to the iIncome statement in the
period in which they fall due

2) Other postretirement benefits

Some group companies provide post-retire-
ment healthcare benefits to their retirees
The expected costs of these benefits are
accrued over the penod of employment
using an accounting methodology similar to
that for defined benefit pension plans
Actuanal gains and losses ansing from expe-
nence adjustments, and changes in actuanal
assumptions, are charged or credited to
equity These obligations are valued annually
by independent qualfied actuanes

Current and defoerred tncome taxes

Current tax payable on profits, based on the
apphicable tax law in each junsdichon, 1s
recognised as an expense in the penod in
which profits anse

Deferred Income tax is provided in full,
using the iability method, on tempaorary
tmuing differences ansing between the tax
bases of assets and habihites and therr camy-
ing amounts in the consolidated financial
statements Deferred income tax s deter-
mined using tax rates {(and laws) that have
been enacted or substantially enacted by the
balance sheet date and are expected to
apply when the related deferred income tax
asset s realised or the deferred income tax
iability 1s settled

The pnncipal temporary differences anse
from

- depreciation of tangible fixed assets and
amortsation of intangible assets,

- revaluabon of certain financial assets and
liabites including denvative contracts,

- prowsions for pensions and other post-
retrement benefits,

- taxlosses camed forward, and

- in relaton to acquisitions, the difference
between the fair values of the net assets
acquired and therr tax base

Temporary differences on the inbal recogni-
tion of assets and lhiabiies other than those
acquired In 2 business combinabon are not
recognised unless the transaction affects
accounting or taxable profit

Deferred tax assets, including those related
to income tax losses available for carry for-
ward, are recognised when it 1s probable that
future taxable profit will be available aganst
which the temporary differences can be
utthsed

Deferred income tax 1s provided on tempo-
rary differences ansing from investments in
subsidianes and associates, except where

- the timing of the reversal of the tempo-
rary iming difference s controiled by the
group, and

- 1t s probable that the diference will not
reverse In the foreseeable future

Current tax assets and habihtes are offset
when they anse in the same entity and
where there 15 both a legal nght of offset
and the intention to settle on a net basis or
to realise the asset and settle the habihty
simultanecusly
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Deferred tax refated to a transaction or
event which 1s charged or credited directly to
equity (e g fair value re-measurement of
avallable-for-sale investments and cash flow
hedges}, 15 also credited or charged directly
to equity and 1s subsequently recognised in
the income statement together with the
deferred gamn or loss

Deferred tax assets and habilhes are not
discaounted

Dridends

Diidends on ordinary shares are recogmised
In equity and as a hiability in the period In
which they are approved by the Company's
sharehoiders

Dradends for the penod that are declared
after the balance sheet date are not recog-
nised as a hability and are instead disclosed
as subsequent events

Comparatives

Comparative figures have been adjusted
where necessary to conform to changes in
presentation in the current year

Some cost recovenes included under
Other operating income in 2008 are
reported under Administrative expenses in
2009 The impact of this change on the
relevant consolidated income statement
captions 1s shown below The change had
no impact on the profit of the current and

pror penods
Consoldated income statement

tmpact of 2008
{€000) 2008 change restated
Other opereting ncome 20,178 (7,439) 12,739

Administrative expenses (798,207) 7,439 (736,763)
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Il Risk management and financial nsk management environment

1 Managing business In a nsk controlled environment

Euroclear has organised its nsk management functon at group level to ensure a complete and consistent management of the nsks faced by each
of its services or entihes Working with the business areas, the nsk management function has developed a comprehensive nsk framework, based
on an Enterpnse Risk Management (ERM) approach, an internal view on the capitai needed by each entity, as well as appropnate policies and
procedures

Euroctear's ERM framework 1s based on relevant market and regulatory standards These include the work of COSO (Committee of Sponsonng
Organizations of the Treadway Commussion), which has established a common intemal control model against which companies may assess thewr
control systems, 1ISO 31000 2009 pnnciples and generic guidelines on nsk management, and IS0 27001 2005 for Information Secunty, and
Advanced Measurement Approach (AMA) for Operational Risk Several Euroclear entities, including Euroclear Bank, make audited SAS 70
control statements to inform clients and cther stakeholders about their control environments The framework 1s supported by a governance
structure that makes clear the responsibility for control monitonng Euroclear also has appropnately formal but pragmatic processes and
procedures These cover both day-to-day operationat processes and nsk/control processes which include the identification, momitonng and
ribgation of nsks and incident handling processes

Euroclear uses the ERM framework to ensure the coherence of its nisk management and internal contral actmties The ERM framework helps nsk
owners take decisions mn line with the Company's nsk appetite It consssts of three main components

1 All the major nsks that Euroctear faces in pursuing its corporate objectives are listed in the nsk register, which s approved by the Board Seven
principal categones of nsk (‘enterprse nsks') have been identified Three anse from the prowision of Euroclear's daily services (credit,

Iquidity and operational nsk) Ancther three are related to the environment in which Euroclear operates (market, business and strategic nsk)
Finally, one nsk (strategic projects nsk) 1s addressed separately, as it 1 particularly important for the orgamisation and s managed

separately from day-to-day services The nsk register 1s complemented by a more detailed database of nsks (including mitigated and accepted
nsks)

2 Embedded within the ERM framework 1s the Internal Controls System (ICS) Euroclear has a well established ICS to allocate roles and
responsibilibies in the management of nsks The nsk register 1s supported by high-level control objectives to mitigate key nsks These control
objectives are approved by the Euroclear SA/NV Management Committee and are owned by division heads, who have the lead responsibiiity in
managing the associated nsks This approach enables the nsks related to the provision of Euroclear serices to be identified and then managed
or accepted in accordance with the busiess model The high level control objectives are supported by second level control objectives,
established by business management and with a clear link te the mission of each business umit. These second level control objectives are
supported by detalled controls descnbing how the nsks impacting business activities are to be miigated

3 The third component of the ERM framework 1s the annual self-assessment process The second level control objectives form the basis of the
annual business Risk & Control Self-Assessments (RCSAs) and the complementary Honzontal Self-Assessments (HSAs) The RCSAs and HSAs
aim to achieve the following objectives to

- build an accurate and consistent assessment of the ICS, 1e to achieve a good understanding of the nsk prfile of the business,
- ncrease nsk awareness and promote an ongoing assessment of nsks and controls by business managers,

- wentify new nsks by bnnging staff together in brainstorming sessions,

- quantify the nsks faced by Euroclear,

- ensure that ndwdual nsks in the ICS are identified proactively and that they are addressed adequately, and

- help management make a well-founded statement on the effectiveness of the ICS

The internal view on Euroclear Bank's capital needs s based on an economic capital model that 1s continuously kept up-to-date and regularly
valdated by an mdependent party Euroclear 8ank 1s therefore fully confident that the resulting capital requirements are adequate to support the
nsks that it faces The model covers operational, market and credit nsks, as well as business nsks Liquidity nsk 1s addressed through strong
iquidity plans and strategic nsk recesves constant qualitative attention from the management Because Euroclear Bank systematically seeks to
mimimise nsk, the base case figures are small in relation to Euroclear Bank's actual capital, but the capital also aims at covering the worst stress
test amongst all nsk types, and also includes substantial buffers for model nsk and capital stability This conservative approach to capital,
combined with Eurcclear's strong nsk management and effective controls, has helped Euroclear Bank maintan its current AA+ rating in times of
market stress

Euroclear has been working on the implementation of the Basel || framework since the early stages of the Basel Committee’s work Euroclear
Bank, Euroclear SA/NV, and Euroclear plc as the parent company, received at the end of 2006, the regutator's accreditabion to use the
Foundation Internal Ratings Based Approach for credit nsk under Basel II's first Pillar Euroclear has been using Base! I as from 1 January 2007
to compute the group's regulatory capital needs for credit nsk.

Euroclear has also obtained the regulatory accreditation to use the AMA to calculate regulatory capital requirements for operational nisk as from
the first quarter of 2008 This accreditation was accompanied by a number of terms and condiions which were implemented dunng 2008 and
2009 In 2008, the CBFA imposed an add-on, which was reduced in 2009 The add-on brought capital requirements for operational nsk with the
AMA to a hugher level than would be the case with the Basic Indicator Approach {BIA) A final decision on the AMA methodology, including the
level of an eventual add-on, 1s expected in the coming months The capital requirements for operational nsk were also significantly influenced by a
worsenng frend in operational nsk losses recorded by the Operational Riskdata eXchange (ORX), which Euroclear uses in its operational nsk
maode! to complement data on internal losses This does not reflect a detenoration in Euroclear's own control environment

Finally, Euroclear delivered a public disclosure under Pillar 3 of Basel Ii for the second time 1n 2008 That report was enhanced compared to the
previous year with, among cthers, the inclusion of a chapter dedicated to hquidity nsk management, in order to present a coherent and compiete
view of the nsks that Euroclear is facing and of the group's nsk management approaches Further details can be found on the website This
disclosure 1s annual
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2 Euroclear group financial nsk management

Creditnsk is defined as the nsk of loss (direct or conttngent) ansing from the fallure of a counterpart to meet its obligations to Euroclear Liquidity
nsk s the nsk of loss ansing from Euroclear being unable to seftle an obligation for full value when due Liquidity nsk does not imply that Euroclear
15 Insolvent since it may be able to setile the required debit obligations at some unspecriied time thereafter Market nsk 1s the uncertainty on future
earnings and on the value of assels and habilites (on or off balance sheet) due to changes in interest rates and foreign exchange rates

The framework put In place at Euroclear ensures that financial nsks are tightly controlled At the level of Euroclear Bank, the core of ths
framework 15 formed by financial nsk Board policies (separate policies exst for market, credit and hquidity nsk) These Board policies formulate a
nsk and contral statement, and the pnnciples by which Euroclear Bank seeks to ensure effective assessment and management of these nsks
The policies define the nsk appetite of Euroclear Bank The Euroclear Bank Board, through the Audit Commitiee, oversees the implementation of
the nsk Board policies, and reviews the policies at least every two years or when required Board policies are complemented by management
resolutons and tmplementing procaedures The nsk control framework of the Euroclear CSDs reflects the imited purpose statutory goal of these
entities, as well as therr nsk-averse nature and the stnngent regulatory regime in which they operate

3 Credit nsk

Euroclear Bank

The nsk of a credit loss for Euroclear Bank s very low and Euroclear Bank has never suffered a credit loss inits entire hustory, not even dunng the
penod of market tumoil This is largely due to the very short duration of the credit exposure which, In general, 1s infra-day Additionally, Euroclear
Bank applies very stnct collateralisation rules, resulting in average collateralisation levels for its client credit exposure close to 99% These
exposures are mostly secured with very high quality collateral Euroclear Bank’s clients that are granted secured credit faciities usually pledge
financial assets deposited in Euroclear Bank to secure thewr credit usage in order to accurately determine the value of the collateral it takes,
Euroclear Bank has developed a dynamic internal collateral valuation model to compute adequate haircuts, by secunty, considenng market,
credit, country and iquidity nsks Haircuts are computed at least once a day for all secunties, reflecting the latest market nsk factors and market
condtions The collaterat valuation model 1s back-tested and stress-tested yearly The collateral valuation medel has prowided continued
adequate valuaticns, even in a penod of very highly volatle markets

In additon, Euroclear Bank also has treasury exposures resutiing from chents’ end-of-day posiions  Such positions are usually re-deposited in the
market wath huigh quality counterpartes Where possible, repos are used but some exposures remam unsecured The rnisks are imited by their
short duratien (mainly overnight), as well as policy imits

To comply with the qualitative and quantitative requirements of Basel ||, Euroclear Bank has been using an nternal rating model since the end of
2005 The model allows credit officers to rate all Participants and counterparties that are granted credst or market facilities and all the countnes
where Euroclear Bank has credit exposure The rating scale 1s composed of 15 different rating grades and each intemal rating 1s mapped to a
probability of default As Euroclear Bank has no default history, it uses external data to calibrate the probability of default

Tha Euroclear CSDs

As their transactions settle in central bank money, the CSDs have no direct cash relationship with their chents Consequently, they cannot extend
loans or credit facilities to their customers The CSDs can potentially face a certain level of credit nsk anising from the non-payment of fees by therr
clients, albeit for imited amounts considenng both the freguency of the biling and therr relatively broad customer base Therefore each CSD of
the group 1s required by its home regulator to hold enough liquidity to cover such nsks Finally, the CSDs are also exposed to the credit nsk
refated to the reinvestment of therr cash surplus with their bank counterparties To limit the credit nsk taken on such counterparties, the banks that
are considered for these investments should at least have a rating of AA- or above However, in the current market context, where a large
number of institutions suffered from issuer credit rating downgrades, a st of A+ rated banks has exceptionally been considered, in case
government support s provided to them The type of instruments used 1s hmited to short-term or overmight deposits
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31 Maximum credit exposure

The table below summanses the maxamum exposure to credit nsk (net of any impairment losses recognised in accordance with IAS 39), which for
the purpose of this annex 1s defined as the net camying amount as reported n the financial statements, without taking into account any collateral
held or ather credit enhancement attached

(€°000) Notes 2009 2008

At 31 December
Financial assets

- Cash and balances with central banks polll] 945,344 1 020,166
- Loans and advances xvin 6,544,348 8,735 821
- Available-for-sale financial assets XX 1,274 321 1,103,176
- Held-to-matunty financial assets XX 298,729 289,551
- Financial assets held for trading XXl 6,022 19 251
- Denvatives used for hedging 4] 268 5123
Total financial assets 9,069,032 11,183,188
Secunties lending indemnsfications XXX 6,954,266 6,512,744

The credit qualtty of balances with cenfral banks and the portfolio of loans and advances can be assessed by reference to the nternal rating system
adopted by the group

Rating (in %} 2009 § 2008

At 31 December

Eaaa 12% 13%
Eaa 50% 58%
Ea 36% 27%
Ebbb+ and Ebbb 1% 1%
Ebbb- and below 1% 1%
Total 100% 100%

Theintemnal rabng 'Eaa’ shown above sums up the ratings ‘Eaa-', ‘Eaa’ and 'Eaa+' of Euroclear Bank's internal ratings scale Accordingly, the
internal rating 'Ea’ sums up the ratngs 'Ea-’, 'Ea’ and 'Ea+" of the internal ratings scale

The table below presents an analysis of the held-to-matuntty financial assets and the available-for-sale financial assets {excluding the equity shares)
by rating agency designation at 31 December 2009 and 31 December 2008, based on Standard & Poor’s ratings or their equivalent

Rating (in %) 2009 2008

At 31 December

ABA 12% 9%
AA+ 62% 32%
AA 25% 20%
AA- 1% 1%
Al 0% 38%
Total 100% 100%

A1 15 ashort-term rating comesponding to a AAAAA long-term rating
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32 Credit isk mitigation

As mentioned, Eurodear Bank aims at mitigating mast of the credit exposure on its Participants, preferably by relying on the collateral held and
pledged within the Participants’ accounts i the Euroclear System However, other means, such as statutory lien, external collateral, pledged time
deposits, reverse repos, letters of credit and guarantees are used as well Frequent montonng shows that more than 95% of the collateral pledged
in the Euroclear System has investment grade quafity Due to the international scope of s actvbies and the muthpurpose and muticurrency nature
of the credit faciliies granted to its Participants, the collateral pledged to Euroclear Bank 1s not specifically atinbutable to any of the different types of
credit exposures Euroclear Bank has on one Participant This means that all the collateral pledged from a specific Participant 1s there to guarantee
all the obligations it has with Eurociear Bank without differentiating within the nature of the exposure and the onginal currency

Euroclear Bank's unsecured exposure 1s almost exclusively treasury exposure resulting from Partiopants’ end-ci-day positions, which are usually
re-deposited in the market Where possible, repos are used but the remainder of the exposure 1s unsecured The nsks are imited by the high quality
of the counterparties, the short duration (marnly overmight) of the exposure, and policy lmits In case of market wide stress, Euroclear Bank may
deposit excess cash balances at the central bank for each of the major currencies

I
{€000) 2009 2008
At 31 December
Secured exposiure 972275 10,948 305
Unsecured exposure 6,272,345 6,727,766
Accrued interast income on financid assets 28,196 19,861
Total 16,023,298 17,695932

3 3 Concentration nsk

Concentration imits are set to ensure that the group does not take a too large exposure on too few Participants or counterparties European and
Belgian banking regulations also impose nsk concentration fimits that have to be respected for each applicable exposure

Large indmidual exposures above 25% of the own funds (Tier 1 + Tier 2 — deductions) are reported as breaches under the large exposures
regulation The sum of all large exposures combined has to remain below B00% of the own funds

Eurociear SA/NV and Euroclear Belgium, both located in Belgium, are subject to capital adequacy regulations equivalent to those applicable to
Euroclear Bank This stems from ther regulatory status, under regulahons applicable in Belgum, of “setliement institution” for Euroclear Belgium,
and "company assimilated to a settiement insttuton” for Euroclear SAINV Consequently, both entihes have to make sure that they do not breach
the same concentration imits as defined above for Euroclear Bank.

In order to mitigate therr concentration nsk, Euroclear SA/NV and Euroclear Belgium invest therr cash surplus with a mrumum of two external

counterparties For best practice reasons, the same 1s applied for other group CSDs, even if the latter are not stncto sensu subject to the same
capital adequacy rules
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3 3 1 Geographical concentration of financial assets and habilities

(€'000) o Notes Europe Amaricas Rest of the world Total
At 31 Dacember 2009

Financlal assets

- Cash and balancaes with central banks xvil 911,778 3 33,563 945,344
- Loans and advances xXvil 5,959,184 225,574 359,590 5 544,348
- Available-for-sale financal assets XX 1,274,321 - - 1,274 321
- Held-to-matunity financial assets xX 298,729 - - 298,729
- Financial assets held for trading x 6,022 - - 6022
- Denvatives used for hedging XX 268 - - 268
Total financial assots 8,450,302 225,517 393,153 9,069,032
Financial liabilities

- Deposits from central banks 20071 1,171,326 1,688 320 748 1,493 662
- Deposits from banks and customers p e avii]] 2,609 862 1,235 847 1,606,448 5,542,157
- Finangial labilities held for trading XX1 4,136 - - 4 138
- Denvatives used for hedging pod]] 2,663 - - 2,663
- Subordinated debt pe el 299,245 - - 299 245
Total financial liabilities 4,087,232 1,237,435 2,017,188 7,341,863
Al 31 Decamber 2008

Financial assets

- Cash and balances with central banks Xvil 992,580 3 27,583 1 020,166
- Loans and advances xvi 7,067,241 811,691 B56,989 8,735,921
- Available-for-sale financial assets XIX 1103 176 - - 1,103,176
- Held-to-matunty financial assets XX 299,551 - - 299,551
- Financial assets held for trading xx1 19 251 - - 19 251
- Denvatives used for hedging XX 5,123 - - 5,123
Total financlal assots 9,486,922 811,694 884,572 11,183,188
Financial liabilities

- Deposits from central banks 200711 260,171 181 209,405 468 757
- Deposits from banks and customers 20070 4 680 023 1119948 2 746,652 8,546,623
- Financal labiliies held for trading X1 5,667 - - 5,867
- Denvatives used for hedging X 2,142 - - 2,142
- Subordinated habilites 20010 305,108 - - 305 106
Total financial liabilities 5,253,109 1,120,129 2,956,057 9,320,205
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3 3 2 Rating concentration of financial assets

On average, in 2009, more than 95% of the settiement exposure {secured and unsecured) of Euroclear Bank was taken on investment grade
rated Participants, while almost 100% of treasury exposure was taken on investment grade counterparties In addition, on average close to 99%
of the settlement exposure 1s secured and most of this exposure 1s intra-day Therefore, there are no expected credit losses and no impairment
provision has ever been required

As for the exposure Euroclear Bank takes on its investment bock, Euroctear Bank follows a conservative approach stating that any secunty held
n the nvestment boak, which n IFRS terms 1s to be understood as all fixed income secunties belonging to the avallable-for-sale or held-to
maturty portfolios, needs to have a credit rating equal o, or greater than, AA-

Finally, as mentioned earlier, the surptus cash of Euroclear SA/NV and of the CSDs 1s invested short-term wth counterparties whose rating 1s at
least equal to AA- This places strong limits on the credit nsk they face For entihes that have a different investment policy upon joining the group,
a transition period 1s foreseen, whereby existing Investments are to be phased out or ended earlier if possible or necessary This 1s true for
Euroclear Finland which holds some longer-term investments

4 Liquidity nisk
41 Lwquidity nsk at Euroclear Bank

Liquidity 1s an important compaonent for affenng efficient settlement and custody services in Euroclear Bark it ensures the tmely cross-border
settlement with domestic markets, it supports the new 1ssues and custody actwty, and hguidity allows clhents to wire out the sales and income
proceeds in a timely manner

As a single purpose bank, Euroclear Bank's iquidity nsk i1s therefore largely intra-day and transactional and results from the secured intra-day
creditit extends to facitate delivery-versus-payment settlement Euroclear Bank's overnight settlement process, allowing clients to seftle a wide
range of currencies within a single ime window efficiently recycles and mimimises hquidity needs, as chents only have to fund the resulting net
debit position Although the daily ncoming and outgoing cash payments are typically matched, clients may stil end up with residual cash positons
at the end of the day Cn a daily basis, Euroclear Bank ts typically long in cash, which 1s then invested by Euroclear Bank mainly on an overmight
basis, to match the volatility of clients’ settlement and money transfer actwty

4 2 Liquidity nsk appetite

While the hiquidity requirements and associated nsks are mited by nature, Euroclear Bank's iquidity nisk appetite 1s very low, given the cnticalty of
intra-day liquidity for the efficent delivery of its setttement and custody services Euroclear Bank has therefore adopted a strong nsk management
framework to anticipate, monitor and manage the intra-day hquidity flows to ensure the quality of ts services and prevent problems The liquidty
nsk is further mitigated by Euroclear Bank's strict admission policy and continucus credit assessment of its clients, and by the fact that the
transactonal credit 1s secured and extended on an intra-day basis |n order to support the dally payment actwty, Euroclear Bank relies on a wide
network of highly rated cash correspondents and has direct access to TARGET 2 for euro payments

4 3 Funding

There 1s an efficient recyciing of quichity While Euroclear Bank settles €849 hillion {average over 2009) every day, it only extends some €80
billion of secured credit on an intra-day basis to its chients, given back-to-back transactions and an efficient Lending and Borrowing programme:
Since Euroclear Bank's dally cash flows are typically matched, 1 e the receipts match the payment obligations, additional iquidity 1s only there to
smoothe or accelerate the payment process or to deal with some timed payments spread throughout the day Euroclear Bank has built access to
a wide range of iquidity sources, including the intra~-day iquidity provided by a large network of cash correspondents and settlement banks as well
as the National Bank of Belgum Furthermore, Euroclear Bank has developed a broad access to the inter-bank market and has put in place
contingency iquidity sources for the major curencies Most of Euroclear Banks' capital i1s reinvested in European System of Central Banks
(ESCB) eligible secunties that are pledged to obtain iquidity Euroclear Bank continues to develop strategic initiatives to ensure adequate access
to hquidity on a day-to-day basis and in contingency situations  These imiatives include extending the ability for Euroclear Bank to re-use

collateral from Participants to obtain funding intraday and overmight

The adequacy of the bank's liquidity capacity 1s assessed and approved quarterly by the Credit and Assets and Liabiites Committee (CALCOY)
It monitors the trend of liquidity nsk that Euroclear Bank faces through liquidity key nsk indicators, which allow it to identify, amang other things,
changes in Participants’ cash management practices that may affect Euroclear Bank's hquidity A firstindicator shows the tming at which funds
are received throughout the day, as late credit confirmations can impact remaining wire fransfers A second indicator focuses on the adequacy
of collateral to support cross-border actty A third finally monitors whether the hiquidity nsk ansing from credit provision to Participants can be
supported by Euroclear Bank's hiquidity sources A complementary analysis focuses on all elements that could create further pressure on
Euroclear Bank's hquidity management across all currencies by locking at events that may detnmentally affect Euroclear Bank if they
matenalise or if they become more frequent or more severe Addihonally, the Banking and Risk Management Divisions inform the CALCO of
any notable change in Euroclear Bank liquidity capacity in the major currencies

At the height of the financial cnsis, Euroclear Bank saw its end-of-day client cash balances soar This eased the hquidity management of
Eurociear Bank, but at the same time created additional re-deposit nsk, which was mitigated through a higher spread on the remunerated funds
and re-deposits of excess funds at the central bank From January 2008 onwards, balances decreased tolevels exhibited before the cnsis
However, as uncertainty in the interbank market remaned high, Euroclear Bank continued to make use of the central bank in case of
exceptionally long Participant balances and maintaned a higher spread on remunerated balances
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44 Management of intra-day and end-of-day hquidity

Euroclear Bank ensures that it has permanent access to enough hquidity to support its core sevices It therefore forecasts, monitors and
measures the net intra-day funding requirements, which are denved from the cross-border settlement actmty, Clearstream Bndge activity, new
1Issues and advanced income payments, in a tmely manner and at different cntcal moments Euroclear Bank anticipates and monitors the end-
of-day position at each of the cash correspondent banks End-of-day long balances may be invested short term prowided that reinvestment
comphes with end-of-day liquidity imits, defined by currency and matunty buckets

Euroctear mantains a network of treasury counterparties to ensure sufficient borrowing capacity for the few occasions in which it has to fund
short end-of-day balances

45 Liquidity stress testing

Euroclear Bank performs on a regular basis both (diosyncratic and market wide liquidity stress test scenanos to assess the iquidity strains and
to ensure that Euroclear Bank has access to enough hiquidity sources to fund potential hquidity shortfalls For the group CSDs and Euroclear
SAMNV, iquichity stress testing 1s also performed to ensure, where applicable, ther respective compliance wath [ocal regutatory Iquidity obligations as
well as ther adequate funding

4 6 Liquudity contingency plan

Euroclear Bank mantains a strong liquidity contingency plan to ensure business continuity of its core settiement and custody services, in line
wath recommendation 9 of Recommendations for Secunties Settlement Systems published on the one hand by the Commuittee on Payment and
Settlement Systems of the Bank for International Settlement (CPSS) and the International Orgamization of Secunties Commissions {(I0SCO),
and on the other hand by the European Ceniral Bank and the Committee of European Secunties Reguiators (CESR)

This iquidity contingency plan documents the relevant operational procedures and ensures access to (contingency) iquidity in the event of an
operational or financial cnsis On top of its own capital, a wide access to the inter-bank market and a selective network of highly rated cash
correspondents and collateral providers, Euroclear Bank has negotiated commitied iquidity ines and can call upon a €1 3 bilhon syndicated
backstop faciity The contingency plan and the availability of contingency hquidity s regularly tested and revewed through stress-testing

47 Liguidity nsks in Euroclear SA/NV and the CSDs
Both for Euroclear SA/NV and the CSDs, two types of cash are to be distinguished from a hquidity perspective, 1  the cash positon linked to the
regulatory fiquidity requirements, for entrhes where such requirements apply, and the surplus cash, which includes the working cash needs of these

enthes

- the stable cash position linked to the regulatory iquidity requirements should be invested on a rollover basis, and
- surplus cash investments should always be cash flow dnven, which means that the amount and penod of the iInvestments shouid take nto
account the evolubion of warking cash needs and capital expenditure

The type of nstrument to be used 1s hmited to overnight or term deposits whose duration should not exceed six months

The table below shows the consohdated financial habiliies analysed by remaining contractual matunty at the balance sheet date The
amounts disclesed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows
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At 31 Decernber 2009
Financial inulifies
- Deposits from cartral banks Xl 1,493,662 - - - - -| 1493662| 1493662
- Deposts from banks and cistomers X0Vl | 5244750 278,294 4737 574 12,464 A0B4| 5543892| 5542157
- Finangal habilibes held for trading XX - 75 - - 115 2D6 4136 4,136
- Davatives wsed for hedging XX . 2108 228 327 . - 2663 2,663
- Subardinated habxlines XKl - - 12,451 - 49,804 306,451 368,706 29,245
Total financial i abiites 6,738,421 280,477 17416 901 6340 312441 | 7413059| 7,341,863
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At 31 December 2008
Finarcial lanBhes
- Deposits from central banks Xl 469,761 - - - - - 469,761 469,757
- Deposits from banks and customers X0V | 8.231,069 295,619 5079 - 11,37 6059| 8549205] 8546623
- Finangal hialites held for trading X0 2,000 913 77 65 570 202 5,667 5,667
- Denvatves wsed for hedging XA 950 1,089 103 - - - 2,142 2,142
- Subordinated liabilities YOI - - 12,705 - 50,620 325410 388,935 205,106
Total financial Eabilities 8,703,780 297,&21 17,964 65 62,760 333511| 94157107 9439295
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4 8 Farr value of financial instruments

The far value of financial instruments traded 1n active markets ts based on quoted market pnces at the balance sheet date A market s regarded as
active If quoted pnces are readily and regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pncing serice, or regulatory agency,
and those prices represent actual and regularly occumng market transactions on an arm’s length basts These instruments are inciuded in level 1

The: far value of financial Instruments that are not traded in an achve market 1s determined by using valuation techmques These valuation
techrmigues maximise the use of cbservable market data where it is avalable. if all significant inputs that are required to fair value an instrument are
observable, the instrument 1s included in level 2

If one or mere of the signrficant inputs 1s not based on observable market data, the mstrument is mcluded n level 3

Spectﬁc valuation techmques used to value financial nstruments include
- quoted market pnces or dealer quotes for ssmilar instrument,

- thefar value of interest rate swaps 1s calculated as the present value of the estmated future cash flows based on observable yietd curves,

- thefar value of forward foreign exchange contracts 1s determined by using forward exchange rates at the balance sheet date, with the resutting
value discounted back to present value, and

- other techrmques, such as discounted cash flow analysis, are used to deterrmine farr value of remaiming financial instruments

The table below shows the three-leve! hierarchy of the financial instruments measured at fair value

1 Quoted pnces In achve markets for the same instruments,

2 Quoted pnces n active markets for similar assets or habilites, or other valuation techrmiques for which all significant inputs are based on
observable market data,

3 Valuation techmques for which any significant input is not based on cbservable market data

(€000) Notes Level 1 Lavel 2 Level 3 Total

At 31 Decombar 2009
Financial assets

Avahble-for-sae financial assets XX .
- Equity shares 1,185 - 10,98 12,143
- Debt mstruments issued by cantral govermnments and cantral baks 1,247,627 - - 1,247,627
- Debt nstruments issued by financia instiutions 14,561 - - 14,551
Financial assets hed for trading XxX1
- Interest mte gphons - M5 - 845
- Interest mte swaps - 17 - 17
- Interest mte futures 1,015 - - 1,015
- Forward foreign exchange - 84 - 84
- Stock oplions 4,061 - - 4,081
Derivatives used for hedging bl
- Forward forengn exchange - X8 - 268
Total financial assets 1,268,439 1,214 10,958 1,280,611

Financial Eabilities

Financial Babilities held fortrading xx1
- Interest mte aptons - - - -
- interest mte swaps - 14 - 14
- Forward forexgn exchange - 61 - 61
- Siock optians 4,081 - - 4,061
Derivatives used for hedging XX
- Forward foraign exchange - 2663 - 2,663
Toal financial Gabilities 4,061 278 - 6799
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(€000)__ e Notes Level 1 Lewel 2 Level 3 Tota
At 31 Decomber 2008

Financial assets

Avaiable-for-sae financial assets XX

- Equity shares 1,215 - 121,384 122,599

- Debt nstruments 1ssued by central governments and central banks 944,606 - - 944,896

- Debt mstruments 1ssued by financid insttutons 36,681 - - 35.681
Financial assets hdd for trading Xl

- Interest mte ophons - 208 - 908

- Interest ate swaps - 1,369 - 1,359

- Interest rate futures 13,293 - - 13,293

- Forward foreign exchange 1,078 - 1,078

- Stock gptons 2,613 - - 2,613
Derivatives used for hedging ot}

- Forvaurd foreign exchange - 5123 - 5123
Tofal financial assets 997,698 8,468 121,384 1,127,550
Financial Gabilfies
Financial iabilities held for trading WX

- Interest rate opbons - 215 - 21%

- Interest rate swaps - 715 - 715

- Forward foreign exchange - 2124 B 2,124

- Stock ophons 2,613 - - 2613
Derivatives used for hedging hed]]

- Forward foreign exchange - 2142 - 2142
Total financlal liabiities 2,613 5 196 - 7.809
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5 Market nsk

51 Market rnisk in Euroclear
511 Interest rate nsk

The majonty of the interest rate nsk 1s concentrated at Euroclear Bank As part of the Market Risk Board Policy, an adequate nsk framework
has been put in place to measure, momtor and control the interest rate risk supported by Euroclear Bank Both Value-at-Risk {VaR) and
Earmings-at-Risk (EaR) methodologies are used as pnmary measurements of the interest rate nsk The Management Committee of Euroclear
Bank sets VaR and EaR Iimits for all currencies combined, which are momitored daly As from January 2010, the EaR framework was
replaced by a more transparent and comprehensive benchmarking of the perfomance of the outstanding hedges

The core equity (shareholder equity plus retaned earmings) 1s invested in nsk-free assets The duration of these assets 1s imited to five years
by policy and 1s currently around three years The VaR 1s imited Regarding the reinvestment of subordinaled debts, Euroclear Bank applied
the matching prnnciple, as it allows for the best nsk reduction all proceeds from the debt issued were invested in tugh quality assets with
matunty close to the matunty of the debt It eliminates any uncertainty on the value of the cash flows and reduces considerably the interest
rate nsk on the mark-to-market of the portfolio The interest rates VaR on the Treasury Book and the Hedging Book are also very limited

Interest rate nsk exists only to a hmited extent m the CSDs and in Eurcclear SAINV Indeed, the CSDs donot operate commercial cash
accounts but invest their cash position linked to the regulatory iquidity requirements, for entities where such requirements apply, and their
surplus The duration of the investments cannot exceed six months, and the types of instruments to be used are imited to straight overnight
or term deposits

The tables below reflect the matunty profile of assets and habitities at 31 December, based on the earlier of matunty date and interest rate
resetting date
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At 31 December 2009
Assets
- Cash and balances with central banks 945,180 - - - - 164 945 344
- Loans and advances 5,030,230 1,475,505 34,690 . - - 3,923 6,544,348
- Avarlable-for-sale financial assets - 151 080 11085 157,788 711,440 209,719 33,209 1 274,321
- Held-to-matunty financial assets - - - - - 294,483 4,246 298,729
- Financial assets held for trading 71 12 1,261 600 - - 4,078 6,022
- Denvatives used for hedging - 108 59 101 - - - 268
- Current income tax assets - - - - - - 16,845 16 845
- Deferred income tax assels - . - . - - 155 845 155,845
- Other assets - - - - - - 252,228 252,228
- Pre-payments and accrued income - - - - - - 89,066 89 066
- Property, plant and equipment - - - - - - 127,015 127,015
- Goodwll and intangible assets - - - - - - 1,292 508 1,282,508
Total assets 5,975,481 1,626,705 47,095 158,489 711,440 504,202 1,979,127 11.002,539 %
Liabilities
- Deposits from central banks 1,493,662 - - - - - - 1,493 662
- Deposits from banks and customers 5,244,446 278,260 4,185 574 11,096 2,958 638 5,542,157
- Financial labiiies held for trading - 61 - - - - 4,075 4,136
- Denvatives used for hedging - 2,108 228 327 - - B 2683
- Other liabilittes - - - - - - 264 948 264,948
= Accruals and deferred income - - - - - - 202,195 202,185
- Current ncome tax habities - - - - - - 4,811 4 811
- Befered wncome tax abiifies - - - - - - 2,985 2,985
- Provisions for habilities and charges - - - - - - 0,197 9,197
- Pension deficit - - - - - - 43,143 43 143
- Subordinated ltabilities - - - - - 292 422 6,823 299,245
- Redeemable preference shares - - - - - 14 - 14
Shareholder's equity - - - - - - 3 133,383 3,133,383
Total liabilitles and shargholders' equity 6,738,108 280,429 4,413 901 11,096 295,394 3,672,198 11,002,539
Total interest sensltivity gap (762,627) 1,346,276 42,682 157,588 700,344 208,808  (1,693,071) -
Cumulative gap {762,627) 583,649 626,331 783,919 1,484,263 1,693,071 - -
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At 31 December 2008
Assots
- Cash and balances with central banks 1,020,026 - - - . - 140 1,020,166
-Loars and advances 7,601,415 1,115,631 10,000 - - - 8.875 B,73591
- Avallatie-for-sade financal assets 10,000 183,646 198,420 242328 333,212 - 129,510 1,103,176
- Held-lo-matunty firancal assets - - - - - 296,305 4,246 299,551
- Finanaal assets hed for rading 2,857 241 5429 7404 - - 3320 19,251
- Denvatives used for hedging 1,115 1435 1,1¥8 1434 - - - 5123
- Curent ncome tax assets - - - - - - 21,957 21,957
- Deferred iIncame tax assets - - - - - - 155,241 155,241
- Othar assats - - - - - - 69,073 369,073
- Prepayments and accrued income - - - - - - 97.462 97,462
- Property, plant and equipment - - - - B - 145,376 145376
- Goodwll and intangible assets - 1,478,082 1478062
Total assets 8,635413 1,306,953 214,988 251,166 an,m 295,305 2413282 13450379
Labiltes
- Deposits from certral tanks 469,740 - - - - - 17 469 757
- Deposits from banks and customers 8,229,849 295,042 4,441 - 9,665 5,748 1878 8.546,623
- Fimanaal liabilhes held for trading 1989 198 7 & - - 3,328 5,667
- Denvatives used for hedging 9650 1,089 108 - - - - 2,142
- Other Lhabiltes - - - - - - 561,893 561 893
- Accnals and defered income - - - - - - 221N 222191
- Current mcome tax labilies - - - - - - 27,159 27,159
- Deferred incame tax hablities - - - - - - 6,825 6,825
- Provisiors far habiities and charges - - - - - - 583 5,836
- Pension deficit - - - - - - 56,033 56,033
- Subcrdirated habiities 298 144 6,962 305,106
- Redeemable preference shaves - - - - - 13 13
Shareholder's equity - - - - - - 3,241,134 3,241,134
Total habilities and shareholders’ equity 8,702,538 296,329 4,621 65 9,665 303,905 4,133,256 13450,379
Total terest sensifwitygap {67,125) 1,010,624 210,367 251,101 323,607 (8,600 (1,719.974) -
Cumulaive gap (67,125) 943,499 1,153,866 1,404,967 1,728,574 1,719,974 - -

A negative interest rate sensitvity gap exists when more liabilites than assets re-price or mature dunng a given penod A negative gap posttion
tends to benefit net interest income in a declimng interest rate environment, and wvice versa
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512 Foreign exchange risk

The group's entities have the euro as their functional currency with the exception of subsidianes focated in the United Kingdom and Sweden
The Brazihan subsidiary was liquidated dunng 2009

The group's structural currency exposures as at 31 December 2009 and 2008 were as follows

Net Cumency Remaming
imvestrent in hedges Structural
non-eLro otherthan Cumency
(€000} Notes operabons homrowmngs Exposures
Functional currency of the operation 1nvolved
At 31 Decembar 2009
= Pourd stering pedll 107,134 (107,791) (657)
- Swedsh krona XX 15,233 (17,558) (235)
At 31 December 2008
- Braziian reak 120 - 120
- Pourd stering XX 108,511 (108,763) (1.252)
- Swedsh krona XX 14,099 (13,784) 35

Euroclear Latin Amenca Limitada in Brazil was liquidated on 31 July 2009

The majonty of the foreign exchange nsk 1s concentrated at Euroclear Bank As part of the Market Risk Board Policy, an adequate nsk
framework has been put in place to measure, monitor and control the foreign exchange nsk supported by the Bank Both VaR and EaR
methodologies are used as pnmary measurements of the curency nsk The Management Committee of Euroclear Bank sets VaR and EaR
liruts for all currencies combined, which are monitored dally As from January 2010, the EaR framework has been replaced by a more
transparent and comprehensive benchmarking of the performance of the outstanding hedges

Foreign exchange nsk exists only to a kmited extent in the CSDs and in Euroclear SA/NV Indeed, to avad the potential foreign exchange nsk
that would anse from the investment of their surplus cash, ther Investments can only be made in therr local currency, 1 e In EUR for entities
whose funchonal cumrency 1s EUR, in GBP for the entities located in the United Kingdom, and in SEK for the Swedish entthes The most
signsficant source of foreign exchange nsk stems from the potential change in net asset values of the non-EUR Euroclear SA/NV's
participaton (e g Euroclear UK & Ireland, Eurcclear Sweden) This expesure 1s hedged on a roliing basis
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Il Risk management and financial risk management environment (continued)

The table below summanses the group's exposure to foreign currency exchange rate nsk at 31 December Included in the table are the
group's assets and habilites at carrying amounts, categonsed by cumrency

Concentration of assets and liabilities per

currency Japanese Pound

(€000) Notes Euro US dollar yen sterting Other ~  Total

At 31 December 2009

Assets

- Cash and balances with central banks XV 911,719 1 - 76 33,538 945,344

- Loans and advances Xviii 2,537,161 2,029,880 678,536 480 022 818,749 6,544,348

- Available-for-sale financial assets XX 1,274,311 - - 8 2 1,274 321

- Held-to-matunty financial assets XX 298,729 - - - - 298 729

- Finanaial assets held for trading xX1 4,990 840 - 192 - 6,022

- Denvatives used for hedging XXN 268 - - - - 268

- Cumrent income tax assets x 16,303 - - 282 260 16 845

- Defarred income tax assets xvi 153,042 71 - 2,732 - 155,845

- Other assets XX 96,674 101,602 1,400 20,044 32 508 252,228

- Pre-payments and accrued income b (1Y 66,706 10,763 - 10,441 1,156 89 066

- Property plant and equipment v 118,261 - - 6,829 1,925 127,015

- Goodwill and intangible assets 201 1,078,354 - - 22917 191,237 1 292,508

Total assets 6,556,518 2,143,167 679,936 543,543 1,079,375 11,002,539 ,

Liabilities

- Deposits from central banks XXV 1,258 490 183,301 4,354 10,554 36,963 1,493 662

- Deposits from banks and customers 20071 1,876,692 1,815,581 674,518 371,546 803,821 5,542,158

- Finangial iabiliies held for trading XX 4,122 8 - 8 - 4136

- Denvatives used for hedging XX 2,663 - - - - 2 663

- Other liabiities XXX 92,765 129,658 872 21,243 20,410 264,948

- Accruals and defemed income XXX 164,039 15,071 48 16,985 6,052 202 185

- Current income tax liabilities 536 - - 1,609 2,666 4811

- Deferred ncome tax liabilities xvi 1,389 - - - 1,596 2,985 "'

- Provisions for habiities and charges KX 1,529 12 - 7 656 - 9,197 \

- Pension deficit XXX 39,750 450 - - 2942 43 142

- Subordinated labilities XXX 299,245 - - - - 299,245

- Redeemable preferenca shares XXXV - - - 14 - 14 ‘

Shareholders' equity 3,158,774 485 - (20,275) (5.611) 3133383 !
i

Total liabilities and shareholders' equity 8,899,094 2,144,576 679,792 409,338 868,839 11,002,539 !

Net balance sheet position (343,476) (1.409) 144 134,205 210,536 -
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Congentration of assets and liabilitles

per currancy Japanese Pound

{€000) Notes Euro US dollar yon sterling Other Total
At 31 Dacember 2008

Assets

- Cash and balances with central banks xXvil 997,563 58 - 235 22,309 1,020,166

- Loans and advances Xl 3119,088 2,716,848 1,191,594 652,325 1 056,066 8,735,921

- Available-for-sale financial assets XIX 1,103,175 - - - 1 1,103,178

- Hald-to-maturity financial assets XX 299 551 - - - - 299,551

- Financial assets held for trading XX 9,365 7.493 - 2,393 - 19,251

- Danvatives used for hedging XX 5123 - - - - 5,123
- Cumrent ncome tax assets XV 21,886 - - 37 34 21,957
- Deferred iIncome tax assels xvi 153,843 - - 1,044 354 155,241

- Other assets XX 176127 127,768 4,912 14,120 46,146 369,073
- Pre-paymants and accrued mcome XUV 85,958 29 - 9,925 1,550 97,462
- Property, plant and equipment 200/ 138 293 26 - 5779 1,278 145,376
- Goodwill and intangible assets XV 1,268,871 - - 2217 186,994 1,478,082
Total assets 7.378,843 2,852,223 1,198,506 708,075 1,314,732 13,450,379
Liabilihes

- Deposits from central banks XXV 288,697 123,550 4,616 38,591 14,303 469,757
- Deposits from banks and customers 20N 3,276,159 2,606,041 1,188,978 504,837 970 608 8,546,623
- Financial habihties held for trading XXl 5,305 247 - 115 - 5667
- Denvatives used for hedging XX 2,142 - - - - 2142
- Other labiliies XX 279,204 205,673 2,764 577 39,675 561,893
- Accryals and deferred mcome XX 186,961 3,712 61 15,920 5,637 222191

- Cument income tax liabiities 1,508 - B 4,906 20,745 27,159
- Defarrad income tax Labilittes xvi 6,825 - - - - 6,825
- Provisions for habilties and charges XXX 4 464 - - 1,372 - 5,836
- Pension defioit poed] 43,100 - - - 6,933 56,033
- Subordinated liabiities e dl] 305 106 - - - - 305,106
- Redeemable preference shares 20V - - - 13 - 13
Shareholders’ equity 3,227,126 T34 - (3,648) 16,922 3,241,134
Total habilies and shareholders’ equity 7,642,597 2,939,957 1,196,419 596,683 1,074,723 13,450,379
Net balance sheat position (263,754) (87,734) 87 111,392 240,009 -

52 Market nsk appetite for Euroclear Bank

Market transactions are carried out at the discretion of Eurociear Bank, which accepts market nsk only within its risk appetite The nsk

appetite for market nsk in Euroclear Bank is hmited by the available capital allocated annually for market nsk, which s set by the Board of
Euroclear Bank In addition, Eurcclear Bank complies with internal market imits, such as Value-at-Risk (VaR) and Earmings-at-Risk {(EaR),
proposed by the CALCO and approved by Euroclear Bank’s Management Commuttee

Euroclear Bank adheres to the following pnnciples relating to the management of market nsk Euroclear Bank does not engage in any actvity
that is not considered as part of its normal business or a consequence of its Participants’ activity, and as such will not engage in trading

activity (even 1f, under IFRS, certain transactions in denvatives do not qualify as hedges and are therefore recognised under trading

activites) The activities and instruments that Euroclear Bank can engage (n must be in line with its low nsk profile Euroclear Bank 1s not
exposed to equity nsk or to commodity nsk A prudent investment strategy I1s applied in order to preserve the core equity of Euroclear Bank, in
particular, the assets of the investment book can only be invested in highly rated and quid debt instruments (with the exception of intra-
company loans) and an appropnate hedging strategy may be applied so as to protect future earmuings aganst adverse market conditions
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53 Market nsk mrtigation {(hedging)

Euroclear Bank has engaged in a senes of market derivatives n order to hedge the market nsk exposure resulting from future income
streams, with the aim of ensunng that the financial results are not adversely affected by market evolutions (‘predictability of future revenues”)
it 1s compliant with market expectations that Euroclear conducts its business prudently, as a single purpose bank This hedging strategy
occurs on a rolling five quarters tme honzon and must comply with stnct guidelines {1} To be hedged, a fulure cash flow must be expected
with a sufficiently high level of certainty, {2) a posiion, once hedged, may not be re-opened, and (3) any posiion above the antcipated leve!
must be reversed

54 Market risk measurement

a) Value-at-Risk

The market nsk relative to the management of the available-for-sale and held-to-matunty portfolios 1s measured using a VaR methodology
The VaR for a poritfolio 1s the maximum loss over a determined tme honzon at a given confidence level (99%) The VaR model assumes a
holding penod, until posibons can be closed, of one day The market parameters are derived from volatility and correlation observed from
histoncal daily changes Euroclear Bank has to comply with a global VaR limit, as well as VaR imits by book

The market nsk exposure that Euroclear Bank takes 1s segregated in the following books Investment Book (all securties purchased by
Euroclear Bank with the proceeds of its subordinated 1ssues and its own equity), Treasury Book (assets, labilibes and commitmentis resulting
from the activity of the Euroclear Bank Participants) and Hedging Book {market transactions that are conducted to manage the nsk exposure
resulting from future iIncome streams)

Given the low market nsk appetite and the fact that Euroclear Bank will not engage in trading activities, the VaR figures are low Evolutions in
investment book VaR over 2008 and 2009 are mainly due to changes in volatilihes in the market and the lengthening of the portfolio duration
from 6 months to 3 years

(€000} 2009 Average 2009 min 2009 max 2008 Average 2008 min 2008 max
Investment book IR Ask 2576 1,751 4017 1,135 691 2,007
Treasury book IR nsk 73 10 697 17 12 930
Treasury book FX nsk 16 3 70 19 2 148
Hedging bock 931 182 2,600 1,796 906 3,984

i

i
Aggregate VaR 3,186 1,874 4789 2,453 1,235 4,681

b) Earmngs-at-Risk

The market nisk relative to future eamimgs 15 measured through an intemally developed EaR methodology The EaR for a portfolio estimates,
based on a Monte-Carlo simulation and for a given confidence interval (99%), the potential values of Euroclear Bank'’s future income, converted
to base currency, at a fixed tme honzon, under normal market conditions The time honzen 1s imited to a rolling, five-quarters penod The
market pararneters are denved from volatiity and correlation observed either from histoncal daly changes or from option prices

The EaR framework requires a certan level of eamings to be guaranteed with a sufficiently ligh confidence level This mimmum levelis a
certain percentage of the revenues that would have been obtained, based upon the forward rates applicable at the moment of fixing

As from January 2010, the EaR framework has been replaced by a more transparent and comprehensive benchmarking of performance of the
outstanding hedges This benchmark will compare the futures eamings taking into account the actual hedges, simulated hedges or no hedge at
alt

¢) Economic capital for market risk

As of 2008, a new methodology has been put in place to estimate the uncertainty on the loss absorption capacity of Euroclear Bank over a
one-year honzon due to movements in market nisk factors (interest rates and foreign exchange rates) The loss absorption capacity 1s
defined as the buffer that would be available to Euroclear in the case that it would face a loss It 1s made up of the market value of the
investment book {Tier 1 capital), the unrealised gan or loss on the hedging book and the eamings over the next twelve months Based on a
Monte-Carlo process, an economic capital amount for market nsk 1s determined assuming a confidence level that allows Euroclear Bank to
obtain a AA+ rating

The economic capital for market nsk on 31 December 2009 was anly €69 million The increase compared to 2008 reflects the increased
duration of Euroclear Bank’s investment portfolio and 15 in fine with the low nisk appetite

55 Back and stress tests

Stress tests provide an indication of the potential size of losses that could anse in extreme condiions  Stress movements are apphied to the
different nsk factors, including movements in interest and foreign exchange rates The stress tests follow the pnciples as 1ssued by the Basel
Committee on Banking Supervision related to stress testing in their document “Pnnciples for the management and superwision of interest rate
nsk' (July 2004)
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56 Market nsk monitoring and controls
Daily and monthly controls are performed under supervision of Risk Management Daily, weekly, monthly and quarterly reports are produced to
ensure compliance and correct implementation of the nsk framework defined and approved by the Board of Directors

6 Capital management
61 Caprtal measurement and allocation

The Commission Bancaire, Financiére et des Assurances (CBFA) in Belgium 1s the main supervisor of Euroclear Bank and the tead
regulator for Euroclear SA/NV, and for consclidated capital adequacy purposes only, Euroclear plc In addition, indiwdual Central Secunties
Depositories (CSDs) are regulated by their own local supervisors, which set and monitor capital adequacy and liquidity requirements for
them

in accordance with the Basel || framework, the CBFA requires each bank and banking group to maintain a ratio of total capital to nsk-
weighted assets that cannot fall under a threshold of 8%, and a ratio of Tier 1 capital to risk-weighted assets that must always exceed a
threshold of 4% Furthermore, as a company closely associated with a settlement institution, Euroclear SA/NV 1s subject to certain specific
requirements regarding its solvency and hquidity posthen

Risk-weighled assets take into consideration balance sheet assets and off-balance-sheet exposures that may give nse to credit risk, as
calculated for both the Bank and the group on a censolidated basis Collateral and other ehgible guarantees are taken into account
appropnately

Total capital 1s divided into two Tiers Tier 1 1s essentially made up of sharehoiders’ capital, share premium, consolidated reserves and
retained earmings, white Tier 2 comprises undated subordinated loans in accordance with capital adequacy regulations, Euroclear monitors
the proportion of the Hybnd Tier 1 instrument (issued in 2005) that can be considered as Tier 1, and reclassifies the remainder to Tier 2
Goodwill and intangible fixed assets are deducted in full from Tier 1 capital The current regulatory framework stipulates that Tier 2 capital
cannot exceed Tier 1 capital, a requirement that 1s very comfortably met by the group

The group's policy 1s to maintain a strong capital base and to diversify its sources of capital appropnately, so that an adequate relationship
between total capital and the underlying nsks of the group’s business exists at all imes

As an enbity that penodically 1ssues debt instruments, Euroclear Bank has been assigned an AA+ rating by both Fitch and Standard &
Poor's

With effect from 1 January 2007, the regulatory capital requirements for Euroclear Bank started to be determined by the Basel i framework,
both on a stand-alone and consolidated basis, as well as for all consohdated levels above Euroclear Bank Whthin this framework, Euroclear
determines regulatory capital requirements both for credit and operational risk

As far as credit nsk 1s concerned, Euroclear has been using the Foundation Internal Ratings Based Approach (FIRBA) as from 1 January
2007, in accordance with the accreditation received from the CBFA at the end of 2006 Since then, Euroclear has also computed its capital
needs under Basel |, in parallel with the Base! 1| methodology, in order to be able to apply, If necessary, the so-calted Basel | floors set out
In the capital adequacy regutation

With respect to operational nsk, Euroclear has been allowed by the CBFA to use the Advanced Measurement Approach {AMA) for the
calculation of Pillar 1 capital requirements as from Q1 2008 Euroclear uses a hybnd approach at all consolidated levels above Euroclear
Bank, by combining the AMA for Eurcclear Bank with a Standardised or Basic Indicator Approach for the group’s other entities

In 2009, Euroclear continued to make progress with its implementation of AMA for operational nsk Euroclear worked towards fulfiling the
terms and conditions that accompanied the accreditation received in 2008 from the CBFA to use the AMA {o calculate capital requirements
for operational risk under Pillar 1 In 2008, the CBFA imposed an add-on, which was reduced in 2009 The add-on brought capital
requirements for operational risk with the AMA to a higher level than would be the case with the Basic Indicator Approach (BIA) A final
decision on the AMA methodology, including the ievel of an eventual add-on, I1s expected in the coming months The capital requirements
for operational nisk were also significantly influenced by a worsening trend in market wide operational nisk losses recorded by the
Operational Riskdata eXchange (ORX), which Euroclear uses in its operational nsk model to complement data on internal losses This
increase in the capital requirements for operational nsk does not reflect a detenoration in Euroclear's own contro! envircnment

The table below sets out the group’s total captal, which comfortably exceeds its regulatory requirements
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6§ 2 Regulatory capital position

The following table analyses the group’s regulatory capital resources at the penod end

(€000) 2009 2008
Risk waighted assets'” 6,104,357 4,440,656
Capital requirement 488,349 355,252
- Creditnsk 82,000 115,549
- Market rek 18,031 14,116
- Cperatonad nsk 388,318 225,587
Capital base 2,082,372 1,970,296
-Ter 1 2,081,238 1,957,033
-Ter 2 1,14 13,263
Solvency rato

-Ter 1 1% 44 1%
-Tad 1% 44 &%

' Risk weighted assets represent the total capital requirement muttiplied by a factor of 12 5 This means that the nsk weighted assets do not
only relate to credit and market nsk, but also compnse the gross-up of the capital requirements related to operational nsks For Euroclear,

the latter are the man source of capital consumphion

The lowenng of the solvency ralios observed as of 31 December 2009 results from the increase of the capital requirements for operational
nsk As explained above, this essentially relates to the worsening trend in operational nsk losses, unrelated to Euroclear, recorded by the

Operational Riskdata eXchange (ORX)
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IV Cntical accounting estimates and judgments

The Euroclear group makes estmates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of assets and habilites These estimates are
considered to be important to understand the
group's financial condition, since they require
management to make complex and
subjectve judgments, some of which may
relate to matters that are inherently uncertain
Estimates and judgments are continually
evaluated and based on histoncal expenence
and other factors, including expectabons of
future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances

Impairment of available-for-sale equity
nvestments

The group determines that avallable-for-sale
equity investments are impaired when there
has been a significant or prolonged dechine in
the far value below its cost. This
determination of what 1s significant or
prolonged requires judgment. In making this
Judgment, the group evaluates among other
factors, the normal volatility in share pnce

In addition, impairment may be appropnate
when there 1s ewdence of a detenoration in
the financial health of the nvestee, industry
and sector performance, changes in
technology, and operational and financing
cash flows

Where appropnate, the group has recourse
to adequate valuation techniques {e g
discounted cash flows, market muttiples) to
eshmate the value of non-guoted avallable-
for-sale equity investments, as explained in
section 4 8 of Nate Il

As far as such investments are concemed,
no ndicator of impairment has been
detected The group therefore estimates that
therr respective values in the accounts of the
relevant acquinng company are shll justfied

Fair value of financial instruments

The farr value of financial instruments that
are not quoted in active markets 1s
determined by using valuahon techniques
Where valuation techniques (e g models)
are used to determine fair values, they are
validated and penodically reviewed by
qualified personnel iIndependent of the area
that created them All models are certified by
Risk Management before they are used, and
models are calibrated to ensure that outputs
reflect actual data and comparative market
prices To the extent that is prachcal, models
use only observable market inputs, however,
certain pncing parameters such as volatlities
and correlations require management to
make estimates

Held-to-matunty investments

The group follows the IAS 39 guidance on
classifying non-denvative financial assets
with fixed or deterrinable payments and
fixed matunty as held-to-maturity This
classification requires significant judgment. In
making this judgment, the group evaluates its
intension and ability to hold such investments
to matunty

Currently, the usage of the held-to-matunty
category Is resincted to these securities that
represent those renvestment of the proceeds
recerved upon the issuance of the group's
hybnd Tier 1 capttal

If the group fails to keep these investments to
maturity other than for the specific
circumstances — for example, selling an
insignificant amount close to maturty — it wall
be required to reclassify the entire category
as availlable for sale The investments would
therefore be measured at far value, not
amortised cost

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment

The estimated useful ife of property, plant
and equipment s as follows

- freehold and long leasehold bulldings 25
to 40 years,

- bulding enhancements 20 years,

- leasehold improvements shorter of
economic ife and penod of lease,

- data processing and commumnications
equipment between three and five years,
and

- fixtures, fitings and furmishings seven
toten years

The impact of a change in accounting
estimate on data processing and
communication eguipment in 2009 was
a credit to the income statement of
€6,348,000

Impairment of goodwli and contractual
customers' relationships

The group tests goodwill and contractual
customers' relationships for imparment
annually (dunng the 4th quarter), irespectve
of whether there 15 an indication of
impairment. Furthermore, the group remains
alert for indicators of impairment throughout
the year and conducts a hugh level
mpairment review at each quarter end

Such imparrment reviews are deemed to
detect

- overpayment,

- under-performance compared with expec-
tations,

- signficant changes with an adverse effect
on the acquired business Such changes
can stem e g from new business parame-
ters or from changes in market data used
to determine the cost of capital of the
acquired businesses

An impairment loss 1s recognised whenever
the recoverable amount of the goodwill 1s
less than its camying amount (book value)
The recoverable amount of an asset 1s the
higher of its net selling pnce and its value in
use, both based on present value
calculations

- Net selling price 1s the amount cbtainable
from the sale of an asset in an arm’s
length transaction between knowledge-
able witing parties, less the costs of
disposal,

- Value in use 1s the amount obtanable
from the use of an asset untl the end of
its useful Ife and from its subsequent dis-
posal Value in use 1s calculated as the
present value of estimated future cash
flows The value in use calculation may
take into account not only the post-acqui-
sition performance of the acquired entity
itself, but also the changes 1 cash flows
in other entttes in the group that are
positively or negatively affected by the
acquisition

An imparment loss was booked as a result of
these reviews 1n 2009 See Note XXVI

Depreciation of computer software

The estimated useful ife of purchased and
intemally developed software 1s three to
five years

The impact of a change in accounting
estimate on data processing and
commuynication software in 2009 was a
credt to the income statement of
€1,931,000
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IV Cntical accounting estmates and judgments

Impairment of other intangible assets

Intangible assets that denve therr farr
value from e g contractual
relatonships, communication standards
or unpatented technologies and have a
finite useful Iife are amortised over therr
estmated useful life Deterruning the
latter requires an analysis of
crcumstances and judgment by the
group's management

At each balance sheet date, or more
frequently when events or changes in
circumstances require, these intangible
assets are assessed for indications of
impairment If indications are present,
these assets are subject {o an
impaiment review The impairment
review compnses a companson of the
carrying amount of the asset with its
estimated recoverable amount the
higher of the asset's net seling pnce
and its value In use, as defined above

The most significant amounts of such
intangible assets relate te the

acquisition of the NCSD group and
EMXCo

Contingent consideration

When a porhon of the considerahon to
be paid for an acquistion Is subject to
the achievement of specified
performance levels in the acquired
company, IFRS require the net present
value of the contingent consideration to
be recorded as a liabiity at the time of
acquistion Furthermore, In subsequent
years, this amount has to be reviewed
and adjusted to reflect the most recent
expectations regarding the juture
performance of the acquired company
Such assessment requires judgement
from managernent

This only relates to the acquisibon of
EMXCon 2007, and the final amount of
the consideration has now been
determined and paid See Note XXiX

Defined benefit plans
The present value of the defined

benefit plan obhgations depends on a
number of factors that are determined

on an actuanal basis using a number of
assumptions Any changes in these
assumptions will impact the carrying
amount of the obligations

The assumptions used in determining
the net cost (iIncome) for the plans
include the discount rate at the end of
each year This s the interest rate that
should be used to determine the
present value of estimated future cash
outflows expected to be required to
settle the plan obligations In
determining the appropnate discount
rate, the group considers the interest
rates of high-quality corporate bonds
that are dencminated in the currency in
which the benefits will be paid and that
have terms to maturity approximating
the terms of the related plan hability

Other key assumptions for plan
obiigations are based in part on current
market conditions

The major assumptions used are
shown in Note XXXII
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V Segment analysis

Segment reporting by the group was prepared for the first ime in 2009 in accordance with IFRS 8, Operating Segments The data relating
to 2008 has been restated to conform to the requirements of IFRS 8

The Euroclear SA/NV Management Committee receives internal reports for Euroclear Bank, Euroclear SAINV, Euroclear UK & ireland, the
ESES CSDs, NCSD, EMXCo and Xtrakter

The reportable business segments are as follows

- Euroclear Bank (including #s Hong Kong branch} 1s an Intemational Central Secunties Depository {ICSD),

- Euroclear SA/NV (including its branches in Amsterdam, London and Pans) is the prowider of software development and non-operational
support services to the {)CSDs,

- Euroclear UK & Ireland 1s the Central Securttes Depository (CSD) subsichary located in the United Kingdom,

- The ESES segment includes the group's CSD subsidianes located in Belgium, France and the Netherlands, and

- The NCSD segment includes the five companies acquired in October 2008 NCSD Holding AB, Euroclear Sweden (CSD in Sweden),
Euroclear Finland (CSD in Finland), NCSD Systems AB and VKI AB

Information reported within ‘Other’ relates to EMXCo, Xtrakier, the parent company, a reinsurance company, a Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV)
established in connection with the 1ssuance of subordinated debt qualifying as capital for Euroclear Bank, two property development companies
whase properties are leased almost entirely to Eurociear SA/NY and a small client relationship subsidiary i Brazil which was iquidated in July
2009 None of these qualified as a reportable segment in 2008 or 2009

The nsks and retums associated with Euroclear Bank's ICSD services do not vary geographically, and accordingly it 1s considered as one
geographical segment The activites of all cther segments are within Europe, with the exception of the small, now iquidated, subsidiary
located in Brazil

No single customer generated 10% or more of the group’s revenues

Transactions between the business segments are on normal commercial terms and conditions Recharges of software development costs
and support services are based on forma! agreements between the enblies concerned

Segment assets and liabilities compnse all third party assets and habilites.
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2009
x

. . 2 a g

o ] -] 0 -

2 2 25 o o N B a
(€000) Notes 24 &3 G 3 g 8 & &
Nat interest income Vi 97,196 (1,355) 477 853 3ra 681 - 98,230
Net fee and commussion income Vil 399,218 {37) 98,228 160,483 75,383 25401 19 758,725
Intra group recharges 40 512,159 86 17,480 75 1,443 (531,283) -
Qther income €3,792 36,523 (109) 7593 951 57,266 (89,204) 76,812
Operating Income 560,248 547,290 08 682 186,409 76,787 84,821 {620,468} 933,767
Staff costs i (96,285}  (232,550) (5,184) {22,223) {20,894) (13,446) - {390,682)
Other direct costs Xl (36,515}  (234,172) (4,845)  (13502) (18820)  (12,194) 16,361 {303,687)
Deprecaton and amortisation 20V, XK (705) (29,532) - (1,997) (15,530) (7 213) - (54977
Royalty fees Xn {19,302) - (284) (526} (266) 1) 20,379 -
Group non-operational and
administratrve support serices (291,430) {17,325) (83,202 (13637) (1,259} (1,641} 531,264 -
tmpaiment XV - {85,000) N (111} {100,120) 320 - (184,912)
Operating profit/(loss) before tax 116,008 (51 289) 5076 11,733 (80,202) 50,646 (52 464) (491}
Taxation Xv {16,347) (1,338) (1,452) (4 144) (8 283) (6.336) - (37,900}
Profit/{loss} for the year 99,662 {52,627) 3,624 7,589 (88,485) 44,310 (52,464} (38,391)
Extemal revenues 947,925 2,068 102,244 150,296 77445 38,476 - 1,318,454
Revenues from other segments 11,460 548,365 275 39,202 76 £9,750 (659,128} -
Total revenues 959,385 550,433 102,519 189,498 77521 98,226 {659,128) 1,318,454
Sagment assets 9,012 811 1,234 569 86,483 153,303 393,274 122,099 - 11,002,539
Segment liabilities 7,339,529 139,449 6,118 27,122 21,827 335,111 - 7,869,156

The €52,464,000 remaining in the Elirminations column relates to dividends recerved from companies wathin the group

As explained in note XXV, the €85 milion of impaiment charges reported in the Euroclear SAINV segment relate to the goodwill recogrised in
respect of Euroclear UK & Ireland and the ESES CSDs The goodwill relating to these cash generating units onginated from acquistions preceding
the adoption of IFRS by the group At that time, goodwill was considered as a non-monetary asset of the acquirer, and it 1s therefore recorded under
this segment, along with any related impairment charge
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V Segment analysis (continued)

2008
x

N h 2 3 §

] [ -] 1] =

g 32 3= o a . 2 a

3-SR a 8 £ £ :
(€:000) Notes w a o @B o o w z 3] o ]
Net interest imcome vl 260,508 6,958 6,637 3,992 286 5414 - 283,795
Net fee and commission income wvil 456,256 (149} 141,374 183,963 12,556 13,831 40) 807,791
Intra group recharges - 508,069 70 1,566 - 4277 (513,982) -
Other ncome 37,721 506,993 (61) 6,885 (2) 133882  (639,027) 46 491
Operating ncome 754,485 1,021,871 148,020 196,406 12,840 157,504 (1,153,049) 1,138,077
Staff costs X (104 396)  (230,410) (6.339) (23,211} 4.072) (6,176) - (374 604)
Other direct costs xn (44,003)  (298,374) (7,032) {17,030} (3,747) (14,809) 19,885 (365,110)
Depreciation and amortisation KKV, Xxvl (573) (39,059) - (2161) (2421) (6,840) - (51,054)
Royalty fees X1 (123,448) - (502) (579) - (1) 124,530 -
Group non-operational and
administrative support senaces (293 691) (36} {94.273) (119709) - (530) 508,239 -
impaiment XV - - (361) 109 (20) - - (272)
Operating profit before tax 188,374 453,992 39513 33,825 2,580 129,148 (500,395) 347,037
Taxation Xv (48,237) 8,939 (10,933) (11,159) (1,214) (22 752) - (85 356)
Profiti{loss) for the year 140,137 462,931 28,580 22,666 1,366 106,396 (500,395) 261,681
External revenues 1,417 049 17,429 191,757 177,144 12,960 16,864 - 1793 203
Revenues from other segments 14,578 1,012736 41 24,182 1 154,231 (1,206 139) -
Total revenues 1,431,627 1,030,165 152,168 201,326 12,961 171,095 (1,206,139) 1,793,202 1
Segment assets 11,238,245 1,346,329 93,531 152,183 492,181 127,910 - 13 450,379
Segment habilities 9,589,464 177,387 9806 54,389 22,995 355,204 - 10209,245

The €500,395,000 remaning in the Ehminations column relates to dividends received from comparies within the group

The income statement amounts for the NCSD segment in 2008 only relate to the months of November and December 2008
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V1 Net interest income

(€000) 2009 2008
Interest Incoma

- Cash and balances with central banks 2,713 18417
- Loans and advances 90,948 400,911
- Available-for-sale financial assets 26,078 39,732
- Held-to-matunty financial assets 9,916 10,198
- Financial assets hald for trading 8,392 62,531
- Denvatives used for hedging {only interest flows) 127 -
Total interest incomsa 138,174 531,790
Interest expense

- Depasits from central banks 260 4,136
- Deposits from banks and customers 20,056 170250
- Financial habilities held for trading 6,678 57,717
- Denvatives used for hedging {only interest flows) 125 2,932
- Subordinated habilites 12,825 12,860
Total interest expense 39,944 247,995
Net interest income 98,230 283,795
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VIl Net fee and commission income

(€'000) 2009 2008
Fee and commission income

Cleanng and settlement 304,495 424,444
Custody 482,825 513 987
Other 116,148 276,491
Total fee and commission income 1,103,468 1,214,922
Fee and commission expense

Cleanng and settlement 53,564 114,886
Custody 159,557 170,126
Other 131,622 122,119
Total fee and commission expense 344,743 407,131
Net fee and commission income 758,725 807,791

Other fee and commussion incacme mainly relates to communicabion fees and the recovery of out-of-pocket expenses incurred on behalf of chents,

EMXCo's and Xtrakter's fees, issuer services fees earned by Euroclear Finfand and Euroclear Sweden and revenue earned by Euroclear UK &
Ireland Limited for collecting Stamp Duty Reserve Tax on behalf of HM Revenue and Customs in the United Kingdom and Stamp Duty on behalf of

the Insh Revenue Commissioners

Other fee and commission expense mainly relates to fees incurred on behalf of clients as well as other fees for collateral leasing and back-

stop facilities
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VIl Dividend income

(€000)

2009

2008

Income from available-for-sale financial assets

17,814

4,451

This relates to dividends receved from LCH Clearnet Group Limited, NYSE Euronext and Monte Titol
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IX. Realised gains on avallable-for-sale financial assets

(€000) 2009 2008

Availablefor-sale firancial assets

- fair vaue adjustmentrecognsed in equity and rdeased in profit or loss duning the penod - quotad debt instruments 7 502 -

- realsed esult recognised in profit or loss duning the period - quoted dett instruments 8,803 -

- fair vaue adpstmentrecognised tn equty and rdeased in profit or loss during the penod - equity shares. 10532 -

- realsed result recagnised in profit of loss duning the period - equity shares 6933 -
33,770 -

Total

During 2009, Euroclear Bank restructured the duration of its Avallable-for-sale debt securities, realising gains of €16,305,000

In November 2009, Euroclear Bank realised a gain of €6,933,000 in connection with the disposal of its shares n LCH Clearnet Group

Limited

A further gain of €10,532,000 was reahsed on the disposal of these shares at the level of the Euroclear plc consoldated financial
statements In 2002, Eurcclear plc acquired Cleamet SA in exchange for newly issued shares of Euroclear plc 75% of the Euroclear plc

shares were issued in February 2002 wath the remairing 25% to be 1ssued in February 2004 In February 2002, Euroclear pic dropped down

the investment in Clearet SA to Euroclear Bank in exchange for newly 1ssued shares, with no deferred consideration terms The value of
the Euroclear plc deferred consideration shares in February 2002 was estimated at €33,444,000 whereas when the shares were 1ssued in

February 2004, the value was €22,692,000 Additional cash consideraton of €220,000 was paid 1n February 2004 For the purposes of the

Euroclear plc consolidated financial statements, the shares in Clearnet SA had cost €10,532,000 less than anticipated When Euroclear
adopted IFRS 1n 2006, this amount was considered as part of the Avallable-for-sale revaluation reserve within Shareholders’ equity In

2009, at the ime of the disposal of the shares in LCH Clearnet Group Limited, this amount has been transferred from the Available-for-sale

revaluation reserve to the consohdated Income statement
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X. Realised gains on financial habiities measured at amortised cost

(€ 000) 2009 2008

Financial labihbes measured at amortised cost
- Realised gains 2088

Total

2,088 -

Durning 2009, Euraclear Finance 2 bought back €6,000,000 of its Hybrid Tier | debt, reatising a gan of €2,088,000
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Xl Net gains/(losses) on financial assets and liabilities heid for trading

(€000) 2009 __2008
Interest rate instruments and related derivatives 8,405 19 756
Foreign exchange trading 2,047 (706}
Total 10,452 19,050

The net gains on interest rate instruments and related denvatves relate to contracts intiated by Euroclear Bank n order to reduce volatlty of its net
interest eamings from the reinvestment of its euro, US dollar and pound sterding balances Under iIFRS, such confracts do not qualify as hedges and
the results are recognised under financial assets and hatities held for trading (Note XX{) These net gains are compensated vathin the amount of

interest income on loans and advances (Note Vi)

The net gains/(losses) on foreign exchange trading relate to

- net gans (2008 losses) on treasury swaps invhated by Euroclear Bank i order to convert balances m non-core currencies into euro or
US dollars for re-investment purposes Under IFRS, these results may not be included within net interest income,

- net losses (2008 gains) on forward foreign exchange contracts iniiated by Euroclear plc to cover the carnpany's Swiss franc tax

lrabihities, and

- anet loss on a contract inibated by Euroclear SA/NV to cover its pound sterling liability for the EMXCo contingent consideration (Note

XXIX)
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Xl Other operating income

(€000} 2009 2008
Occupancy income 3,923 3,687
Other 10,906 9,052
Total 14,829 12,739

Other manly relates to personnekrelated subsidies received {e g payroll taxes linked to research and development), and net profits ansing from

operatonal ncdents
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Xl Administrative expenses

(€000} Notes 2009 2008
Staff costs

- Wages and salaries 279,360 269 713
- Sccial secunty costs 72,588 71450
- Defined benefit plans 0041 12 838 10,189
- Defined contnbution plans 8,251 5419
- Other staff costs 17,595 17,333
Auditors’ remuneration 2,496 2,543
Consultants’ fees 122,598 191,615
Occupancy 48,620 45,260
Maintenance and repairs 41,366 32,925
Communications 22,557 22,269
Depreciation and amortisation OV, XXV 54,977 51,054
Other edministrative expenses 60,829 69,029
Provisions for habibtios and charges X 5221 1,469
Total 749,346 790,768

The average number of persons employed by the group dunng the year was 3,961 (2008 3,794) The figure includes a full year of NCSD

employees and a contnbution of 8 months of Xtrakier employees

The auditors' remuneration for Euroclear plc and its subsidiary undertakings was as follows

€000} 2009 2008
Fees payable to the company's auditor for the audit of the company's annual accounts 121 151
Fees payable to the company's auditor and its associates for other services

- The audit of the company's subsidianes, pursuant to legislation 1,647 1492
- Other services pursuant to legistation 58 83
- Other services (pnncipally SAS 70) 670 817
Fees included in the consolidated financial statements 2,496 2,543
Fees in respect of audit of pension plan 9 9
Total 2,505 2,552

Euroclear ensures that the independence of the external auditor 1s preserved through a specific policy adopted by the Board and agreed toby
PricewaterhouseCoopers This policy adheres to the hughest standards of independence The engagement of the external auditor for non-care

serices 1S subject to specific controls, monitored by the Audit Committee
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XIV Impatrment

(€000} Notas 2009 2008
impairment charge

Goodwll and intangible assets poot] 185,000 -
Other assets (88) 272
At 31 December 184,912 272
(€000} 2009 2008
Impairment of other assets

At 1 January 467 280
- Acquisttion of subsidianes 681 83
- Charge to the income statement (88) 272
- Amounts used {356) (98)
- Exchange differences 32 (70)
At 31 December 736 467

For other assets, impairment relates ta fees receivable from clients in several of the group’s CSD subsidianes, the recovery of which is at least

partially in doubt
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XV Taxation

Euroclear plc 1s not treated as a UK resident for UK tax purposes and has no taxable presence itself in the Unted Kingdom The UK Corporation
tax charge relates to the group's subsichary EMXCo, Euraclear UK & Ireland, Xtrakter Limited and the UK branch of Euroclear SA/NV The overseas

tax charges arose in Belgium, Brazy, Finland, France, Luxembourg, Sweden, Switzeriand and The Netherlands

(€'000) _ 2009 2008
Current Income tax expense 43,750 80073
Adjustments to curment tax of prior penod 182 125
43,932 80,198
Defemed lax charge/(income} relating to the ongnation and reversal of temporary differences (5,942) 5229
Deferred tax charge/(income) resulting from change in tax rate (90) (71)
Tax expense 37,900 85,356
Further information on deferred tax 1s presented in Note XVI
The tax on the group's profit before tax differs from the theoretical amount that would anse from using the standard rate as follows
Oparating proft before tax (a91) 347,037
Al standard rate of tad? (101) 85371
Effects of
- Natinal intereston capital (16,000} (17.625)
- Expenses nat deductible for tax purposes 85328 179263
- Income nat subject to tax (31.663) (169,151}
- Different rates in the companiesin the group 249 7,444
-Change of tax rate an deferred taxaton (90) {71)
- Adjustments to tax charge in respect of previous penod 182 125
Tax expen sa for the year 37,900 85356

' A rate of 20 54% (2008 24 60%), representing the effective tax rate (before impairment}) for the group, has been used as the standard rate

Since 1 January 20086, the group entities in Belguum benefit from a tax reduction inked to a notional interest on capital

The current income tax asset of €16,845,000 at 31 December 2009 (2008 €21,957,000) represents the total of amounts recoverable from

the tax authanties relating to pnor years and over-payments of 2009 income tax pre-payments
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XVI Deferred taxation

The details of deferred taxation are as follows

Matunty on or bafore Matunty after 31
(G_EQ_Q) Total 31 December 2010 Decemnber 2010
At 31 December 2009
Asseots
Defined benefit pans 13,557 - 13,57
Avallzblefor-sale secuntes (2,600) - (2,600)
Cash flow hedging reserve 206 206 -
Financia assets/{labilites) held for tradng {569) (569) -
Software development 67,227 152 67,075
Property, plant ard equpment 1,93 59 1,894
Tax loss carned foraard 61,802 - 61,902
Other temporary dfferences 14,169 2,852 1,317
Total 155,845 2,700 153,145
Liabilies
Defined benefit plns {2.307) - (2,307)
Preperty, plant and equpment 8 - 6
Other temporary dfferences 37 203 3,694
Irsurance resernve of Eumclear Re SA 1,39 - 1,389
Total 2,985 203 2,782

Depending on the total net deferred tax asset or habiity, across all types of deferred tax, at year-end for each entity, the analysis 1s provided
under deferred tax assets or deferred tax iabiliies At 31 December 2009, Euroclear Re SA and Euroclear Sweden had a net deferred tax

liability

Deferred taxation for both software development and tax losses carried forward mainly relates to Euroclear SA/NV
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XVI Deferred taxation (continued)

Maturity on or before Maturity after 31
[(€000) Total 31 December 2009 December 2009
At 31 December 2008
Assgels
Defined benefit plans 15,257 - 16,257
Available-for-sale secunties (14) - (14)
Financial assets/({liabilities) held for trading 665 665 -
Software development 67,466 9,453 58,013
Property, plant and equipment 1,303 359 944
Tax loss camed forward 60,233 - 60,233
Other temporary differences 10,331 2,684 7,647
Total 155,241 13,161 142,080
Liabilities
Defined benefit plans {4,403) - {4 403)
Avartable-for-sale secunhes 2538 2,857 (319)
Cash flow hedging reserve 957 957 -
Financial assets/(labilties} held for trading 6,823 6,823 - |
Other temporary differences (288) (288) - ‘
Insurance reserve of Euroclear Re SA 1,188 - 1,198
Total 6,825 10,349 {3,524)
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XV! Deferred taxation (continued)

(€000) Notes 2009 2008

Analysis of movement of the net deferred tax assel and lability balances

At 1 January 148,416 144,846

Acquisition of subsidanes X 625 1,109

Income statement XV 5,032 (5,158}
Deferred tax relating to items (charged) or credited to equity

- Defined benefit plans p el (3,384) 11,515

- Revaluation reserve on avallable-for-sale financial assets VI (65) (3,080}
- Cash flow hedging reserve OO 1,163 (223)
Exchange differences 73 (593)
At 31 December 152,860 148,416

The deferred tax asset recognised at the time of the acquisition of Xtrakter in 2009 consists of deferred tax assets related to property, plant

and equipment (€625,000}

The deferred tax asset recognised at the ume of the acquisition of the NCSD group in 2008 represents the net of deferred tax assets related
to defined benefit plans (€3,028,000) (Note XXXII) and property, plant and equipment {€156,000) and deferred tax habilittes related to

untaxed reserves (€2,062,000) and the far valuation of financial instruments {€13,000)

The deferred tax Income/(charge) in the income statement relates to the following temporary differences

Notes 2009 N 2008
Defined benefit plans XXXl (606} (6438)
Financial assets/{labilhes) held for trading 5,605 (5,959)
Software development (286} 13,033
Property, plant and equipment (11) (496)
Tax losses camed forward 1,669 (2,456)
Insurance reserve (191) (381)
Other temporary differences (148) (2,461)
Total 6,032 (5,158)
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XVIlI Cash and balances with central banks

(€000) Notes 2009 2008
At 31 December

Cashin hand 18 136
Loans and advances 736,721 1.018913
Included in cash and cash equvalents ROV 736738 1,020,049
Monday rsave 208,605 17
Total cash and balances with central banks 945344 1,020,166

At 31 December 2009, Euroclear Bank had deposited €700,000,000 (2008 €968,000,000) of surplus funds with the Belgian National Bank

Euroclear Bank, like other banks, 1s required to comply with average monetary reserve requirements determined by the European Central
Bank {ECB) Throughout each penod set by the ECB, Euroclear Bank deposits varying amounts in its monetary reserve account at the

Belgian National Bank in order to meet the average requirement for that penod
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XVIll Loans and advances

1
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As at 31 December 2009 !
Loans and advances to i
- central governments - - 6
- financial institutions 5,019,384 1,475,505 6,532 178 ;
- corporates 10 845 - 12,164 |
}
Total 5,030,229 1,475,505 6,544,348
The amount repayable on demand or within one week includes €1,470,786,000 of securihes purchased under agreement to resell (reverse
repg’) transactions
Other amounts matunng before 31 March 2010 includes € 937,513,000 of secunties purchased under agreement to resell (‘reverse repo’)
transactions
The farr value cf the loans and advances I1s not matenally different from their book value at 31 December
5 ® o
£ @ 8o - & -a ] ="
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As at 31 December 2008
Loans and advances o
- central governments 85,000 - 85,005
- financial msbtutions. 7 508 708 1,107,192 8,833 389
- corporates 7,709 8,439 17,527
Total 7,601,815 1,115,631

8,735,921

The amount repayable on demand or within one week includes € 3,128,830,000 of secunties purchased under agreement to resell (‘reverse

repo’) transactions

Other amounts matunng before 31 March 2009 includes € 704,309,000 of secunties purchased under agreement to resel! (‘reverse repo’)

transactions

The farr value of the loans and advances Is not matenally different from therr book value at 31 December
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XVIIl. Loans and advances (continued)

In terms of nature, the following additional analysis 1s relevant

{€'000) 2009 2008
Surplus funds 5 835,491 7 432,382
Loans and advances 708,857 1,303,539
Total 6,544,348 8,735,921

Surplus funds relate to Euroclear Bank's treasury exposures resulting from clients’ end-of-day positions Such positions are usually re-
deposited in the market with high quality counterparties, as explained in the credit nsk section of Nots IlI

The group's loans and advances exposure Is concentrated on the major banks with which surplus funds are invested and, to a lesser
extent, on the overdrafts of Euroclear Bank Participants Geographic concentrations have been based on the residence of the counterparty

Europe Amaoricas Other Total

{€'000} 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2008 2008
At 31 December

Loans and advances to

- central governments - 85,005 - - 5 - 5 85,005
- financial mstitutions 5,948,177 6,969,332 224,425 807,297 350,578 856,760 6,532 180 8633 389
- corporates 11007 12,904 1,148 4,304 7 229 12,163 17,527
Total 5,959,184 7,067,241 225,574 811,699 359,590 856,989 6,544,348 8,735,921
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XX Available-for-sale financial assets

{€000) 2009 2008

At 31 December

Equity shares

- Quoted prices in active markets 1,185 1,215

- Valuation techrigues for which any significant input 1s not based on observable market data 10,957 121,383

Quoted debt instruments 1ssued by

- central governments and central banks 1,247,628 944,897

- financial institutions 14 551 35,681
1,274,321 1,103,176

All debt secunties have fixed coupons Equity secunties do not bear interest

For unhisted secunties, the valuation 1s based on the pnces at which the secunties could probably be sold to willing and knowledgeable
parties These pnces are determined using generally accepted valuation technigues, including discounted cash flow modeis and relevant

market multiples

In November 2009, in connection with a share buy-back by LCH Cleamet Group Limited, Euroclear disposed of its shareholding in the

company, receiving a dividend of €17,568,000 (Note ViII) and realising a gain of €17,465,000 (Note 1X)

During the course of 2009, Euroclear Bank restructured its Available-for-sale debt instrument portfolio, realising gains of €16,305,000 (Note

iX)

The group has not reclassified any held-to-maturity financial asset dunng the year (2008 €0)

The matunty profile of the available-for-sale financial assets can be found in Note Il

The movement in available-for-sale financial assets can be summansed as follows

(€000) . R _ Equily shares Debt securities Total
At 1 January 2009 122,598 980,578 1,103,176

Additions 761 1,388,487 1389,248

Redemptions and disposals (100,655) (1,110,299) (1,210,965)
Gang/losses fran changes in farr value

- Gainsflosses on redeemed or sold securibes (10,532) (r.502) (18,034}
- Gainsflosses an held secuntes (30 7,649 7.619

Amortisation of discounts and {premiums) - (10,887) (10,887)
Net change in accrued interest - 14,154 14,154

At 31 Dacember 2009 12,141 1262180 1,274, 321

{€000) Equity sharos Debt securties Total

At 1 January 2008 124,979 1,141,303 1,266,282

Acquisiton of subsidianes 1 9,009 9,10

Additions - 1,439,530 1,439,530

Redemphions and disposals - (1,648,000) (1,648,000)
Gans/losses from changes n fair value

- Gainsflosses on held secunfies (2,382) 9,04 6,672

Amortsation of dscounts and (premiums) - 31,115 31,115

Net change 1n accrued interest - (1,433} (1,433)
At 31 December 2008 122,59 980,578 1,103,176
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XX Held-to-maturity financial assets

{€000) 2009 2008
At 31 December
Quoted debt instruments 1ssued by
- central governments and central banks 298,729 298 551

298,729 299,551
All debt securiies have fixed coupons All debt secunties are quoted in an active market
The group has not reclassified any held-to-matunty financial asset during the year (2008 €0)
The matunty profile of the held-to-maturity financial assets can be found in Note {1
The book value and the fair value of the held-to-matunty financial assets can be detaled as follows

i
2009 2008
(e000) Book value Fair value Book valuo Fair value-
At 31 December %
Quoted debt instruments i1ssued by
- central governments and central banks 298,729 305,538 299,551 297,151
298,729 305,539 299,551 297,151

The movement in held-to-matunty financial assets can be summarnised as follows
(€000) 2009 2008
At 1 January 299,551 352,964
Redemptions - (50,000}
Amottisation of discounts and (premums) (822) (827)
Net change in accrued interest - (2 586)
At 31 December 298,729 299,551
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XXl Financial instruments held for trading

The group's financial assets and labiliies held for trading are compnsed of the following denvatives which can be used by the graup to hedge

interest rate and foreign currencies exposures

- interest rate futures are contractual obligations to receive or pay a net amount based on changes in interest rates or to buy or sell a financial

instrument on a future date at a specific price,

- interest rate swaps and overnight indexed swaps are commitments to exchange one set of cash flows for another Such transactions resuft in

an economic exchange of interest rates,

- Interest rate options are contractual agreements under whuch the seller grants the purchaser the nght, but not the oblkgation, to buy or sell at
or by a set date or during a set penod, a financial instrument at a predetermined pnce,
- currency forwards represent commitments to buy or sell foreign and domestic currencies on a future date at a predetermined price

In order to reduce the volatility of its net interest earmings, Euroclear Bank uses certain interest rate denvatives In particular, t enters into trans-

actrons In interest rate futures and options, as well as overmight indexed swaps

Although these transactions do not qualify for hedge accounting under IFRS, such transactions allow Euroclear Bank to protect the interest rate

margin on the reinvestment of its long core deposits

Furthermore, In certain circumstances, currency forward exchange confracts are used by certain companies of the Euroclear group to hedge the
fair value of some specific habilities expressed in foreign cumencies These transactions are, however, not accounted for as hedges

1 Fair value and notional amounts

At 31 December 2009 and 31 December 2009, the fair value and the notional amounts of the group's trading denvatives were as follows

Fair value Notional amount
(€000)  Assets  Liabies | Assets  Liabilties
At 31 Decemnber 2008
Interest rate derivatives
- Interast rate options 845 - 600,000 -
- Interest rate swaps 7 14 173539 33,780
- Interest rate futures 1.015 - 487,827 -
Total 1,877 14 1,261,366 33,780
Foreign exchange dernvatives
- Forward foresgn exchange 84 61 12,807 10,523
Stock options {Note IV to Parent company financiai statements) 4 061 4061 45,604 45,604
Total 6,022 4,136 1,319,877 89,907
At 31 Decembar 2008
Intarast rate derrvatives
- Interest rate options 908 215 811,691 646,691
- Interest rate swaps 1359 715 1,548,198 -
- Interest rate futuras 13,293 - 3,725,008 -
Total 15,560 930 6,084,898 646,691
Foreign exchange derivatives
- Forward foreaign exchange 1,078 2,124 118,160 14,213
Stock options {Note IV to Parent company finanaal statements) 2613 2613 44 497 44,497
Total 19,251 5,667 6,245,555 705,401
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XX Denvatives used for hedging

In addition to the interest rate hedging described in Note XIX, which is classified as trading under IFRS, the group's policy 15 to hedge the follow-
Ing exposures

- foraign exchange nsk ansing from expected future income streams sensttive to foreign exchange movements, and
- stuctural cumrency exposures

Some of Euroclear Bank's fee income 15 sensitive to the level of foreign exchange rates In order to protect this revenue stream from adverse
movements in foreign exchange rates, Euroclear Bank enters into curency forward exchange contracts, whereby it sells the relevant currencies
on a future date at a predetermined pnce Such transactions are classified as cash flow hedges

In addition, the group also uses currency forward exchange contracts to hedge its net investments in foreign operations  Such ransactons are
classified as hedges of net investments

The positions taken on the hedging bock are managed according to the following key principles

- an exposure once hedged will not be re-opened, and
- unwinding of positions will be done only in exceptional circumstances, for Instance in case of an over-hedged position

1 Cash flow hedges

At 31 December 2009 and 31 December 2008, the fair value and the notional amounts of the group's dernvatives used for cash flow hedges were
as follows

Dorivatives designated as cash flow hedges

Fair value Notional amount
(€000) Assets Ltabilihes Assets Liabilitles
At 31 December 2009
Foreign exchange derivatives
- Forward foreign exchange 268 874 10,652 55,202
Total 268 874 10,652 55,202
Al 31 Dacemnber 2008
Faoreign exchange dervatives
- Forward foreign exchange 4008 2018 43,402 22,354
Total 4,008 2,018 43,402 22,354

The group applies hedge accounting for expected revenue streams influenced by changes in foreign exchange rates for certain currencies
At 31 December 2008, there was also a hedge contract in connection with the purchase consideration for Xtrakter Limited

The amounts recogrised in the cash flow hedging reserve will be gradually released in the income statement in the course of 2010, when
the related cash flows matenalise

There was no neffectiveness ansing from cash flow hedging to be recogrised in profit or loss as at 31 December 2009 and 31 December
2008

There were no transactions for which cash flow hedge accounting had to be ceased in 2009 or 2008 as a result of the highly probable cash
flows no longer being expected to occur
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XXII Denvatives used for hedging (continued)

The movements in the cash flow hedging reserve can be detaled as foliows

(€°000) Gross amount Deferrad tax Net amount
At 1 January 2009 1,990 {957) 1,033
Amount released from equity to profit or loss dunng the penod 2,293 (779) 1,514
Change of fair value directly recognised in equity dunng the year (4,889) 1,942 (2 947)
Change to cash flow hedging reserve dunng the year (2,536) 1,163 (1,433)
At 31 December 2009 (606} 206 (400}
At 1 January 2008 2,159 (734) 1,425
Amount released from equity to profit or loss dunng the penod 1,213 (412) 801
Change of fair value directly recognised in equity during the year (1,382) 189 (1.193)
Change to cash flow hedging reserve dunng the year (169) (223) (392)
At 31 December 2008 1,990 {957) 1,033

2 Hedges of net investments in a foreign operation

At 31 December 2009 and 31 December 2008, the fair value and the notional amounts of the group's denvatives used for the hedge of net

investments n a foreign operation were as follows

Falr value Notional
(€000} Notes Assets Liabilities mamount{:
At 31 December 2009
Foreign exchange dervatives
- Forwand foreign exchange 1,789 125 349
Total i - 1,789 125,349
At 31 December 2008 o
Foreign exchange denvatives
- Forward foreign exchange 1,115 124 123,547
Total I 1,115 124 123,547

The group hedges part of the currency translation risk of net investments in foreign operations {EMXCo, Xtrakter, Euroclear UK & Ireiand,
the UK branch of Euroclear SA/NV, NCSD Holding AB and Euroclear Sweden) No ineffechveness was recognised in income statemenls

that arose from hedges of net investments in foreign operations

The movements in the hedge of net investments in foreign operations reserve as at 31 December 2009 and 31 December 2008 can be

detailed as follows

(€000) Notes 2009 2008
At 1 January 38,530 16,829
Amount released from equity to profit or loss dunng the pencd (5071} (12,188)
Change of far value directly recognised in equity dunng the year (8,895) 33,889
Change to hadge of net investments in foreign operations reserve during the year XXXV (13,966) 21,701
At 31 December 24,564 38,530
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XXl Other Assets

{€000) Notes 2009 2008

A1 31 December

tems in process of collaction 166,361 321,672

Taavon and social secunty 40,884 24012

Other assets (after imparmeant) XV 44,983 23,389
252,228 369,073

Iterns in process of collecton prncipally relate to coupon and redemptton proceeds for Participants of Euroclear Bank
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XXV Pre-payments and accrued income

(€'000) 2009 2008

At 31 December

Pre-paymernts 14,512 20,657

Accrued fee income 73,619 75,832

Other acrued iIncome 9% 973
89,068 97,462

68




Euroclear pic anmeal report 2005 Notes to the consolidated financat statements (continued)

XXV Property, plant and equipment

Land and Fumiture and T Other
{€000) Notes buildings fixtures equipment equipment Total
Cost
At 1 January 2009 115,738 22,27 221651 61,118 420,778
Additions 746 64 7 529 2,714 11 053
Agcqulsition of subsidianes XLi - 952 4220 1,585 8757
Transfer and disposals - (3,174} (28,161) (8 470) {39,805)
Exchange differences - 139 549 597 1,285
At 31 December 2009 116,484 20,252 205,788 57,544 400,068
Accumuiated depreciation
At 1 January 2009 (53.258) (16,856) (164 797) (40 491} (275,402)
Acquisiion of subsidiares XLl - (920) (2,706) (1,393) (5,019)
Depreciation charge (3,710} (1,382) (21,786) (4,725) (31,573)
Transfer and disposals - 2,865 28,538 8,393 39,796
Exchange differences - (m) (485) (299) (855}
At 31 December 2009 (56,968) (16,334) {161,236) (38,515) (273,053)
Net book value at 31 December 2009 59,516 3,918 44,552 19,029 127,015

Land and Furniture and T Other
(€'000) buildings fixtures equipment eaquipment Total
Cost
At 1 January 2008 113,716 20,325 180,697 57,628 372 366
Additions 2,022 913 41,223 6788 50 946
Acquisitlon of subsidianes - 1,522 4,425 208 6 155
Transfer and disposals - (85) (3 080} (1,097} {4,272}
Exchange differences - (404) (1 604) (2,409) (4417
At 31 Dacamber 2008 115,738 22,271 221,651 61,118 420,778
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2008 (49,455) (14,780) (137 ,945) (37.878) (240,058)
Acquisition of subsidianies - (818) (3,700) (140} (4,658)
Depreciation charge (3,803) (1.524) (27,331) (4,837) (37,495)
Transfer and disposals - 84 2,804 1,054 3,942
Exchange differences - 182 1,375 1,310 2,667
At 31 Decamber 2008 (53,258) (16,856) (164,797) (40,491) {275,402)
Net book value at 31 December 2008 62,480 5,415 58,854 20,627 145,376

The net book value of iIT equipment includes €2,140,000 (2008 €0} in respect of IT equipment held under non-cancedlable finance lease
agreements The lease terms are between 1 and 2 years
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XXVI Goodwill and intangible assets

Intermnally Contractual

developed Purchased ner Contractual Unpatented
(€000} Notes softwars software Know-how  Goodwill relationship commitment technology  Total
Cost
At 1 January 2009 28,097 55,642 45,855 1,391,803 21 965 4,802 54,231 1,602 395
Additions 61 7.646 - - - - - 7,707
Acquisition of subsidianes XLH 1,643 3,842 - 1,109 1,120 - - 7.714
Transfer and disposals - (3,905) - (221) - - - (4,126)
Exchange differences 10 361 65 10,967 6 348 2,043 13,800
At 31 December 2009 29,811 63,586 45,920 1,403,658 23,091 5,150 56,274 1,627,490
Provisions for amortisation and
impaiment
At 1 January 2009 (25,966) (45,420) (43,823) - - 3201 (5.903) (124,313}
Acquisition of subsidianes XL {1,462) (2,957) - - (79) - - (4 494}
Amortisation charges {1.271) (5,211) (694) - {151) (1,712) (14,365} (23,404)
Impairment - - - (185,000) - - - (185,000)
Transfer and disposals - 3,308 - - - - - 3,399
Exchange differences (8) (348) 9 - - (237) (568) (1,170)
At 31 December 2009 {28,707) {50,537) (44,526) (185,000) (226) (5.150) (20,836) (334.982)'
Net book value at 31 December 2009 1,104 13,049 1,394 1,218,658 22,865 - 35,438 1,292,508

Internally Contractual

developed Purchased customer Contractual Unpatented
(€000) software software  Know-how Goodwill relationship commitment technology Total
Cost
Al 1 January 2008 - 44,670 44 774 1,009 422 21,965 6,237 12,580 1 139,658
Additions - 10,868 1,081 - - - - 11,949
Acquisttion of subsidianes 28,097 1,646 - 402,914 - - 46 700 479,357
Transfer and disposals - (62) - (181) . - - (243)
Exchange differences - (1,480) - (20,352) - (1.435) (5,059) (28,326)
At 31 December 2008 28,007 55,642 45,855 1,391,803 21,965 4,802 54,231 1,602,395
Provisions for amortisation and
impairment
At 1 January 2008 . (39,323) {43,314) - - (2.079) (2.519) (87.235)
Acquisition of subsidianies (25,765) (946) - - - - - (26,711}
Amortisation charges (201) (6,543) (510) - - (1,818) (4,387) (1 3.559)!
Exchange differences - 1,392 1 - - 796 1,003 3,192
At 31 Decomber 2008 {25,956) (45,420) {43,823) - - (3.201) {5,803) (124,313}
Net book valuse at 31 December 2008 243 10,222 2,032 1,391,803 21,985 1,801 45,328 1,478,082

Goodwill and the contractual customer relationship set out n the tables above relate to the acquisition of Euroclear Belgum, Euroclear France,
Euroclear Nederiand, Euroclear UK & Ireland, EMXCa, Euroclear Finland and Euroclear Sweden (both acqured in October 2008), and Xtrakter
Limited (acquired in Apnl 2009)
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XXVI Goodwill and intangible assets (continued)

Determmation of the cash-generating units

In 2008, the Euroclear Audit Committee approved the move from imparment reviews performed at the level of CSD as a separate Cash-
Generating Unit {(CGU) to reviewing a single cash-generating unit for the Single Platform (SP) This was considered appropnate with the up-
coming launch in January 2009 of the Euroclear Settlement of Euronext-Zone Secunties (ESES) platform when Euroclear Belgium, Euroclear
France and Euroclear Nederland would migrate to a cormmon platform Since then, a major part of the cash flows 1s being generated by this
platform and other local revenues are gradually going to decrease (such as revenues relating to phystcal secunties in Belgium, by 2013) Whilst
the three legal entities m the ESES market will be mantaned from an orgamisational viewpaoint, essentially for local regulatory reasons, the local
managernent teams have been aligned and there 1s a common CEQ for the three enties  The composition of Audit Committees and Boards of
Directors of the three entities has also been fully ahgned, as has the tanff structure across the ESES markets

The migration of Euroclear UK & ireland, Euroclear Finland and Euroclear Sweden to SP s planned in the coming years The cash flows for these
three CSDs have been incorporated within the SP CGU following the transition period to simulate the sharing of SP costs between all of the
group's CSDs in a post-migration environment

Except for EMXCo, Euroclear Sweden and Xtrakter Limited, goodwill and contractual customer relationship are expressed and tested for
impairment in euros At the ime of the acquisition of Euroclear UK & Ireland, goodwill was considered a non-monetary asset of the acquirer and it
was therefore expressed in euros At the time of its migration to IFRS, Euroclear decided nct to restate prior years’ business combinations

Basis on which recoverable amounts have been determined

As explained above, the testing of the book value of goodwill s made at the level of the Single Platform CGU for the concerned CSDs, where the
overall bock value of goodwill and centractual customer relationships (the latter related to Euroclear Belgium) is tested jointly against the farr value
resulting from the combined CSDs’ cash flows from the Single Platform CGU

Until the launch of the SP, Euroclear UK & Ireland, Euroclear Finland and Euroclear Sweden will remain separate CGUs, with cash flows
generated from therr locat platforms Therefore, the existing goodwall of Euroclear UK & Ireland will remain attached to the Euroclear UK & Ireland
CGU dunng the transition penod after which it wall be transferred to the SP CGU The cash flows of the Euroclear UK & Iretand CGU are imited to
the point at which the existing Eurcoclear UK & Ireland platform ceases to be used and services are transfered to 5P However, the recoverable
amount under IAS 36 15 the higher of #s “value in use” and "farr value less costs to sell” Therefore, the imparment test for the Euroclear UK &
Ireland CGU 15 based on the resale value of the entity The value in use would be lower than the resale value as it would only tnclude the cash
flows from the remaining iife of the exsting Euroclear UK & Ireland platform up to the paint when it joins the SP

For Euroclear Finland and Sweden, specrfic intangible assets relating to their respective platforms were recognised in the consohdated accounts
and these are being amortised over a 44 month penod up to therr scheduled migration to SP

The amounts of goodwill related to EMXCo and Xirakter are tested for impairment independently from the cther group entibes

The net book values of the goodwill, and Eurcclear Belgium's contractual customer relationships, before and after the 2009 impairment review,
were as follows

2009 208
Bafore After Befora After
imparment impa rment impamrment mparrmert
Eurodear UK & Irdand 502,124 427,124 502,124 502124
Singe Platform 906,663 796,663 896,987 806,987
EMXCo 15,720 15,720 14,657 14,857
Xtrakter 1,116 1,18 - -
1,425,623 1,240,623 1,413,768 1,413,768

These are the only intangible assets considered to have indefinite useful ives

The valuation of all entities of the Euroclear group essentially relies on projected free cash flows for the entites concerned, based on annual mult-
year plan forecasts Since 2005, the size and scope of Euroclear's strategic intiatives made it appropnate to reconsider the “5-year free cash
fiows forecast” that used untl then, which is standard practice 1n valuation exercises The reason to reconsider this practice was that the 5th year
of cash flow would not have represented a suitable basis for the computation of the perpetual value As a consequence, the current forecast of
free cash flows extends to 2018, by when the cost of the strategic projects will have been recharged to the ()CSDs, the data for 2018 being
considered as a stable basis for the computation of the perpetual value The same methodology 15 applied to the CGU's valued under “value in
use” and “fair value less costs to sell” For the latter, no relevant market information (e g comparable transactions) was used
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XXVI Goodwill and intangible assets {continued)

Key assumptions related to discount factors
Discount rates are calculated based on the Capital Asset Pneing Model (CAPM) Such discount rates result from the combination of 3 factors

1 Rusk-free rates For impairment review purposes, the Euroclear policy s to compute the nsk-free rates as the average rates for the 10-year
government bond for the refevant countnes These averages are computed over the twelve month penod pnor to the review In parbcular, the
SP CGU nsk free rate 1s taken as the average nisk free rate of the countnes n which the SP CGU CSDs are based,

2 Beta The beta represents the degree of volatity of the expected return for a particular company vis-a-vis the overall market, and s applied to
the equity nsk premium Since betas are not readily available for the group CSDs, betas of Iisted companies in sectors relevant to the
companies are taken as guidance, e g European stock exchanges and banks processing high transacton volumes, involving settlement
and/or custody Due to the different nature of their businesses, the betas for EMXCo and Xtrakter are each calculated as the weighted average
of betas for a selection of relevant companies

3 Equity nsk premium The nsk premium 1s measured as the extra return that equity investors expect to achieve over nsk-free assets, on
average The Euroclear policy 1s to use long-term anthmetic averages to determine the applicable equity nsk premia, in accordance with the
country where the entity 15 incorporated  An average o the relevant countnes has been used for the SP CGU

Perpetual growth rates applicable to the CGU's take into account the expected long-term growth of the equitylixed income markets, and the
strong franchise that the relevant CSD’s have in their respective local markets An average of the relevant perpetual growth rates has been
applied to the SP CGU

The discount rates and perpetual growth rates used for each CGU i the Q4 2009 and 2008 mmparrment reviews were as follows

209 2008
Perpetual growth Perpetual growth
Drscount rate rate Discount rate rate
Eurodear UK & Irdand 809% I 00% 923% 300%
Singe Platform 873% 2B% 944% 278%
EMXCo 968% 2 0%, 10.86% 2 50%
Xtrakier 917% 2 0% - -

The 2009 review

Considering a combination of the difficult market conditions that have continued throughout 2009 and are expected to remain for the next
few years, and the potental direct and indirect impact that Target? Secunties (T2S) and other anticipated market developments may have
on the national CSDs and on the scope and timing of certain aspects of the Single Platform, together with further expected pressures on
pricing, Management has taken a conservative approach in the mutti-year plan, especially with its fee revenue projections

Although the latest multi-year forecasts for the CSDs show a relatvely imited short-term profitability, measures have been planned in order

to remedy this situation and both business parameters and profitability are expected to recover tn the medium to long term Mitigating
actions have been taken into account only when their implementation i1s highly probable

Conclusions

Management concluded that it was appropnate to record a total imparment charge for the CSDs of €185,000,000, €75,000,000 for
Euroclear UK & Ireland and €110,000,000 for the SP CGU (of which €100,000,000 relates to concems about Finland and € 10,000,000
about the ESES markets)

For EMXCo and Xtrakter, the valuation exercise indicated that the current values of goodwill and related intangibies are still justified
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XXVII Deposits from central banks

{€000) 2009 2008
Deposits 1,493,662 469,757
Total 1,493,662 489,757

A large number of nabonal central banks are clients of Euroclear Bank As of 31 December 2009, in addrtion to current account deposits, one

central bank had placed €1,095,000,000 on an overmight deposit (2008 €0)
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XXVII Deposits from banks and customers

. 5 g 5 s3 g
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At 31 December 2009
Depcsits from
- certral govemments 8,760 - - - - - - 6,760
- finanaal instiuions 5,058,710 271622 3.8%4 - 10,26 2,958 638 5,348,068
- regional governments and local authonties - - - - - - - -
- corporates 178,976 6,347 - - - - 185,323
Finance lease - 291 291 574 850 - - 2,006
Total 5,244 446 78,260 4,185 574 11,096 295 638 5,542 157
The far value of deposits with a matunty greater than one year at 31 December 2009 was € 14,016,000
c 5 g8 % 33 £
L - -
s§ 2§ 7z lsf 38} iz £
25, 322 <€g3 €38 £33 83 §
8¥§ SIS 288 2EE &8 =8 £
Fgo 3 EE‘E 56 & BEEm 335«, 5 I -
F e L£E g g 2 £3 e = § & K]
(€000) ¢35 B&E F23 2338 $323 CE- 3 &
Al 31 December 2008
Deposits from
- central govemments 1910 2 1912
- financal insbtutions 7504478 289042 4,441 9,655 5748 1,860 7815234
- regional governmerts and local authonties -
- comomtes 723461 6,000 - - 16 729477
Finarce leasse - - - - . - - -
8,229 849 25,042 4,441 . 9,665 5748 1,878 8,546,623
The far value of deposits wath a maturity greater than one year at 31 December 2008 was €15,418,000
In terms of nature, the following addibtonal analysis s relevant
(€000} ) 209 2008
Depesits 5,168 354 8,383,920
Bomreowings 373,802 157,703
552157 8,546,623
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XXVl Deposits from banks and customers (continued)

Deposits from banks and customers include finance lease llabilities as follows (Note XXV}

{€'000) 2009 2008
Gross finance lease habilibes - minimum lease payments

- up to ona year 1,227

- later than one year but not later than five years 902

- over five years -

Future interest finance charges 123

Present value of finance lease habiibes

‘The present value of finance lease habilities 1s as follows

- up to one year 1,156

- later than one year but not later than five years 850

- over five years
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XXX Other habilities

(€000 Notes 2009 2008
At 31 December

Funds to be assigned 231,634 497,600
Taxation and social secunty 11,108 12,811
Contingent consideration related to acquisiben of EMX Company Limited - 10,197
Deferred consideration related to acquisition of NCSD Holding AB - 16 357
Creditors 17,056 7,990
Other 5,150 16 938
Total 264,948 561,893

‘Funds to be assigned’ pnncipally represent funds recerved and cther items i the process of reconciiabon

The habilty for the deferred consideration due to the sellers of the NCSD group reflects the net present value at 31 December 2008 of the amount
paid in February 2009

The contingent consideration due to EMXCo at 31 December 2008 was related to the volume of billable orders routed through the EMX Message
System dunng 2007 and 2008 The hability at 31 December 2008 reflected the net present value of the amount pard in February 2009
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XXX Accruals and deferred income

(€:000) 2009 2008

At 31 December

Accrued fee expense 51,401 56,072

Accrued payroll expanse 100,041 117,038

Other acerued expensa 45,820 44 7686

Deferred ingeme 4,933 4297
202,195 222,191
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XXXI Provisions for habilities and charges

Onerous Qutsourcing of Other

(€000} lease pension plan Redundancy Dilapidation provisions Total
At 1 January 2009 1,372 601 2,460 - 1,403 5,836
Capitalisation of dilapidation prowision - - - 586 - 586
Acquisshon of subsidianes - - - 901 - 801
Additions 3,864 - 288 1350 255 5757
Unused amounts reversed dunng the penod - (107) (328) - {101) (536)
Amounts used (314) (494) (1.747) - (718) (3.271)
Umwinding of discount and effect of changes

in the discount rate (168) - - - - (168)
Exchange differences 93 - n - - 92
At 31 December 2009 4,847 . 672 2,837 841 9,197

One floor of Euroclear's office space in London, leased untl 2019, 15 sub-let 1o tenants at terms and conditions below those in Euroclear's lease
Further space has become available and efforts are being made to subdet it. It 1s again expected that, given current market conditions, income
to be receved will not cover the costs being incumed by Eurodlear The prowision reflects the net present value of the expected shortfall and it
will progressively be utlised over the remaning penod of the lease

Foilowang a change of faw in France dunng 2004, the penston fund of Euroclear France {and, since 1 January 2005, of the French branch of
Euroclear SAINV, which now manages the fund), had to be cutsourced to an insurance company by no later than the end of 2009 The final
cost of the outsourcing was €2,880,000, of which €2,386,000 was already paid in 2008 and €494,000 was pad in 2009 The remainder of the
prowision has been reversed

The redundancy provisions will be fully utihsed in 2010

Prowisions for dilapidation costs have been recorded to reflect Euroclear's end-of-lease obligations

Other provisions mainly relate to potential Ihgation, expected to be closed by the end of 2010
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XXXt Defined benefit plans

The group has several defined benefit pension plans covening employees in Belgium, France, Japan, The Netherlands, Sweden and
Switzerland The group also provides medical plans and termination indemnities for its employees

The assets of the plans are held separately from those of the group

The most recent fuli actuanial valuations of the plans, under IFRS, were made by independent qualfied professional actuanes as follows
- Eurcclear Bank - all plans 31 December 2009

- Euroclear Belgium SA/NV - all plans 31 December 2009

- Euroclear France - all plans 31 December 2009

- Euroclear Nederland - pension plan 31 December 2008

- Euroclear plc - pension plan 31 December 2009

- Euroclear SA/NV - all plans 31 December 2009

- Euroclear Sweden - all plans 31 December 2009

The actuarial valuation of all plans as of 31 December 2009 showed a total deficit of €43,143,000 (2008 €56,033,000)

The pension cost In 2009 of €12,888,000 (2008 €10,189,000) has been fully recogmised m the cuent year The contnbuton, reflecting employer's
contnbutions for funded plans and benefit disbursements for unfunded plans, amounted to €15,361,000 (2008 €28,773,000)

The major assumptions used by the actuanes in ther valuations were

2009 2008
Discount rate 521% 523%
Expected rate of return on assets 6 52% 6 28%
Expected inflation rate 1 96% 199%
Future salary increases 4 78% 4 79%
Expected medical cost trend rate 572% 580%

The above percentages are weighted averages of the assumptions used for the indivdual plans

Assumptions regarding future mortality expenence are set based on advice and published statistics in each temtory {(MR/FR table in Belgium, TGHF
05 table in France, GBM/V2000-2050 with an age setback of three years in The Netherlands, EPF 2004 rates in Japan and FFFS2007 31 in
Sweden)

The value of assets in all plans and the expected rates of retum were

2009 2008

Long-term rate of; Long-term rate of
€000 Value of agsets expected returni  Value of assets expected return
Equities 83,012 7 48% 55,062 7 50%
Bonds 30,698 4 38% 27 206 4 37%
Property 574 000% - -
Cash 484 133% 1,389 2 00%
Cther 4693 41%% 4,370 4 23%
Total market value of assets 119,461 88,027

The above percentages are weighted averages of the expectations for the indvdual plans

The expected retum on assets 1s based on market expectatons, at the beginning of the penod, for retumn over the entire Iife of the related asset
class, net of admirustrative fees It is determined by using the building block appreach which factors in long-term infiation and the expected long-
term net return on each asset category

‘Other’ represents an nsurance company investment product with a guaranteed mimmum interest rate
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XXXl Defined benefit plans (continued)

The amounts recognised in the batance sheet are as follows

(€000) 2009 2008
Present value of funded obhgations {147,716} {131,099}
Fair value of plan assets 119,461 88,027
(28,255) (43,072)
Present value of unfunded obligations {13 632) (12,212)
Unrecognised past service cost 926 1,037
Irrecoverable surplus {2,182) (1,786)
Pension deficit {43,143) (56,033)
The rrecoverable surplus relates to plans for which the surplus of plan assets over plan obligatons 1s not avalable for offset with other group
pension fund habilities
The changes in the net defictt are as follows
(€:.000) 2009 2008
Deficitin plans at 1 January (56,033} {34,679)
Employer's expense {12,888) (10 189)
Actuanal gains/{losses) for the year 10,618 (34712}
Actual employer's contnbutions 15 361 28,773
Acguisition of subsidiares - (5,501)
Exchange differences (401} 275
Deficit in plans at 31 December {43,143) (56,033)
The impact on the statement of recognised ncome and expense 15 as follows
(€000 2009 2008
Actuanal gains/(losses) for the year 11,168 (34,691)
Impact of change in wrecoverable surplus {350} (21)
Exchange differences 59 {217}
Impact on statement of recognised income and expense 10,877 {34,929)
The amounts recognised in the income statement are as follows
(€'000) 2009 2008
Employer's current service cost (excludes employee contnbutions) 10,133 9,466
Interest cost 7,991 6,596
Expected return on assets (5,797) {5,680)
Amortisation of past service cost 561 11
Losses/(gains) on curtaiments and settlements - (304)
Total, included in staff costs 12,888 10,189
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XXXl Defined benefit plans (continued)

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligatons are as follows

(€000) 2009 2008
Present value of obligations at 1 January 143,311 130,595
Acguisiion of subsidianes - 20,656
Service cost 10,133 9,466
Interest cost 7,991 6,696
Benefit payments (3,392} (2,479)
Settlement {1,575) (20,461)
Past service cost 450 -
Expenence (gains)/losses 2,998 2181
(Gains\losses due to assumption changes 177 {1,620}
Exchange differences 1,255 {1,623)
Present value of obligations at 31 December 161,348 143,311
Changes n plan assets are as follows

{€000) 2009 2008
Farr value of plan assets at 1 January 88,027 96 087
Acquisition of subsidianes - 15,644
Emplayer contributions 15,361 28,773
Benefit payments (3.392) (2,479)
Expected return on plan assets 5,797 5 680
Expenence gains/(losses) on plan assets 14,343 (34 130)
Settfement {1,575) (20,157}
Exchange differences 900 (1,381)
Fair value of plan assets at 31 December 119,461 BB,027
The amounts shown for setlernent i 2009 relate to plan members in The Netherlands who left the company n 2009 The amounts shown for
settlement in 2008 relate to the externalisation of the French closed supplementary defined benefit plan to an nsurance company (Note XO0CX1}
Expected contnbutions to post-employment benefit plans for the year ending 31 December 2010 are €12,573,000

The amounts recognised con the balance sheet are as follows

(€000) 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
Present value of defined benefit obligations (161,348) (143,311%) {130,595) (132,365) (118,994)
Fair value of plan assets 119,461 88,027 96,087 91,781 75,958
Unrecogrised past service cost 926 1,037 1,148 1295 1,371
Irecoverable surplus (2,182) (1.786) (1,320) (1,259) -
Deficut in plans {43,143) (56,033) (34,679) (40,548) (41,635)
Details of expenence adjustments for the year

[(E000)

Expenence gains/{losses) on plan assets 14,343 (34,130) (7.158) 1 806 7,742
Expenence (gains)losses on plan habites 2,998 2,181 3,618 (399) 5,033
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XXXII Defined benefit plans (continued)

The effect of a 1% movemnent in the assumed medical cost trend rate would be as follows

(€V00) Increase Decreass
- Effed on the defined benefit obiigatons 80 (808)
- Effect on the aggregate of the current service cost and Interest cost 106 (146)
The movement in the deferred tax asset refating to the pension defiat s as follows

(€000) Notes 2009 2008
Acquisihon of subsidianes - 3,028
Amourt credited'{chaged) through equty Xl {3,384) 11,515
Amount credited/{charged) through the ncome statement xi (606) (6,438)
Excharge differences 194 (265)
Incressel{decrease) m deforred tax asset (3,796) 7,840

82



Eurodear pic anrsal report 2009 Notes to the consalidated fi d stah s (¢

XOXOXHE Subordinated iabilihes

2009 2008 i
{€000) Book value Fair value Book value Fair value
At 31 December |
Fxed/Floating Rate Guaranteed Non-Cumulative Perpetual Secunties 299,245 232,203 305,106 117.377
Total 299,245 232,203 305,106 147,377
Repayable
- in more than five years 299,245 232,203 305,106 117,377
Total 299,245 232,203 305,106 117,377
-

The Fixed/Floatng Rate Subordinated Guaranteed Non-Cumulative Perpetual Securties above are denorminated in euro and were issued at par by
Eurcclear Finance 2 in June 2005 (principal amount of €300,000,000) The proceeds of the issue and the €4,500,000 capital of Euroclear
Finance 2 were lent to Euroclear Bank through the full subscnption of Fixed/Floating Rate Subordinated Perpetual Notes (pnncipal amaount of
€304,500,000, net of €2,600,000 of 1ssue costs)issued by Euroclear Bank These notes prowde Upper Tier Il regulatory capital to Euroclear

Bank on a standalone basis, whereas the Securties provide Hybnd Tier | regulatory capital to Euroclear Bank on a consolidated basis

Euroclear Bank has wrevocably guaranteed, on a subordinated basis, the due payment of all sums payable by Euroclear Finance 2 The notes
rank equally with all unsecured obligations of Euroclear Bank and rank in pnonty to the nghts and claims of all classes of equity They are sub-
ordinated to the clams of Senior Creditors of Euroclear Bank The secunties rank equaily with all other present and future, direct, unsecured,
perpetual, non-cumulative and subordinated obligation of Euroclear Finance 2 and rank in pnonty to the nghts and claims of all classes of equity
They are subordinated to the claims of Sermor Creditors both of Euroclear Finance 2 and Euroclear Bank Euroclear Finance 2 has options to
redeem the Fixed/Floating Rate Subordinated Guaranteed Non-Cumulatve Perpetual Secunties on 15 June 2015 and on any interest payment
date thereafter Upon the occurrence of a supervisory event or any event resulting in a general concursus creditorum on the assets of Euroclear
Bank, as defined in the terms and conditions of Fixed/Floating Rate Subordinated Guaranteed Non-Cumulative Perpetual Secunties, the
secunties together with the accrued interest will be converted ito Conversion Profit-shanng Certificates in consideration for a contnbution in
kind of the Secunbes to Euroclear Bank Upon the occurrence of such an event, the notes will also be redeemed at theirr pnincipal amount

together with accrued interest

At the end of 2008, the difference betwaen the fair value of the subordinated atibties, which represents ther quoted price plus accrued interest,
and thexr book value reflected the particular market conditions of that penod, and in particular the lack of liquidity for hybnd capital instruments
Prevaiing mterest rates and spreads at 31 December 2008, taken alone, would have indicated a significantly ugher fair value Since then, the

financial markets have partially recovered and the fair value of the subordinated liabiities (ncreased accordingly

Dunng 2008, Euroclear Finance 2 repurchased a nomenal ameount of €6 milion of its 1ssued secunties (Note X) This transaction resulted in an

equivalent repurchase of the notes issued by Euroclear Bank
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XXXIV. Redeemable preference shares

(€000} 2008 2008

Preferred, non voting, redeemable shares 14 13

In May 2000, Euroclear pl¢ 1ssued 50,000 preferred, non-voling, redeemable shares of one pound sterling each, which are 25% paid up They
have ne voling nghts but receive each year, on 1 June, a preferred dwdend equal to 6 66% of their paid up nominal value Subject to the
provisions of the Companies Act, the pound sterling shares shall be redeemed 100 years from their date of issue or at any time pnor thereto at
the option of the company On redemption, the company shall pay to the holder the paid up nominal value of the sterling shares

In the event of a winding up of the company, or a reduction of capital invoiving a repayment, the non-voting, non-equity, redeemable sterling
preference shares have pnonty over the other classes of share capital
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XXXV Share capital

Authonsed share caprtal 4 000,000 shares of 1 euro each
Equityshares Number of shares

Issued, allatied and fully pad share capital Ordinary Class 'S Total (€000}
At 1 January and 31 December 2009 3,360,556 500,120 3,830,676 3,831
At 1 January and 31 December 2008 3,330,556 500,120 3,830,676 3,831

b~ e

EwTE- TR R T v NS s — —owmwew e ey R 7

At 31 December 2009 and 2008, there was no stock option plan on the shares of Euroclear plc or any subsidiary

Equity shareholders have the nght to attend and vote at genera meetings and to recelve dmdends, except that class S shareholders are not
entifled to vote on the appontment of any directors of the Company other than an S director
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XXXVI Other reserves

Hedge of net
Available-for- inv in Foreign
sale Cash flow foretgn currency
revaluation hedging operations ftranslation Legal

(€000) Notes reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve Other Total
At 1 January 2009 17 857 1033 38 530 (72 152) 67,525 1,135,714 1,188,507
Farr value adjustments XX, XX {10,351) (2,596) (13,966) - - - (26.913)
Defemed tax on fair value adjustments xXvi (65) 1,163 - - - - 1,008
Foreign currency translation differences - - - 27.453 - - 27,453
Transfer to non-distnbutable reserves - B - B 4,453 55,000 59,453
Transfer to retained eamings - - - - - (85,000} {85,000)
At 31 December 2009 7441 (400) 24,564 (44,699) 71,978 1,105,714 1,164,598

l
At 1 January 2008 14,265 1425 16,829 (22,227) 39226 1,136 714 1,185 232
Farr value adjustments XX, XX 6,672 (169) 21,701 - - - 28,204
Defermed tax on fair value adjustments xvi (3.080) (223) - - - - (3,303)
Foreign currency translation differences - - - (49,925} - - (49 925)
Transfer to non-distnbutable reserves - - - - 28,299 - 28,299
At 31 December 2008 17,857 1,033 38,530 (72,152) 67,525 1,135,714 1,188,507

The hedge of net investment in foreign operations reserve relates to the group's subsidiaries in Sweden and the United Kingdom

In addition to the translation of structural currency exposures relating to the group's subsidiaries with a functional currency other than the euro,
the foresgn currency translation reserve includes the translation impact when other group entities moved to the euro as therr functional
currency

The foreign currency translation reserve includes the translation impact of goodwill and mntangible assets expressed in the Swedish krona and
sterling that were recogmised at the tme of acquisition of subsidianes in Sweden, and EMXCo and Xtrakter in the United Kingdom

The legal reserve represents non-distnbutable amounts required to be established as separate reserves in comphance with local laws in
certain countnies where the group operates

Other reserves include €1,112,950,000 previously classified as a Merger reserve under UK Generally Accepted Accounting Pnnciples
(GAAP) Since Merger relief accounting 1s no longer permitted under IFRS, this amount 1s now classified under Other reserves In 2009, a
transfer of €85,000,000 was made from this amount to Retained earnings, to cover the Euroclear UK and Ireland and ESES parts of the
impairment charge Details on the imparment charge are set out in Note XXVI

Other reserves also includes a non distnbutable reserve of €55,000,000 required to be established by Euroclear SA/NV during the duration of
a loan it made to Euroclear Investments to partially finance a capital increase in Euroclear SAINV

The remaining €22,764,000 relates to the acquistion of EMXCo in 2006 (€22,267,000) and a general reserve of Euroclear plc €497,000
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XXXVII Dividends paid

€ per share 2009 2008
Equity pard 2049 2558
1€000)

Equuty paid 78,491 97,989

See Note XL for details of the proposed 2009 equity dividend

87



Euroclear ple annual report 2009 Notes to the consolidated financial statements (contnued )

XXXVIII Note to the consolidated statement of cash flows

1 Reconcihation of operating profit to net operating cash flows

(€000) Notes 2009 2008
Profit/{loss) before tax (491) 347,037
Adustments for
- Depreciation and amortisation AV, XKW 54,977 51,054
- Impairment XV 184,912 272
- Interest paid on redeemable preference shares 2004V 1 1
- Interest on subordinated loan added back vl 12,825 12,960
- Dradends receved Vil (17.814) {4.451)
- Realised gains on avallable-for-sale financial assets X (33 770) -
- Realised gains on financial habilities measured at amortised cost X (2,088) -
- Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment {14) -
- Provision for liabilities and charges 2000 5,221 1,469
Other non-cash movements (10,635) (101 055}
Cash flows from operating profit before changes in operating assets/liabilities 193,124 307,287
Net increase/(decrease) in deposits from banks and customers (1,862,586) (2,923,979)
Net (increaseydecrease n monetary reserve xwvil (208 488) 178,146
Net (increaseydecrease n loans and advances Xl (61 208) 30,100
Net (increaseydecreass in other assets 200, XL 120,801 81341
Net increase/(decrease) in other liabilities XXX, XL {300,290} (498,683)
Net cash outflow from operating activities (2,138,647) (2.B25,788)
2 Analysis of the balances of cash and cash equivalents as shown in the balance sheet
Effect of Effect of
At forelgn At At forelgn At
1 January exchangse Cash D b 1J hange Cash 31 Decemnber
{€000) 2009 Flow 2009 2008 Flow 2008
Cash and balances at central banks 1,020,049 (1,301) (282,009) 736 739 4,555 {259) 1,015,753 1,020 049
{Note XvI1)
Loans and advances (Note XVIil) 8,724,777 (89,193) (2,163,588) 6471996 12,584,069 435,387  (4.294,679) 8,724,777
Total 9,744,826 (90,494) (2,445597) 7,208,735 12,588,624 435,128 {3,278,928) 9,744,826
Cash equivalents represent Loans and advances with an inihal maturity of three months or less, including accrued interest
3 Reconciliation of cash equivalents to Cash and balances with central banks and Loans and advances
(€000) Notes 2009 2008
Cash and balances with central banks 736,739 1,020,049
Loans and advances 6,471,996 8,724,777
Cash and cash equivalent at year end 7,208,735 9,744,826
Cash and balances with central banks - manetary reserve xXvil 208,605 117
Loans and advances with initial matunty above three months 72,352 11,144
Cash and balances with central banks xXvil 845,344 1,020,166
Loans and advances Xvill 6,544,348 8,735,921
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XXXIX Contingent iabiliies and commitments

J€000) 2009 2008
At 31 December

Assets pledged as collateral secunty 1,521,963 1,251,029
Securiies lending indemnifications 6,954 266 6,512,744

Assets pledged as collateral reflect investment secunties with a book value of €1,521,963,000 (2008 €1,251,029,000) depaosited with the
Belgian National Bank as potential collateral, principally for TARGET-related exposures There was no exposure at 31 December 2009 (2008
€0}

Under the terms of the Euroclear Securties Lending and Borrowing Programme, Euroclear Bank provides an indemnification to secunbes ienders
whereby if a securties borrower 1S unable to return the secunties, Euroclear Bank will indemnify the lender with replacement secunties or therr
cash equivalent As of 31 December 20089, the amount of such guarantees amounted to €6,954,266,000 (2008 €6,512,744,000), which
represents market value plus accrued interest. Euroclear Bank's policy is that all securiies borrowings are covered by collateral pledged by the
borrowing banks and customers
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XL. Operating lease commitments

2009 2008

Vehicles, Vehicles,

plant and plant and
(€000) Property equipment| Property egulp_ment
Group company as lessee
Future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases 82,604 15,812 90,841 13,432
- up to one year 21,786 9,428 22,047 5776
- later than one year and not later than five years 41,255 5,782 41741 7,656
- over five years 19,563 602 27,053 -
The total sublease payments receivable relating to the above operating leases amounted to €7,280,000 (2008 € 7,251,000)
Minimum lease payments recognised as an expense 23,412 8 963 21,033 6 300
Group company as lessor e
Future mummum lease payments recevable under non cancellable leases
- up to one year 850 K3 1,634 -
- later than one year and not later than five years - 63 2,546 -

- over five years
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XLI Related party disclosures

Euroclear plic, incorporated in the United Kingdom, 1s the ultmate parent of the Euroclear group A list of s shareholders can be found an
pages 119 and 120

Euroclear plc’s investments in s subsidianes are set out in note |l to the parent company financial statements

Transactons with related parties, cther than those between comparues of the group, eiminated on consolidation, are hmited to key manage-
ment compensation (Transactons between Euroclear pic, as parent company, and its subsidianes are descnbed in Note XV to the parent com-
pany financial statements)

Key management compensation
The compensation of key management (members of the management committees of Euroclear SA/NV and its (I}CSD subsidianes and EMXCo and
Xtrakter, group division heads and the Euroclear plc Executive Secretary) and non-executive Directors was as follows

(€000) 2009 2008
Short-term em ployee benefits 22071 20,355
Past-employment benefits 4,337 6,260
Other bng-term benefits 1,180 1,704
Termmnation benefits 3,046 959
Total compensation of key management 30,634 29,278
Emoluments of non-executive directors 1258 1,290
Total campensation of key managament and drector 31,892 30,568
Emoluments of hghes! pad director 479 447

No loans or similar transactions occurred with Directors, key management or their close family members
The comparnies employing the Euroclear plc non-executive Directors are subject lo the same terms, conditions and tanffs as other companies

Included in the fees of non-executive Directors are fees pard directly to the respective employers of the Eurodear Directors, amounting
to €500,000 {2008 €369,000)

Three directors waived the nght to receive emoluments totalling €90,000 (2008 Two directors, €62,000)

Directors’ emoluments are in the form of fees with the exception of nsurance benefits for one director amounting to €18,000 (2008 €6,000)
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XLIl Business combinations

OCn 30 Apnl 2008 Euroclear SA/NV acquired 100% of the share capital of Xirakter Limited

Xtrakter Lirmited contributed €1,195,000 of pre-tax profit dunng 2009 If Xtrakter Limited had been acquired on 1 January, its pre-tax profit for the

full year woutd have been €1,506,000, and its total revenues would have been €17,684,000

The details of the assets and babifties together with the goodwill at the date of acquisiion are set out below The fair values are considered to be

final
(€000)
Total purchase consideration paid 7,700
Acquiree's
camying

Notes value Fair value
Cash and cash equvalents 33 K<hl
Loans and advances fo banks 2687 2,687
Deferred mcome tax assets X - az25
Other assets 3,900 3900
Prapery plant ard equpment hesl) 1,738 1,738
Intangible assets XXM 211 2111
Cther labikhes {3.350) (4,246)
Current incom e tax hablities (655) (555)
Fzirvalue of assets and liabll itles acquired 6,862 6,991
Goodwill, representing residual amount of purchase consideration 1,109
Estmated cost of acquisition
Cash consideration 7,700
Total 7.700
2008 cash outflow on acquisition (7,700),
Less. Cash and cash equvalents n subsdianes acqured s
Net cash outflow (4,682)

No addibonal intangible assets were recognised at the time of acquisition

The goodwll attnbuted to Xtrakter Limited 1s denomunated in stering and therefore generates exchange differences when revalued, which are

included in the foreign currency transiation reserve within shareholders’ equity
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XLl Events after the balance sheet date

Proposed dividend
On 25 March 2010, the Directors resolved to propose a dwdend in respect of the financial year ending 31 December 2009 of €11 46 per equity

share, which will distnbute €43,800,000 of shareholders’ equity The dividend will be paid on 11 June 2010 to shareholders on the register on
30 Apnl 2010
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Independent audiors’ report

to the members of Euroglear plc

We have audited the consolidated
financial statements of Euroclear ple for
the year ended 31 December 2009
which compnse the Consolidated
income statement, Consolidated
statement of comprehensive income,
Consolidated statement of financial
position, Consolidated statement of
changes in equity, Consolidated
statement of cash flows, the Accounting
policies and the related notes The
financial reporting framework that has
been apphed in their preparation 15
appiicable law and Infemational
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs)
as adopted by the European Unton

Respective responsibilities of
Diractors and auditors

As explained more fully in the Directors’
Responsibilities Statement set out on
page 9, the Directors are responsible for
the preparation of the financial
statements and for being satisfied that
they give a true and farr vew Qur
responsibility 1s to audit the financial
statements in accordance with
apphcable law and Intemational
Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland)
Those standards require us to comply
wiath the Auditing Practices Board's
Ethical Standards for Auditors

This report, iIncluding the opinions, has
been prepared for and only for the
Company's members as a body in
accordance with Sections 495 and 496
of the Companies Act 2006 and for no
other purpose We do not, in grang
these opinions, accept or assume
responsibility for any other purpose or to
any other person to whom this report 1s
shown or into whose hands it may come
save where expressly agreed by our
pnor consent in writing

Scope of the audtt of the financial
statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements sufficient to give
reascnabie assurance that the financial
statements are free from matenal
misstatement, whether caused by fraud
or error This includes an assessment
of whether the accounting policies are
appropriate to the group's
circumstances and have been
consistently apphed and adequately
disclosed, the reasonableness of
significant accounting estmates made
by the Directors, and the overall
presentation of the financial statements

Opmion on financial statements

In our opimion the consolidated financial
statements

= give a true and far wew of the state of

the group's affairs as at 31 December
2009 and of its profit and cash flows
for the year then ended,

= have been properly prepared in

accordance with IFRSs as adopted by
the European Union, and

« have been prepared in accordance

with the requirements of the
Compames Act 2006

Opinion on other matter prescribed
by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion the information given 1n
the Directors' Report for the financial
year for which the consalidated financial
statements are prepared Is consistent
with the consolidated financial
statements

Matters on which we are required to
report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of
the following matters where the
Companies Act 2006 reguires us to
report to you if, n our opinion

= certain disclosures of Directors’
remuneraton specified by law are not
made, or

= we have not received all the
information and explanations we
require for our audit

Other matter

We have reported separately on the
parent company financial statements of
Euroclear plc for the year ended 31
December 2009

n Hitchins {Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of
PncewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory
Auditors

London

31 March 2010

Notes

{a) The mantenance and integnty of
the Euroclear plc website 1s the
responsibility of the Directors, the
work carned out by the auditors
does not involve consideration of
these matters and, accordingly, the
auditors accept no responsibubity for
any changes that may have
occurred to the financial statements
since they were imizally presented
on the website

{b} Legislation in the United Kingdom
goveming the preparation and
dissermination of financial
statements may differ from
legislation in other junsdictions
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Parent company statement of financial position
As at 31 December 2009

(€000 Notes 2009 2008
Assets

Non-curront assets

Investmentin substdiary urdertakangs 1 1,562,921 1,562,921
Deferred noome taxassets m " -
Trade and other recavables v 14,420 16,784
Total non-cumrent assets 1,577,412 1,579,705
Current assets

Trade and other recavables 1Y) 4 957 33,312
Denvatve financal instruments. v 4,092 352
Cash and cash equvaents vi 45 243 96,001
Tofal current assets 54,292 132,835
Total assets 1,631,704 1,712,540
Equty

Capital and reserves attnbutable to equity holders of the Company

Crdinary shares Vil 3,831 3,83
Share premium 143223 143223
Other resaves Vi 1,210,456 1210456
Retamed sarnings. 266,715 329,84
Total equity 1,624,225 1,687,151
Liabilities

Non-current liabil hes

Redeemable preference shares IX 14 13
Pension defiat X 450 -
Total non-current hiabilibes 464 13
Cument {@abiltes

Trade and other payables X 408 227
Current income tax habiities 2,546 20,487
Denvabve fimancal instrumerts v 4,061 2613
Total current liabiities T7.015 25,376
Total fabihtes T,.479 25,389
Total equity and latilities 1,631,704 1,712,540

The Notes on pages 16 to 21 and 98 to 116 form part of these financial statements

These accounts were approved by the Board of Directors on 25 March 2010 and signed on s behalf by

A (C@S

Sir Nigel Wicks, Chairman of the Board
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Statement of changes in equity

Share Other Retained Total
{€'000) Capital premium reserves earnings aquity]
At 1 January 2009 3,83 143,223 1,210,456 329,641 1,687,151
Profit for the year (Note [} - - - 15,565 15,565
Drvidends paid {Note X001 to Euroclear plc consohdated financtal statements) - - - (78 491) (78,491}
At 31 December 2009 3,831 143,223 1,210,456 266,715 1,624,225
At 1 January 2008 3,61 143,223 1,210,456 326,109 1,683,619
Profit for the year (Note [} - - - 101,521 101 521
Dividends pard {Note XXXVII to Euroclear plc consolidated financial statements) - - - {97,989) (87 989)
At 31 Docember 2008 3,831 143,223 1,210,456 329,641 1,687,151

The Notes on pages 16 to 21 and 98 to 116 form part of these financial statements
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Statement of cash flows

{€000) Notes 2009 2008
Cash flows from oparating activities

Cash generated from operations XN 48,574 124,920
Income tax paid (20,840) (28,001)
Net cash generated from operating activitles 27,734 96,919

Cash flows from financing activities

Dmidends paid to Company's shareholders (78 491) {97,989)
Drvidends paid to holders of redesmable preference shares M 1)
Net cash used in financing activities (78,492) (87,990}
Net (decrease)fincrease in cash and cash equivalents {50,758) (1,071}
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year Vi 96,001 97,072

Cash and cash aquivalents at end of the year Vi 45,243 96,001

The Notes on pages 16 to 21 and 98 to 116 form part of these financial statements
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| Group profit dealt with In the accounts of Euroclear pic

For 2009, a profit after tax of €15,565,000 (2008 €101,521,000) of the group’s overall profit atinbutable to equity shareholders was
recorded in the accounts of Euroclear plc As permitted by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, the iIncome statement of Euroclear plc
has not been presented separately
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Il. Investments in subsidiary undertakings

(€000) Notes 2009 2008
At 1 January 1,562 921 1,562,921
At 31 December XV 1,562,921 1,562,921
At 31 December 2009, Euroclear plc had the following interests in the 1ssued ordinary share capital of subsidiary undertakings
Proportion
of voting
righte and
Country of ordinary
_Name __ L . _ incorporation __Nature of business_ o __shares held
Consolidated subsidiarles
Caisse interprofessionelle de dépdts et de
virements de bitres SA' Belgium Central Secunties Deposttory for Belgum 100%
Catar Belgium SANV? Belgium Property investment 100%
EMX Company Limited” United Kingdom Investment-fund order routing 100%
(1YCSD holding company, ownership of share processing
Euroclear SA/NV® Belgium platforms and delivery of shared non-operational services 100%
Euroclear Bank SA/NV' Belgium Banking, secunties settlement and custody services 100%
Euroclear Finance 2 SA? Luxembourg Financing vehicle 100%
Euroclear Finland Oy Finland Central Secunties Depository for Finland 100%
Euroclear France SA’ France Central Secunties Depository for France 100%
Euroclear investments Luxembourg investment holding 100%
Euroclear Properties France SAS® France Property investment 100%
Euroclear Re SA® Luxembourg Rensurance 100%
Eurociear Sweden AB® Sweden Central Secunties Depository for Sweden 100%
Euroclear UK & Ireland Lirmited’ United Kingdom Central Secunty Depasitory for the UK and Ireland 100%
NCSD Holding AB' Sweden Investment hotding 100%
NCSD Systems AB* Sweden Dormant 100%
Nederlands Centraal Instituut voor
Giraal Effectenverkeer BV (Necigef}' The Netherands  Central Secunties Depository for The Netherlands 100%
Nederlands Interprofessioneel
Effectencentrum NIEGC BV(NIEC)' The Netherlands  Central Secunties Depaository for The Netherlands 100%
VKI AB* Sweden Dormant 100%
Xtrakter Limited' United Kingdem  TRAX trade matching and reporting 100%

! Held through Euroclear SAINV

2 Held through Euroclear Bank SA/NV
*Held through Eurcclear Investments
*Held through Euroclear Sweden AB
*Held through NCSD Holding AB

On 8 February 20089, the names of Suomen Arvopapenkeskus Oy (APK) and VPC AB were changed to Euroclear Finland Oy and Euroclear

Sweden AB respectively

On 30 Apnl 2009, Euroclear SA/NV acquired 100% of the shares of Xtrakter Limited

On 31 July 2009, Euroclear Latin America Limitada in Braz)l was liquidated
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il Investments in subsidiary undertakings (continued)

Proportion
of voting
rights and
Country of ordinary
Name _ . Incorporation Nature of business shares held
Non-consolidated subsidiaries
CIN (Belgum) Limited’ United Kingdom Nommee company 100%
CREST Client Tax Nominee (No 1) Limited"  United Kingdom Nominee company 100%
CREST Depository Limited® United Kingdom  Nominee company 100%
CREST internaticnal Nominees Limited” Unted Kingdom  Naminee company 100%
CREST Stamp Nominee (No 1) Limtted® United Kingdom Nominee company 100%
CREST Stamp Nominee (No 2} Limited® United Kingdom  Nominee company 100%
CRESTCo Limited” United Kingdom Nominee company 100%
EC Nominees Limited® United Kingdom  Nominee company 100%
EOC Equity Limited® United Kingdom Nominee company 100%
Euroclear International Services Limited* United Kingdom Nominee company 100%
Euroclear Nominees Limited” United Kingdom Nominee company 100%
FundSettle EOC Nominees Limited® United Kingdom Nominee company 100%
Tonity Nominees Limited® United Kingdom Nominee company 100%

"'Held through CREST Deposttory Limited T C T ) ST
2 Held through Euroclear UK & Ireland Limited

® Held through Euroclear Bank SAMNVY
* Held through Euraclear SA/NV

These companies have not been consclidated since they are not matenial No transactions have occurred between these companies and

the cther companies in the group
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lll. Deferred income tax assets

(€'000) 2009 2008
Defined benefit plan 71 -
Total k4l -

A deferred tax asset has been recognised on the defined benefit plan habiity (see Note X)
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s (contnued)

iV Trade and other receivables

{€000) Notes 2009 2008
Non-current assets

Loans 1o related parties XV 14,420 16,784
Total 14,420 16,784
Current assets

Accrued fee income from related parties XV 4 853 33,006
Pre-payments 80 108
Other assets 24 198
Total 4,957 33,312

Euroclear Properties France reimbursed €2,000,000 of its loan in May 2009 The fair value of the loan at 31 December 2009 was

€16,080,000 (2008 €18 D64 000)

The far value of the current trade and other receivables equals therr carrying amount as at 31 December 2009 and 2008

No trade and other receivables were impaired or past due as at 31 December 2009 and 2008

The maxmum expesure to credit nsk at the reporting date 1s the carrying amount of each class of receivable mentioned above
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V Dernivative financial instruments

At 31 December 2009 and 31 December 2008, the fair value and the notional amounts of the company's denvative financial instruments

were as follows

Fair value Notional amount

(€000) Assets Liabilies Assets Liabilities
At 31 December 2009

Foreign exchange derivatives

- Forward foreign exchange 31 - 3,471 .
Stock options 4,061 4061 45,604 45,604
Totai 4,092 4,061 49,075 45,604
At 31 December 2008

Foreign exchange derivatives

- Forward foreign exchange 909 - 18,586 -
Stock options 2,613 2613 44 497 44 497
Total 3,522 2,613 63,083 44,497

All derivatives are classified as a current asset or liability held for trading as at 31 December 2009 and 31 December 2008

The maximum exposure to credit nsk at the reporting date 1s the fair value of the denvative assets in the balance sheet

As explained in the Director's report, the Belgian-based members of Euroclear SA/NV and Euroclear Bank Management Committee and
certain members of semor management participate in a stock option scheme managed by the Board of Directors of Euroclear plc
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VI Cash and cash equivalents

{€000) _ . 2009 2008

Cash at bank and on hand 1,860 5,894 I

Shert-term bank deposits 43,383 90,107 |
I

Total 45,243 96,001 I

The amount held by related parties at 31 December 2009 was €42,526,000 (2008 € 90,048,000) (Note XV)
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VIl Share capital

For details, see Note X0V to the Euroclear plc consolidated financial statements
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Vil Other reserves

Non-
distributable
capital General Other
(€'000}) reserve reserve reserves Total
At 1 January and 31 December 2009 10,752 497 1,189,207 1,210,456
At 1 January and 31 December 2008 10,752 497 1,189,207 1,210,456

Euroclear plc ordinary shares 1ssued as deferred consideration in 2004, in connection with the acquisition of 20% of Cleamnet in 2002, were
revalued from €33,444,000 1n 2002 to €22,692,000 when issued Since the investment in LCH Clearnet Group Limited {Clearnet having
merged with London Cleanng House Limited in 2003) was recorded in a subsidiary, Euroclear Bank, the decrease in the cost of the
Investment 1s recorded in the Euroclear plc parent company financial statements as a non-distnibutable capital reserve

Other reserves include €1,176,940,000 previously classified as a Merger reserve under UK Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
(GAAP) Since Merger relief accounting 1s no longer permitted under IFRS, this amount 18 now classified under Other reserves The remaining

€22,267,000 relates to the acquisition of Euroclear Belgium in 2006
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IX Redeemable preference shares

For details, see Note XXXIV to the Euroclear plc consolidated financial statements
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X Pension deficit

{€'000) 2009 2008
Defined benefit plan 450 -
Total 450 -

The plan relates to annuity pensions payable to former Executive Secretanes, transferable to ther spouses in case of death !t has been

valued for the first ime in 2009 1n accordance with IAS 19 rules
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XI Trade and other payables

(€000} Notes 2009 2008
Amounts due to related parties XV 165 B76
Social secunty and other taxes 40 38
Accruals and deferred income 128 1,261
Other habiliies 75 101
Total 408 2,276
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s

Xli Cash generated from operations

(€000) 2009 2008
Profit before income tax 18,465 120,873
Adjustments for

- Far vdue gans on denvative fimancal instrumenis 877 (1.059)
- Interest on redeemable preference shares 1 1
- Urredised foreign exchange gain on redeemable preference shams ) G}
Changes n working capital

- Trade and other receivables 30,650 10,625
- Tracte and other payables (1,418) (5416)
Cash generated from operations 48,574 124,920
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Xlit Contingent hiabiltties

(€000}

Notes 2009 2008
Contingent liabilities
Loan guarantee (contract amount) xv 15,413 17 497
Loan guarantee to subsidiary (contract amount) xv 40,000 80,000
Total 55,413 97,497

The loan guarantee relates to a loan taken out by Calar Belgium The loan guarantee to subsidiary relates to a loan taken out by Eurodear

SA/NV
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XV Commutments

(€000)

Notes

2009

2008

Commitments (contract amount)
Ligudity facildy prowided to subsidary - one year of less

20,000

20,000

The Company has contractually commutted to make a hquidity facility of up to € 20,000,000 avatiable to Euroclear SA/NV No amount has

been drawn on this facility
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XV Related-party transactions

Euroclear plc 1s the ulimate parent of the Euroclear group Its investments in ds subsicianes are set out in Note |

The falowing s a summary of the balances relating to transactions with Euroclear pic's subsidianes included in s financial statements

.(€‘000) Notes 2009 2008

Assets

Non-current assets 1,577,341 1,579,705

Investment in subsidianes 1} 1,562,921 1,562,921

Trade and other recevables v 14 420 16,784

Current assets 47,379 123,054

Trade and other recevables v 4,853 33,006 !
Cash and cash egumvalents Vi 42,526 80,048 I
Total assets 1,624,720 1,702,759 !
Liabilithes

Current liabilities '
Trade and other payables X 165 876

Total labilities 165 876

Income statement

Ravenues 19,365 123 548

Administrative expenses (603) (2,7118)

Other income 758 784

Finance income 729 3,373 |
Total income statement 20,250 124,987

Off-balance sheet

Guarantees provided X 55,413 97,497
Liquidity facility prowvided X 20,000 20 000
Total off-balance sheet 75.413 117,497

Further detaiis of the transactions with related parties and of key management compensation are provided below
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XV. Related-party transactions {continued)

1 Transactions with its subsidianes
Unsecured loans

The loan transactions and related interest are as follows

(€000 Notes 2009 2008
At 1 January 16,784 16,782
Retmbursement dunng the year (2,000)

Net change in accrued interest {364) 2
At 31 December v 14,420 16,784

The loan to Euroclear Properhes France has an interest rate of 4 82% and s reimbursable in 9 annual mstalments of €2,000,000 as from May
2011, although Euroclear Properties France may with pnor notice reimburse all or part of the loan €2,000,000 was resmbursed in November
2005 and a further €2,000,000 in May 2009

No provisions have been recogmised in respect of this joan

Bank accounts and term deposits
Euroclear plc also has sight and unsecured short-term deposit accounts at Eurociear Bank The deposits are remunerated at market rates of
Interest

No prowisions have been recognised in respect of these deposits

Administrative support
Certain administrative support costs are penodically recharged to and by other compames within the Euroclear group

Licence agreement

Under a licence agreement, Euroclear plc has granted to Euroclear Bank the nght to operate the Euroclear System and the nght to use and
sub-hcence the Euroclear Trademark The agreement may be terminated by esther party wath 3 years notice Euroclear Bank pays Euroclear
plc a royalty fee of 2 7% (2008 12 7%), computed on certain qualifying revenues

Guarantees provided

Euroclear plc prondes a guarantee to Euroclear Bank in connection with the bank's loan to Euroclear SAINV Euroclear SA/NV pays Euroclear
plc a guarantee fee of 5 bps on the outstanding capital amount At 31 December 2009, the amount of the guarantee was €40,000,000 (2008
€80,000,000)

Euroclear plc provides a guarantee to a Belgian bank in connection with that bank’s loan made to Calar Begium SA/NV, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Euroclear Bank, in 1995 Calar Belgium pays Euroclear plc a guarantee fee of 20 bps on the cutstanding capital amount At 31
December 2009, the amount of the guarantee was €15,413,000 (2008 €17.497,000)

Ligudity facility

In July 2005, Euroclear plc prowvided a liguidity facility to Euroclear SA/NV for an aggregate pnncipal amount of €20,000,000 The facility was
made for an initial penod of one year, automatcally renewed It can be terminated by esther party with three months notice A fee of 5 bps 1s
computed on the amount of the facility regardless of whether the facility 1s used and any utilisation of the facility (none to date) 1s remunerated at
Eunbor + 12 5 bps
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XV Related-party transactions (continued)

2 Key management compensation

The compensation of key management was as follows

{€000) 2008 2008
Short-term employee benefits 284 265
Post-employment benefits 39 a7

323 302
Fees of non-executive diweclors 228 224
Total 549 526

Further information relating to Directors' emoluments can be found in Note XLI to the Euroclear pic consolidated financial statements Noloans

or similar transactions occurred with Directors, key management or therr clese family members
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XVI Events after the balance sheet date

Proposed drvidend

On 25 March 2010, the Directors resolved to propose a dwidend in respect of the financial year ending 31 December 2009 of €11 46 per equity
share, which will distnbute €43,900,000 of shareholders' equity The dividend will be paid on 11 June 2010 to shareholders on the register on
30 Apnl 2010
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Independent auditors’ report

to tha members of Eurociear ple

We have audited the parent company
financial statements of Euroclear plc for
the year ended 31 December 2009
which compnse the Statement of
financial position, Statement of changes
in equity, Statement of cash flows, and
the related notes These parent
company financial statements have
been prepared under the accounting
policies set out within note |l of the
consolidated financial statements The
financial reporting framework that has
been applied in therr preparation ts
applicable law and Intemational
Fimancial Reporting Standards (IFRSs)
as adopted by the European Umion and
as apphed in accordance with the
Companies Act 2008

Respective responsibilities of
Directors and auditors

As explained more fully in the Directors’
Responsibiihes Statement set cut on
page 9, the Directors are responsible for
the preparation of the financial
statements and for being satisfied that
they give a true and fair iew Qur
responsibility 15 to audit the financial
statements 1n accerdance with
apphcable law and International
Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland)
Those standards require us to comply
with the Auditing Practices Board's
Ethical Standards for Auditors

Thus report, including the opinions, has
been prepared for and only for the
company's members as a body in
accordance with Sections 495 and 496
of the Compamies Act 2006 and for no
other purpose We do nat, in giving
these opinions, accept or assume
responsibility for any other purpose or to
any other person to whom this reportis
shown or into whose hands it may come
save where expressly agreed by our
prior consent In witing

Scope of the audit of the financial
statements

An audit involves obtaining ewidence
about the amounts and disclosures In
the financial statements sufficient to give
reasonable assurance that the financial
statements are free from matenal
misstatement, whether caused by fraud
or eror This inctudes an assessment
of whether the accounting policies are
appropnate to the parent company’s
circumstances and have been
consistently applied and adequately
disclosed, the reasonableness of
signficant accounting estimates made
by the Directors, and the overall
presentation of the financial statements

Opinion on financial statements

In our opinton the parent company
financial statements

= give a true and fair view of the state of
the company’s affars as at 31
December 2009 and of its cash flows
for the year then ended,

» have been properly prepared In
accordance with IFRSs as adopted by
the European Union and as applied in
accordance with the Companies Act
2008, and

= have been prepared in accordance
with the requirements of the
Companies Act 2006

Opimion on other matter prescribed
by the Companies Act 2006

In our opimon the information given in
the Directors’ Report for the financial
year for which the parent company
financial statements are prepared 1s
consistent with the parent company
financial statements

Matters on which we are required to
report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of
the folloming matters where the
Companies Act 2006 requires us to
report to you If, In our opinion

= adequate accounting records have
not been kept by the parent company,
or returns adequate for our audit have
net been received from branches not
wisited by us, or

» the parent company financiat
statements are not in agreement wath
the accounting records and returns, or

» certain disclosures of Dhrectors’
remuneration specified by law are not
made, or

« we have not received all the
mformation and explanations we
require for our audit

Other matter

We have reporied separately on the
consolidated financial statements of
Euroclear pic for the year ended 31
December 2009

n Hitchins (Senior Statutory Auditor)
and on behalf of
PrncewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory
Auditors

London

31 March 2010

Notes

(a) The mantenance and integnty of
the Euroclear plc website (s the
responsibility of the Directors, the
work camed out by the auditors
does not involve considerahon of
these matters and, accordingly, the
auditors accept no responsibility for
any changes that may have
accurred to the financial statements
since they were imibally presented
on the website

{b) Legislation i the United Kingdom
governing the preparation and
dissermnation of financial
statements may differ from
legislation in other junsdicttons
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Board and Board Committees composition

(as at 25 March 2010)

Board of Directors

1 Sir Nigel Wicks
Chairman

2 Jean-Jacques Verdickt
Deputy Chaiwrman

3 Joseph C Antonelhs
State Street Corporation

4  Michel Berthezéne'
Casse des Dépbts et
Consignations

5 Alain Closier
Société Générale

6  Sue Concannon
Halfax Share Dealing Limited

7 Stephen AJ Dawvies®
Bank of Amenca Memill Lynch

8  Enk Dralans®
ING

9 Mary M Fencgho
Citigroup

10 Mark S Garvin
Semor Independent Director
JP Morgan ple

11 William Higgins
The Royal Bank of Scottand

12 Tim Howell*

13 Junmichi Ishn
Mizuho Trust & Banking
{Luxembourg) SA

14 Peter T Johnston
Goldman Sachs & Ce

15  Akihiro Kanayasu °
Mitsubishi UFJ Global Custedy SA

16 Timothy F Keaney
The Bank of New Yark Mellon

17 Frangois Marton’
CACEIS

18  Nell Martin®
Credit Suisse

19 Lieve Mostrey
BNP Panbas Fortis

20 Dawvid Nicol
Morgan Stanley

21

22

23

24

Herschel Post
Tom Ruud

Martin Slumbers
Deutsche Bank AG

John Stewart
UBS AG

Lionello Falconi
Executive Secretary

Board Committees

Operations Committee

S Nigel Wicks, Chairman
Mary M Fenoglio
Frangois Marion

David Nicol

Jean-Jacques Verdickt

Audit Committee

Mary M Fenogho, Charperson
Sue Concannon

Frangats Manion

David Nicol

Martin Slumbers )
Jean-Jacques Verdickt®,
Euroctear SA/NV Risk Committee
Chairman

Frank J DeCongeho, Adwvisor

Nommations, Remuneration and
Governance Committee

Mark S Garvin, Chairman
Joseph C Antonellis

Alain Closier

Peter T Johnston

Herschel Post

Tom Ruud

Jean-Jacques Verdickt

Sir Nigel Wicks

Appointed by Sicovam Holding
Appointed 9 October 2009
Appointed 17 June 2009
Formerly of HSBC Holdings plc
Will resign from the Board on
taking up new role as Chief
Executive Officer of Euroclear
SA/NV on 5 Apnl 2010

® Wil resign with effect 2 Apnl 2010
Ex-officio member

a2 W

» FrankJ DeCongelio resigned with
effect 17 June 2009

¢ Dame Clara Furse resigned with
effect 17 June 2009

+ Jean-Frangois Théodare resigned
with effect 18 February 2010
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List of Euroclear plc shareholders
As per registrations completed at Compames House as of 28 February 2610

A

Ahbey National pic

London, United Kingdom

ABN AMRO Bank NV

Amsterdam, The Netherlands

ABN AMRC Bank NV (London Branch)
London, United Kingdom

ABN AMRC Bank NV Paris Branch
Pans, France

Allied Iish Bank plc

Dublin, ireland

Allsec Nominees Limited

Dundee, United Kingdom

Arab Banking Corporation (BSC)
Manama, Bahrain

Asco Nominees Limited
Manchester, United Kingdom
Astaire Group plc

London, United Kingdarn

B

Banc of America Securities Limited
London, United Kingdom

Banca del Ceresio

Lugano, Switzerand

Banco Santander Central Hispano SA
Madnd, Spain

Bangkok Bank Public Limited Company
Bangkok, Thaland

Bank Julius Baer & Co Ltd

Zunch, Switzerland

Bank of Barmuda Limited

Hamilton, Bermuda

Bank of China

Beying, China

Bank of England

London, United Kingdom

Bank One Europe Limited

London, United Kingdom

Bank Sarasin & Co Ltd

Basel, Switzertand

Bank Vontobel AG

Zunch, Switzerland

Banque Palatine

Pans, France

Barclays Bank plc

Lorden, United Kingdom

Bamratt & Cooke Nominees Limited
Norfolk, United Kingdom

BGC Intermnational

London, United Kingdom
Blankstone Sington Limited
Liverpool, United Kingdom

BMO Capltal Markets Limited
Londen, United Kingdom

BNL International Investments
Luxambourg, Luxembourg

BNP Paribas Securities Services
Pans, France

BNP Parlbas UK Limited

London, United Kingdom

BNY Intemnational Financing Corporation
New York USA

Brewin Dolphin Limited

London, United Kingdom

Brown Shipley & Co Limited
London, Umited Kingdom

BTl investments

London, Umnited Kingdom

Cc

CACEIS Bank

Pans, France

Calyon

Pans, France

Capita IRG plc

Kent, United Kingdom
Cazenove IP Limited
London, United Kingdom
Charles Stanley & Co Limited
tondon, United Kingdom

Chuo Mitsui Trust and Banking
Co Lid

Tokyo, Japan

Citigroup Global Markets Europe
Limited

London, United Kingdom
Citigroup Global Markets Inc
New York, USA

Citibank Intemational PLC
London, United Kingdom
Citibank NA

London, United Kingdom
Clydesdale Bank plc

Glasgow, United Kingdom
Collins Stewart (Cl) Ltd
Guernsey, United Kingdem
Collins Stewart Europe Limited
London, United Kingdom
Commaearclal Union Assurance
Company plc

London, United Kingdom

Computershare Investor Services pic

Edinburgh, Umited Kingdom
Comer Banca SA

Lugano, Switzeriand

Credit Agricole Assat
Managemant Group

Pans France

Credit Suisse First Boston
Zunch, Switzedand

Credit Suisse First Boston
Equities Limited

London, United Kingdom
Credit Suisse Securities
{Europe) Limited

London, United Kingdom
Credit Sulsse (UK) Limited
London, United Kingdom
Cunningham Coates Limited
Belfast, United Kingdom

D

Daiwa Securities Group Inc
Tokyo, Japan

Daiwa Securitias SMBC Europe
Limlited

Lendon, United Kingdom
Danske Bank AS

Copenhagen, Denmark

Davc¢o Nomineas Limited
London, United Kingdom

Davy Nominees Limited

Dublin, Iretand

DekaBank Deutsche Girozentrale
Frankfurt am Main, Germany
Dautsche Bank AG
Frankfurt/Main 1, Germany
Deutsche Bank AG

London, United Kingdom
Dolmen Securities Limited
Dublin, Ireland

Dresdner Bank AG
Frankfur/Main Germany
Dresdner Kleinwort Wasserstein
Limited

Lendon, United Kingdom

E

Equinlti Limlted

Lancing Umted Kingdom
Euronext NV

Amsterdam, The Netherlands
Evolution Securities Limited
London, United Kingdom

F

FHF {Nominees) Ltd
Leeds, United Kingdom
FIL Limited

Pembroke HM, Bermuda
Figke pic

London, United Kingdom
Fortis Bank (Nederand) NV
Amsterdam, The Netherlands
Fortls Bank NV

Brussels, Belgum

Fortls Holdings (UK) Limited
London, Urited Kingdom
Fortls Private Invost t Manag it
Ltd

London, United Kingdom
Fox-Pitt Kalton Limited
London, United Kingdom

G

Garban Securitias Holdings (Europe)
Limited

London, United Kingdom

Gee and Co

Teronto, Canada

GHC Capital Markets Ltd
Leicester, United Kingdom
Goldman Sachs International
London, United Kingdom

Gulf Intarnational Bank BSC
Manama, Bahrain

H

HAL B Nominees Limited

Birmingham, United ¥ingdom

Halifax Share Dealing Limited

Halifax, United Kingdom

Hargreaves Lansdown Stockbrokers
Limited

Bristol, United Kingdom

Hocdless Brennan PLC

London, United Kingdom

HSBC Bank PLC

Londen United Kingdom

HSBC France

Pans, France

HSBC Holdings plc

Londen, United Kingdom

HSBC Trinkaus & Burkhardt Gesellschaft
fur Bankbetelligungen mbH
Dusseldorf, Germany

t

ING Bank NV

Amsterdam, The Netherlands

ING Belgium SA

Bruxelles, Belgum

ING (London) (No 12) Limited

London, United Kingdom

tnstinet Europe Limited

London United Kingdom

Intesa Sanpaole Holding Intemational
SA

Luxembourg, Luxernbourg

Intesa Sanpaocio S p A

Tonng, italy

Investec Group Invastments {UK) Limited
tondon, United Kingdom

J

Jamas Brearley & Sons Limited
Blackpool, Urited Kingdam

J P Morgan Europe Limited
London, United Kingdom

J P Morgan international Finance
Limited

New York, USA

K

KAS BANK NV

Amsterdam, The Netherlands

KBC Peel Hunt Ltd

London, Urnited Kingdom

Kilhk & Co Limited

London, Uruted Kingdom

Kuwait Investment Company (SAK)
Safat, Kuwait
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L

La Roche & Co

Basel, Switzerland

LCF Rothschild Securities Limited
London United Kingdom

Lehman Brothers International {Europe)

London, United Kingdom

Les Fils Dreyfus & Cie 5A

Basel, Switzerland

LFCM Holdings LLC

New York, USA

Lloyds TSB Bank plc

London, United Kingdom

Lombard Cdier Darler Hentsch & Cle
Geneva, Switzertand

Luxambourg State and Savings Bank
Trust Company SA

Luxembourg, Luxembourg

M

Merrili Lynch Intermational

London, United Kingdem

Merrill Lynch Nominees Limited
London, United Kingdom

MF Global UK Limited

London, United Kingdom

Midas Nominees Limited
Manchester, United Kingdom
Mitsubishi UFJ Trust and Banking
Corporation

Tokyo, Japan

Mizuho Corporate Bank Ltd
Tokyo, Japan

Mizuho Investors Securities Co Ltd
Tokyo Japan

Mizuho Securitles Co Ltd

Tokye, Japan

Mizuho Trust & Banking Co Ltd
Tokyo, Japan

M M Warburg & Co

K¢ wditg llschaft auf Aktion
Hamburg, Germany

Mole Nominees Limited

Dublin, Irgland

Morgan Stanley Secunties Limited
London, United Kingdom

Morgan Stanley UK Group

Londen, United Kingdom

N

Natexis Bleichroader Inc
New York, USA

NCB8 Trust Limited
Londen, United Kingdom
Nikko Cordial Securities Inc
Tokyo Japan

Nomura Holdings, Inc
Tokyo, Japan

Nomura Intemmational plc
Londen, United Kingdom
Nordea Bank Danmark A/S
Copenhagen, Denmark
Nordea Bank Finland plc
Helsinki, Finland

Nordea Bank Norge ASA
Oslo, Norway

Nortrust Nominees Ltd A/C LTDO1
Landon, United Kingdorn
Numis Securities Limited
London, United Kingdom

o]

Old Daks Holdings Limited
London, United Kingdom
OMFS (GGP) Limited
London, United Kingdom

P

Pendle Nomineas Limited AJC HP
Blackburn, United Kingdom
Pendle Nominees Limited
Blackburn, United Kingdom
Pearshing Securities Limited
London, United Kingdem
Pictet & Cie

Geneva, Switzerland
Prudential Equity Group, LLC
Newark, USA

Puilastco Dewaay Private Bankers S A.
Bruxelles Belgium

R

Rathbone Brothers plc

London, United Kingdom

RBC Dominion Securities Inc
Teronto, Canada

Redmayne {Nominees) Limited
Leeds, United Kingdom

Rensburg Sheppards Investment
Management Limited

Leeds, Umted Kingdom

Rensburg Sheppards PLC

Leeds, United Kingdom

Resona Bank Limited

Tokyo, Japan

Reykar Nominees Limited
London, United Kingdom

Robert Fleming HoldIngs Limited
London, United Kingdom

Royal Bank of Canada Europe Limited
Londen, United Kingdom

Rulegale Nominees Limited

Bury, United Kingdom

S

Sampo Bank plc

Helsinki, Finland

Schroder Investment Management
Limited

London, United Kingdom

SCHWAB (515) Holdings inc

San Francisco USA

Shinsei Bank Limited

Tokyo, Japan

Sicovam Holding s a

Pans, France

Skandinaviska Enskilda Banken
Stockholm Sweden

Smith & Willlamson Corporate Finance Limited
London, United Kingdom

Smith & Williamson Investment
Management Ltd

London United Kingdom

Société Générale

Pans, France

Soclété Générale (London Branch)
Lenden, United Kingdom

Speirs & Jaffray Limited

Glasgow, United Kingdom

St Ann's Square Nominees Limited
Manchester, United Kingdom

State Street Internationat Holdings
Boston, USA

State Strest London Limited
London United Kingdom

State Street Nominees Limited
London, United Kingdom

Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation
Tokyo Japan

Svenska Handelsbanken
Stockholm, Sweden

SWX Europe HoldIngs Limited
London, United Kingdom

T

Talwan Depository & Clearing
Corporation

Taiper City, Taiwan

TD Waterhouse Investor Services
{Europe) Limited

London, United Kingdom
Teathers Lid

Lendon, United Kingdom

The Bank of East Asla
(Nomineas) Limited

Hong Kong

The Bank of New York

New York, USA

The Bank of New York
{Nominees) Limited
Manchester, United Kingdom
The Bank of Nova Scotia
Toronto, Canada

The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishl UF), Ltd
Tokyo, Japan

The Bank of Yokohama, Ltd

Tokyo, Japan

The Govemor and Company of the Bank of
Scotland

Edinburgh, United Kingdom

Tha Hong Keng and Shanghai Banking
Corporation Limited

Hong Kong

The Irish Stock Exchange Limited
Dublin, lreland

The London Stock Exchange plc
Londen United Kingdom

The Northem Trust Company

Londen, United Kingdom

The Royal Bank of Scotland plc
Edinburgh, United Kingdom

The Share Centre Ltd

Buckinghamshire Umited Kingdom

The Sumitomo Trust & Banking Co Limited
Tokyo, Japan

Tullett Securitles Limited

London, United Kingdom

u

UBS AG

Lendon, United Kingdom
UBS AG {London Branch)
London, United Kingdom
uBs AG Zurich and Basel
Zunch, Swizerand

UBS Amencas Inc
Stamford, USA

UBS UK Helding Limited
London, United Kingdam
Union Bancaire Privée
Geneva, Switzerland

w

Walker Crips Group plc
Landon, United Kingdom

W H Ireland Limited
Manchaester, United Kingdom
Wilkinform (Nominees) Limited
Kent, United Kingdom
Winterflood Securities Limited
London, United Kingdom

Wood Gundy SA

Geneva, Swizerland
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The economy will
only thrive if it can
rely on a stable
infrastructure.

And that is exactly
Furoclear's area
of expertise:
connecting
markets, initiatives
and people.
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Euroclear,
the world’s leading post-trade service provider

Bonds e Equities * Funds ® Derivatives
Settlement ¢ Custody » Collateral management e Issuer services

In a fast-changing
world, Euroclear
offers the reliability
and flexibility
needed to support
markets worldwide
iN reaching their full
potential.
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Performance highlights

+ ‘The value of securiues held for Euroclear clients ar the end of 2009 was a
record €20 2 trillion, 12% higher than the €18 1 milion at the end of 2008

* Turnover, or the value of securines transactions settled, was €513 5 mlhon 1n
2009, an 8% decrease compared with the €559 8 million reported n 2008
Thus was largely due 10 lower overall mading acuvity

* 'The number of netted transacuons settled 1n the Euroclear group increased by
14% to a record 179 6 mullion 1n 2009 compared with 157 3 million n 2008

¢+ 'The combined daily value of collateral provision outstanding 1n Euroclear
Bank and Euroclear UK & Ireland rose by 28% in 2009 ro €544 2 billion
from €424 3 bullion at the end of 2008
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The data includes intra-group holdings/transactions, as relevant
The data for Euroclear UK & treland exdudes self<collateralising repos The data for Euroclear France excludes 'pensions livrées” with Banque de France The 2008 data for

Eurodear Sweden and Euroclear Fintand for turnover and number of netted transactions settled comprises the months of November and December 2008
Securities in the United Kingdom are held through Euroclear UK & Ireland on the bocks of registrars

The data for Euroclear UK & Ireland consists of Delivery By Value {DBV) and money-market instrument repo transactions Not all are intermediated transactions
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Operating income (in € milhion)
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Financial highlights

The 2008 financial crisis, and the economic recession that followed, made 2009

a challenging year for all market players Euroclear’s total operanng income
decreased by 18% to €934 mullion, of which €759 mullion was generated from
the stable net fee and commussion income and €98 mullion from the more volaule

net interest income which was impacted by historically low interest rates

In this challenging context, the cost base decreased by 12% on a comparable basis
(takang into account the impact of the acquisinons of the Finnish and Swedish
CSDs and Xtrakter) to €749 muilion This reduction 1s the result of a significant
mulo-year cost reducuon programme started n 2008 thar s built on a range of

measures such as Lean (1o increase efficiency and improve productivity and chent

service), automation and procurement spend management LNITALIVES COVENng

all non-personnel related expenses The programme 1s aimed ar reducing the

operauonal cost base by about 25% by 2012 compared to 2008 plans Against

this objecuve, costs had been reduced by 18% by the end of 2009

Euroclear’s net loss amounted to €38 mullion, including a €185 mullion impair-

ment charge on goodwill The Board 1s proposing a dividend of €11 46 per share,

compared to €20 49 1n 2008

2009 2008
Euroclear pic consohdated
For the year ended 31 chember (in € Enl"l()ll) i . _ - -
Operaung income L - o 9338 L1381 B
Profit/(loss) for the year (38 4) 2617
th_carnmgs p:rihar: (E)_ a ) - L o . HO 0)_ ) N o - 683
Dwvidend per share (€} 11 46 20 49
At 31 December
Toral assets o o o o o 1L0025 13,4504 B
Subordinated habilities B _ 2992 3051
Sharr:holdc_rs’ equity o 3,133 4 _3.241 1
Sharcholders’ equity/ Total asscts 28 5% 24 1%




Tim Howell
CEQ of Euroclear SA/NV from 5 April 2010

To face the future
confidently, you must

be well prepared
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Chairman’s statement

[ said in my report last year that 2009 would be a difficult year and this
proved to be the case Your company has faced challenging trading conditions
The fall In volumes in most of the securities markets in which Euroclear 1s
active, the low level of interest rates earned on financial balances left with
the company (net interest income in 2009 fell by €185 6 million compared
to 2008), and the levels of the dollar and sterling, all continued to affect
revenues adversely Your Board has also considered the potential effects on
the future profitability of the group CSDs of the European Central Bank's
TARGET2-Secunties (T25) project, the continuing difficult market conditions,
and other specific market developments As a result, it has concluded that
it 1s prudent for the group to record an impairment of €185 0 million in the
goodwill carried on the balance sheet in respect of the group’s CSDs This
impatrment does not affect the valuation of Euroclear Bank, nor the group’s
requiatory capital

Taking account of the impairment, the group recorded a loss of €38 4 million
in 2009 Before impairment, group profits were €146 6 millon The 2009
result benefited considerably from a vigorous programme to reduce costs,

with operating costs down by 12% compared to 2008 and the total internal
headcount reduced by 221 full-time equivalents (excluding the employees from
Xtrakter that joined the group in 2009) This programme to reduce costs will
be maintained in 2010 and in future years Market expectations suggest that
trading conditicns may not improve In the immediate future

The Board has proposed a dividend of €11 46 per share for 2009, representing
a payment of €43 9 million This represents a dividend payout ratio of around
30% of the pre-impairment profit, in line with previous years The Board will
continue In 1ts mission to deliver value to its shareholders through these chal-
lenging times 1n the market, and will consider the dvidend recommendation
each year in ight of all relevant circumstances
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Future strategy

Your Board of Direcrors connnues to believe that the
best way to provide shareholders with returns over the
medium term, approprate for a company in Euroclear’s
postuon, 15 10 lock after our chients so that they con-
unue to keep business with, and to bring new business
to, the group That requires the group to be able to help
chents handle extreme marker events, to maintain low-
risk systems for the serlement of rransactions and the
safekeeping of client assets, and to retain a hugh-qualiry
staff Above all, the ability to retain and artract business
requires tnvestment 1n new services and facilliies So we
intend to conunue to develop the project to bring the
processing of client transactions onto a single platform
and provide a single poine of access for clients of the
group's six CSDs and for Euroclear Bank This project
compnses several elements In 2007 the company
launched the first element, the Single Settlement
Engine, which consolidated the group’s core settlement
apphicanions, thereby optimusing settlement efficiency In
2009, Euroclear Settlement of Furonext-zone Secunties
(ESES) was completed, bringing, for the first ime, the
nanonal CSDs of Belgium, France and The Netherlands
onto a common IT platform with harmonised business
processes, practices and taniffs Both elements are now

n suceessful operanion

‘The next step 15 the launch of Single Placform Custody,
which will offer our clients mare efficient and har-
momsed corporate action services This 1s an extremely
complex programme and the Board has been carefully
montoning 1ts development As 1s explained later in the
annual report, some difficulties have arisen 1n 1ts build-
ing that will take ume to correct and s introducnon
into production will be phased Thereafter, the com-
pany intends to adept a more modular approach to the
development of major new systems and to introduce

on a step-by-step basis the elements that will provide

the necessary funcrionality for chents The company
will give priority to those elements that benefit 1ts com-
petitive position 1n the market In parucular, we believe
that the development of our collateral management
services offers parucular opportunities for the company
‘The financial crisis has reinforced the need for efficient
tools to mobilise collateral to secure exposures and to
meet financing needs Given that the total value of
assets held 1n Euroclear’s different enoues exceeds €20
tnllion, the group 1s uniquely posiuoned to acr as the
prime collateral management service provider by bring-
ing all of these assets into a single pool for clients of
any of our (1)CSDs

The group untends also to invest in new facilicies which
will suppore 1ts cost reduction imwacves The group
plans to enhance services offered by 1ts operating ent-
ttes, such as issuer services and informanon services, and
other services likely to be in demand in the new world
for securines sertlement thar will follow the introduc-
ton of the TARGET2-Secunues (T25) facibity of the
European Central Bank (ECB)

TARGET2-5ecurities

Euroclear has conunued to participate actvely and
construcuvely 1n the discussions 1n the various
advisory groups about the ECB’s T2S project The
Board 1s following closely the discussions concerning
the formal legal Agreement between the ECB and
the CSDs We continue to argue thac this Agreement
must be comprehensive enough to allow Ditectors to
fulfil their fiduciary duty to make a full assessment of
the services, mutual obligauens, Liabihoes and risks
that will result from a commitment by the company
to use the T2S system

More generally, we behieve thae T2S wll have a

profound effect on the market environment and we
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are taking that into account in the development of

the group's strategic projects The Euroclear group as

a whole will be well placed to rake advanrage of this
emerging environment and to offer our clients a variety
of compeuuve service offerings Euroclear Bank wll be
able to offer a broad service coverage for the full range
of T28 markets Whle the group CSDs that join T2S
will lose some setdement income, which may have

to be compensated for by increased tanffs on other
services, their critical mass and the enhanced custody
and collateral management services planned as parcof
the strategic projects should put group C5Ds 1n a strong

competitve positon

Corporate events

In 2009, Eurcclear acquired the London-based trade
matching provider, Xtrakeer By combining Xtrakrer's
pre-settlement services with Euroclear’s settlement ser-
vices, we are workung to fully automate the flow of trade
information from trade marching through to settlement
This will reduce cost and operauonal risk for the market

and offer access to more streamlined process flows

Following Euroclear’s acquisiton of the Finnish and
Swedish CSDs 1n late 2008, integranon 1nto the
Euroclear group 1s proceeding wath various processes
and funetions successfully integrated during 2009 The
integration of EMXCo, the leading UK provider of
investment-fund order routing, 15 also progressing as
planned and has already brought about major efficiency
gans in the UK fund marker Thus integranon wll
conunue 1n 2010

In 2009 Euroclear supported the changes 1n ownershup
and governance that LCH Clearner 1s realising through
tts shareholder rebalancing ininatve by disposing of
1ts 15 8% stake 1n LCH Clearnet at a small profic We

are now collaboraung with LCH Clearnet in a joint

ininative atmed at realising greater client cost savings
and operanional efficiencies between the cash secunities
cleanng business of LCH Clearnet and the custody and

settlement capabilives of Euroclear

New legislative initiatives on post-trading
The next few years will inevitably, and nghly, see
greater regulation of the financial services industry
Quiute how this will affect Euroclear and 1ts clients is,
for the moment, unclear The cost of doing business
may well increase, but that would be worthwhle of
regulatory change can bring greater stability to financial
markets It 1s important for your company that any new
regulanon brings an equality of treatment for comper-
ing market parnapants so thart any regulatory change
affects 1n a sumilar way all those catrying out similar
business Regulation that discriminates against CSDs
and ICSDs would damage the company and would,

1n all likelihood, damage the efficiency of financial
markets We will contunue to work wich legislators and
regulators 1n their efforts to bung stability and efficiency
to securiry markets We have already acred to reinforce
the group’s risk management governance reflecting, for
example, the recommendations from Sir David Walker's
review of corporate governance in UK banks and other

financial insttutions

Smooth transition to new leadership

Last June, Pierre Francotte informed the Board that

he wished to step down after having served 10 years as
Chref Executive Officer of Euroclear SA/NV and ns
predecessor company The Board established a Search
Commuttee under my chairmanship and, with the assis-
tance of a leading firm of search consulrants, conducted
a global search for his replacement Early 1n January
2010, the Board was pleased to announce the appoint-
ment of Tim Howell as the new CEO of Euroclear
SA/NV, and he takes up his post with effect from 5




Aprnl 2010 Tim Howell was formetly Global Head of
HSBC Securittes Services, where he was responsible

for the custody, fund adminisiration and corporate
trust businesses of the HSBC Group Previously, he
was Group Treasurer, responsible for asset and Liabilicy
management, and at an carher srage of hus career Head
of Market Rusk He 1s a2 Chartered Accountant, having
qualified with Arthur Andersen & Co Tim Howell

has been a Board member of Euroclear SA/NV since
2007, in whech capacity he has acted as Charrman of the
Board’s Risk Commuittee His experience in managing

a successful financial business operating 1n a number

of countries will be of great value to Euroclear The
Board 1s confident that he will provide the leadership
for Euroclear to meer the challenges and opportunmities
across the global capital markets at thus ume of rapid
change Tim will leave his non-execunve directorshup of
Euroclear ple upon waking up his role as CEO, but will
rematn on the Board of Euroclear SA/NV as an execu-

uve director

On behalf of the Board, I would like to thank Pierre
Francotte for his considerable achievements duning his
10 years of successful leadership of the Euroclear group
His wise stewardshtp has seen unprecedented transfor-
maoion 1n the group’s systems and operarions, range of
client services and geographical reach Prerre’s serategic
viston and intellectual insight, coupled with hus deter-
munauon and drive, have led 1 Euroclear becoming a
major player in 1ts field We are very graceful for all that
he has contmbuied duning his ume at Euroclear and we

wish him well for the future

The Board

The Board welcomes Stephen A ] Dawvies of Bank
of Amertca Mernll Lynch, Erik Dralans of ING and
Neil Marun of Credit Swisse as new members of the
Eutoclear plc and Euroclear SA/NV Boards

Frank ] DeCongelio formerly of Credit Suisse, Dame
Clara Furse formerly of the London Stock Exchange
Group and Jean-Francois Theedore of NYSE Euronext
resigned from the Boards and the Board thanks them for
their services and contribution The Board 1s fortunate,
however, that Frank DeCongelio has agreed to centnue
to act as an Adwviser to the Audit Commuteee of which
he was, for many years, the much valued Chairman We
thank too Akihire Kanayasu of Mitsubishi UFJ Global
Custody SA who has announced his intention to resign
from his position as director on the Boards of Eurodlear
plc, Euroclear SA/NV and the Euroclear Luxernbourg-

based subsidianes

Finally, on behalf of the Board, I would like to thank
Euroclear management and staff for the contribution

they are making 10 woday’s challenging umes

Mgl U

Chairman
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Chief executive’s review

In demanding conditions, Euroclear has continued to act as a highly reliable
post-trade infrastructure service provider throughout 2009 Trading conditions
have been very difficult and have affected our profit levels significantly in 2009
We have booked an impairment of the goodwill of the CSDs of the group

to reflect the potential significant impact of T2S on CSDs, our cautious view

of market recovery in the aftermath of the financial cnsis, and some speaific
market developments Qur business performance results, including a 12%
increase In the value of securities that we hold 1n custody, have nevertheless
reinforced our position as the leading global post-trade infrastructure service
provider Our net income has understandably been affected by market
conditions, especially the historically low interest rates, which have affected our
net interest earnings However, our major cost reduction effort (12% 1n 2009,
and 18% compared to 2008 plans) has allowed us to ensure a solid underlying
profitability (before impairment), while maintaining, and even improving in a
number of areas, the control environment, as well as service levels to chents as
demonstrated by our annual client survey

In a profoundly changing market environment, we have continued to deliver
efficient and innovative solutions to help our clients manage their nsks and
Increase efficiency ESES was successfully launched in January 2009 and since
then has achieved near 100% production availabtlity We have adapted our
pioneering Single Platform programme to meet changing market needs
Having acquired the electronic trade matching provider Xtrakter, we are
reducing nisk and cost by automating the flow of trade information from
trade through to settlement




Robust business performance in 2009

In the aftermath of the financial crisis, and wath the
development of the European Central Bank’s T28
settlement pladorm underway, clients are increasingly
looking for low-risk and low-cost soluuons 1n the areas
of custody and collareral management With a strong
track record of experuse in those fields and wide market
and asset coverage 1n these areas, the Euroclear group 1s

uniquely positioned for this new conrext

The value of secunities held for Euroclear clients at the
end of 2009 was €20 2 trllion, an increase of 12%

on the €18 1 trilhion recorded at the end of 2008 The
increase was largely due to growth 1n the fixed income
markers, driven by the high levels of government debt
1ssuance 1n support of countries’ ECONOMIC FECOVETICS
The Value Of Equltles, quu[y—llnked pl'OdU.C(S and
funds deposited 1n the Euroclear group also increased
The daily value of collateral outstanding averaged
€544 2 billion at the end of 2009, a 28% increase

on 2008 The most recent Euroclear Bank figures
demonstrate a growing interest 1n triparty services
from a broader mix of clients, as the need for secured
financing conunues to grow The number of netted
transactions was 179 6 mullion 1n 2009, a 14%
increase on 2008, although the aggrcgated value of
transactions settled dechined by 8% to €513 5 wmillion
This was largely due to lower levels of trading and

finaneing activity

With some seability returning following the ensis,
clients have been able to rely on Euroclear’s safe and
trusted services In September 2009, Euroclear Bank’s
credre raung of AA+ was reconfirmed by Standard &
Poor’s rating agency and Fitcch Raungs By anncipaung
market needs and invesung 1n rechnology upgrades 1n a
nmely manner, all group enuttes have been able to deal
with peaks in volumes

Euroclear has also conunued, 1n 2009, to help 1ts chients
deat wath the consequences of two of the biggest events
of the 2008 cnisis — the default of Lehman Brothers and

the Icelandic banking cnsis

Strong measures in place to bolster
profitability

Our revenues were unpacted in 2009 by the market
downturn Although commussion revenues were
resilient, the prolonged period of record low interest
rates has had a considerable effect on our income, as
anticipated  Euroclear’s operatng income for 2009 was
€934 mulliont or 18% below 2008 Prior to impairment,
net profic after tax was €146 6 mullion, compared to
€262 million for 2008 We have deaded ro record

an impairment of €185 mullion split over the ESES,
Euroclear UK 8¢ Ireland and NCSD CSD operaung
segments to reflect in parucular the conunuing 1mpace
of the economuc and financial crisis, as well as of T2S
on some of our CSDs While we believe our CSDs will
be able to respond to these challenges berter than other
CSDs, our impairment reflects the assumpnen that
they wll have a strucrural impact on the CSD business
model generally We also anucipate that Euroclear Bank
will benefic from the new compeuuve landscape created
by T2§

We have accelerated the cost reducuon programme it~
ated 1n 2008, which aims to bring down our costs by
about 25% compared to 2008 plans by 2012 We have
so far achueved an 18% reducnon aganst this objecuve
The effort will conunue unabated 1n 2010 and subse-
quent years We have idenufied addinonal measures to

further reduce cost 1 the coming years

This programme has been designed so as not to jeop-
ardise our ability o offer a hugh-quality service ro our

clients and maintain our low-nsk profile, as evidenced
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by the very positive client survey results obrained in
2009 and the renewal of Euroclear Bank’s AA+ credit

ratng This will remain our clear objecuve in future

A number of iitiauves are being implemented to help
improve the way we translate our criiical mass and

our strengehs into direct competiuve value for clients
In 2009, we conunued to roll our an orgamsational
efficency programme — Lean management — through-
out the group Over 50% of the group has now been
through the Lean programme We have been generanng
productvicy gans consistently exceeding 25%, while
at the same ume improving client sausfacnon as well
as contribuung to a better control environment Other
iutiatives have included a procurement spend manage-

ment programme to tackle non-payroll expenses

Euroclear’s position in the market

To sustain and grow our revenues longer term, we are
building on the strengths of our various entties to
develop and introduce new services across the group
Thus 1s particularly imporrant 1n the conrext of T2,
which will impace practically all CSDs in Europe,
including the CSDs of the Euraclear group While i
must be expected that our CSDs profits will be affecred
by T2S, they are nevertheless better placed than most
other CSDs 1n Europe to respond to this challenge
Furst, representing about 60% of equittes in Europe,
they have together a much greater cnucal mass than
other C5Ds in Europe Second, they will be able to
benefit from the Single Platform to transtate this cincal
mass 1nto compentive advaneages, in parocular through
upgraded corporate acion services and sophisticated
collareral management services Euroclear Bank will
also be very well placed to take advantage of these new
opportunites thanks o the Single Platform, the ICSD's
market coverage and 1ts experase not only 1n fixed

income but also 1n equities and funds

Throughour 2009, good progress was made 1n 1ntegrar-
ing the entties that recently joined the Euroclear group
— EMXCo, Xtrakeer, as well as Euroclear Finland and

Euroclear Sweden

In the case of EMXCo and Xtrakeer, their experuse in
post-trade, pre-settlement services provides Euroclear
with the opportunity to expand tes service offering,
brninging advantages to our clients by automating entire
process flows from order rouning and trade matching

nght through to serdement

By incegrating EMXCo's fiind order rouung services
wath our fund offerings in the (DCSDs, we have been
working to provide a global, end-to-end automated
fund processing service in 2009, we rolled out the sec-
ond phase of the ink berween EMXCo and Euroclear
UK & Ireland This provides the UK funds industry
with the first automated, integrated order routing and
settlement service through a single point of input This
15 a truly historical development for the UK securines
matkets, which helps clients reduce their costs and nisks

sigmificandy

Euroclear’s acquisiion of Xtrakter in 2009 has already
benefited mutual chents of Euroclear Bank and Xtrakter
through the use of 2utomated transacuon informanon
Hows from trade marching to settlement Thus elimi-
nates trade matching duplicauon and reduces the
number of unsettled transactions, as well as post-trade
costs and risks In the future, we will also look to offer
improved informauon services across the group, using

XKrrakter's expertise in thus area

Some of the group CSDs already have well devel-
oped issuer services, including Euroclear Finland and
Euroclear Sweden, and we are looking to extend such

services across all our CSDs The European Commussion




1s working on new legislanon o remove the barriers that
currently force issuers to 1ssue securittes 1n their own
domestic market, which would further enable issuers to
choose where they issue securines As a resulg, our CSDs
are poised to attract more 1ssuance, and more revenues,
if we develop competitive 1ssuer services across the CSDs

of the group

Single Platform modified approach

to meet changing market needs

The successful launch of the ESES platform 1n Belgium,
France and The Nethetlands in January 2009, has
highlighted the benefits of consolidating systems and
harmonising market practices to make cross-border
settlement and custody cheaper and more eficient
While chere 15 sull more work to do 1n these markets to
bring about further automanon and efficiency savings,
the new platform 1s already achieving high efficrency and
reliability, as underscored by clients in the 2009 Chent

Sansfaction Survey

The compleuon of our Single Platform remains a pillar
of our strategy, as we believe it 15 the most effective
way to increase post-trade efficiency and lower costs
and nisks for the market, and to ensure the success of
Euroclear However, the world has changed with the
planned launch of T2S and the repercussions of the
financial crists T28 does not make our Single Platform
unnecessary On the contrary, beyond the settlement
funcrionality, T2S 1s a perfect complement to our
Single Platform The market will need a coherent

and harmonised set of corporate action, collateral
management and other services, to complement the
harmorused settlement solution that T2S 1s expected to
provide In order to avoid the cost and complexity of
duplicanon with T28, we have decided 1o leverage the
T2S platform and interface 1t with our Single Pladform,

at least for our eurozone CSDs This wall represent both

Delivering the Code of Conduct

In Iing with 1ts commitment to the European Cade of Conduct for Clearing and
Settlement, Euroclear has made further progress with regard to price transparency
in 2009 We have participated in the Oxera study commissioned by the European
Commission aiming at manitoring the prices, costs and volumes of trading and post-
trading services We welcome the first report's conclusions, published in July 2009,
which confirm that CSD transaction costs account for less than 0 5% of the total
transaction costs paid by an nvestor For securities holdings, the CSD charge 1s less
than 1% of the total cost This 1s to be expected considening that in most markets
there 15 a netting process through CCPs and fees are therefore charged on the netted
number of transactions {often less than 5% of the gross number), whereas trading
and cleanng fees — which represent by far the largest part of transaction costs — are
charged on gross trades

In 2009, Euroclear has also delivered on the Code’s third pillar on service unbundling
and accounting segregation Each {()CSD has provided the accounting segregation fig-
ures 1o 1ts natignal regulators and has published a Self Assessment Report on compli-
ance with this part of the Code Our external auditors have 1ssued unquahified hmited
assurance reports on these Seif-Assessment Reports for the year ending 31 December
2008 All related documents are available an www euroclear com

Euroclear welcomes the work on access and interoperability undertaken by the
Committee of European Secunties Regulators {CESR) Thew study, published in February
2009, demonstrates the existence of regulatory barners to access and interoperability
which explain some of the difficulties in delivering this part of the Code The regulatars
and the European Commission are looking into ways of removing these regulaiory
barriers Euroclear has progressed on the interoperability requests that 1t received For
example, Eurocfear UK & Ireland introduced seven new trading venues with their asso-
aiated CCPs in 2009, with mare in the pipeline for 2010 Euroclear Bank's requests for
access 1o CCP transaction feeds with several markets have unfortunately not proven
successful to date Further steps will clearly be needed to obtain the open access and
interaperability that the Code anticipated
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time and investment savings for us Therefore, our man
focus 1s now on delivering Single Platform Custody and
Single Platform Collateral Management, as well as the
Common Communication Interface (CCI), which will
provide all Euroclear chents with an industry-standard
single access to our services Thete are a number of other
elements 1n the final phase of the Single Platform which
we believe will be valuable for us and for our clients,

and which we sull intend to deliver 1n due course

The last year has been a remuinder that large projects,
and especially corporate action platforms, are
notoriously difficult to manage and that in the current
financial market environment, more modular, pracucal
solunons are preferable to all-encompassing solutens
that cost more and take longer to deliver [n 2009, the
imtal resung for Single Platform Custody revealed

a number of issues that will take nme to correct No
fundamental or structural issues were found, but we
have coneluded that we should conducr additional
testing, adapt our project organisation and adjust the
delivery approach of the various phases of the project
going forward We are determined to make sure that we
launch a platform that 1s stable and fit for purpose for
our clients Therefore, we have concluded that the most
efficient and cost-effective way to proceed 1s to adopt a
revised, stepped approach to the project

With Single Platform Custody, we will be providing
the market with a harmonused and consolidated single
custedy service for about 60% of European equuty capi-
talisaton In the context of T28S, 1t will help to posiuon
the group as an 1deal single entry point for accessing the
future post-trading securities infrastructure Euroclear
Bank will be 1n a streng position as one of the few pan-
European providers that has the necessary track record
to offer services for all the T2S markets for the full
range of assets (bonds, equities and funds)

European CSDs are all looking for ways to move up the
value chain to replace the sectlement revenues they will
lose, following the mntroducuon of T2S, with revenues
from new services For many CSDs, the large invest-
ments requured and the potenually greater risks involved
will make this very difficult However, Euroclear’s CSDs
will be able to utlise the service capabilities of Euroclear
Bank, enhanced by the Single Platform, and so avoid
excessive investment costs and the associated greater

nsk By using Euroclear Bank’s capabiliies to provide
services across T25 markets and not just their own
domestic market, Euroclear CSDs wall be able to offer
substanually improved corporate action services to those

clients seeking a higher service level

In the aftermath of the financial crisis, our clients and
regulatots are attaching great importance o being

able to mobilise securiuies to obtain hquidiey and to
collateralise credic exposure Single Platform Collateral
Management will create a single pool of assets for our
clients, encompassing the securities they have anywhere
1n the group We will also upgrade the collateral man-

agement services of the Euroclear group CSDs

Ongoing service enhancements

with a flexible approach

In addition to the majot service rmprovements thar the
Single Platform will dehiver, we contnue to focus on areas
where we can make a difference now, especially where

new needs have anisen as a resule of the financial cnsis

Addressing the need for increased hquidicy, 1n 2009,
Euroclear Bank launched an auromared collateral
allocation nterface between 1ts tniparty module and the
collateral management systems of several central banks
This new service allows banks to automate the allocanon
of collateral to their central banks, simplifying access 1o

central bank credit and himiung the ‘ume o hquidiy




Euroclear Bank also extended 1ts coverage to the Korean
market tnn 2009, after signing a co-operauon agreement
with Korea Secunities Depository Euroclear’s sterength-
ened presence 1n Asia has also allowed Euroclear Bank to
become the first ICSD to launch same-day cross-border
settlement services for four Asian markets and to open

the real-ume processing window earlier 1n the day In
Europe, extended deadlines, introduced 1n 2009 for eight
countries, now enable clients to tput mstructions as close
as possible 1o the local market deadlines Improvements
have also been made for Euroclear Bank clients active in
the US market, who now have longer w inpur instructions

for corporate actions on US domesuc securinies

To ensure our clients can take advantage of a flexible
approach to equines settlement i a trading and clearing
environment that 15 increasingly fragmented, Euroclear
Bank provides clients with a number of trade execution
and clearing support solutions as part of its EquiryReach
service In 2009 we also incroduced a dedicated
EquityReach operations deparument, providing clients
with a comprehensive end-to-end equities service with
increased dedicared support for both custody and settle-
ment This offering 15 proving attracuve to clients, with
our efficient Euronext equinies service seetng conunred
take-up from leading international broker dealers

Working to improve transparency

With the prospect of increased regulation after the crisis,
has come the need for increased transparency Euroclear
is helping to bring this about 1n a number of areas
Euroclear Bank’s DervManager, designed to help deriva-
tives market players mitigare bilateral counterparty nisk
for their entire OTC dervatves activity, was upgraded in

2009 o increase user fnendliness

Euroclear’s acquusition of Xtrakeer has also enabled us to

work towards greater transparency In addition to 1ts trade

matching scrvices, Xtrakeer also provides reporting to
regularory bod:es and an expanding range of marker and

reference dara to the global capital markets

In additton, we are playing an active role 1n the loans mar-
ket, following the launch of Euroclear Bank’s LoanReach
tn 2008 In 2009 the launch of an automared trade
marching service was a fizst major step towards reduc-

ing operatonal risk — providing greater transparency and

increasiung Cﬂ:lClCIle

The future

For many years, Euroclear has been contribucing to the
safery and soundness of the financtal markets, to the
development of the global securtties markets and to the
creation of a low-cost, low-risk post-trade environment
for the benefit of 1ssuers and investors It has been a true
privilege for me to be at its helm for the fast decade [
personally believe that 10 years 15 the maxumum length of
nme for 2 CEO to be leading dhus company and that now
15 the ume to pass the baron Tim Howell 1s extremely
well placed to bring a fresh view 1n a context of strategic
conunury Having been a Board member since 2007,

he 1s well aware of Euroclear’s strengths and challenges,
he knows intimately and has helped shape Euroclear’s
strategy, and he 1s well equipped to understand the special
charactenstics of a marker infrastrucrure service com-
pany 1 am confident that Euroclear wall flourish under
Tim's leadership, supported by the great wisdom and
strong gutdance of the Chairman and the Board, and the
exceptional quality and depth of Euroclear management
and staff

P Zawidlic

Pierre Francotte
CEO of Euroclear SA/NV
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Group management
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Management Committee
of Euroclear SA/NV

1 Prerre francotte
Chuef Execunive Officer,
Euroclear SA/NV unul 4 Apnl 2010

2 Tim Howell
Chief Executive Officer,
Euroclear SA/NV from 5 Apnl 2010

3 IgnaceR Combes
Deputy Chief Executive Chficer,
Euroclear SA/NV

4 Frederic Hannequart
Chicf Business Development Officer,
Euroclear SA/NV

5 Dr Tim May
Chief Admimistrative Officer,
Euroclear SA/NV

6 Joél Merere
Execunve Direcror Internanional
Policy Affairs, Euroclear SA/NV

7 André Roliand
Chuef Financial Officer,
Euroclear SA/NV

Group Management Team

8  Kjell Anndsson
Chairman, Euroclear Finland Oy
and Euroclear Sweden AB

9  Stéphane Bernard
Chuef Operatng Officer,

Euroclear Belgium, Euroclear

France SA and Evroclear Nederland

10 Jan Colaes
Head of Project Delivery Services
and Head of Devclopment,
Maintenance and Production
Support for the Legacy Roadmaps
BE/UK/ESES, Euroclear SA/NV

11 Richard Crews
Deputy Cluef Execuuve Officer,
Euroclear UK & Ireland Limited

12 Fabsen Debarre
General Counsel and
Head of Legal Division,
Euroclear SA/NV

13 Bernard Frenay

Head of Financial Division,
Euroclear SA/NV

14 Pierre Yves Goemans
Head of Commercial Division,
Euroclear SA/NV

15 Mark Kirby
Senior Advisor,
Euroclear SA/NV

16 Yves Poullet
Chief Executive Officer,
Euroclear Bank SA/NV

17  Seppo Rantanen
Chief Executive Officer,
Euroclear Finland Oy

18  Guy Schuemmans
Head of Corporate Spend
Management Division,
Euroclear SA/NV
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25

26

27
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Michael Shipton

Head of Corporate Technology
Division and Head of Delivery
Support Services Diviston,
Euroclear SA/NV

Pierre Slechten
Head of Human Resources Division,
Euroclear SA/NV

Peter Sneyers
Head of Assct Sericing Operations
and Client Services Division,

Eurodear Bank SAINV

Peter Sucaet
Chief Auditor, Euroclear SA/NV

Anne Swaelus
Head of Single Platform Custody
Programme, Euroclear SA/NV

Chuef Execurtive Officer,
Eurcclear Sweden AB
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John Trundle
Chuef Risk Qfficer, Euroclear SA/NV

Valéne Urbain

Chuef Execunve Officer,
Euroclear Belgium,
Euroclear France SA

and Euroclear Nederland

Jo Van de Velde
Head of Product Management
Division, Euroclear SA/NV

Luc Vantomme

Head of Network Management
and Banking Division,
Euroclear Bank SA/INV

Yannic Weber

Chief Executive Officer,
Euroclear UK & Ireland Limited,
EMX Company Lumited and
Xerakeer Limited




'The response to change
requires expertise and

Hexibility




Eugene Wang
Project Developer, Shanghai

Eugene Wang 1s representative of the new drive
to tmprove infrastructure and the quality of
accommodation 1n China. A property developer
based in Shanghai, he 1s involved 1n developing
an enurely new neighbourhood in his nearby
hometown of Jiaxing, 1n the Yangtze Delta.
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L ocal initiatives not
only rely on local
providers; they
need international
partners. With its
worldwide reach and
efficient processing,
Euroclear helps 1o
provide international
funding for regional
growth initiatives.




In a city where
past meets present,
where East

meets West,

the opportunities
are endless.

Making the transition from global
manufacturing centre to the services
industry will not only help Shanghai,
Jiaxing and the enure Yangrze Delta
economy move forward, but also
bring interior and western regons of
China more opportunities to develop
manufacturing and services As
regional cities are adopting muwally
complementary and beneficial
strategies, they facilitate che flow and
production of goods And they open
the gateway to a brighter future
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Achieving our objectives

Providing a fully integrated solution

Notwithstanding the financial crisis,
financial markets are continuing to
globalise Yet cross-border market
participants continue to bear the
cost and risk of inefficiencies in the
post-trade area Efforts to remove
the barriers to cross-border efficiency
must continue

Our Single Placform project 1s the leading private sector
mmitiative to break down the barriers to an efficient
European capiral market 1dennfied by the 2001
Girovanmm Report It combines the benefits of market
practice harmonusatton across muluple countries and
standardised ISO-compliant messaging onto a single
technological system

Mergers with various CS5Ds have allowed the Euroclear
group to grow significantly since 2000 Qur CSDs now
service seven Buropean countnes and ICSD services
are available for 42 markers around the world ‘The
Single Platform aims at providing a fully integrated
solutton for corporate action management, collateral
management activity, and domesuc and cross-border
transaction management across the whole of the

Euroclear group

ESES - a single platform for three markets
The launch of the ESES platform 1n January 2009 was
an important step towards realising a single, integrated

European capital marker

For the first ume, three nanonal CSDs share a com-
mon IT platform, business processes and pracuces

All fixed income, equity and other domestic securities

transactions for market parucipants in Belgium, France
and The Netherlands can now be processed on the same
platform The wntroduction of a harmomsed tanff result-

ed 1n client savings in excess of €20 mullion i 2009

For these three Furopean countries, cross-border sertde-
ment 1s now effecuvely as straightforward as domesuc
This has driven down the cost of sectlement for cross-
border transactons actoss Belgium, France and The
Netherlands, and has given chients further opportumues
to reduce back-office costs Firms can now use one team
and one infrastrucrure to process transactions across

these three markers 1n a standardised way

The ESES platform also benefits 1ssuers, who can maxi-
mise the use of the NYSE Euronext Single Order Book

to access larger pools of liquidity more easily

Moving closer towards a domestic

market for Europe

Development of the Single Platform progressed further
1n 2009 While mantaining our key goal of removing
systems fragmenuuon and harmomsing differing local
market standards and pracuces in the European markets,
we revised the roll-out plan for the Single Platform Thus
was in response to the changing financial and compet-

tive landscape, and our expenence with the project

Thus will allow us to take greater advantage of the
opportunities offered by T2S Immediate focus 1s on
those areas where there 15 currently a strong market
need standardisanon for corporate acnons and efficient
liquidity generanon throughout the financial sector
Grven the current demanding market conditions

and considering the difficulties thar Euroclear has
encountered 1n Single Platform Custody testing, we
believe that 1t 15 wiser to proceed with the Single

Platform 1n a more modular fashion, phasing the effores
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required by Euroclear and the market, to pronide
reliability both in the requirements and 1n the numetable
Thus wall allow Euroclear and 1ts clients to leverage, as

a matter of pnionty, the key compenents of the Single
Platform needed in the context of T2S

Single Platform Custody

The implementation of Single Pladorm Custody
together with the Common Communication Interface
(CCI) as a single entry point for setdement, custody
and collateral management services, will significandy
stwrengthen Euroclear’s compeutive position and help
chients streamline cheir back-office operations The
itroducucn of extended ISO-compliant messaging for
input and reporting, including the use of [SO 20022 by
wssuer agents and the harmonisavon of marker practices
i hine wath recently defined corporate action standacds,
will significantly increase the levels of STP Single
Platform Custody will provide end-to-end informauon
and processing flows — further replacing fax and manual
input, and reducing the number of errors and opera-
uonal losses

Euroclear’s Single Platform Custody will be Europe’s
first mulu-(I)CSD custody platform and will address
Grovannim barnier 3, whuch relates to the differing rules
goverming corporate acnions, beneficial ownership and

custody

Single Platform Custody will offer improved asset
servicing for corporate actions and 1ncome processing
Clients will receive more accurate and umely corporate
action information Addinonal subscription opuons for
receiving cotporate action notications, more compre-
tensive and 1ncegrated reporung and a wider range of
standing instructions will increase back-office efhcien-
cies Real-ume credit and reporung of cash proceeds
will reduce clients’ credit needs Using 1SO 20022 proxy

voting messages, Single Platform Custody wall deliver
new meeting funcnonalities including noufications,
voting wnstructions and the distnbution of meeting
resolutions  Strengthening the relanonship and interac-
tion with the 1ssuer community, including the provision
of meeting services, will become especially important
for our CSDs as comperiuon for European CSDs s

expected to grow 1n the T25 environment

Wich Single Placform Custody, the Euroclear group will
be well positioned to offer a single access for sertling
T28-eligible securiues against commercial and central
bank money We will be able to offer services for all
T2S-eligible secunines — irrespecuve of whether they are
deposited 1n a Eurodear (I)CSD or outside the group

Single Platform Collateral Management

Single Platform Custody will be complemented by a
single group collateral management service, allowing
clients to manage a single pool of collateral for both

market transactions and central bank credit operanons

Wich more than €20 wmllion worth of securities on
deposit 1n our ICSD and CSDs, the Euroclear group
has the largest pool of assets of any local custodian or
[CSD/CSD 1n Europe In the aftermath of the financal
crists, clients and regulators attach great importance ro
the ability of banks to opumise the mobility of ther
securities to obtain liquidity and to collateralise credic

cxXposurc

Single Platform Collateral Management wall deliver
true collateral pooling capabshittes across the Euroclear
group It will extend to securittes held 1n all seven
domestic markets we serve as well as the markers avail-
able through Euroclear Bank Liquidiy will be easier to
obtain — where and when 1t 15 needed Single Platform

Collateral Management will provide increased efficiency,
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Single point of entry for Euroclear group services

An essential element of our Single Platform development is the prowision of a unique
paint of access for Euroclear services — the Common Communication Interface {CCI)
The CCl 15 already available to chients using the ESES platform and 1s intended to be
avallable to all chients in advance of Single Platform Custody It will enable clients to
initiate and monitor their activity, whether domestic or international, through a single
interface

The CCl offers a choice of two highly secure communication channels Depending
on their business needs and volume of transactions, clients will be able to choose
between using the real-ime, screen-based interface, ScreenFlow™ alone, or in
conjunction with the STP channel, AutoFlow™

Both channels are well protected Secure Messaging Senvices are provided by
two network providers, BT and SWIFT, who are working closely wath Euroclear to
implement the CCl

Adoption of the CCl will help clients manage their migration to 150 20022-compliant
messaging The CCl wilt support both 1SO 15022 and SO 20022 standards in key
areas such as corporate actions and settlement — removing the burden of mandatory
migration to 150 20022 for clients

Use of a single interface with the Euroclear group wil! generate data-transport and
back-office cost savings for chients through economies of scale and chotce of network
provider The CCi will also remove the cost of maintaining multiple communication
gateways

offering seamless access to a wide range of counterpar-
ues, including central banks and CCPs, for securities
financing and broad collateral management purposes
In effect, 1t wall become a collateral hub for clients —

opumising market access to hquidity

These collateral pochng capabihiies will extend to

all T2S-ehigible securities and 1t wall be possible to
process collateral ransfers generated by Single Platform
Collateral Management on the T2S platform It will
provide full collateral mobility, including interoper-
ability wich the Eurosystem’s collateral management
common platform, CCBM2

Extending the benefits of the Single
Platform

The consolidation process for the Euroclear Finland and
Euroclear Sweden migration to the Single Platform 1s
progressing The Finnish and Swedish Market Advisory
Commuctees (MACs) act as a prnimary source of con-
sultanion between the Euroclear group and the user
commumues on the migranen and other sigmficant
matters relating to their respective domesuc markets In
addiuon, common working groups have been orgamised
to discuss the harmorusanon of market practices 1n
Finland and Sweden, which are based on those already
defined by other Euroclear CSDs

Once the migraten 1s complete, Euroclear Finland

and Euroclear Sweden clients will be able to access a
post-trade infrastructure that covers all markets served
by the Euroclear group as efficiently as in domesuc
markers and more cost effecuvely than today The range
of services provided by these CSDs will be widened
New services 1n areas such as collateral management
and market clams and transformatons will be made
available and exsstng services, such as corporate actron

messaging, will be enhanced




Increasing efficiency in
the post-crisis environment

The need for greater post-trade
market efficiency has not diminished
On the contrary, there 1s now an even
greater need to develop solutions
that provide for greater transparency,
lower risk and increased access to
hiquidity Market infrastructures are
the natural providers of generic
solutions for the market Our strategy
has long been to address this need —
be 1t through our consolidation and
harmonisation programme or through
specific developments per asset class

We have conunued to extend services that have proven
stccess 10 one market, across the rest of the group,
reducing investment costs and ensunng faster tme

o marker

Fixed income

How well their technological capabilines hold up agamnst
sudden marker movemnents 1s a crucial benchmark

for infrastrucrure service providers With a significant
resurgence of 1ssuance tn the bond markers 1n 2009,
Euroclear’s track record for safery and efficiency played

a major role 1n providing the sector with much needed
relability Increased market interoperability remains a
key factor in efficient and safe settlement Thus, along
with adapting services to changing market needs, can

offer new bustness opportunities ro our chents

Interest 1n sovereign debt markets and primary dealer-

ship increased 1in 2009 Euroclear Bank 1s acting as a

hub for European primary dealers looking for cenrra-
Lised services designed to meet specific market needs

such as mula-lingual support 1n Belgium and France

In 2009, Euroclear France adapted 1ts service offermg to
comply with the new fungibihiry rules applying to the
stpping and reconsutunion of the fixed-rate govern-
ment bonds, OATs This new service offering allows
prumary dealers to benefit from increased fungibiliey
while maintaining an automared and secured processing

of therr stnpping and reconsuturton operanons

The acquisition of Xerakeer tn 2009 has strengthened
Euroclear’s ability to support the marker through
increased transparency Xtrakter had already launched
a bond market transparency service in 2007, prior o
the crisis, In response to prevtous concerns expressed

by regulators

Equities

With the need for sufficient capital intensifynng, more
compantes sought to raise capital through subscriptions
1n 2009 — offering substanual discounts to sharehold-
ers opung for stock The resulung large volume swells
emphasised the need for reliable, efficient asser servicing
—both ar CSD and ICSD) level Focus also increased

on proniding effective mteroperability and close marker
proximuty as the number of new trading venues and

players offering clearing services increased

The launch of the ESES plarform has made cross-border
settlement significantly easter and more efficient for
trades on the Amsterdam, Brussels and Pans exchanges
It has also provided Euroclear Belgium, Euroclear
France and Furoclear Nederland clients with access ro
new Mululateral Trading Facihuies (MTFs) and CCPs
such as Chi-X and the European Mululateral Cleaning
Facility (EMCF)
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ISMAG - streamlining the international
securities market

The Interational Secunties Market Advisory Group (ISMAG) 1s an initiative set up by
Euraclear Bank and Clearstream Banking Luxembourg, supported by key market players
and associations It ams to harmemise and standardise operational processes for inter-
national securrties, making them more transparent for i1ssuers and investars, as well as
Increasing STP levels to reduce operational risk At the same time, the initiative looks to
maintain market attractiveness and competitiveness for 1ssuers and investors alike

In a first phase, ISMAG set out to define best practices for the dissemination of
information for all intermedianies in the chain This culmmated in the publication of the
International Secunties Operational Market Practice Book in 2008, which describes the
flows, roles and responsibilities

Together with market experts, ISMAG then worked to develop specific market stan-
dards Harmonisation and a common understanding of the most common corporate
actions will mmimise the nsk of misinterpretation and bridge many current operational
gaps —mproving the quality of asset servicing for secunties primanly deposited with
the ICSDs

Replacing paperwork by electronic communication, wherever legally and operationally
feasible, has also been an ISMAG priority

Since the publication of the International Secunties Operational Market Practice Book,
ISMAG has momitored adherence 10 1ts key benchmarks and relevant Key Performance
Indicators (KPIs) During 2009, the memitoning of specific KPIs has created momentum
to improve income reversals and rate fixing notifications, as well as speed up the
distnbution of finalised secunty reference data The KPts have also led to increased
transparency and the impraved performance of market players

In 2010, ISMAG will continue to further define, promote and monitor adherence to
ISMAG standards and the iInternational Securities Operational Market Practice Book
wili be updated accordingly

Euroclear Bank’s EquityReach™ scrvice has continued
to attract sigmificant new equities business To ensure
the provision of a complete end-to-end equinies service
to our clients, we centralised out equities expertise
nto a new department, EquityReach Operanons, 1n
March 2009, to serve the specific needs of the equities

markets

Thanks to this end-to-end equities service and 1ncreased
dedicated support for both custody and settlement to
ensure the necessary levels of experuse and proacuvicy,
we were able to absorb new client volumes smoothly
during 2009 Specific umprovements 1n the management
of voluntary corpoerate actions were implemented and
asset servicang deadhines were improved 1n 2009, o

bring them as close as possible to the local deadhines

Euroclear Bank currently provides stock exchange settle-
ment services for 11 European countries with direct con-
necuvity to six of thern Work 1s progressing to expand
the on-exchange direct setlement service to other
European stock exchanges including Deutsche Bérse,
Borsa Italiana, SIX SIS and Nasdaq OMX. In line wath
Code of Conduct interoperability guidelines, Euroclear
Bank has requested direct feeds from the CCPs on

the books of Euroclear Bank, sumular to the setup for
Euronext with LCH Clearner The response of the infra-
structures tn some of these markets has, however, been
uneven, raising questtons about the openness of these
markets under the Code of Conduct We wall be pursu-

ing further our request for access and interoperability

Euroclear Bank has also been appointed to settle
CCP-elhigible Depository Receipts (DRs) traded on the
LSE’s Internauonal Order Book (IOB) and Turquoise,
as well as Belgian, French, Dutch and Portuguese
securities on the new NYSE Euronext SecFinex trading
platform
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The growing fragmentation of trading and clearing 1n
Europe has led banks to reconsider whether to become a
direct member of an exchange and whether to self-clear
their activity or use the services of a General Clearing
Member (GCM) For the benefits of chents who want
to centralise cheir assets in Euroclear Bank bur who do
not have direct access to an exchange or do not self-
clear, Eureclear Bank offers a number of trade execuuon

and clearing supporting solutions

For clients opting to trade on European exchanges and
MTFs en an electronic basis without becoming a direct
trading member, Euroclear Bank has made 1t possible
to route the execution flows directly to Euroclear Bank
and 1o setde these trades on an STP basis Sumularly,

for chents requiring direct access to an exchange, or an
MTE, but withour the rechmical infrastructure o self-
clear, Euroclear Bank offers cleaning and clearing sup-
port soluttons This provides a single aceess to cleanng,

settlement and custody for these customers

Funds

2009 saw European investment funds rally from the
large slump experienced in 2008 Figures for the
Undertakings for Collectve Invesiment 1in Transferable
Secunities (UCITS) funds market for the year show a
net inflow Thus confirms the turnaround in net sales
of UCITS following six consecuuve quarters of net

outflows since the summer of 2007

The combined assets of the investment fund marker 1n
Europe rose to €7 O tllion at the end of 2009 from
€6 1 tnllion 12 months earher, according to figures
from the European Fund and Assct Management
Assoclation

The crists has increased the need for low-nisk, automated

processing and 1t 15 this need that Euroclear aims 1o

address Qur goal remains to be Europe’s leading infra-
structure for the processing and servicing of 1nvestment
funds, helping the industry reach 1ts real potenuial by
offering rouung, sertlement and asset servicing tn all

group entities

Euroclear has already made sigrificant progress thus year
towards creating a single, automated funds processing

solution We are continuing o build greater inveropera-
bility between systems to provide chients with che opuen

of a single access point to all entities of the group

In the United Kingdom, we completed the link between
EMXCo and Euroclear UK & Ireland in 2009 This
provides the UK funds industry wath the first aucomat-
ed, integrated order routing and settlement service wath

an opuional single point of input

Euroclear Bank’s FundSetde™ broadened its service to
accept 18O 20022 messaging in 2009 Fund distribucors
joining FundSertle can now use 18O 20022 mes-

sages to send 1nstructions and receive reports on therr
FundSettle orders over the SWIFT nerwork Thus boosts
levels of STP and provides a unique opportunity for
fund distributors to use one means of communicanon

through a single access point for their whole portfolio

In 2010, the auromared Link berween the EMX Message
System and FundSertle will be enhanced to provide full
interoperability between international fund managers
and UK distnibutors, regardless of the counterparry’s
choice of messaging (FIX-based or ISO-based)} Services
will also be extended to provide automared cross-border
dealing, settlement, reconcilianon processes and asser

servicing for hedge funds

Beyond Europe, FundSettle contnues 1o expand mto

new markets In carly 2010, Euroclear Bank and Korea

So0-Hwa Lee,

Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer of Korea Secunties
Depository

The link with
FundSettle will
enable Korean
INVEStors to use
Korea Securities
Depository as the
centralised access
point to 1nvest In
international funds.
As a result of thss
initiative, we expect
a substantial increase
in STP rates from
close to zero to more
than 90% for cross-
border investment

fund processing
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lan Fitzgerald,
Loan Market Association
Chairman

Loan settlement is
one of the major
challenges facing
the syndicated

loan market and
Euroclear 1s making
an important
contribution in this
respect

Securines Depository {(KSD) agreed chat KSD wall
establish a link to Euroclear Bank’s FundSettle platform
Euroclear Bank and KSD will also work together to
develop KSD's multi-currency, cross-border investment

fund distnbunon system

Derivatives

Market condinions 1n 2009 further highlighted the need
for effecuve nisk and exposure management in the OTC
denvauves marker The European Commuission’s call
for the use of CCP services for Credit Defaulr Swaps
(CDSs) has recetved the backing of many leading finan-
caial insutunens, who have committed wo using at least
one European CDS CCP

While clearing makes much economuic sense for faurly
liquid, plain vamlla credit instrumencs, 1t does not nec-
essanly provide a sufficient solution for more complex
and less standardised products A more widely encom-
passing solution 1s therefore required for this impartant

segment of the dervatives market to complement the

avalabilicy of CCPs

Euroclear Bank's DerivManager™ assists derivanves
market players in mingating bilateral counterparty

ttsk for their enare OTC denvatives actvity It offers a
structural end-to-end solution for all OTC denivatives
and deals with the exposure, nsk and collateralisanion of
all non-cleared trades Full integration with Euroclear
Bank’s collateral management services allows chents

to efficiently use securities as collateral for thewr OTC

denvatve transactions

DenvManager provides structural market benefies thar
complement CDS CCP imuanves Its open architecture
means that DerivManager 1s fully interoperable with
CCPs and other exposure and collateral management

solutions

‘The DenivManager platform was upgraded 1n 2009 to
increase user fnendliness The revised web application
substantrally improves monitoring capabilities for expo-
sure management, dispute idenaficavon and resolunon
It also includes tolerance levels, customised at client and

product level

Loans

The syndicaced loans tndustry conunues to struggle
with the inherent inefficiencies of a paper-based indus-
try Manual errors, duplication of work and difficulties
with record-keeping tequirements all result in unneces-

sary costs and exposure to risk

LoanReach™, which was rolled out 1n 2008 to address
these 1ssues through automanon, was enhanced sig-
mificantly 1n 2009 The launch of our automated trade
matching service was a major step towards reducing
operauonal risk. Buyers and sellers of secondary marker
trades can input electronc instruetions and benefit from

real-ume macching results

For cliencs who prefer to manually agree or disagree
with positions posted by an agent on LoanReach, we
also introduced an affirmation reconciliation service
1 2009 Devclopment 1s underway to tntroduce
LoanReach's DVP settlement service 1n 2010 to sig-
nificantly reduce setddement and counterparty risk, and
to encourage the growth of hquidity in this market by
supporung faster urnaround of secdement cycles
LoanReach’s functionality is being developed on the
basis of market mput We have been regularly meer-
ng for this purpose with user working groups 1n
Amsterdam, London, Luxembourg and Pans and

are coninuing our 1nvolvement as an active member
of the Loan Market Associanon (LMA), the Loans
Syndications and Trading Association {LSTA) and the
Asia Pacific Loan Markert Association (APLMA)
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Collateral management
The financial erisis demonstrated the critical role of
collateral both 1n counterparty risk mitigation and n

providing a stable source of Liquidity

Central banks played a key intermediation tole in the
financial markets in 2009 and the mebilisanon of
collateral 1n favour of a central bank has become an
essential component of every credit instirunton’s hiquid-

iy managcmcnt

In 2009, Euroclear Bank introduced a senes of new col-
laceral risk critera to 1es trparry platform o meet client
demand for improved management of nisks related o
their collateralised business New SWIFT-based 1ntra-
day and detailed collateral statements were also rolled
out to improve the montoring and control of tniparty
collareral

Euroclear Bank launched an automared collateral alloca-
non interface between Euroclear Bank's triparty alloca-
uon module, AutoSelect™, and the collateral man-
agement systems of several central banks This major
new service allows banks to automate the allocatuon of
collateral o therr central banks — easing access to central

bank credit and hmuting the ‘ume to Liquudity’

The service 1s based on an open infrastructure and 1s
flexsble enough to delwer collateral outside the Euroclear
group, whenever required by the relevant central bank

Thus 15 also tn hine wath current Eurosystem rules

This new service complements Euroclear Bank’s triparty
offering and offers clients the means to secure all pos-

stble sources of hiquidity

In 2009, we broadened the pool of collatcral that chents

Can Use L0 Qur triparcy environment CllentS are actwcly

using Euroclear Bank’s triparty services to settle repos,
and any other type of collateralised transaction, using
inrernavonal and domestic securines from more than
40 markets — including 10 in the Asia-Pacific region
For example, improved interoperabslity with KSD,
introduced 1n 2009, allows Korean Government Bonds
(KGBs) to be held in Euroclear Bank and used as col-

lateral 1n a wide range of financing deals

An ESCB decision has allowed us to extend the col-
lateral pool for the ESES CSDs French Ceruficates
of Deposit can now be used as collateral in Euroclear

Belgium, Euroclear France and Euraclear Nederland

Lending and borrowing

Euroclear Bank’s Secunities Lending and Borrowing
Programme, which provides liquidicy for Euroclear’s
sertlement acuvity, maintained 1ts level of activity
throughout 2009 and acted as a safe asset oprimisation
opportunity for clients Euroclear BanK’s collateral-
backed guarantce continued to offer lenders che level
of ptotection required This sustained traders’ ability to
berrow securities, from a large range of eligible securn-
ues, to meet their delrvery obligations throughout a

period of adverse marker condinons

The pool of eligible securinies was extended 1n 2009 w0
include Romanian government debt securities and DRs

for which the underlying issuer 1s Russian
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Serving clients globally

As clients’ needs have evolved

In response to changing market
conditions, so Euroclear’s programme
to be ‘best of class’ in client service
has been adapted accordingly We
have focused on the needs of clients
not Just in Europe, but worldwide,
and are acting as a bridge for clients
and securities markets across the
different regions of the world

Meeting client expectations

Euroclear undertakes an annual Chent Satssfaction
Survey for each (I)CSD to obrain chient feedback and
ensure the enhancements we are making reflect chient

priotiaes

In 2009, a record number of clients responded to
the survey and the Euroclear group achieved very
good sausfaction ratings, 1n spice of difficulr marker

conditions and the cost reducnion programme

At Euroclear Bank, for example, scores increased
significantly for core services such as internal settlement

(90%)

Seores for chient service, including for umeliness and
accuracy of query responses have also improved, reflect-
ing our continued work to reduce response times and
tmprove the quality of informanion we provide Scores
were substantially higher for credit momtoring, money

transfer and income

Euroclear UK & Ireland clients see core services, such

as sertlement, as key strengths Delivery By Value

(DBV) (81 8% and lending services (87 59%) are highly
appreciated by clients

The ESES CSDs (Euroclear Belgium, Euroclear France
and Euroclear Nederland) were assessed as a single
service enrity for the first tme in 2009 Very high scores
were recerved for the efficiency and reliability of the
ESES platform (88%) and its avaifability (85%) This
reflects the efforts made to ensure top quahty client
service following the platform launch 1n early 2009
Euroclear Finland and Euroclear Sweden chents partici-
pated tn our Clent Sansfactuon Survey for the first nme
n 2009 An issuer-specific survey was also carned outin

these countries

The 2009 survey told us how strongly clients value the
relanonship management we offer This 1s very much a
shared responsibility 1n Euroclear — shared across func-
tions, across divisions, and across levels of sentonty We
conunue to encourage stronger client ties at all levels
Thus 15 a key factor in mamntaiming and enhaneing chient

trust and confidence

Asia - further increasing

our local presence

Euroclear Bank has had an uninterrupted local pres-
ence 1n Asia since 1987 and now has a branch office

i Hong Kong and representative offices in Beijing,
Singapore and Tokyo Our strong local presence — with
close to 100 people — allows us to provide a faster and
better service to Astan clienes in their ume zone and

their own language

In 2009, we have therefore conunued to strengthen
our local service capability, bninging over Network
Management and Product Management experts to
complement our 70-strong Hong Kong team cover-

ing Operanons, Chent Service and Relationshsp
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Management We expect to further srrengthen the team

with treasury speaialists

Qur heightened presence in the region 15 enabling us to
respond more quickly and develop solutions tailored 1o
the specific needs of each marker In order to provide
cheaper, more efficient fund processing, greater access
to hquidity and safer methods of securing loans, we are
working with local market associations, such as the Asia
Fund Autemauon Consaruum (AFAC), to promote the

benefirs of $TP and automation

Nicholas de Boursac,
Managing Director,
Asia Securities Industry
and Financial Markets
Association (ASIFMA)

ASIFMA promotes
deep, liquid and
eflicient capital
markets by
communicating
the views of
member firms to
regulators 1n the
region. Our close
collaboration with
Euroclear, which
shares this objective,
has resulted in

the formulation

of a number of
clear and detailed
recommendations.
We believe these
contributed to
positive and decisive
steps taken by the
Korean authorities
towards the further
internatonalisation
of the Korean
financial markets.
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Performing strongly across the group

This section complements the preceding general description with
additional information for each operating entity of the group For details
of each ()CSD's financial results, please see the Main operating entities —
Income statement on page 89 of the Financial review section

Euroclear Bank

Strong performance in 2009

Secunuies held 1n custody at Euroclear Bank for clients
rose by 8% to a record €9 8 trillion at the end of 2009
from €9 1 trllion at the end of 2008 The number
and value of transactions processed by Euroclear

Bank 1n 2009 declined by 6% and 22%, respecuvely,
due pnmanly te lower levels of repos and secuniues

financing transactions 1n the markets during the year

Year-end figures for triparty collateral management deals
cutstanding administered by Euroclear Bank remained
stable — nsing shghtly to €212 6 bilhon per day ar the
end of 2009 from €211 9 billion at the end of 2008,
notwithstanding substanually lower levels of leveraged
borrowing 1n the banking system generally and less
overall inter-bank collateralised trading The most recent
Euroclear Bank figures show a growing interest tn -
party services from a broader mix of clients, rather than
increased business solely from exisung chents, as the

need for secured financing conunues to gain recognition

AA+ credit ratings reconfirmed

Euroclear Bank's AA+ credit raung, with stable outlook,
was reconfirmed by Standard & Poor’s rating agency
and Fiteh Thus refleces Euroelear Bank's very low nisk
profile — consistent with 11s role as market infrastructure
service provider It s this low nisk profile, together with
tts stringent risk management, that helped insulate
Euroclear Bank from the direct impact of the financial
crists and allowed 1t 1o bring stability to the market
throughout the recent challenges

Lehman and Iceland -
managing the aftermath
In the aftermath of the unprecedented Lehman Brothers

and Icelandic bank insolvencies, Euroclear Bank has
taken a key role m facilitaung the proof of holdings
that our clients, and their underlying clients, needed
for their claim filing process Over 30,000 claum filing
instructions were processed 1n an automated and secure
manner, allowing creditors to prove their holding o
the relevant clam administrators through processing

alternatives adapted to their different needs

Significantly improved global service

A series of enhancemnents to Euroclear Bank’s setdement
infrastrucrure 1n 2009 enabled us to further improve
settlemenc efficiency and provide greater same-day

interoperabilicy with local markets

In September 2009, Euroclear Bank opened a link
with KSD o provide sertlement, custody and related
services for Korean Treasury Bonds (KTBs) and
Monertary Stabilisauon Bonds (MSBs)} KSD 1s the
10th Asia-Paafic CSD with which Euroclear Bank
has a link In 2009, we also reopened our ink with
Thailand and extended our Malaysian coverage to all
fixed income secunties Addinional links are planned
with other countries 1o Asia, Laun America and

Eastern Europe

Euroclear Bank has introduced same-day deadlines

for money cransfer snstrucuons 1n five Asia-Pacific
currenctes In 2009, we launched same-day cross-
border setttement services for Australia, Hong Kong,
Japan and Singapore — the first ICSD 1n the region o
do so In November, as part of our Asia-Pacific strategy,
we opened the real-ume process window ane-and-a-
half hours earher for the processing of internal and

external instrucnons This provides chients with berrer




interoperabilicy with the Asia-Pacific region, more
opportunities for same-day settlement and turnaround,
and earlier availability of reporting, cash and securities

for onward nscruyctions

In 2010, the mnput deadlines for external securities
transacuon 1nstructions (both againse and free of
paymente) for settlement in the Asia-Paafic region wall
be extended Thus will further increase interoperability
with local markets and improve same-day turnaround
possibihues It will offer more opportuniues for
tumely settlement and improved same-day financing

capabibinies in Euroclear Bank’s tniparty service

We have introduced extended input deadlines for exghr
European countries Belgium, France, Finland, Greece,
The Netherlands, Norway, Spain and Sweden

In 2009, Euroclear Bank improved 1ts deadline to input
instructions for corperate actions on US domestic
securiuies by 20 hours — allowing clients to instruct

on market expiry date Euroclear Bank 1s working on
further extending this deadline to 17 00 CET and
offering same-day deadlines for proxy voung and
consent corporate acttons 1n the United States This
will complete the already extensive coverage of

corporate acttons under the same-day deadline

E-certification

Euroclear Bank, together wath several agents, has further
expanded the scope of elecrrontc ceruficanion — reducing
paperwork and administrative workload for clients
More than half of all notfications requiring cernfication
sent by Euroclear Bank now offer the possibiity of

electromic ceruficauon

Moving towards an automated

tax solution

Euroclear Bank aims to fundamentally simplify tax
operations for clients active on the internanonal secun-
uies marker and provide easy access to documentation

requured for tax relief

In 2009, we introduced an opuional e-mail rax-reporung

service — helping clients quickly reconcile tax daca and
easly idenufy actions to be taken In 2010, we will
launch Euroclear TaxGenix™ Clients will then be
able to monitor and manage their tax activities and
documentation in real ume — reducing processing tume

while providing online validation

Fee reductions

In spite of the financial crisis and 1ts negative 1mpaci on
Euroclear Bank’s revenues, Euroclear Bank implemented
further fee reductons in 2009 The ‘famuly’ concept,
which was implemented for the caleulaton of
safekeeping fees scveral years ago, has been extended to
settlement fees This benehits those clients thar are active

in Euroclear Bank through various legal entities

Another senies of Euroclear Bank fee reducnions has
reduced the cost of cross-border setlement involving
securities from countries 1n which Euroclear operates
the CSD (1 e domesuc secunines from Belgium, France,
Ireland, The Netherlands and the United Kingdom)
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Key figures
Euroclear Bank

Turnover

€219 9 tnllion -22%
Holdings

€9 8 tnilion + 8%
Number of transactions
after netting

39 3 mdlion - 6%
Collateral provisicn
outstanding

€212 6 bellion 0%

Securities held in custody
by clients rose by 8% to a
record €4 8 tnillion at the
end of 2009
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(Euroclear Belgium, Euroclear France, Euroclear Nederland)

Sohd performance across ESES entities
Euroclear Belgium expertenced a rise in turnover of
19% 1n 2009 to €399 bilhon, from €335 bilhon 1n
2008, based on 1 9 million transactions, a decrease of
14% from 2008 Securiues held at Euroclear Belgmum at
the end of 2009 were valued ac €140 bilhon, 9% above
the 2008 level of €128 bullion!

The value of securites held for clients in Euroclear
France rose by 12% to €5 1 trillion 1n 2009 from

€4 5 tollion 1n 2008 In contrast, turnover at Euroclear
France was €79 6 mnllion, 15% lower than 1n 2008, and
the number of netted transactions dechned by 12%
Lower overall trading acuvity, paracularly in equity
trading by French reta:l investors, was the pnmary fac-

tor for this development

Key figures Key figures Key figures

Euroclear Belgium Euroctear France Euroclear Nederland
Turnover Turnover Turnover

€399 billion + 19% €79 6 mnllion - 15% €4 4 trllion + 3%
Holdings Holdings Haldings

€140 bdlion + 9% €5 1 tllion v 12% €880 bulion + 7%
Number of transactions Number of transactions Number of transactions
after netting after netting after netting

19 mullion - 14% 28 milion -12% 5 2 mulion + 18%

Eurodiear Belgium
expenenced a rise in
turnover of 19% m 2009

Lower overall trading
activity, particularly in
equity trading by French
retail iInvestors, was the
pnmary factor for the
decline in the number of
transactions

Euroclear Nederland
processed a record
number of transactions
In 2009, rnsing 18%

to 5 2 midlion

With a record number of transactions processed

1n 2009, rising 18% from 4 4 mullion in 2008 to

5 2 mullion 1n 2009, Euroclear Nederland's turnover

rose by about 3% on 2008 to €4 4 tlhon There was
also a 7% rise mn secunties held in custody for clients,
from €819 billion in 2008 to €880 billton 1n 2009

Successful launch of the ESES platform
Euroclear 15 the first infrascructure service provider in
Eurape to successfully consolidate three CSDs onto a
common IT plaform The launch of the ESES plarform
in January 2009 harmonised the settlement of trades on
the Amsterdam, Brussels and Paris exchanges This was
key in delivering the full benefits of the NYSE Euronext
Single Order Book

The implementanon of the ESES platform went
partecularly smoothly Extensive testing and launch
rehearsals meant that Euroclear and the markets 1t
serves were well prepared and supported during the
preparatery, migration and post-rmigration phases The
ESES platform has proved reliable ever since 1ts launch,

with 99 98% avallability over 1ts first year

Throughour 2009, we have continued to introduce
enhancements to the ESES platform and to fine-tune
vartous functions on a regular basis In 2010, specific
focus will be given to corporate acnions and shareholder

identification services

Integration and user governance

With Euroclear Belgium, Euroclear France and
Euroclear Nederland shanng a single transacuon-
processing soluaon, Euroclear introduced a more
integrated, harmomised governance structure 1n 2009
The ‘ESES Coordination College’, comprising a cross-
secuon of local CSD management team members, s

chaired by the same CEQ for all three CSDs

1 The 2008 figure for secunties holdings was recalculated using the same calculation method as 15 used for Euraclear France and Euroclear Nederland




This more streamlined management structure allows
us both to reduce internal costs and to ensure a
more effective delivery of the new platform’s benefits

to clients

In 2009, we set up two new industry discussion
forums — the ESES Sertlernent Performance and
Monuoning group (SPMG) and the ESES Users
Forum The SPMG monutors the settlement efficiency
of the platform on a monthly basis It also gives
recommendacions on the best pracuces that should
be applied and penalties for late matching and
settlement The ESES Users Forum helps define the
developments thar are required 11 order of prionty
The forum haises with vanous domesuc working
groups (e g AFTI, DACSI, MEC) to ensure proper
commumcation across all three countnes and o
reinforce a common approach when addressing

evolving market needs

Increased interoperability

The increased interoperability between the ESES CSDs
1s being further extended to other CSDs ‘The use of
standard 18O messaging has strengthened links wich
various non-Eutoclear group CSDs Securiues ehigible
in the European System of Central Banks can be
transferred using STP berween ESES CSDs and Monte
Titolt and OEKB The same 1s expected for Iberclear
and Clearstream Banking Frankfurt in 2010

Faster automated warrants and

certificate admission

A new service to admit warrants and certificares was
introduced in 2009 for chents of all chree ESES CSDs
By automaung previously manual 1ssuance processes,
thus service shortens the admission process from five
days to one Issuers can issue securities more quickly —

taking full advantage of marker condinons

Realsing the benefits

of dematerialisation

Euroclear Belgium 1s continuing to support cthe removal
of physical secunttes from the Belgan capital market Its
infrastructure for physical securities 1s the pivoral point
for the demateralisauon process, which started 1n 2008
and will last unol 2013 In 2009, the volume of physical
secunues depostted with Euroclear Belgium, and requir-
ing dematerialisation, dropped sigmificantly Euroclear
Belgium has taken vartous steps to reduce infrascrucure
costs — including the rationalisation of 1s IT platform
Furthet efforts will be made to reduce the amount of

paper stored 1n Euroclear Belgium’s vaults

Conumung the work started in 2008, Euroclear
Nederland, together with 1ts dients and 1ssuer agents,
introduced further incentives in 2009, which have success-
fully reduced the number of physical securiies This1sin
preparanon of the arrval of a new law, expected to come
ineo effect 1n 2011, which aims at terminating indivicual
bearer securities for The Netherlands As a second logicat
step towards dematertalisanon, Euroclear Nederland has
outsourced 1ts safckeeping services to Euroclear Belgium
Thus has allowed Euroclear Nederland to close 1ts vaule
infrastructure thus contnbutng to a {cost) efficient and

seamless transfer towards dematenalisarton

Modernising payment

practices in Belgium

In Belgum, dematerialisation and the implementanon
of the ESES platform tnggered inutatives to modernise
and harmomse payment practices In a joint market
effort led by the Belgian financial sector associauon,
Febelfin, Belgian marker players have agreed to swirch
from the classic payment method to the direct payment
methad for dividend and interest payments on all
secunues ebgible 1n Euroclear Belgium This reduces

processing costs and nisk for Euroclear Belgium clients
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In addition, 1t contributes to increased harmonisation
by aligning Belgian pracuces wath che standards defined
by the Corporate Action Joint Working Group

Euroclear Belgium has also launched a payment service
to support 1ssuets tn November 2009 — extending the

benefits of the direct payment method further

Enhanced 1ssuer services

Euroclear France launched Euroclear CapiNews in 2009
which allows issuers and agents to communicate directly
with their holders 1n an efficient and low-cost manner
Thus service 1s planned to be extended to Euroclear

Belgium and Euroclear Nederland clients 1n 2010

‘The Capilog report, currently available to 1ssuers in
Euroclear Belgium, will soon be extended to 1ssuer
agents and system paying agents in Euroclear France
Issuers or theur agents will be able to reconcile positions
more easily, and proactively manage corporate actions

with opuions

In 2009, Euroclear Nederland began preparation of a
new shareholder idennfication service that will help
1ssuers 1n disclosing intermed:aries and beneficianes
throughout the custody chain This 1s 1n anticipation of
an amendment of the Dutch Securities Giro Act, which
in now cstimated to come 1nto effect 1n 2011 Euroclear
Nederland published a white paper in 2009 describing
the main prinaiples that need to be met 1n order to
ensure proper functioning of sharcholder identification
in The Netherlands In parallel, Euroclear Nederland
ook the iead 1n developing, together with external
stakeholders, a standard template for the efficient

processing of shareholder 1dentification requests

Increased business in funds

Euroclear Franees order rounng and settlement service
for funds continued to gan ground in 2009 Volumes
increased by 15% desptre the temporary adverse market
condinions affecung third-party distnibunon in general
The number of orders processed through the order
routing platform reached 280,000, and around 5,000

funds are now available on the platform

SBI functional upgrades

Euroclear France has enlarged the scope of 1ts broker-
to-custodian trade-affirmation system, SBI, and
adapred the service ro comply with new regulatory
requirements Its usage has been extended to include
new trading venues and to allow secdement to take

place on sub accounts

Confirmarion of rades without settlement 15 available
for all securities and SBI transactton notices can be used

as legal electronic invoices
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Nordic CSDs

(Euroclear Finland, Euroclear Sweden)

Continued robust performance

in difficult times

The number of settlement transacuons processed by
both Euroclear Finland and Euroclear Sweden was
adversely affected by the introduction of a mandarory
CCP n 2009 This resulted 1n a reducuon of around
72% for Euroclear Finland and a decrease of 63% for

Euroclear Sweden

However, for Euroclear Sweden, transactions in foreign
securities went up by around 60% in 2009 as a result of
increased interest from investors who previously mainly
traded 1n Nordic securities This resulted 1n the number
of sentlement transactions decreasing by only 12% on a

year-on-year basis

The value of cqurtics held 1n custody by Euraclear
Finland rewmrned to growth in spring 2009, reaching

a value of €140 9 billion ar the end of the year The
number of new bond 1ssues also grew by abour 30% 1n
contrast to the warrant markert, which decelerated heav-
ily The number of holdings in different securities lines
on accounts conunued to mcrease due to investment
activity 1n owner speaific accounts This in¢rease started
n 2008 and cononued throughout 2009 Despite the
turbulent economic condittons, settlement efficiency
remained above 39 5% for trades cleared and settled 1n

Euroclear Finland’s HEXClear system

"The availability of Euroclear Sweden’s system remained
very high throughour 2009 (99 96%) The number of
affiliated 1ssuers remained at 1,223 on par wich 2008,
although the number of affilianon 1ssues increased

at the end of 2009 The increased need for hiquidity
pushed the number of nights 1ssues up by over 50%

on 2008 o 142 1n 2009 Dividend payments through
Eureclear Sweden dropped by 12% o SEK 130 billien

Outstanding 1ssuance volumes for structured products

rose by 7% to SEK 177 billion by the end of 2009, and
the number of service accounts tncreased by 15% to

over 1,047,000 accounts

Enhanctng ISSUer sarvices

Market practice for AGMs has undergone signuficant
change over the past few years New regulauion has been
introduced, and 1n 2009, Finland saw the implemenia-
tion of the Sharecholders’ Raghts direcuve and the revi-
sion of the AGM temporary list schedule

Further developing 1ts issuer services, Euroclear Finland
iunated the rollout of 1ts new electromic General
Meeung (eGM) service 1n 2009 The first phase of

this internet-based meeungs service for sharehaolders
was launched 1n the spring and introduced the use of
electronic meenng noufications This tniauve has
been welcomed by 1ssuers and shareholders alike The
second phase will consist of the launch of an advance
voung facilicy for direct registered shareholders in 2010
and future plans include extending this advance voung

facility to nomunee registered shareholders

Plans are also underway to enhance Euroclear Finland's
Sharcholder Information and Insider Register services ro
comply with new regulatory changes This will reinforce
the CSD’s Aexability and capability for wider and more

value-added services to the issuers

Euroclear Sweden fully integrated 1ts newly acquired
AGM service, BOSS, 1nto 1ts operations in 2009
Many major listed companies have opted to use this
new service, which offers support 1o 1ssuers prior to,
and during, AGMs Further developments were realised
1n the latter part of 2009, offering speafic support o
1ssuers of debt instrtuments A BOSS-light applicanon
15 planned for early 2010 — designed for 1ssuers with
few parncipants attending AGMs

Anna von Knorrning,
Deputy Director

Legal & Back Office,
State Treasury Finland

State Treasury
Finland’s targets are
to keep 1ssuance
procedures for
Finnish government
bonds and treasury
bills as smooth and
efficient as possible
at reasonable costs
When aimung for
these objectives we
rely on our long-
standing relationship
and dialogue with
Euroclear Finland
We monitor closely
developments in
T2S and the Single

Platform migrauon.
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Ongoing integration
2009 was the first full year in which Euroclear Finland and
Euroclear Sweden were part of the Euraclear group Vanous
functions and processes have been successfully integrated
Into the Euroclear group as planned
Dunng the second half of 2009, both CSDs implemented a
rearganisation and integration of IT operations to ensure
a common strategy for the future IT architecture and to
facilitate the migration to the Single Platform A more inte-
grated, harmonised governangce structure was introduced
early n 2010 — similar to that established for the ESES
CSDs Further mtegration will continue in 2010 extending,
where possible, economies of scale and an enhanced range
of client services

Key figures Key figures

Euroclear Finland Euroclear Sweden

Turnover Turnover

€508 billion €7 3 tllon

Holdings Holdings

€226 billion €804 bullion

Number of transactions Number of transactions

after netting after netting

14 million 27 9 mullion

The 2009 results reflect the
first full year contribution
to the Euraclear group of
Euroclear Finland, which
became part of the group
at the end of October 2008

The 2009 results reflect the
first full year contrnibution
to the Euroclear group of
Euroclear Sweden, which
became part of the group
at the end of October 2008

To streamline the nottfication process further, account
holders wall be given the optien to receive electrome

nouficauon instead of physical nonficauon

Euroclear Sweden’s web-based tool, VPC Analys, which
allows issuers to analyse and sort informanon concern-
ing holders of their company’s financial instruments,
will also be improved in early 2010 New reports and
an enhanced nterface with VPC Analys will furcher

Increase rransparency

Developing account operator services
Euroclear Finland further developed and improved
account operator and settlement services chroughout
2009 Services were upgraded 1n line with changing
marker pracnees and Euroclear Finland’s serdement
system, HEXClear, began processing transacnion types
other than trades This includes the processing of
corporate action mstructuens and collateral transfers
Development to accommodate two new Finnush Acts
of Law 15 also ongoing The Act on Tax Account affects
the distritbunion of cash proceeds and the Act on Long
Term Savings requires the implementation of a specific
account type for long term savings Both laws came into
effect at the beginning of 2010

CCP implementation

The introduction of a mandatory CCP was a major structural
change in the Nordic post-trading industry in 2009 Both
Euroclear Finland and Euroclear Sweden have actively
contnbuted to the successful CCP implementation —
together with market participants and in close co-operation
with the CCP candidates, Burgundy, NasdaqgOMX and the
local authonties




Euroclear UK & Ireland

Major increase In cash values

Euroclear UK 8¢ Ireland expertenced a 14-fold increase
in the combined tssuance of treasury bills and a new
type of Bank of England bill used 1n reserve account
operanons Daily values of cash settled i the system
rose from a pre-crisis 2008 dauly average of £888 billion
to around £1 3 tnillion n 2009

Euroclear UK & lIreland’s system was able to absorb
this rise in values wath no impacr on 1ts processing or
resources Further improvements ta settlement process-
g were made and the real-time settlement system
maintained 99 92% avaulability 1n 2009

Settlement of DBV transactions, used by the Bank of
England as a tool to create hiquichty, increased by 75%
to a daly average of £251 billion 1n 2009

Tanff reductions

In spite of difficult market conditions, Euroclear UK &
Ireland implemented several tanff reductions and deliv-
ered impertant savings back to the market 1n 2009

We removed the clearing fees charged to the CCP carly
in the year In November 2009, Euroclear UK & Ireland
launched a new pricing model that provides increased
transparency 1n pricing by wenusing each clearing-refat-
ed service component (netting, stamp duty assessment
and transaction reporang) Thus allows clients to select

a[ld plll'ChﬂSC Gﬂly IhC SETVICES [hCY require

By the end of 2009, Euroclear UK & Ireland had
reduced 1ts trade netting taniff by ar least 70% over
the previous three years A further reduction and tanff
restructuring has come into effect in March 2010 —
charging clients per netted transaction rather than per
gross transactions Thus translates into a lowering

of the cost of using our trade nerung service by 90%
stnce 2006

The Association for Financial Markets in Europe
(AFME) along with other securities market representa-
tives have affirmed Euroclear UK & Ireland’s trade net-
ung tmodel and tanff structure as the post-trade model
of preference for the United Kingdom and Ireland,
ensuring our ability to conunue to provide the trade

netting services requested by our clients

Working with HM Treasury

Following the Lehman Brothers insolvency, HM Treasury has
been carrying out an extensive consultation Into improving
responses to investment bank mnsolvency [ts aims are to
create greater certainty for the market as a whole, includ-
ing returning client assets more quickly and addressing
counterparty exposures Euraclear UK & dreland has been
waorking closely with HM Treasury and participates in work-
g groups 1n relation to insolvency and client assets

As part of this work, Euroclear UK & Ireland has proposed a
new approach to handling pending settlement mstructions
on insglvency Pending instructions would mmediately be
permanently frozen, to provide greater certainty to counter-
parties These proposals are now undergoing consultatien
as part of the HM Treasury work
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Key figures
Euroclear
UK & Ireland

Turnover

€201 4 trdlion + 13%

Holdings

€3 3 tollion + 20%

Number of transactions
after netting

63 3 mulion - 8%

Collateral provision
outstanding

€331 6 billion + 56%
New records were set by
Euroclear UK & Ireland
In nearly all measures of
performance




Improving price and reporting
transparency

As a result of the economic conditions, including recent
failures in the market and the current cost of borrow-
ing, settlement banks have sought to improve their
management of risk — especially regarding Liquidicy
management and collateral Responding to their needs,
Furodlear UK & Ireland has delivered enhanced hquid-
1y reporung — providing scttlement banks with a more

transparent view of hiquidity usage

In consulauon with the market, Euroclear UK 8¢ Treland
1s currendy looking into ways to further increase trans-
parency in uts pricing and reporung We implemented

a new electronic billing mechantsm in 2009, allowing
us to send Ainancial informanon to clients quicker and
on a more regular basis, and we are exploning ways to
offer clients a more detailed breakdown of their trades,
denufying the place of trade for each transaction

As of carly 2010, and as requested by clients, we have
provided chients wth a new report to morutor their

daily transaction reporung statuses Thus helps clrents
to reconcile the transaction reports sent, accepted and

rejected by the FSA and thus improve control

Regulation S

Euroclear UK & Ireland 15 planning to introduce a
solution for electrontc settlement of US Regulauon §
Cartegory 3 secunites towards the end of 2010 These
securities are currently mainly sertled 1n paper form
"The electronic solution wall therefore help to bring risk
reduction, reduce settlement umes sigmficantly and

improve hquidity 1n these securnities
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Euroclear UK & Ireland and
EMXCo win award for funds
settlement solution

Euroclear UK & lreland and EMXCo were named European
Technology and Trading provider of the year in the ‘Back
Office’ category at the Funds Europe Awards 2009 The
award was gven for the Euroclear UK & Ireland funds
settlement service, which was launched i September 2009
The service provides full end-to-end automation for the
processing of UK fund transactions This centralised source
of transaction information largely addresses the market
need to optimise reconciliation procedures, and complies
with MIFID and FSA reconcihiation rules

Introducing automated funds settlement allows funds
practittoners to tzke advantage of the full settlement func-
tionality available in Euroclear UK & Ireland HM Treasury
estimates savings for the UK funds industry of between
£70 and £290 million a year by moving away from paper-
based unit fund settlement Funds domicited in the United
Kingdom, breland, the Channel Islands and the Isle of Man
are currently ehgible for this service The range of eligible
funds will be expanded in 2010




EMXCo

Record volumes in 2009

In 2009, volumes increased by over 32% for EMXCo,
with the number of messages passing through the EMX
Message System reaching 30 1 mullion

16 new fund providers and 76 new distriburtors joined
the systern Thus brings the total number of paruaipants
on the EMX Message System to 403 fund distnbutors
and 102 fund providers, and the total number of avail-
able funds on the system to 6,800

The EMX Message System also sustained 100% avail-
abtliy throughout the year

Tariff reductions

EMXCo delivered a significant tanff cur in 2009 by
expanding the imtral band rate This meane that, since
Eurodlear's acquisiion of EMXCo, some fund providers
have seen their order message costs fall by up o 52%

A further reduction 1in Q1 2010 introduced additional
savings through a 12 5% reducton in the highest taniff
band EMXCo will conunue to review us ranif o
ensure 1t remains competinvely priced and returns the

benefits of economies of scale to chents

New services in 2010

EMXCo will continue to enhance its services to meet
the needs of its clients Enhancements planned for 2010
include the possibility of converung FIX to ISO mes-

saging and rthe introduction of re-registration messages

Integrating into the Euroclear group

Since joiung the Euroclear group 1n January 2007,
changes have been made to the EMXCo Management
Teamn with the CEO of Euroclear UK & Ireland
taking over the same role for EMXCo Business sup-
port funcuons, Producr Management as well as Sales
and Relanonship Management have been moved to
Euroclear SA/NV to increase synergies across the gronp
‘The resulting harmonisation will not only ensure
EMXCo adheres to the stringent nisk and audir pro-
cesses of the group, but will also help reduce costs
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Peter Fleming,
Head of UK investment
Adrminsstration, Skandia

Euroclear UK

& Ireland funds

settlement is a

fully automated

processing solution

which 1s great |
news for the funds i
industry. EMXCo |
and Euroclear UK j
& Ireland are in |
an 1deal position |
to offer thus service

which we expect will
remove operational

risk and 1improve

efhciency.

Key figures
EMXCo

Routed messages

30 1 mulion +32%

This Increase Is attributable
to continued growth in
business from existing
clients, as well as to

the growing number of
new fund providers and
distributors using the EMX
Message System in 2009
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Key figures
Xtrakter

Number of transactions

578 mllion +105%

Xtrakter became part
of the Eurodear group
n Apni 2009

Xtrakter

Developing as part of

the Euroclear group

Work has already begun on extending Xtrakter's
strengths across the Euroclear group and changes have
been made to the Xtrakrer Management Team wn order
to furcher integrate the company within the Euroclear
group The same seruor officer 1s now the CEQ of
Kirakter, Euroclear UK &¢ Ireland and EMXCo, which
will help facilitate this integration and generate syner-
gies Integranon of the support functions started 1n the
beginning of 2010, and further steps have been taken to
harmonise the Compliance and HR teams

Trade matching straight through

to settlement

As a leading provider of OTC trade matching, regula-
tory reporting and information services to the capital
markets, Xtrakter has already contributed significantdy
to improving transparency and helping clients meet

regulatory requirements

In November 2009, Euroclear Bank and Xtrakrer
launched the means for murual clients to automate
transactton informanon flows from trade matching
through to setdement ‘This allows client trade data
matched by Xtrakeer's trade-martching pladform, TRAX,
to be processed straight through for settlement at
Euroclear Bank — eliminaung trade marchung duplica-
tion and reducing the number of unsettled transactions,

post-trade costs and risks

For transactions setthng at Euroclear Bank, TRAX
matches the relevant trade details on trade date and
informs clients of their transacuons’ matching status
Thus grves them and their counterparutes suficient
ume to repar any marching instruction errors
before the transaction 1s positioned for settlement

at Euroclear Bank
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Xtrakter also launched three new information services
for the capital markets in 2009 XNAV, XM2M and
XVOL provide subscnibers with access to a range of

new pricing and volurne data sets

Sharp increase in volumes

The number of transacuons processed by Xcrakeer went
up tn 2009, to 578 million — a 105% increased on
2008 It closed the year wath 284 community members

subscribing to 115 products and services

New services in 2010

Xirakrer concluded 1ts Alternatve Instrument Identfier
(An) project in Q1 2010 Thus enables the reporung

on exchange traded dertvatves transacuons to the UK
regulatory body, the Financial Services Authonity (FSA),
for the first time [t will increase the range of asset
classes Xtrakter processes and wall improve 1ts value

proposition to regulatory reportng subscribers

During the same pertod, Xtrakeer launched a new
teference darta service called XREF This new offening
draws on the total reference data sec Xrtrakrer has
available and allows subscribers to access new data

sets for the first ume




Managing resources
in a responsible way




Students in landscape architecture at
Tongy University in Shanghai and UC
Berkeley (United States) are developing

a plan for the aty in anticipation of the
high-speed rail ink that will connect
Jiaxing to Shanghai in just 15 minutes
They want to maximise accessibility

In order to encourage investment
Moreover, they seek to create a design to
suit all people - regardless of age, iIncome
or other status

Living, working,
shopping,
recreation:

all part of one

living’ system.

The Shanghai Metro secves 3 56 mullion
people a day Today, there are 11 lines,
including the Shanghai magneuc
levitation (Maglev) train By the end of
2020 the network will comprise 22 lines
spanning 877 km
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Euroclear’s prime
responsibility is to
provide the skills,
the people and a
safe infrastructure
to help the financial
world remain stable
and efficient.
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People

Notwithstanding the challenging
conditions in the aftermath of the
financial crisis, in 2009, Euroclear’s
people have succeeded in increasing
the quality of service offered to our
chents

Service excellence

The work we do 1s of course our prumary concern and
we are focused on providing a service to our chents thar
mects the level of excellence to which they have become
accustomed Over the past few years, Euroclear has been
implementing an organtsational efficiency programme
based on Lean managerment methodology, first in the
operanons departments and later across other divistons
In 2009, the company cleatly saw the benefits of

fJ’llS LILEENSe prograﬂlme as EH‘lClEﬂCY 1mpr0ved often

by 25% or more and the different departments of
Euroclear focused on those processes that add speaific

value for clients

Now that over half of the deparements have been
involved 1n Lean management, we move from a project
state 1nto continuous improvement This will conunue o
encourage people across the group to challenge their pro-

cesses and to find ways to improve our service to clients

Again tn 2009, the Clent Sausfacton Survey has shown
that our chients have taken note and given appreciation

for the skills and chent focus of our workforce

Internal mobility

Like all financial tnsptunons, Euroclear faces increased
ptessure from competitors and the continuing challenge
of decreasing 1ts operaung costs In order to remain
compentive we have taken measures to increase effi-

ciency and keep our headcount cost as low as possible
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To achieve our objectives we have given prionty to
internal staff mobility; redeploying staff co fill vacant
positions as a means to streamline the company’s organi-
santon Thus will continue to be Euroclear’s preferred
approach 1n meenng our future staffing needs In 2009,
people were also encouraged to take on temporary
assignmenits, providing them with expenence in other
sides of the business while allowing teams to benefit
from the knowledge and experuse thar 1s present in

the workforce

Thus programme has enabled us ro make the most of
the available expertuse where and when 1t was needed, in
order to provide the best possible service to our clients
In total, over 400 people changed jobs in 2009, includ-
ing through redeployment, temporary assignments and

other mobihity of internal applicants

Training and development
Employee training and development has strategic
importance 1 helping the company achieve 1ts business

mussion and objecuves

Euroclear has recently re-evaluated tts traning offer in
order to make sure that traumng and development can
be translated into career opportumties for the employees
and real value for the company and our clients Asa
result, Euroclear employees collectively attended more
than 12,000 days of craming 1n 2009 Recogmsing the
iumportance of strong leadership, Euroclear has started

a Euroclear Leadership Programme, a speaific develop-

ment programine for semor management

Company pnide

We wanr our employees to be proud of our company,
and not only 1n the work we do Euroclear 1s very
much aware of 1ts social responsibilicy Through the

Community Relations Commuttees and equivalent




commitrees 1n our djfferent enuaes, Euroclear continues

to support local social and humanitanan schemes

Socal dialogue

In line with our focus on service excellence and our
commutment to employee communication, Euroclear
also mamntamns a constructive relatonship with

our different social partners through an open and

conunucus dialogue

Chimate survey: listening to our people

To be able to provide the best possible working environ-
ment for our people, Euroclear invices employees to
share their views 1n an annual chmate survey With a
response rate of over 75%, the resules of the survey help
to 1denufy those areas that need specific focus in the

next year

‘The 2009 survey has confirmed the need for a regular
commmunicatton of our corporate straregy 1n a rap-
1dly changing wotld, as well as the importance our
people attach to tramning and personal development

apportunities

Euroclear will continue to address the needs identified
through the climate survey results, 1n order to prownde
our employees with an engaging working environment

thar allows them to continue to put the chent first

In this competitive and changing environment our
people remain our most valuable asset Their experuse
and their commtment to the company are the source
of our future success This 15 why we are commurted
to contnue to provide our people wath opporruniues
for growth

Euroclear group people profile (as at December 2009)

Number of employees 3,725
Europe 3,623
* Belgium 2,520
* Finland 105
* France 408
* The Netherlands 68
* Sweden 120
* United Kingdom 390
* Other Eur-opean countrics 12
Asa 86
Americas 1m6

Staff decrease in 2002 (excluding the employees from Xtrakter that jomed the group in 2009)

221 full-time equivalents

Gender balance

51% male — 49% female

Nationalities represented

8

Average age

38

Average length of service

9 5 years

5%



Responsibilrty

Euroclear annual report 2009

Corporate responsibility

As the finanaal crisis has shown,

it 1s important for companies to be
aware of the social and economic
impact of their operations Long-
term sustainability and professional
competence are the foundations
upon which Euroclear has built its
leadership of the past 40 years, and
with which we aim to continue to
lead, including in our corporate
responsibility strategies

Corporate responstbility at Euroclear takes place on two
main levels — 1n our wader responsibility as a key player
in the financial market, and 1n how we deal with people

and the world around us on a day-to-day basis

We strongly believe that demonstraung soctal and
environmental leadership helps to build the trust

of the public and of employecs, and can strengthen
a company’s reputation among all its stakeholders,
including 1ts shareholders and clients Tras our view
that companes thar recognise the value of corporate
responsibility are better able to artract and retain
employees who are both technically proficient and

inclined to think long term

Serving markets responsibly

Our core corporate responstbihicy 1s inennsic to our
spectfic role as a leading provider in post-trade marker
infrastructure services 1n the domesuc and internanional
financial markets We have a duty to ensure the
conunuous, secure and efficient running of operations,

and the capacity to assume extreme market volaulicy

We have succeeded 1n bringing stability duning the
financial cniss and 1ts aftermath, thanks to our long-
standing, consistent adherence to low-nsk policies

and the resthence of the state-of-the-art processing
infrastructure we have built in recent years Our robust
infrastructure and procedures put us in a leadership role
1n terms of business cononuuty, allowing us o sustain

operations even (n the event of a regronal scale disaster

[n parallel, we have a duty to deliver for the long-

term benefit of the market by conunuously enhancing
efficiency, thereby reducing the cost and nisks for the
markers we serve This 1n turn can contribute to the
creation of wealth and well-being Our ongoing work to
ntegrate systems and harmonise marker pracuces helps

to create a more efficient and safer market

Taking care of people and

the environment

Euroclear 15 also convinced of the value of corporate
responsibility 1n 1ts more convennonal sense We have
robust policies and a variety of tmuiatives 1n place to
protect and offer opportuniues ro people, both withun
and outside of the company Some facts stand ourt

when looking at Euroclear’s colleagues as a whole we
are a truly multucultural company with 78 nanonahuies
represented among our saff and an almost equal gender

balance

These figures are the resule of long-standing principles
on equality and non-discrimunavion, and a firm belief
that an organisaron can be internatonally successful
in the long term only if 1t ateracts and rrains talented

people from diverse cultures and backgrounds

Work-life balance
At Euroclear, we recogmuse that 1t 1s necessary to make

every effort 1o proide a supportive, flexible and healthy




environment if the people we rely on are to develop
and grow We have a dedicared team to monitor well-
being at work, and 1n 2009 several imuauves took place
to provide support to our employees These included
events orgamsed for employees and their famulies,
part-time working hours and subsidised membership

to various sperts clubs

Equality and non-discrumination

A pohcy of non-disciminanon underpins our employ-
ment policy and we also provide opportummnes for
people with disabilities according 1o their capabili-

ties In addiwon, we consule regularly wich employees,
ot their tepresentatives, in compliance with natonal
employment law, ensuring the company takes their
views mto account when making decisions likely to

affect staff interests

Code of ethics

Euroclear attaches the uunost importance to 1ts
repuration for integrity, honesty and fairness 1o 1ts
conduct towards its employees and contractors as well
as our clients and others with whom we do business

It has also established clear standards of behaviour
expected in return from all those associared with 1t
These principles are set out in the organisauon’s Ethical
Conduct, Legal and Compliance Risk pelicy and the

Board code of ethics

Health and safety

Euroclear 1s commutted to health and safery and the
protecuon of people, property and the environment
We are conunuously refining our policies and proce-
dures 1n order to provtde an even more robust health
and safery management system We set and maineain
high standards, ensuring the health, safery and welfare

of our employecs, contractors and visitors

We believe 1n the importance of integratung health and
safety considerations into all aspects of our business and
fully recognise the advancages Euroclear recognises that
the negative impact of work-related stress on people’s
health 15 a major nisk 1n the execution of cheir functions,
and therefore places a particular focus on well-being

1niaaves

In 2009, the increased threat of pandemic flu became a
marter of significant focus As a result, additional health
and safety measures were put 1n place, 1n line with

health authority best practice

Environmental responsibility

In difficult financial conditions, 1t 1s sometmes easy
to lose sight of the environmental aspects of business,
although being cost conscious and environmentally
sensitive often go hand 1n hand At Euroclear, we aim
to mumimuse the use of our planet’s resources, while
malang sustainable business decisions in the best

wneerests of the group

We have a wide range of acuvities 1n place to ensure
that we use our resources wisely and prudently Unul
recently, many of the measures have been local, but
we are now wotking to implement a group-wide

environmental strategy

In Belgium, Euroclear 1s working with the Institut
Bruxellois pour la Gestion de 'Environnement/Brussels
Instituut voor Milicubeheer (IBGE/BIM) to further

develop our environmental action plans

As a reflection of our company policies, in 2009,
Euroclear’s London office won a Gold Award 1n the
Cuty of London Clean City Award scheme for the

second consecutive year
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Other inmmatives include

* improved recycling facilinies in all entities and better

waste disposal,

* reduced consumption through use of energy-saving

l1ght1ng,

* an agreement to buy 100% green energy in Belgium
Due to government incentives, this results in both
cost savings and a greener environmental footprint,

* electronic payslips, invorang and greetngs cards,

* use of environmentally-friendly cleamng and

stattonery products, and

+ 1ntroducton of improved cooling systems with

mummal impact on the environment

TransConstellation

Euraclear 1s one of the industry leaders with major opera-
tions centres i Belgum that estabhished TransCenstellation
and the TransConstellation Academy in 2003

TransConstellation 1s a non-profit orgamsation that
promotes Belgum as a centre of excellence in financial
transaction processing The TransConstellation Academy Is
a shared training centre run in partnership with the Solvay
Brussels School of Economics and Management In addition
to broadening the horizons of their knowledge, particr-
pants are given an excellent opportunity to form lasting
relationships with professionals from other companies

To date, over 200 participants have benefited from the
TransConstellation Academy experience
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Supporting the wider community

Euroclear has also developed imitiatives to support and
contnbute to the development of the social community
by providing financial assistance and other forms of
support to social non-profit asseciations We encourage
and support charimes 1n the countries where Euroclear
operates, i particular those 1 which our staff or their

relauves are personally acuve

Through thus scheme, employees can propose local
charities for sponsorship In 2009, Euroclear supported

over 50 projects, mcluding

= support for chaniues workung with disadvantaged

children and homeless people 1n Belgium,

* helping a chanty that works with bereaved children
and cheir farmilies 10 the United Kingdom,

* simultaneous coffee mornings 1n London and
Brussels to raise money for chanties providing cancer

support, and

* paracipatng i the Téléthon des Financiers in Pans

to raise money for children wath muscular dystrophy
A ‘matching gift’ programme also exasts whereby the
company matches individual donations made spontane-

ously by employees to eligible chanities

A rotal of €496,000 was given to charity 1n 2009
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Risk management and

internal controls

Euroclear was not directly affected

by the risks that matenalised during
the financial crisis, and which
continued to npple through the real
economy in 2009 This high degree of
insulation reflected the single-purpose
orientation of the group, as well as

its low nisk profile and its track record
of conservative risk management

The group did of course see indirect
effects through the impact of the crisis
on 1ts clients, business volumes and
enhanced stakeholder interest in risk
management and controls

Well-established sk management culture
and rigorous standards

Euroclear has a well-established nsk management
culrure, shared by all areas of the organisanon  Rusks
are managed under a comprehensive Enterprise Rask
Management (ERM) framework, with policies related
to each of the relevant risks and a governance scructure
that makes clear the responsibiliies for monuoning

and control

Euroctear’s ERM framework 1s based on relevant
market and regulatory standards These include the
work of the Commuttee of Sponsoring Orgamzanens
of the Treadway Commussion {COS0), which has
established a common internal control model against
which companies may assess their control systems They
also include ISO 31000 2009 prinaiples and generic
guidelines on nisk management and 15O 27001 2005

for Information Security, as well as standards and
guidelines 1ssued by the Basel Cornmuttee on Banking
Supervision The larger Euroclear enuties publish
audited Statement on Auditing Standards (SAS) 70
control reports to nform clients and other stakehold-
ers abour their control environmencs In addiaon, each
of the group CSDs and Euroclear Bank complete and
publish annually, on www euroclear com, the Disclosure
Framework for Secunities Settlement Systems, which

1s one of the requrements for compliance with the
Recommendations for Securities Setdement Systems,
published by the European System of Central Banks
(ESCB) and the Comemurtee of European Secunities
Regulators (CESR), and by the Commuttee on Payment
and Setclement Systems (CPSS) and the Internanonal

Organization of Secunties Comrmussions (I10SCO)

In 2009, Euroclear conunued to implement Basel I,
and 1n particular enhanced its implementaton of the
Advanced Measurement Approach (AMA) for opera-
tional risk Euroclear worked towards fulfilhing the
terms and condinions thar accompanied the accredi-
tation recetved 1n 2008 from the Belgian Banking,
Finance and Insurance Commission (CBFA) to use the
AMA o calculate capital requirements for operational
sk under Pillar 1 In 2008, the CBFA imposed an
tnttial capieal add-on, which was reduced in 2009 The
add-on brought capital requiremencs for operational nisk
on the AMA calculation to a higher level than would
be the case with the Basic Indicator Approach (BIA} A
final regulatory decision on the AMA methodology 1s

expected 1n the coming months

After finahsing its Internal Capical Adequacy
Assessment Process (ICAAP) framework under Pular 2
in 2008, Euroclear ensured that 1t was implemented
appropriately ar the level of the relevant entities In
December 2009, the CBFA initiated the Supervisory
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Evaluation Process under Pullar 2 Thus process s ongo-
ing and the prudenual supervisor plans to prepare a
letter to be sent to Euroclear soon

Finally, Euroclear made a public disclasure 1n line with
pillar 3 of Basel II for the second ume 1n 2009 Thar
report was extended to include a chapter on hiqudity
tisk management The report can be found en

www euroclear com Thus disclosure 1s annual

Enterprise Risk Management:

a coherent framework

Euroclear uses the ERM framework to ensure the
coherence of 1ts sk management and internal control
acuvittes The framework helps nisk owners take deci-
sions 1n line with the company's risk appente It s
rooted 1n good market pracuce and details how nisks are
identfied, who owns them and how they are mitigated
It also describes relevant risk processes, individual roles,
and whar informanon 1s needed for proper management
deaistons  Euroclear implements the ERM framework
consistently across the Euroclear group, though detailed
implementation may vary shghtly to reflect each enuty’s
speatfic needs Overall practices and tools are largely

harmonsed

'The framework has three main componenss

+ All the major types of risk that Euroclear faces in
pursuing 1ts corporate objecuves are set out at a high
level in the Rusk Register, which 1s approved by the
Board Euroclear defines ‘enterprise nisk’ as anything
that could keep the group from meeung its business
objectives Seven principal categortes of ‘enterprise
nisks’ have been denufied Three anse from the
provision of Euroclear’s datly services (credt, hiquidiy
and operational nsk) Another three are telated to the
environment 1n which Euroclear operates (market,

business and strategic nisk) Finally, one nisk (strategic

programumes risk) 1s addressed separately, as 1r1s
parncularly important for the organisauon and 1s
managed separately from day-to-day services The Rusk
Register 1s complemented by a more detaited database
of nsks (including mitsgated and accepred risks)

Embedded within the ERM framework 1s the
Internal Controls System (ICS) Euroclear has

a well established ICS thar allocates roles and
responsibiliues in the management of nisks The

Rusk Reguster s supported by high-level conrtrol
objecrives to mitigate key risks These are approved
by the Euroclear SA/NV Management Commurtee
and are owned by diviston heads, who have the

lead responsibility in managing the associated risks
The tugh-level control objecuves are elaborated

by second level control abjecuves, established by
business management and with a clear link to the
nussion of each business unic and, finally, by detailed
controls describing how the nisks impacting business
acovities are to be muingated This approach enables
the nisks related 1o the provision of Euroclear services
to be idennfied and then managed or accepred

in accordance with the business model More

information on Euroclear’s ICS 1s given below

The third component of the ERM framework 1s the

annual self-assessment process The second level

control objecuves form the basis of the business Rusk

8 Control Self-Assessments {RCSAs) and of the

complementary Honzontal Self-Assessments (HSAs)

The RCSAs and HSAs

- buld an accurate and consistent assessment of the
ICS to achieve a good undetstanding of the nsk
profile of the business,

- 1increase risk awareness and promote an ongoing
assessment of nsks and controls by business

managers,
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- dentify new risks by bringing staff together to
brainstorm,

- allow the nisks faced by Euroclear to be quanufied,

- ensure that indiidual nsks are idennfied proac-
tively and that they are addressed adequately; and

- help management make a well-founded statement

on the effecuveness of the [CS

Euroclear promotes proactive risk identification and

the self-assessments are an important source of risk
dentfication by the business areas The results of the
RCSAs and HSAs have been used as input for the 2009
assessment of the ICS ‘The assessment also considers the
results of parallel processes such as those leading to the

annual SAS 70 control reports

Euroclear’s ERM framework disunguishes seven key
interrelated building blocks

Strategy" our approach to risk management
Euroclear’s nisk strategy ensures thar Euroclear accepts
risks consistent wath its nsk appeure and 1ts role as
market infrastructure It 1s supported by a Policy
Control Framework thar brings pelicies together and
maps thern to the different nisk types Euroclear uses the
concept of ‘tisk appeute’ and “tolerance level’ for marker,
credit and operational risk. Risk appeutes are arnculared
by the senior management of the different group
enntes, within the upper tolerance levels approved by
the Boards, and based upon advanced and relanvely
mature capital modelling techniques that are subject ro
derailed internal and external review Finally, Euroclear’s
viston and strategy are translated into tangible
abjecuves, the implemencanion of which 1s measured
using a Balanced Scorecard This ensures that priorities
are cascaded through the organisation appropriately

See page 77 for more information on the Balanced

Scorecard

Culture and competence:

an active approach to risk management

by approprately skilled peoplc

‘The group values aruculate the main elements of culwure
and competence that the organisanon wants and the
expected corresponding behaviour Escalauon processes
up to senior management encourage reporting about
nsk issues Information is also passed down as necessary
from the Board and the Management Commuttee to
the divtsion heads and their teams  Individual objee-
tives define what 1s expected at employee level The
annual survey of staff opinion ensures open feedback
on the quality of communication across the group
Euroclear has adopted an ‘Ethical Conduct, Legal and
Comphance’ policy The inizoduction of management
asscrtions on nisk and controls and the attenton given
by the Management Commuttee to a quarterly report of
the group'’s nisk profile has also spread the understand-

ing of the different nisk and control processes

Governance: assigning responsibility and authonty
Euroclear has an appropriately strong risk management
governance in place The Board approves the key nsk
policies and 1ts commuttees review risk and control areas
regularly and thoroughly Authonity 1s delegated by the
Board of Euroclear SA/NV to the Euroclear SA/NV
Management Commuttee for the tmplementacion of the

strategy and other decisions taken by the Board

The corporate structure retnforces the role of the local
management of the :sndividual operaung enunes of the
group, with the alignment of functions across the group
and group-wide responsibilities for division heads

The governance structure has been arnculated more
precisely since the establishment, by the Management
Commttee, of hugh level control objecuves linked

to the Risk Register Mereover, risk, control and

compliance are part of individual managers’ objectives
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This seeks to ensure that deleganon of responsibility
for managing nisks and implementng controts 15
well understoed and acted upon  Management

has established several commuttees, including the
Group Risk Commurtee, to assist 1n 1ts oversight and

management role

Measurement and assessment:

understanding our risks

Risks are idenufied contnuously by the different
business units In additton, formal semi-annual

risk self-assessments are conducted 1n all business
areas Control weaknesses idenufied are logged and
priortused properly and action plans are tracked by
management and independenty validated All new
services or launches of new systems and products are

subject to a thorough risk assessment

Rusk response and control:

addressing our risks in an appropriate way
Operanional departments have well established and
extensive controls 1n place, ranging from the defimnon
of procedures to automated reconcibanons A diverse
range of control activities 15 applied at all levels and

to all functions Reaction to day-to-day operational
incrdents 1s generally good and umely, and post-mortem

analyses are widely applied to 1dentify lessons learnt

Reporting: getting the right information

to the night people at the nght time

Management informanon 1s generally sausfactory and
reliable There ate numerous specific pertodic reports

to management and Boards, such as the report on

the group nisk profile by the Chief Rusk Officer or the
annual independent report of the Chuef Security Officer
{who reports to the Chief Rusk Officer) to the various

Audit Commurtrees

Monitoring pracesses: assessing the effectiveness

of our nisk management strategies

Monitoring reports and processes are used to help assess
the overall adherence to the different risk management
processes and the effective management of nsks
Qutstanding issues are menitored regularly and our-
standing escalauons are reviewed on a monchly basis
Key Rusk Indicators have been developed for

{DCSDs and are monitored regularly Defining Key
Rusk Indicartors for Xtrakter and EMXCo 15 a com-
ponent of the 2010 rollout of Euroclear’s group rnisk
management framewark, including risk rools and
infrastructure, for these entities As an inrenim measure,
a register of risks 1s mainrained and reviewed regularly

by local management

internal Controls System

A sound ICS 1s required to safeguard shareholders’
investments and Euroclear’s assets, and to enable
Euroclear to fulfil its funcoion as a market
infrastructure service provider well Each Board 1s
responsible for ensuring che establishment, supervision
and review of the relevant ennty’s ICS The role of
group management ts to oversee implementation of
Board policies on risk and conrtrols The effectiveness
of the group [CS is reviewed and assessed annually

by the Euroclear SA/NV Management Commuttee,
with the participation of business managers from
across the Euroclear group The consolidated results
of thac assessment are discussed with the Group Risk
Commuttee at management level and then by the joinc
Audit Commuttee of the Boards of Euroclear SA/NV
and Euroclear ple, which report the results of their

assessment to the Boards
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'The ICS adopted by the Euroclear group 1s designed o

cnsure

¢ well-ordered and prudent conduct of business follow-

ing clearly defined objectives,

* effecuve and efficient use of Eurodlear’s resources,
mamtaining the right balance between risk, service

quality and cost,

+ the safeguarding of Euroclear and chent assets, pro-
tecung Euroclear’s reputation, finanaial scability and

operattonal continuity,

* high-quality financial and reporting information for
use by management and external stakeholders, and

* comphance with regulatory requirements

In keeping wath 1ts role as a provider of services that are
part of the financial marker infrastructure, Buroclear’s
benchmarks for control levels are set at appropriately
high levels and are reviewed regularly The Euroclear
ICS has been designed in hne with the guidance set out
in the Turnbull Report and wath reference to gmdance
provided by COSQO, Basel II, the CBFA aircular on the
responsibility of executive management and the Board 1n
the establishment of an appropriate ICS Euroclear has
adopted an industry-standard controls-matunty model
to assess the effectuveness of the ICS and 1o provide a

measure of sustainability of controls over nme

The ICS 15 designed to manage, rather than necessanly
to eliminate, the risk of farlure to achieve business
objectives In establishing, supervising and reviewing
the ICS, the directors have regard to the nature and
extent of relevant risks, the likelithood of a loss being

incurred and the costs of control It follows, therefore,

that the ICS can provide reasonable, but not absoluze,

assurance against the nisk of marersal loss

Management 1s commutred o the conunuous 1mprove-
ment of the ICS and a number of enhancements made
durmg 2009 are reflected above In 2010, Euroclear
will conninue to strengthen IT change management
and associated acuviues, 1n view of the Single Platform
launch schedule, and wall further strengthen finan-

cial controls In 2010, the sclf-assessment processes
will be fully based on the controls-mamnty model
Parucipants will be required to provide not enly an
updated view of the marurnity of the controls 1n place
bur also a target maturity level and an indicanion of
the nmescale required to achieve 1t Thus will ensurea
common controls framewaork that can be assessed by the
business managers and the Risk Management Division
and, independently, by Internal Audut, which assesses
the effectveness of the ICS as parr of Euroclear’s annual

audic programme

Operational risks

All Euroclear enuues face some form of operanional

nsk In line wath Basel I, Euroclear defines operatienal
nisk 4s “the nisk of less resulung from inadequate or
fatled nternal processes, people and systems, or from
external evenes™ Euroclear uses 1its ERM framewotk 1o
ensure the coherence of its aperatonal nsk management
activittes across enuttes In particular, as discussed
above, 1t uses an AMA under Basel 11

To reduce the likelihood of errors, each deparrment
has established appropniately formal but pragmanc
procedures and processes The day-to-day management
of operational nisks 1s conducted at the lowest possible
level 1n the organisation This also allows for appro-
priate use testing of operational nsk procedures and

processes




Responsibility

Effective monitoring of operauonal risks 1s supported
by the use of databases of potental nisks and the carcful
reporung of incidents Euroclear’s database now has
more than 10 years of historical data on operational
losses Internal dara 1s complemented by external loss
data, as Euroclear Bank 1s among the banks thar provide
information to the Operancnal Riskdata eXchange
(ORX) database Benchmarking operanonal risk losses
revealed that losses incurred by Euroclear tend to be
sigmficantly lower than those recorded by other banks
Such conunuous monttoring 1s complemented by the
semi-annual self-assessments conducted by the business
{as outlined above, one of the three main components
of Euroclear’s ERM framework) In addition to these
control processes, Euroclezr maintains a comprehensive

Insurance programme to protect agatnst operational risk

Information secunty

The corporate obyective of the group security activity 1s
to assure management that Informanon Secunty (IS}
nisks are propetly identified and correctly ranked and
that IS control processes are effecuve and 1n line wath
the defined nisk appeute Euroclear has adopted a stan-
dardised chreat profile that ts supplemented annually
by a more strategic IS threat assessment Together these
provide the baseline for the annual IS nisk assessment
from which risk treatment plans are derived The 1S
internal control system has been included 1n the ERM
framework, allowing compliance with the requirements
assoctated with Euroclear’s adopnon of the AMA under
Basel Il and full alignment with other internauion-

ally recogntsed reference frameworks such as Control
Objectives for Information and related Technology
(CobIT) and Informauon lechnology Infrastructure
Library (ITIL) Eurcclear 1s designated as enucal infra-
structure 1n Belgum, Finland, France, The Netherlands
and the United Kingdemn Euroclear recerves threat

assessments from the national secunty agencies of these
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countries on a regular basis and can draw upon thar
expertise to resolve IS 1ssues These agencies conduct
penodic assurance reviews of Euroclear’s secunity stan-

dards and procedures

Business resihience

To ensure continuous avalabilicy of business-critical ser-
vices, Euroclear carefully reviews its use of technelogy,
buddings and staff using B$25999 2005 as a reference
framework Since 2007, Euroclear has had three data
centres sufficiendy distanced from ecach other 1o sustain
operations 1n the event of a regronal-scale disaster
Euroclear remains, to our knowledge, the only secunines
infrastructure service provider (m Europe to do so The
effectiveness of dara centres and recovery procedures

15 assured through the transfer of producuon acovry
between sites on a monthly basis and an annual regional
disaster recovery exercise In addinion Euroclear Bank,
Euroclear France and Euroclear UK & Ireland follow a
dual office structure, to ensure the availability of cnincal
experuse 1n different locations  Euroclear Belgium and
Euroclear Nederland can use office space in Brussels as
a remote backup, should a locahsed event distupt access

to therr main facilities

Euroclear Finland and Euroclear Sweden each run wo
geographically separated IT centres berween which

all eritical servers are duphicated and data 1s murrored

in real ume In addinion, each entity has access toa
separate backup office outside the respective city centre
with enough capaary for staff to run all cnocal business

processes, including the IT operations and maintenance

All ennties perform annual business impacr analyses to
idennfy their enucal business services and recovery ume
objectives  Business contunuuty plans have been har-
momised at corporate and departmental levels chrough-

out the group Finally, each element of the strategy 1s
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regularly maintained and tested A comprehensive crisis
management training programune 1s in place and uses

increasingly sophisucated market-based scenanos to fur-
ther develop the capabiliies of the crisis response teams,

including those involving top managernent

Financal risks

Euroclear manages 1ts financial risks according to
demanding standards Such risks are borne mainly by
the [CSD), Euroclear Bank, 1n 1ts role as single-purpose
settlement bank The CSDs of the group have a very
low nsk profile 1n line with thexr risk appetite They
offer only securinies serrlement services 1n ceneral bank
money and do not provide credit 1o chents, so are

largely insulated from financial risks

Credit risk

‘The speaific role of Euroclear Bank in financial markets
offers a high level of protection against credit sk Asa
single-purpose sertlement 1nstitution, 1ts main expo-
sures are concentrated within a business day Such a
short duraton significantly limits the probability of

an unanucipated default, all the more so as Euroclear
Bank’s client basc consists mainly of highly-rated banks
and other financial insutunions such as central banks

In addition, Euroclear Bank grants credit secured by
hugh-qualiy collateral preferably held and pledged
within the Partcipant’s Euroclear account, with aver-
age collateralisation levels for its chient credit exposure
close to 39% Other means of recourse are also possible
10 some citcumstances such as statutory Lien, external
collateral, pledged time deposits, reverse repos, letters

of credit and guarantees In addition, Euroclear Bank
incurs treasury exposure resulung from the placing of
clients’ end-of-day posiuons Such posiuons are typically
re-deposited 1n the marker with high-quality counterpar-
ties Where possible, repos are used but some exposure 15

unsccured The risks are hmited by therr short duranon

Crisis management

Euroclear’s central posion n international financial markets makes resilient service
delivery an essential component of its business model A system failure would immed-
ately affect securiies settlements, custody and central bank operations To mantain and
improve its preparedness to face potential disrupting events, Euroclear conducts a wide
range of desk-top analyses and live exercises, dealing with operational incidents More
recently, 1t has developed a project to practice and improve its response plans for a large-
scale financial erisis, and has begun to test those plans ngorously using the same busi-
ness continuity management practices and framewarks as for operational nsk scenarios

Afirst financial crisis exercise was conducted in July 2008, involving Euroclear Bank's
senior management (Gold team), as well as lower levelk of management (Silver team)
Experts were on call to interact with the Gold and Silver team Following the exercise, the
lessons learned were consalidated into action plans to mprave Euroclear Bank's response
This allowed Euroclear to ensure service continity duning the turbulent times that
followed (with the Lehman default, the Icelandic crisis and the general liquidity freeze)
and manage the credit and hiquidity effects of the crisis effectively More importantly, the
bank’s crisis management programme enabled rapid, nformed decision making

A second exercise followed in 2009, involving the Silver team and the Bronze team
{made up of business managers) to assess the effective interaction between these two
levels of management A number of practical lessons learned were incorporated into
relevant business plans, with the aim of enhancing Euroclear's overall preparedness to
face financial crises

{mainly overmight), as well as policy caps Concentrauon
nisk, the nisk that Euroclear Bank would be too hughly
exposed te any counterparty, 1s also monitored and lim-
ited Euroclear Bank thereby also complies with Belgian

banking regulations relating to large exposures

Since 1 January 2007, Euroclear Bank, as well as
Euroclear SA/NV and Euroclear plc, have applied che
Foundations Internal Ratings Based Approach (FIRBA)
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Liquidity risk stress testing

In June 2009, Eurcclear Bank's Credit and Assets and Liabilities Committee approved an
improved hquidity stress-testing framework for Euroclear Bank, m line with the Principles
for Sound Liquidity Risk Management and Supervision published in September 2008

by the Basel Committee on Banking Suparvision, as well as with the revised Capital
Requirements Directive and the Commuttee of European Banking Supervisors” Intenm
Report on Liquidity Buffers and Survival Periods issued in 2009

The aim of hiquidity stress testing 1s 10 identify the vulnerabiiities of the institution’s
Iiquidity management and to define appropriate mitigating actions te avoid iquidity
shortfalls In addition, liquidity stress tests are an essential tool to size correctly the con-
tingent liqusdity sources which should be available in the hquidity contingency plan

The new, scenario-based, liquidity stress-testing framework complements the stress-tests
that Euroclear carries out regutarly to demonstrate its compliance with recommenda-
1on 9 of the ESCB/CESR and CPSS/IQSCO Recommendations for Securities Settlement
Systens Under the new stress-testing framework, more complex scenarios, tailor-made
1o fit Euroclear Bank's specific vulnerabilities, are identified and analysed The analysis
includes an assessment of liquidity inflows and outfiows under stressed conditions

Seven standard scenaros have been approved One, based on the failure of a large cash
correspondent and settlement bank, was analysed through an exercise involving Risk
Management and Euroclear Bank management The lessons learnt from this exercise
have led to enhancements in the management of the related liquidity nisks

for credit nsk under the Basel II framework. The rat-
ings of participants and counterpartes resulung from
the internal rating model are used in the calculation

of regularory and economic capital They also offer
Euroclear tallor-made tools to refine s credit risk man-
agement The resulnng regulatory capnal for credit risk
for Euroclear Bank 1n December 2009 15 less than one
tenth of the total available capital These conservanve
credit pracuces have enabled Euroclear Bank to avoid

any credit loss in 1ts history o date
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The CSDs do nor provide credit to their paracipants
They do not engage 1n operauons with counterparues,

except for the investment of their own funds

Liqudity risk

Euroclear has a strong liquidity nisk management
framework 1n place, 1n line with internaunonal stan-
dards, whereby net funding requirements are adequately |
measured and monitored The framework, including
extensive stress testing of lquudity needs and funding,
also allows for a high level of preparedness to cope with
unexpected hiquidity shocks caused by either operational '

or credit events

Liquidsty 15 necessary to allow Euroclear Bank to

petform 1ts settement operatons efficiendy During che

day, Euroclear Bank 1s cypically a net hiquidity provider

to the markert, as it processes payments and sercles

securiues based on chients’ available funds and collaceral

To cope with 1ts dauly hiquidity needs, Euroclear Bank

can rely upon a wide range of iquidity sources in all 1rs

ehgible currencies, including a large necwork of cash

correspondents and settlement banks and direct access |
to TARGET 2, the large-value payment system of the
ESCB Euroclear Bank has an excelient name 1n the
inter-bank market and has also access to a broad range

of established counterparuies

To be able to cover potentral hquudity shortfalls,
Eurcclear Bank has reliable, tested and commurred
conungency hquidiey sources for the major currencies
and 1t 15 rolling out the legal and operational means to
immediately re-use the collateral pledged by 1ts custom-

ers, up to the level of therr debuts

End-of-day client balances can be re-deposited 1n the
inter-bank market for which term limurs are set 1in

order to mamtan hquudity availability Euroclear Bank




mingates the risk that 1t faces when re-depositng funds
in the marker through the use of reverse repurchase
agreements and by re-depositing excess funds at the
central bank.

As the cash leg of the CSDs securities sertlement takes
place exclusively in the accounts of a central bank, the
C3Ds do not tncur hquidity nisk onginaung from client
cash deposits Surplus cash investments of the CSDs are
always assessed against expecred fucure cash flows and

can be invested only 1n term deposits

Market nsk

Euroclear Bank does not seek markert risk, but some risk
anses as a by-product of the investment of 1ts capital,
and from vanations 1n business earnings and hedging
strategy Buroclear Bank’s investment book aims at
caprtal and liquidity preservauon and, as such, 1s very
conservatively managed The approach to the trea-

sury book 15 sinularly conservative Trades result from
end-of-day chient positions that are re-deposited in the
market, mostly on an overmight basis The hedging book
comprises market derrvatives transactions, which are
designed to insulate future financial results from adverse
market developments As Euroclear Bank does not have
a trading book, 1t 1s exempted from the relevant regula-
tory capieal provisions for interest rate risk requured
under the Base! I Capital Accord

The interest rate and foreign exchange risks incurred

11 these activinies are imited by the nisk tolerance level
set by Euroclear Bank’s Board of Directors This 1s
determined by the economic capital allocated annually
for such nisks This 1s reinforced by internal daily marker
Limits, such as Value at Risk (VaR) and Earnungs ac

Rusk {EaR), and legal or regulatory imus In Q1 2010,
EaR limuts have been replaced by Key Performance

Indicators, which allow management to monttor

Basel I11

The Basel Committee on Banking Supervision 1ssued two proposals for consultation

in December 2009, aimed at strengthening global capital and hquidity regulations to
enhance banks’ ability to withstand future financial crises (already dubbed "Basel 1l

by market participants) These proposals reflect lessons learnt from the credit crisis The
paper, Strengthening the resifience of the banking sector proposes to introduce additional
standards related to capital composition and counterparty credit nisk, as well as a lever-
age ratio and measures promoting forward-looking provisioning The cther paper shapes
an intemational framework for liquidhty risk measurement, standards and mornitoring

As Euroclear has a sound capital base, with core equity as its main capital component,
and as 1t has had low levels of leverage over time, 1t does not expect to be matenally
affected by the implementation of these proposals Euroclear still fellows developments
In these areas closely and ts actively involved in the related discussians to ensure that
forthcoming regulations do not unintentionally affect the well-functioning of the securi-
ties market and 1ts role as market infrastructure

and control the performance of the Bank’s Treasury

appropriately

The CSDs are exposed to a very low level of interest rate
nisk, resulung from the investments of proprietary funds
(1¢ regulatory and workung capiral, surplus cash) The
duranon of these investments 1s {itmited to a maximum
term of six months Euroclear Belgium, Euroclear
France and Euroclear Nederland face himuced marker
risks related to downward movements in equuty prices,
which mighr affecr their expected fee earnings on secur-
ties in custody Euroclear UK & Ireland and Euroclear
Sweden face some market nisk from exchange rate
Auctuanons to the exrent to which there 1s 2 mismatch
between income and expenduture 1n local currency and
the euro This 1s monitored and reported to manage-

ment and Boards
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The Euroclear group has committed
itsetf to the policy of no cross-subsidy
between the group 1CSD and €SDs

Every year, we request an independent
audrtor, PricewaterhouseCoopers,

to conduct an audit and provide an
attestation to the Euroclear Board The
conclusions of this repart are published
in the Euroclear annual report The
audit takes the form of a yearly
confirmation that the Euraclear Inter-
company Transaction Policy complies
with the Organisation for Economic
Co-operation and Development (OECE)
Transfer Pricing Guidelines and that
these guidelines are applied by the
Euroclear group Such an attestation
has been included in the annual report
since 2003

A copy of the independent auditor's
attestation for 2009 1s included on the
opposite page The related Euraclear
management assertion statement
regarding Inter-company Transaction
Policy provided to the independent
auditor with respect to 2009 can be
found on this page

Euroclear remains the only settlement
service prowider furmishing this type of
independent third-party verification

Euroclear annual report 2009

Inter-company Transaction
Policy audit

Management assertion statement

Euroclear SA/NV and its subsidiaries maintain effective controls to comply wath the Euroclear Inter-
company Transaction Policy (the ‘Policy’) The controls include those processes and procedures that (1) per-
tain to the maintenance of records that, 1n reasonable dertail, accurately and fairly reflect the inter-company
transactions and arrangements (1) provide reasonable assurance that wransacuons are recorded as necessary
to comply with the Policy, and those transacuons and arrangements are being made only 10 accordance with
authorisations of management or directors of Euroclear SA/NV and us subsidhianies Our system contains

self-monitoring mechanisms, and actions are raken to correct deficiencies as they are idennfied

The Policy, which has been established by Management and approved by the Board of Directors of cach of
the Euroclear entues, complies with the QECD Transfer Pricing Guidehines of July 1993, including subse-

quent amendments

The Policy 1s designed to ensure that for any goods or services which are provided between entiuies, agree-

ments are in place for ‘at arm’s length™ remuneration berween those enuties

Management 15 responsible for establishing and maintaining processes and procedures to ensure compliance
with the Policy

Management has assessed the application of the Inter-company Transaction Policy for the period | January
2009 through to 31 December 2009

As the mtegration of NCSD Holding AB and 1ts subsidiaries {hereafter the ‘Nordic entities’) within the
Euroclear group was sull ongoing 1n 2009, the Policy had not been approved yet by the Board of Directors
of the Nordic entines Nevertheless, the transacuons berween the Nordic enties and berween the Nordic
enuties and Euroclear SA/NV have been covered for the year 2009 by a temporary inter-company service
agreement, which explicitly refers ta the Policy Therefore, the signature by the Nordic enuties of the tempo-
rary inter-company service agreement insured that, for the year 2009, those transactions would be compliant
with the Policy

Based on our assessment, and taking 1nto account the above assernons, Euroclear SA/NV believes that, for
the periad 1 January 2009 through to 31 December 2009, the Inter-company Transaction Policy has been
11 accordance with the OECD Guidelines and was applied effecuvely amongst Euroclear SA/NV and 1s

substdiaries

{ il

25 March 2010
Pierre Francotte

CEQO of Euroclear SA/NV

1 Arm s length definstion according to the OECD Guideltnes
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Report of the independent auditor regarding the Inter-company
Transaction Policy of Euroclear SA/NV for the year ending 31 December 2009

Upon request from Euroclear SA/NV’s Board, in light of their stated objective o avord cross-subsidy
between the parent companies and the {IYCSDs of the group, we have examined Euroclear SA/NVs
Management Comunittee’s assertions on the inter-company transacuons, stating that

*+ the Euroclear Inter-company Transaction Policy (‘Policy’) complies with the OECD Transfer Pnicing
Guidchines of July 1995, including subsequent amendments, and

* effective internal control over compliance with the Policy has been maintained dunng the year ending
31 December 2009

Euroclear SA/NV’s Management Commuttee 1s responsible for the asserttons Our responsibility 1s 1o express

an opinton on the asseruons based on our examinauon

Our examunatien was conducted 1n accordance with atestation standards established by the Amencan
Insutute of Cerufied Pubhic Accountants (SSAE No 10) and, accordingly, included examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporung management’s assertions and performing such other procedures as we considered

necessary in the circurnstances We believe that our examinauon provides a reasonable basis for our opimion

In our opinion, based on the OECD Transfer Pricing Guidehines, the management’s assernons as referred to

above are faurly stated 1n all matenal respects
31 March 2010

PricewaterhouseCoopers Reviseurs d’entreprises scerl

/Rcw%

—— ' X —

Robert Peirce

Partner
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Corporate governance

The Euroclear Board believes

that good corporate governance
underpins the abtlity of the group

to achieve Its strategic objectives
Euroclear’s governance framework 1s
structured around its user governance
model which is key to the position

of the group as a sound market
infrastructure committed to delivering
long term value to 1ts shareholders
The Board believes that its focus

on ensuring a sohd governance
framework and practices has
contributed to 1ts ability to provide

its customers with a stable and safe
environment in the turbulence that
has prevailed 1n the financial services
sector In the last year or so

Euroclear 1s committed to strong corporate gover-
nance ar all levels of the gtoup The Board followed
the developments on corporate governance embodied
in the Turner and Walker reviews throughourt the year
Steps have already been taken by the Board to examine
Euroclear’s governance against emerging recommenda-
tions and to make some consequennal adjustments to
better align 1ts governance practices 1 certain areas, for

example 1n the governance of nsk.

Euroclear plc {the Company), as the ulumate parent
company of the group, decided 1n 2004 o volunrarly
apply the UK Combined Code on Corporate

Governance (the Code) and has continued this pracuce

since that tume As an unlisted company, there are
certain areas of the Code that are less relevant to
Euroclear, for example Secuon IT on Insututional
Shareholders However, the Board believes that the
Code provides a valuable guide against which to assess
1ts cotporate governance and to provide shareholders
with a basis upon which to judge how 1t has discharged

1ts duties

Thas part of the annual report describes the Company’s
governance arrangements by reference to the Code The
Board considers that, during 2009, the Company has
apphed the Main Principles set out in Section 1 of the
Code It has done so by complying with the associated

Provistons except where specifically indicated below

Euroclear SA/NV 1s the direct or indirect parent of
the main operatng subsicianies of the group and

1s regulated by the Belgian Banking Finance and
Insurance Commssion (CBFA} Euroclear SA/NV
complies with cthe 10 principles of good governance
defined by the CBFA in 1s Internal Governance
Circular These principles reflect applicable regulations,
recommendartons and best pracuce on corporate
governance for regulated entitics in Belgium and

are in line with the philosophy of the Code In this
context, the Board of Euroclear SA/NV has approved
a Governance Memorandum which describes the
Euroclear SA/NV governance pracuces in the context
of the 10 principles The Governance Memorandum 1s
reviewed annually by the Board and approved by the
CBFA. It also forms the basis for the CBFA’s prudenual
supervision of Euroclear SA/NV’s governance As

the CBFA requirements 1n relation to governance

have developed over the last two to chree years and
now form a comprehensive set of governance rules

and requirements for Euroclear SA/NV, the Board

of Euroclear SA/NV decided not to apply the Code
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directly at the level of Euroclear SA/NV as had been
the case in the past This report contains references to
governance at the level of Euroclear SA/NV where 1t 15
necessary or desirable to give the context for the overall

governance of the group

The Boards of Directors

Board composition

The Euroclear group 1s headed by the Board of Euroclear
ple {(Board), composed 1n 2009 of 25 non-execunve
directors Reflecung Euroclear's user governance model,
21 of the 25 directors are senior executive from frms
representng a cross-section of users of Euroclear services
and shareholders of the company ‘The other 4 directors,
including the chairman and deputy chairman, have no
affillanon with Euroclear users The same 25 directors
also sit on the Board of Euraclear SA/NV together with
two executive directors (the CEQ and Deputy CECQ)
‘The list of Directots is contained on pages 94-95

Both Boards are chaired by Sir Nigel Wicks He has no
exccuttve responsibilines for running any part of the
group’s business As Chairman, hus core responstbilinies
are direcang, advising and leading the Boards as weil
as ensuring the Boards are adequately informed on

all marrers relevant to leading the group, direcung
shareholder relationships and facilitating the Board’s
relatlonshlp wl[h managemen[ 'ch Chalrma.n 15 1N
regular contact with the members of Boards and meets
cach director indradually outside of Board meetngs
to discuss Euroclear macters Sit Nigel 1s also 2 non-
execunve director of Edinburgh Investments Trust ple
and a member of the Jersey Financial Services
Commussion, a statutory body responsible for the
regulation and supervision of the finanaial services
industry 1n the island of Jersey

The Boards’ deputy chairman, Jean-Jacques Verdickt,
assists the chairman in carrying out hus role, parucu-
larly with regard to governance matters Jean-Jacques
Verdickr exercises other non-execuuve directorshup

mandates outside the Euroclear group, a list of which

1s available on www euroclear com

‘The Board of Euroclear plc considers all the directors

of the Company to be independent in character and
judgement within the meaming set out 1n the Code,
having examtned cach director against the independence

critena descriibed in the Code

Gaven that the directors are largely drawn from the user
commumty, several of them have links wich each other
outside of Euraclear However, none of these Links are
deemed by the Board to be significant or to impede
the sndependence of the directors in question 1n the
exercise of their funcuion on the Board Simularly, the
three directors appointed by Sicovam Holding SA,
which holds 13 6% of the Company’s share caputal,
are constdered by the Boards to be independent in
judgment and character noranthstanding that they are
appointed by the shareholder Furthermore, David
Nicol 15 considered by the Board to be independent
notwithstanding his tenure of mote than nine years on
the Board, as the Board concluded thar he has retained

his independence in character and judgement

Grven that most of the directors are drawn from uscrs
of the group's services, the Board has agreed and applied
objective guidelines to evaluate whether the business
relactonship berween Euroclear and the relevanc user
companues could adversely impacr the independence of
such direcrors and have concluded, based on those objec-
ave guidelines, that this 1s not the case for any director
Board directors have an obligation to report their

commuments outside Euroclear, and any changes to
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such commutments, to the Board Upon receipt of such
repornng, the Board sausfies 1self as to whether such
commitments could conflict with therr duties as direc-

tors of the Compares and responds accordingly

The Board has designated the chairman of the
Nominations, Remuneration & Governance Commuittee
(NRGC) as the Sentor Independent Director, ex officio
‘The position s currently held by Mark § Garvin The
role of the Sentor Independent Director in Euroclear

1s principally to be available to fellow non-executive
directors, exther individually or collecuvely, should

they wish to discuss matters of concern 1n 2 forum thar
does nor include the management of the group or the
Chairman, and to lead the Board in the assessment of

the Chairman

The NRGC leads the process for idenufication of
prospective directors 1n accordance wath selecuon
criteria set out 1n the Board Composinon Policy
approved by the Board The Commuttee secks ro ensure
thar the Board overall possesses the necessary balance
of skalls and experience to set the general policy and
strategy of Euroclear ple and Euroclear SA/NV and the
group generally, and 1o properly supervise management
in the implementanion of such policy and strategy The
Board Compeosinon Policy's critena cover the integriry,
availabiliry, expenence and semority of direcrors as well
as their knowledge of the markets and of the group's
core bustness hines Also taken into censideration 15
whether the candidate 1s drawn from the shareholders

and/or significant users in Euroclear

The NRGC also advises the Board on 1ts annual
review of board and committee composition which s
aimed ar ensuring the Board remains balanced wath
an appropnate mix of shills and experase to perform

1s role As the directors are drawn from users of

Euroclear services, who are senior executives within
their firms and generally well known 1n the industry,
the Board did not rely on an external search agency or
open advertsing in the appointment of non-execunve
directors durning 2009

Upon appomntment, Board members receive a letter of
appomntment which outhnes their responsibilities and
the terms upon which they are appointed to the Board,
including the ume they are required to allocate to fulfil
their Board role in Euroclear

Each director 15 offered an induction into Euroclear
designed to develop his/her knowledge and understand-
ng of all ytmporaant elements of the group’s business
and the responsibilittes of the role as a Board direc-

tor Because of the user governance framework within
which the group operates, the Board does not deem

1 necessary for new non-executive directors to have
speafic mectings with major shareholders as part of
their induction programme There 1s an ongoing train-
ng programme for directors on matters of importance
to therr mandate and marters idennofied by Board and
Board committee members as part of the annual Board

evaluation process

Board role

The direcuon of the Euroclear group 15 dmded berween
the Board of Eutoclear plc and that of Euroclear SA/NV
There 15 a clearly defined division of responsibilittes
berween the two Boards The Board of Euroclear plc 1s
responsible for all shareholder matters, setung values
and standards 1n governance marters and ensuring

that necessary financial resources are 1n place to meet

strategic aims

The Board of Euroclear SA/NV has as its principal

responsibalties setting group strategy and overseeing




73

us implemencanon, ensuning effective controls are 1n
place to enable risk to be properly managed, and serang
the framework for group policies The section Internal
Contrels System on page 62 contains an explanatton of
the work of the Board 1n maintaining a sound system of
internal controls, including financial, operauonal and

compliance controls and nsk management systems

There 15 no execuuve management at the level of
Euroclear plc Therefore, the Provisions of the Code 1n
respect of executive management do not apply to the
Company The Board of Euroclear SA/NV has estab-
lished a Management Commuttee, in accordance with
Belgian law, and delegated to 1t responsibiliy for manag-
g the business of the company wathin the strategy and
general policy decided by the Board and to inplement
such strategy and general policy Throughout the year
Prerre Francorte was the CEQ of Euroclear SA/NV and

the chairman of the Management Commuttee

As in previous years the Boards undertook a self evalu-
anen during 2009 which was designed to assess Board
performance and 1dennfy areas in which 1ts policies,
processes and effecaiveness should be enhanced, and to
assess the performance of the Board Chairman and, in
the case of Euroclear SA/NV, the Management This
annual performance evaluanon was facilitated 1nrer-
natly and the results were reviewed first by the NRGC
which prepared a summary of the results which was
then reviewed to the Boards Based on the results of the
self evaluauon, the Boards agreed upon action items to
address weaknesses idennfied and further improve their

effecuveness

Directors are expected to attend all Board and relevant
commuttee meetings The Board has five regular scheduled
meetings throughout the year and holds additional

meetngs as and when necessary The Board dedicates one

full day per year to a strategy session that focuses on big
preture strategic planning for the Eureclear group Duning
2009, the Board of the Company met six times and the
Board of Euroclear SA/NV 12 tmes A rable decailing
directors’ attendance at Board and Board commuttee

meetings during 2009 1s set out on page 75

A full List of current Board directors, the terms and
conditions of appointment of non-executive directors,
the Board Composinon Policy and other relevant docu-

ments can be found on www euroclear com

Board committees

In order for the Beards to fulfil their responsibilinies
efficiently, commuttees with different expertisc and
powers have been established Their terms of reference,
which include details of the role and responsibilities of
each of these commuittees, can be found on

www euroclear com

Euroclear plc has three Board commuttees — the
Nommaunons, Remuneravon & Governance
Commuttee, the Audic Commuttee and the Operauons
Committee The Board of Euroclear SA/NV has
established seven committees — the Management
Commuttee, the Nominanons, Remuneranon &
Governance Commuirree, the Audir Commuttee,

the Strategy Commuttee, the Risk Commurree, the
Business Model Implementation Commuttee and the
Execunve Compensation Commuttee Other than the
Management Commuttee, all these seven commuttees are
advisory committees The Chatrman and the Deputy
Chairman are members of each commirtee ex officio,
except the Audit Commuttees, which they acrend by
invitanon, and che Management Commuuree, which

1s composed exclustvely of the most semor execu-
uves of Euroclear SA/NV During 2009 the Board of
Euroclear SA/NV established a Search Commuttee to
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assist the Board 1n 15 task of 1dentifying suuable cand:-
dates as the new group CEQ The work of the Search
Commuttee 1s descaabed below

The Management Commuttee meets usually once a
week The other commuttees meer on a regular basis
and each commuuee chairperson reports at the Board
meeting immediately following a commuttee meenng
and makes agreed recommendatons from their com-
muttee to the Board The table on page 75 sets out the

membership of each commutree during 2009

Management Committee

‘The Management Comrmttee of the Board of
Euroclear SA/NV has been delegated by the Board

the general management powers of the company The
Commuttee was compnised throughour the year of seven
members including 1ts chairman Two members of the
Management Commuttee are also Board members The
other members, although not members of the Boards,
participate in all Board meetings and have frequent
contact with individual Board members outstde of
Board meetngs The Chairman and CEO have regular

contacts, several umes per week

The Management Comirutiee reports to the

Euroclear SA/NV Board at each meeting on the objec-
tves that thar Board has set n executing Board deci-
stons and managing the business of the Company The
CEO works together with the Chairman ro formulate
strategic proposals for consideranion by the Board In
ts context, the Management Commuttee recommends
to the Board an annual plan and budget addressing how
to implement corporatc strategy and leng-term goals,
and policies designed to establish clear nsk manage-
ment objectives for the company Once the annual
plan has been approved by the Board, the Management

Comrmuttee manages the day-to-day operatons by

deciding on, or guding, key courses of action 1n opera-
tions by staff and ensuring the eficient management

of human, financal and physical resources Under the
direction of 1ts Chairman, the Management Committee
ensures relevant items are presented to the Board 1n

a full and thorough fashion 1n a way that enables the
Board to assess management’s performance 1n meeting

the goals and objecuves agreed by the Board

Audit Commuttees

The Audit Committees of Euroclear ple and

Furoclear SA/NV review and make recommendations
to the Boards in relauon to the compames’ and the
group's financral results, the financial reportng process
and the integnty of such reporung, the effecuveness
of internal controls and the process for monitoring
compliance with laws and regulanions and business
contenuicy, the appoinumnent of the external auditor as
well as 1ts independence and approval of annual inter-

nal and external audit plans

Duning 2009, the Commutrees recerved standing
quarterly reports from che Chief Auditor on conrol
1ssues and progress of the annual internal auditc plan
and from the Chief Compliance officer on legal and
compliance mattets At each meetung the Commutcees
recetved an update on unaudited financial results w
darte and a six monthly progress repott on the cost
management initiatives agreed by the Board In view
of the external environment, the Comrmttees spent
considerable ume throughout the year monitonng s

impaicment analysis

The external auditor reported at each Commutzee
meenng on relevant accounung, contro! and regulatory

ISSUES
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Euroclear plc & Euroclear SA/NV directors’ attendance 2009'

Board Audit Business Executive Nomnations & Operations Risk Search
Meetings Committee Model Compensation Remuneration Committee  Committee  Committee
Implementation Committee Committee
Committee

Sir Nigel Wicks 18 (18) 9 4 (4) sy 4(4) 1 _ 40 9
Jean-Jacques Verdicke 17 (18) g 4 (@) s 4@ o s® 9
Joseph C Antonells 14 (15 3_ (4) - 2(4)
Michel Berthezéne? 14 (18) . _ _ _ _ _ 4(5) 90
Alain Closter 13 (18) 4(4) 5(5) 4(4) ) _809)
Sue C;ncannon o 11 (18i 6 (9—) 3 (4) T
Ignace R Combes* 11(12) o o ) )
Christer Cragnell’ N 4 (4)
Stephen A ] Davm:f 4(4) 12
Frank ] DeCongelio 10 (10) 4 (4) 2 . .
Enik Dralans ® B - ~ . )
Mary M Fenoglio 17 (18) 9(9) 1 L (1) 1(1) At
Pietre Francotret - 12 {12) B
Clara Furse 4 (10) L o B e . B »
Mark § Garvin 17(18) 4@ 5(5) 464 609
William Higgins 9(18) 3(5) 4 (5)
Tim Howell 14 (18) 0(1) 17 . B 405 _
Junichi Ishhl; _8(18) :7 : -A - B o -
Peter T ]ol;x;ton 16 (18) - 3 (4) 3(5)
Akihuro Kanayasu 15 (18)
Timothy F Keaney i3 (18) . i 3@ N B 8(9
Francots Marton? 17 (18) 8 (9) L(1)
Nculml\m/_[artm o 6 (6) . . . ~ o
Lieve Mostrey 16 (IET . ) 4—(‘;) 5(%) . a9
David Nicol 1408) 7(9) 3¢4) ) 01
Herschel Post 15 (18) ” 5 (5) 4 (4) . .
TomRuad  14(18) ) o o 2(4) 89
Marun Slumbers N 12 (Ié} 3 (5) 12 )
John Steware 15 (18) ) - ) 7 9)

Jean-Frangois Théodore® 9 (18)

Attended as invitee

bt R =

Non-Board director

Directors Nominated by the *S sharehalders
As Exacutive Director of Euroclear SAMNV only attendance at Euroclear SANV board meetings accounted for

There were no meetings of the Strategy Committee in 2009

The figure 1n brackets indicates the maximum number of meetings the director could have attended
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The Commiuttees had ongoing oversight of the system
of internal control and conducted their annual in-depth
review of the effectiveness of the system of internal con-
trol, a full description of which 1s set out on page 62

Nomunations, Remuneranon &

Governance Committees

The Nominations, Remuneranon & Governance
Commuttees of Euroclear plc and Euroclear SA/INV
(NRGC) are responsible for reviewing and making
recommendations to the Boards 1n relauon to the nomi-
nauen of direcrors and remunerauen of non-executive
Board members within the limits set by the shareholders
The NRGCs also advise the Boards on governance mat-
ters other than executive remuneration whach 1s withun

the role of the Executive Compensation Commuttee

In 2009, the NRGC reviewed and proposed to the
Boards persons for clection as dircctors as vacancies
arose throughout the year, evaluaung each candidate
against the required skulls and experuise and other rel-

evant elements of the Board Composinon Policy

The NRGC also reviewed the changes emerging 1n
corporate governance best practice and regulation and
adwvised the Board on the same thtoughout the year The
NRGC examined whether the large size of the Board
has an unduly negauve impact on 1ts effectuveness The
NRGC concluded, and the Board concurred, that the
current size of the Board 1s appropriate to ensure the
balance of skills and experience necessary for effectve
user governarnce of Euroclear and that size itself does not
have a negative impact on the effectiveness of the Board

The Board wall keep the matter under review

Operations Committee
The Operanons Commuttee of Euroclear ple, which 1s

responsible for handling operauonal and administranve

matters anising berween Board meeungs, met once
during the year to approve the opening of a Bulleun

Board session

Rusk Commuittee

Simular to many hnancial insatuacens, the Board
undertook a detaled review of 1ts risk governance dur-
ing the course of 2009 One result of this analysis was

a deaision to enhance the role of the Rusk Commutree

to embrace a wider, more forward-locking review of all
major risks The respecuve roles and responsibilities of
the Ruisk and Audit Commuttees with respect to risk and

control marters were also further clanhed

In addition to 1ts regular reporung from management
on nisk 1ssues, the Commuttee was involved throughout
the year, in discussing with management the impact of
the financial cnsis on Euroclear’s nsk profile and nsk
tolerance levels The Risk Commurtee hosted 1ts annual
risk forum in June 2009, where leading industry nisk
experts were wnvited to exchange 1deas on risk ropics
relevant to the Euroclear group The forum was devoted
to an 1n-depth discussion on the impact of the financial

crisis on the nisk profile of marker infrastructures

Due to hus appointment as the furure CEO of
Euraclear SA/NV, Tim Howell stepped down as charr-
man of the Rusk Commurttee 1n January 2010 and was

replaced 1n that posiion by Jean-Jacques Verdacke

Business Model Implementation Commuttee

‘The Business Model Implementation Commuctee

of Euroclear SA/NV monitors the progress towards
unplementanon of the Euroclear business model The
membership of the Commuittee was restructured in
2009 ro better reflect the current point of evolution of
the business model, with Joseph Antonelhs takung over
the chairmanship from Sir Nigel Wicks
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At each meetng duning 2009, the Commurttee was
given a detarled update on the progress of the main
programmes of the Single Platform thar are part of the
implementanon of the business model The Commurree
also recerved a quarterly audit scorecard for each of the
programmes that assess the inrernal control system of
the programmes Durnng 2009, the Commuttee recom-
mended to the Board a re-phasing of the last part of the
delivery of the Single Platform to take account of the
current market environment and the introduction of
T2S to the market

Executive Compensation Commuttee

The Executive Compensation Commuttee, which 1s
composed enurely of independent non-executive direc-
tors, advises the Board of Euroclear SA/NV on the
global compensanon philosophy for the Management
and staff of Euroclear SA/NV, on the Balanced
Scorecard for the Company and on the annual vanable
compensation budget 1n line wath such global compen-

sation philosophy

In line with 1ts Terms of Reference, the Commuittee
considered and made recommendation to the Board on
matters concerning the results of the Balanced Scorecard

results for 2009 and 1ts proposed strucrure for 2010

Based on the results of the Balanced Scorecard for 2009
and other relevant factors, the Commutree considered
and made recommendatiens concerning the size of the
incentive compensation pool payable to Management
and staff, the vanable level of compensation to be paid o
the members of the Management Commuttee, as well as
the total amount of stock options to be granted 1 2010

to certain managers of the group

In addiven to that, the Commuttee reviewed and agreed
the 2010 objecuves for the members of the Management

Balanced Scorecard

The Balanced Scorecard 15 one of the tools used by Management and the Board to
measure performance across the Euroclear group It sats out the group’s key prorities,
in line with our wision and strategy The targets are set at the beginning of the year
and cannot be changed unless approved by the Board In assessing the company’s per-
formance, the Board takes into account the results of the Balanced Scorecard, which it
complements with a qualitative assessment that considers other relevant factors

The Balanced Scorecard includes abjectives nat only relating to financial performance,
but also operational and project delivery, nsk management, chent satisfaction and
people and management of the company The "weight' of each objective reflects the
relative importance of the area to the company’s strategy

The Balanced Scorecard results are one of the important factors considered by the
Board In determining the variable compensation pool for Management and staff
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Committee, recommended the objectives of the CEQ
for the approval of the Board and kept the Board fully
appunsed, in the course of the year, of the evolution of
the execunve compensation regulatory framework 1n

Belgium and other countrtes, as relevant o Euroclear

Search Committee

This Commuttee was established by the Board 1n June
2009, following the announcement by Pierre Francotte
of his decrsion to stand down as Chief Executive Officer
of Euroclear SA/NV 1n early 2010 The Commuittee was
delegated with the specific task of making a recommen-
danen on the appointment of Mr Francotte’s succes-
sor The membership of the Commuttee was set at 10
non-executive board members, including the Chairman

of the Board acting as commuttee chair

The Commuttee met nine umes and, wich the help of a
professtonal cutside consulung firm, undertook a wide-
ranging scarch and interviews of prospectuive candidates
for the position of new CEQ 'The Board was kept
closely 1n touch with 1ts work and deliberanions, taking
account of the need to preserve the confidence of the

candsdares being considered

In December 2009, the members of the Search and
Executtve Compensation Cemmuttees met jointly and
agreed ro recommend to the Board the appointment
and remuneration of Tim Howell as the new CEO of
Euroclear SA/NV and as a member and Chairman of
1s Management Commiuttee This appomntment was
approved by the Board on the condiuon that che neces-
sary regulatory approvals were subsequently received
Pierre Francoue’s tenure as CEO will end on 4 Apnl
2010, with Tim Howell taking over on 5 Apnl

Having completed its task, the Commuttee was dis-
solved by the Board 1n March 2010

Stratcgy Commuittee

For the last few years, the Strategy Commuttee has
prepared the Board’s annual in-depth discussion of
strategy The discussion planned for January 2010 has
been postponed unnl later 1n the year pending the new
CEQ’s assumpuon of his dunes Consequently, the
Strategy Commuttee did not meet during 2009 The
Board 1s currently renewing the ongoing role of the

Scrategy Cormmurtes

Relations with shareholders

Euroclear plc shares are not traded on any exchange In
order to promote liqudity 1n the shares, the Board of
Euroclear plc has established a Bulleun Board service
accessible to sharcholders and certain other users The ‘
Bulletin Board provides a mechanism for making bd/
offer prices avalable to porenual buyers and sellers

who can, 1f they so wish, conract each other in order

to negotiate a made outside of the facility provided by
Euroclear Durning 2009, the Bulletin Board was apened
for two sessions but resulted (n a limited number of

share transfers

The user governance structure of Euroclear results in
the large majonty of the directors on the Boards of
Euroclear plc and Euroclear SA/NV being individuals
who are employed by firms that use Euroclear All these

firms are also sharchelders 1n Euroclear ple

The wide sharcholder representaton on the Boards and

the relanively stanc nanure of the shareholder base, gives

the Euroclear ple Board confidence that 1t has a contin- |
ued understanding of the objectives of 1ts shareholders

asawhole The Charrman and senior management |
maintained a structured dialogue with the Company’s

largest shareholder throughout the year through

regular meetings The Chairman involved the full

Board, as appropriate, to discuss 1ssues rased by that
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shareholder In additton, the Chairman, accompartied
by Management where appropriate, pays regular visits
to other sharcholders The avalability of the Chairman,
as well as that of ether Directors and senior manage-
ment, at the Annual General Meeting provides a further
forum for two way discussion berween the Company
and 1ts shareholders The Chairman, the Deputy
Chairman and other directors are always available to

ralk with shareholders

A list of all the sharcholders of Euroclear plc, as of regis-
trations completed at Companies House on 28 February
2010, can be found on the enclosed CD-ROM

Market Advisory Committees

The Euroclear group has established seven user commut-
tees known as Marker Adwvisory Commirtees (MACs)
for Belgium and The Netherlands jointly, France,
[reland, the United Kingdom, as well as Sweden and
Finfand, and a Cross-Market Advisory Commuttee
‘These commuttees are not Board commuttees and their
members are not directors of, and owe no fiduciary dury
te, Euroclear The MACs are a primary source of feed-
back and interaction berween the user community and
Euroclear management on significant matters affecting

their respective domestic markets




Strong
foundations
to ensure a
stable future
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A region that
builds on the
wisdom of its
history and
on the energy
of its young

population.




Since the 9th century, the
Yangtze Delta has been
the most populous area in
China, and one of the most
densely populated areas

of the world During the
mid to late period of the
Tang Dynasty (618-907),
the region emerged as the
most important agricultural,
handicraft and economic
centre for China

The Yangze Delta Metropolitan
Arca 1s the largest metropolitan
area 1n China It 1s home to over
90 million people, of which an
estumated 50 million are urban

In the future the area may well
evolve 1nto the largest megalopolis
1in the world, a cohesive network
of cities and towns

Companies building
a new infrastructure
need a solid financial
partner for such an
ambitious project.
They can rely on
Euroclear’s strong
financial foundations
to support and
protect their interests.
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Financial review

Reinforced reputation in 2009
despite market conditions
While the 2008 financial crisis, and the economic reces- of €185 mullion, compared with a €347 muillion profit
before tax 1n 2008

rates The operanng profit before tax for the year was

€184 5 mullion, before a goodwill impairment charge

sion that followed, made 2009 a challenging year for all
market players, Euroclear’s low risk profile and strong

nisk management culture have contnibuted to protect In 2009, Euroclear implemented further tanff
the company’s solid reputation reductions
Operanng income for the year amounted to €934 The 2009 end-of-year headcount decreased by 221
mullion, of which €759 mullion was generated from full-ume equivalents compared to 2008 {excluding

the stable net fee and commussion 1income and €98 the employees from Xerakter that joined the group

milhon from the more volaule net interest income

which was impacted by histoncally low incerest

1n 2009)

Euroclear pic summarised consolidated mcome statement (in € million)

2009 2008
Net interest income 9582 283 B
Nert f;c and commgon 1noomc— o o o ) 7587 o 807 8-“
Dividend income 17 8 45
Eca.llscd ga.m_s on available-for-sale ﬁnar;nglal assers B o 338 .
Realised gains on ﬁ;_ancml llablht;cs measured at amortised cost 21 -
Net gains on financial asscts or liabilines held f;)r trading a 105 190
;]ct ga.lns/(l:;s—scs) on fort;gr: exchange - h o o (2—]) o _i(] ]
Other operating income 148 127
Operating income 9338 1,1381
Administrauve expenses (749 4) (7908}
Impairment 7 o : (184 9) {0 3}
QOperating profit/{loss) before tax {0 5) 3470
Taxation (37 9) (85 3)
Profit/{loss) for the year (38 4) 2617




Financial performance highlights

The detailed results for the year are set out on page 10
of the Euroclear plc financial statements, which are
available on the enclased CD-ROM

Loss for the year: due to the difficule marker condinons
in 2009, especially the interest rate environment, and

a €185 mullion impairment spht ever the ESES,
Euroclear UK & Iteland and NCSD CSD operating
segments, the Euroclear group’s loss after tax for the year
reached €38 mullion, compared to 2 €262 mullion profic
after rax for 2008

Excluding unusual items anising during 2009, the 'nor-
malised’ profit after tax for the year was €111 mullion, as

Wlustrated in the table below

€ million
Loss for the year (38)
Adjustments
Impairment charge 185
Dlv—l-dcnd rtc:wc;lwfmm LCH acarnct o i
Group Limuted (18)
Realised gan on disposal of LCH Clearnet
Group Limited shares {17}
Realised gawn on ;purchax omybnd Tierldebt (2)
Tax effect of the above ) B 1
Normalised profit after tax m

Operating income reached €934 mullion, 18% below
2008, the decrease 1n net interest mcome accounung for
919% of the reduction 2009 income includes the €18
mullion dividend received from LCH Clearnet Group
Limited and the €17 mullion capiral gain followsng the
chsposal of Euroclear’s shares in LCH Clearnet Group
Limited

Net interest income reached €98 mullion, a 65% reduc-
tion compared to 2008, due to histoncally low interest
rates throughout the year The USD and EUR overnighc
interest rates decreased, on average, from 2 1% and

3 6% 1n 2008 to 0 2% and 0 6% respecuvely tn 2009
Average deposits dropped by 9% and average overdrafts
by 42% as clients’ focus on liquidicy management and
reduction of 1nterest costs increased Interest mncome n
Euroclear stems principally from Euroclear BanK's over-
night redeposits of chients’ cash balances It also stems
from the tnvestment of Euroclear Bank’s capiral, retaned

earnings and the proceeds from subordinated debt

Net fee and commission income decreased by 6%

to €759 mullion, reflecung the impact of market
conditions and tanff reductions to mamntain the
compentiveness of the group Net fee and commusston
income represents 81% of 2009 total operaning income
A sigmificant share of Euroclear’s fees and comsmussion
income 1s generated by fixed income securities and 1n
particular by the securities held in custody, for which
safekeeping fees are charged on the nominal amount
Furthermare, the large government sumulus packages
financed by debt 1ssuance helped sustain business
resthence in Euroclear, which contributed 1o protecting

group revenues

Administrative expenses decreased by 5% to €749 mil-
lion 1n 2009 as a significant multi-year cost reduction
programme built on a large range of measures such as
Lean management {to increase cfiiciency and 1mprove
productivity), automation and procutement spend man-
agement tninatives covenng all non-personnel relared
expenses, started 1n 2008, was pursued and exrended
On a fully comparable basis the decrease was 12%

The programme 15 aimed at reducing the operatonal
cost base by about 25% by 2012 compared to 2008

plans (using comparable bases), with a signuficant part
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Qur business environment

The Euroclear group 1s a market infrastructure service provider to the international
financial mdustry User owned and user governed, our organisation provides settie-
ment and settlement-related services to financial institutions in more than 80 countries
for a wide range of securties Euraclear aims to position itself as the leading market
infrastructure in the post-trading field A strategy of translating economies of scale into
lower risks and lower costs for its clients and thereby generating greater critical mass
of business in Euroclear 1s key to 1ts success

The Euroclear group’s financial performance 1s measured in terms of net fee income
and net interest income set agamnst cperating costs These were nfluenced by several
key drivers in 2009

* Net fee income 15 mainly a function of the value of secunties deposited in the
group’s {1)CSDs, the number of settlement transactions and the daily value of col-
lateral provision outstanding The billing of bonds 15 based on nominal value and
provides a stable base, while for equities their market value 1s taken into consider-
ation, as detailed in the "Performance highlights’ section on page 6

* Net interest income 15 derived from the prevailing interest rates and the level of cash
balances deposited by clients While the level of clients’ cash balances throughout
2009 confirmed that Euroclear 1s perceved as a low nisk counterparty and safe har-
bour, the histonically low interest rates had a negative impact on interest earnings

* Operating expenses decreased significantly in 2009, confirming the effectiveness
of the cost containment programme

of the effort froncloaded 1n 2009-2010 At the end
of 2009, costs had been reduced by 18% against this

objective

Impairment charges were recognsed for a total
amount of €185 mullion, split between the ESES CSDs
(€10 million), Euroclear UK & Ireland (€75 million)

and NCSD (€100 mulion) Thus 1s due essennally to
the expected 1mpact of T2S, expectations that market
recovery will be slow and moderate in the aftermath
of the financial crists, and other stgmficant market

developments

Opcrating loss before tax was €0 5 mullion, a decrease
of €348 mullion compared with the profit in 2008,
teflecnng the reduction of interest income and the

impatrment charge

Dividend: on 25 March 2010, the directors decided to
recommend a didend distnbution to shareholders of
€43 9 million, represenung €11 46 per share {compared
with €20 49 per share relating to 2008) This dividend
level 15 1n line wach Euroclear’s multi-year dividend
policy and reflects Euroclear’s conunued commitment
to ensuring sharcholders are adequately remunerared
for their capital investment, as well as the objecuves of
the group regarding capital strength under the current

market environment

Balance sheet: total assets stood at €11,0603 mllion on
31 December 2009, down €2,447 mulhion on the previ-
ous year Dieposits decreased by 22% to €7,036 million
and loans decreased by 23% 1o €7,490 mullion Total
shareholders” equity decreased by 3% to €3,133 muil-
Lion i 2009 This vanance 1s manly explained by the
payment of the 2008 dividend 1n June (€78 5 muilion}
and the loss of the year after impairment (€38 mullion})
During 2009, €6 milhion of the €300 millton Hybnd
Tier [ 1ssue was bought back on the marker, 1n order to
accommodate some investors’ needs and take advantage

of marker conditions

The group continues to hold strong regulatory capiral
levels with a Tier 1 ratio of 34% at year-end 1n 2009
compared with 44% in 2008




Euroclear plc summarised consolidated balance sheet (in € million)

2009 2008

Assets

Cash and balances with central banks 945 4 1,020 2
Loans and advances 6,544 4 8,735 9
Available-for-sale financial assets 1,274 3 1,103 2
Held-to-marunty financial assets 2987 2995
Financial assets held for trading 60 192
Derivanves used for hedging 03 51
Current incomme tax assets 168 220
Deferred income tax assets 1558 1552
Other assets 2522 369 1
Pre-payments and accrued income 891 975
Property, plant and equipment 127 0 145 4
Goodwill and intangible assets 1,292 5 1,478 1
Total assets 11,0025 13,450 4
Liabilities

Deposits from central banks 14937 469 8
Deposits from banks and customers 5,542 2 8,546 6
Financial liabihities held for trading 41 57
Dervatives used for hedging 27 22
Other liabikities 2649 5619
Accruals and deferred income 2022 2222
Current Income rax llablllzlcs 48 272
Deferred income tax habilines 30 68
Provisions for liabilities and charges 92 58
Pension deficit ) 431 360
Subordinated liabilities 2992 3051
Shareholders’ equity 31334 3,2411
Total habilities and shareholders’ equity 11,0025 13.450 4
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Share capital of Eurcclear plc on 25 March 2010

_ B . Authorised Issued

 Number  Nomunal value " Number  Nominal value
{€ denominated)
Qrdinary shares of €1 each 3,330,556 3,330,556 3,330,556 3,330,556
'S’ shares of €1 each 500,120 500,120 500,120 500,120
Unclassified shares of €1 each 169,324 169,324 - -
Total 4,000,000 4,000,000 3,830,676 3,830,676
(£ denomnated)
Preferred non-voting redeemable sterling shares of £1 each' 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000

1 Under International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS}), the preferred non veting redeemable sterling shares are ¢onsidered as debt in the consolidated finanaal
statements of the group

Euroclear Bank credit ratings

Short-term Long-term

Frech-IBCA Fls Ads
Standlrd & Poor’s A-l+ AA+
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Main operating entities - income statement (€ mullion)

ICSD ESES CSDs Nordic CSDs
Euroclear Euroclear Euroclear Euroclear Euroclear Euroclear Eurocdlear
Bank Belgium France  Nederland Finland  Sweden UK & lreland
2009 income statement
{under IFRS}
Nert interest income 972 01 07 01 03 01 05
Net fee and commussion 1ncome 3992 184 1136 285 369 385 982
Other operaung income ! 619 03 72 00 0o 13 01
Operating Income 558 3 188 1215 286 372 399 98 6
- Operating cxpenses (152 8) (110 (20 5) {6 9) 257 (30 4) (103
- Costs charged to group entities 00 04 17 5 02 01 01 01
- Costs recharged by group entities 291 4) (13 D (102 2) (21 6) 07N ©7) (83 3)
Net operating expense (444 2) (237 (105 2} (28 3) {26 3) (31 0) (93 5)
Profit before tax 1141 {49 163 03 109 89 51
Taxation (16 3) 19 59 [(VB)] 4 4) B39 (15)
Profit/(loss) for the year
{under IFRS)? 978 (30} 104 02 65 50 36
Effect of adjustments
to cornply Wlth gmup acmuntmg
policics and IFRS 173 (3 4) 12 00 61 16 05
Profit/(loss) for the year
In statutory accounts
under local GAAP 1151 {64) 116 02 126 66 41
Shareholders® equity
n statutory accounts
under local GAAP i 1,286 5 13“ 8 B11 89 278 B26 767

1 Includes dividend ncome, realised gains on avatlable-for-sale financial assets and on financial habilities measured at amortised cost, net gans on financial assets and
liabilrues held for trading net gainsi{losses) on foretgn exchange and other operatung income {excluding costs recharged to group companies)
2 Exduding goodwill impairment
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Capital management

The Comnussion Bancaire, Financiére et des Assurances
(CBFA) 1n Belgium 1s the main supervisor of Euroclear
Bank and the lead regulator for Euroclear SA/NV and,
for consolidated capital adequacy purposes only,
Eurodlear plc In addition, individual CSDs are
tegulated by theit own local supervisors, which set

and monitor capital adequacy and hiquidity require-

ments for them

In accordance wich the Basel I1 framework, che

CBFA requures each bank and banking group to main-
tain a ratto of total capital to nisk-weighted assets that
cannot fall under a threshold of 8%, and a rano of
Tier 1 capital to nisk-weighted assets thar must always
exceed a threshold of 4% Furthermore, as a company
closely associated with a settlement insurution,
Euroclear SA/NYV 15 subject to certain specific require-

ments regarding its solvency and Liquidity position

Rusk-weighted assets take into consideration balance
sheet assets and off-balance-sheet exposures that

may give rise to credit nisk, as calculated for both the
Euroclear Bank and the group on a consolidated basis
Collzteral and other eligible guarantees are taken 1nto

account appropriately

Total capital 15 divided 1nto two Tiers Tier 1 15 essen-
nally made up of shareholders’ capirtal, share premium,
consolidated reserves and retained earnings, while Tier
2 comprises undated subordinated loans In accordance
with capital adequacy regulatons, Euroclear monstors
the proportion of the Hybnd Tier 1 instrument (1ssued
1 2005) that can be considered as Tier 1, and reclassi-
fies the remainder to Tier 2 Goodwall and intangible
fixed assets are deducted in full from Tier 1 caparal

The current regulatory framework umposes that Tier 2
capital cannot exceed Tier 1 capueal, a requirement that

1s very comfortably met by the group

The group’s policy 1s to mantain a strong capital base and
to diversify its sources of capital appropriately, so that

an adequate relanonship between toral capiral and the
underlying nisks of the group’s business exists at all nmes

As an enuty that periodically 1ssues debt instruments,
Euroclear Bank has been asaigned an AA+ raung by
both Fitch and Standard & Poor’s

With effect from 1 January 2007, the regulatory capital
requiremnents for Euroclear Bank started to be deter-
mined by the Basel II framework, both on a stand-alone
and consolidated basis, as well as for all consolidated
levels above Euroclear Bank Within this framework,
Euroclear determines regulatory capital requirements

both for credit and operatonal risk.

As far as credir nsk 1s concerned, Euroclear has been
ustng the Foundaton Internal Raungs Based Approach
(FIRBA) as from 1 January 2007, 1n accordance with
the accreditation received from the CBFA at the end
of 2006 Since then, Euroclear has also computed its
capital needs under Basel I, in parallel wach the Basel II
methodology, in order to be able to apply, if neces-
sary, the so-called Basel I floors set out 1n the capial

adequacy regulanon

With respect to operational nisk, Euroclear has been
aflowed by the CBFA to use the Advanced Measurement
Approach (AMA) for the calculanon of Pillar 1 capital
requirements as from Q1 2008 Euroclear uses a hybrid
approach at all consohidated levels above Euroclear
Bank, by combining the AMA for Euroclear Bank wath
a Standardised or Basic Indicaror Approach for the

group’s other enunes

In 2009, Euroclear conunued o make progress wich 1ts

implementation of AMA for operational nsk Eutoclear




worked towards fulfilling the terms and condinons chat
accomparued the accreditation received 1n 2008 from
the CBFA to use the AMA to caleulate capital require-
ments for operational nisk under Pallar 1 In 2008, the
CBFA imposed an add-on, which was reduced in 2009
‘The add-on brought capital requirements for opera-
tonal nsk wich the AMA to a higher level than would
be the case with the Basic Indicator Approach (BIA) A
final decision on the AMA methedology, including the
level of an eventual add-on, 1s expected 1n the com-
ing months The capital requirements for operauonal
risk were also sigmificantly influenced by a worsening
trend 1n market-wide operanional nisk losses recorded

by the Operational Riskdata eXchange (ORX), which

Regulatory capital position

91

Euroclear uses in 1ts operanonal risk model to comple-
ment data on tnternal losses Thus increase tn the capial
requirements for operauonal risk does not reflect a

detcrloratlon 1n Euroclear’s own control environment

The table below sets our the group’s total capital, which

comforrably exceeds 1ts regulatory requirements

The lowering of the solvency ranos observed as of

31 December 2009 results from the increase of the
capieal requirements for operauonal nisk As explamned
above, this essennally relates to the worsening trend in
operanional risk losses, unrelated ro Euroclear, recorded

by the ORX.

The following table analyses the group’s regulatory capital resources ar the period end

2009 2008
(€ '000)
Rusk weighted assets! 6,104,357 4,440,656
Capital requirement 488,349 355,252 _
Credit nsk 82,000 115,549
Market r1sk 18,031 14,116
Operavonal osk 388,318 225,587 )
Capital base 2,082,372 1,970,296
Tier 1 2,081,238 1,957,033
Tier 2 1,134 13,263 }
Solvency ratio
Tier 1 34 1% 44 1%
Total 34 1% 44 4%

1 Risk-weighted assets represent the total capital requirement multiphed by a factor of 125 This means that the risk weighted assets da not
only relate to credit and market risk, but also comprise the gross-up of the capital requirements related to operational nsks For Euroclear,

the latter are the marn source of capital consumption
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Annual accounts and

auditors’ opinion

The attached CD-ROM comprises the consolidated
financial statements and parent company financial

staternents of Euroclear plc

As required by law, the statutory annual accounts,
the Board of Directors’ report and the Statutory
Auditors’ report are filed with UK Companies House
(Euroclear plc)

A paper copy of these documents 15 available on
request from

The Company Secretary
Euroclear plc

Baarermatte
6340 Baar, Swirzerland

The auditors have delivered an unqualified opimon on
the 2009 consolidated and parent company financial

statements of Euroclear ple

The management’s assertion statement, together

with the auditor’s statement on the Inter-company
Transacuon Pelicy implemented by the Euroclear group
1s avatlable on pages 68 and 69
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Euroclear plc

Board of Directors

10

17

Sir Nigel Wicks
Chairman

Jean-Jacques Verdickt
Deputy Chairman

Joseph C Antonellis
State Street Corporation

Michel Berthezéne!
Caisse des Dépats er Consignartions

Alain Closier
Sociéé Générale

Sue Concannen
Halifax Share Dealing Limited

Stephen A | Dawies?
Bank of America Mernll Lynch

Enk Dralans?
ING

Mary M Fenoglio
Cinigroup

Mark S. Garvin
Senuor Independent Director
JP Morgan plc

Wilham Higgins
The Royal Bank of Scotland

Tim Howell*

Junuch Ishi

Mizuho Trust & Banlkung
{Luxembourg) SA

Peter T Johnston
Goldman Sachs & Co

Akihiro Kanayasu*
Mitsubishu UF] Global Custedy SA

Timothy F Keaney
The Bank of New York Mellon

Frangois Manon®
CACEIS

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

W=

Neil Martin?
Credit Susse

Lieve Mostrey
BNP Panbas Forus

David Nicol
Morgan Stanley

Herschel Post
Tom Ruud

Martin Slumbers
Deutsche Bank AG

John Stewart
UBS AG

Lionello Falcor
Executive Secretary

Appointed by Sicovam Holding

Appointed 9 October 2009

Appomnted 17 June 2009

Formerly of HSBC Holdings ple. Will

resign from the Board on taking up new role
as Chief Executrve Officer of Eurodear SANV
on S Apnl 2010

Will resign wath effect 2 April 2010

Ex-officio member

Board Committees

Operations Committee
Sir Nigel Wicks, Chairman
Mary M Fenoglio
Frangois Marion

David Nicol

Jean-Jacques Verdickt

Audit Committee

Mary M Fenoglio, Chairperson
Sue Concannon

Frangois Marion

Dawid Nigol

Martin Slumbers

lean-Jacques Verdickt®,
Euroclear SA/NV

Rusk Commuttee Chairman

Frank ) DeCongelio, Advisor

Nom:nations, Remuneration and
Governance Committee

Mark S Garvin, Chairman
Joseph C Antonellis

Alain Closier

Peter T lohnston

Herschel Post

Tom Ruud

Jean-Jacques Verdickt

Sir Nigel Wicks

« Frank ) DeCongelio resigned
with effect 17 June 2009

* Dame Clara Furse resigned
with effect 17 June 2009

+ Jean-Frangons Théadore resigned
with effect 18 February 2010
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Euroclear SA/NV

Board of Directors

Sir Miget Wicks

Chairman

Jean-Jacques Verdickt
Deputy Chairman

Joseph C Antonellis
Srate Street Corporation

Miche! Berthezéne

Caisse des Dépés et Consignations

Alain Closier
Société Générale

Ignace R Combes
Deputy CEO!
Euroclear SA/NV

Sue Concannon
Halsfax Share Dealing Limuted

Stephen A ] Davies?
Bank of America Merrill Lynch

Erik Dralans?
ING

Mary M Fenoglio
Ciugroup

Pierre Francotte

Akthiro Kanayasu®

Mitsubishi UF] Global Custody SA

Timothy F Keaney
The Bank of New York Mellon

Frangois Maron
CACEIS

Neil Martin?
Credit Suisse

Lieve Mostrey
BNP Paribas Fortis

Dawd Nicol
Morgan Stanley

Herschel Post
Tom Ruud

Martin Slumbers
Deutsche Bank AG

John Stewart
UBS AG

Lionello Falconi
Execunive Secretary
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CEO'
Euroclear SA/NV 1 Appointed 14 April 2009

2 Appointed with effect 26 June 2009

1 Appointed 17 June 2009
Mark S. Garvin 4 will resign with effect 4 April 2010

5 Formerly HSBC Holdings plc will become CEQ
Semor lndependent Durector Euroclear SA/NV and Chairman of the
JP Morgan plc Management Committee with effect 5 Apnil

2010

6 Will resign with effect 2 April 2010

William Higgins 7 Appointed with effect 28 January 2010

Replaced Tim Howell
Ex-officio member
Appotnted with effect 15 December 2009

The Royal Bank of Scotland

w o

Tim HowelP 10 Nen-Board director
11 Disbanded on 25 March 2010
Junicha Ishit crank ) DeConael St
» Frank J DeCongelio resigned wit
Mizuho Trust & Banking effect 17 June 2009
{Luxembourg) SA » Dame Clara Furse resigned with

effect 17 June 2009
Jean-Frangois Théodore resigned with
effect 18 February 2010

Peter T Johnston
Goldman Sachs & Co

wim Claeys, Management Committee member
resigned on 31 December 2009




Management Committee

Pierre Francotte!

CEO and Chairman

Ignace R Combes

Deputy CEQ and Vice Chairman
Fredenc Hannequart

Dr Tim May

Joel Merére

André Rolland

Board Committees

Strategy Committee
Sir Nige! Wicks, Chairman
Joseph C Antonellis
Alan Closier

Sue Concannon
Pierre Francotte?

Tim Howell

Herschel Post

Tom Ruud

Martin Slumbers
Jean-Jacques Verdickt

Risk Commuttee

Jean-Jacques Verdickt!, Chairman
Miche! Berthezéne

Stephen Davies

William Higgins

Peter Johnston

Sir Nigel Wicks

Mary M Fenoglo®

Audit Commuttee Chairperson

John P Dawvidson, Advisor
M Andrew Threadgold, Advisor

Audit Committee

Mary M Fencgho, Chaurperson
Sue Concannon

Frangois Manon

Dawid Nicol

Martin Slumbers

lean-Jacques Verdickt®,

Ruisk Committee Chairman

frank ) DeCongelio, Advisor
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Euroclear Investments

Board of Directors

Business Model Implementation Sir Nigel Wicks, Chairman
Committee Jumichi Ishn

Joseph C Antonellis®, Chairman Akihiro Kanayasu'

Alain Closier Maftre Jacgues Loesch

Sue Concannon
Chnister Cragnell'?
Stephen Davies

Mary M Fenoglo
Mark S. Garvin
Willsam Higgins

Lieve Mostrey

Dawid Nicol

Martin Slumbers
Jean-Jacques Verdickt
Sir Nigel Wicks |

Nominations, Remuneratien and
Governance Committee

Mark § Garvin, Charrman
Joseph C Antonellis

Alain Closier

Peter T Johnston

Herschel Post

Tom Ruud

Jean-Jacques Verdickt

Sir Nigel Wicks

Executive Compensation Committee

Sir Nigel Wicks, Chairman

Alain Closier

Mark S. Garvin

Willlam Higgins

Timothy F Keaney

Lieve Mostrey

Herschel Post

Jean-lacques Verdickt !

Search Committee"
Sir Nigel Wicks, Chairman
Michel Berthezene
Alain Closter

Mary M Fenoglio
Mark S Garvin
Timothy F Keaney
Lieve Mostrey

Tom Ruud

John Stewart
Jean-Jacques Verdickt

1 Wil resign with effect 2 Apnil 2010




Annexes

Euroclear annual report 2009

Euroclear Bank SA/NV

Board of Directors

Frederic Hannequart, Chairman
Ignace R Combes

Dr Tim May

Yannic Weber

Jean-Jacques Verdickt
Independent Dhrector

Piemre Yves Goemans
Yves Poullet

André Relland

Luc Vantomme

Susan Y Stenson
Company Secretary

Management Committee

Yves Poullet, CEQ and Chatrman
Pierre Yves Goemans

Andre Rolland

Luc Vantomme

Board Committees

Audit and Risk Committee
Jean-Jacques Verdickt, Chairman
Ignace R Combes

Dr Tim May

Fabien Debame, Observer
Femando Diaz, Observer

Nominations Commitiee
Frederic Hannequart, Chairman
Jean-Jacques Verdickt

Remuneration Committee
Pierre Francotte, Chairman'?
Jean-Jacques Verdickt

Fredenc Hanneguart, Advisor

1 Functon held by the Euroclear SAINV
Chief Executive Officer
2 Will resign wath effect 4 Apnl 2010

Euroclear Belgium'

Board of Directors

Ignace R Combes, Charrman

Joel Mérére?, Vice Chairman

Anso Thire?

Gérard Soularue!, Independent Director

Valéne Urbain’
Stéphane Bernard
Hugo Spanger

Ruud SleenhoffS, Observer

Véronique Jehan?, Company Secretary

Management Committee

Valénie Urbam, CEO and Chairperson
Stéphane Bernard

Bngitte Daurelle

Hugo Spanjer

Board Committees

Audit Committee

Gérard Soularue, Chairman
Pierre Yves Goemans

Anso Thiré

Nominations and Remuneration Commitiee
Ignace R Combes, Chairman
Gérard Soularue

1 Trade name for Caisse Interprofessionnelle
de Dépdts et de Virements de Titres/
Interprofessionele Effectendeposito- en
Girokas {C1K) SAMNV

Appointed with effect 1 February 2009
Appointed with effect 1 November 2009
Appointed 28 Apnl 2009

Apponted as Chief Exacutive Officer

on 1 November 2009

Appointed 23 March 2009

wis Wy

a

¢ Stéphane Bernard reugned as Chief Executive
Officer with effect 1 February 2009

* Franas Remacle, mdependent Director
resigned wath effect 28 Apnl 2009

* Paul Taylor Director, resigned with
effect 1 February 2009

* Anne Swaelus, Director, resigned with
effect 1 February 2009

s Pierre Slechten Chief Executive Officer and
Director, resigned with effect 31 October 2009

Eurociear Finland Oy

Board of Directors

Kjell Arvidssen'!, Chairman
Seppo Rantanen

Pierre Slechten

Anso Thire

Per-Ola Jansson?,
Independent Dhrector

Ame Jansson,
Board Sccretary

Local Management Team

Seppo Rantanen, CEQ and Chairman
Ulla Heikkila

Kirsi Herkkinen
Harn Hukkinen
Jounw Leinonen
Mikko Matilainen
Kalja Niemela

Jan Palm

Anu Saannen
Jorma Yh-laakkola
Heikki Ylipekkala

Board Committee

Audit Commuttee

Per-Ola Jansson, Chairman
Michael Shipton

Pierre Slechten

1 Will resign with effect 7 Apnl 2010 and be
replaced as Chairman by Fredenc Hannequart
2 Appointed 27 January 2009

* Bjdrn G Olofsson, Director resigned with
effect 27 January 2009




Euroclear France SA

Board of Directors

Ignace R Combes, Chairman

Joel Merere, Vice Chairman

Anso Thiré!

Gérard Soularue, Independent Director

Valérie Urbain
Stephane Bemard?
Hugo Spanjer’

Ruud Sleenhoff*, Observer

Nadine Mollier?
Grazynja Thébault’

Véronique Jehan, Company Secretary
Management Committee

Valéne Urbain®, CEO and Chaurperson
Stéphane Bernard

Brigitte Daurelle

Hugo Spanjer

Board Committees

Audit Committee

Gérard Soularue, Charrman
Plerre Yves Goemans

Anso Thire

Nominations Comumittee
Ignace R Combes, Chairrman
Gerard Soularue

Remuneration Commitiee
Pierre Francotte, Chairman’®
Gerard Soularue

Appointed with effect 1 November 2009
Appointed with effect 1 February 2009
Appointed 20 May 2009

Appointed 13 March 2009

Members of the Euroclear France SA Works
Counal whose attendance at Soard meetings 1s
a legal regquirement

6 Apponted as Chief Executive Officer with
effect 1 November 2009

Function held by the Euroclear SA/NV CEQ
Will resign with effect 4 Apnil 2010

AR WA=

0~

« André Rolland, Director, resigned with
effect + February 2009

+ Alain Pochet, Observer, ressgned with
effect 13 March 2009

+ Pierre Slechten, Chief Executive Gfficer and
Director, resigned wiath effect 31 October 2009

Euroclear Nederland!
and Euroclear NIEC?

Board of Directors

Ignace R Combes, Chatrman

Joel Merered, Vice Chairman

Anso Thiré*

Gerard Soularue’, Independent Direcror

Valéne Urbain?®
Stéphane Bernard?
Hugo Spanjer?

Ruud Sleenhoff’, Observer

Véromgue Jehan?, Company Secrerary
Management Committee

Valéne Urbain, CEQ and Chairperson
Stephane Bernard

Brigitte Daurelle

Hugo Spanjer

Board Committees

Audit Committee

Gerard Soularue, Chairman
Pierre Yves Goemans

Anso Thire

Nominatiens and Remuneration Committee
Ignace R Combes, Chairman
Gérard Soularue

-

Trade name for Nederlands Centraal Instituut
voor Giraal Effectenverkeer (NECIGEF) BV
Trade name for Nederlands Interprofessioneel
Effectencentrum (NIEC)

3 Appomnted with effect 1 February 2009

4 Resigned with effect 1 February and
re-appointed with effect 1 November 2009
Appointed 23 Apnil 2009

Agpponted as Chief Executive Officer

with effect 1 November 2003

7 Appointed 23 March 2009

[N

* Wim Claeys Director, resigned with

effect 1 February 2009
= Jlos de Wit, Independent Director

resigned with effect 23 Apnil 2009
+ Gerard Hartsink, Qbserver

resigned with effect 23 March 2009
+ Guy Schuermans resigned as Chief Executive
Officer with effect 1 February 2009 and
as Dwrector with effect 23 March 2009
Pierre Slechten, Chief Executive Officer and
Director ressgned with effect 31 October 2009

99

Euroclear Sweden AB

Board of Directors

Kjell Arnidsson', Chawrman
Anso Thire

Seppo Rantanen

Pierre Slechten

Per-Ola Jansson?, Independent Darector

Anders Gauffin?
Ingela Gille Rausen?

Siv Flodkvist*
Mikael Persson*

Arne Jansson, Board Secretary

Local Management Team

Anso Thiré, CEQ and Chairman
Jan Dafgard
Isabelle Desaegher
Arne Jansson

Karl Johansson
Goran Karnfalt
Anders Lofgren
Mikko Matilainen
Henrik Mattsson
Jan Palm

Eric Sylvén

Board Committee

Audit Committee

Per-Ola Jansson, Chairman
Michael Shipton

Pierre Slechten

1wl resign with effect ¥ Apnil 2010 and be
replaced as Chairman by Fredenc Hannequart
Appointed 27 January 2009

Employee Representatives on the Board
Substitute Employee Representatives on the
Board

Bow o

= Bjdrn G Olofsson, Director, resigned with
effect 27 January 2009




Annexes

Euroclear UK &
Ireland Limited

Board of Directors

Dr Tim May, Chasrman

Yves Poullet

John Tundle

Herschel Post, Independent Director
Mike Wilhams, Independent Director

Yannic Weber
Richard Crews

David Whitehead, Company Secrerary

Executive Committee

Yannic Weber, CEQ and Chairman
Richard Crews, Deputy CEO

lan Besser?

David Burke'

Anouk Gauthier'

lason Waight'

David Whitehead'

Board Committees

Audit and Compliance Committee
Herschel Post, Chairman

Leanne Middleton

Geoffrey Mitchell?

Mike Williams

Nominations and Remuneration Committee

Dr Tim May, Chairman
Herschel Post
Mike Wilhams

-

Non-voung member
2 Independent co-opted member

» David Wyatt, Executive Committee Member,
resigned with effect 1 October 2009

EMX Company
Limited

Board of Directors

Dr Tim May, Chairman

Jo Van de Velde!

Yannic Weber

Tony Wood

Tom Challenor, Independent Darector

David Whitehead, Company Sccrcrary

Executive Committee

Yannic Weber, CEQ and Chairman
Graham Last

Leanne Middleton

Jane Sidnell

Tony Wood

Board Committees

Audit Committee

Tom Chalienor, Chairman
Richard Crews

David Burke

Martin ingell

-

Appaownted 1 February 2009
2 Appointed as Chief Executive Officer
1 January 200%

»  Max Wright, Chief Executive Ofhicer,
resigned with effect 1 January 2009

* David Burke Director, resigned from the Board
with effect 2 April 2009

» Pierre Yves Goemans Director resigned with
effect 2 Apnil 2009

Euroclear annual report 2009

NCSD Holding AB

Board of Directors

ignace R Combes', Chairman
Kiell Arvidsson?
Pierre Slechten

1 Will resign with effect 7 Apnl 2010 and be

replaced as Chairman by Fredenc Hanneguart

2 Will resign wath effect 7 Apnl 2010 and be
replaced by Anso Thiré

Xtrakter Limited

Board of Directors

Dr Tim May, Chairman
Bernard Frenay’

JoVan de Velde

Yannic Weber?

Dawd Whitehead, Company Sccretary

Executive Committee

Yannic Weber, CEO and Chairman
Graeme Austin

David Burke

Richard Jinks

Dawvid Lawler

Jason Waight

David Whitehead, Secretary

Appointed 8 January 2010
aAppointed as Chief Executive Officer with
effect B tanuary 2010

-

Dawid Burke resigned with effect
8 January 2010
Kevin Milne resigned with effect
8 January 2010

-
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Market Advisory Committees (MACS)

Belgium and The
Netherlands

Eric Hollanders, Chairman
Bank Mendes Gans

Nica Blom, Vice Chairman
Kas Bank NV

Gautier Bataille de Longprey
Bank Degroof SA

Hans Bnits

De Nederlandsche Bank NV
Gerard Fransen

Rabobank Nederland

Peter Hannes

KBC NV

Anny Jans

BNP Panbas

Betty Mulder-Mosman
Deutsche Bank

Pervaiz Panjwani

Ciubank Internartonal ple
Damien Roegiers

Euronext

Ed van der Star

Forus Bank Nederland NV
Eric Struye

Petercam SA

Yvan Timmermans
National Bank of Belgium

Observers

Representative Belgian MEC
Patrick Drogné

Febelfin

Representative Ducch ACSI
Ruud Sleenhoff
ABN Amro Bank NV

Finland

Kirsi Sakki, Chairperson
Pohjola Bank plc
Esa Andersson

Skandinaviska Enskilda Banken AB

Finland

Reto Jokelainen
Sampo Pankki Oy
Anna von Knorring
State Treasury

Kan Korhonen

Bank of Finland

Pawi Kuitunen

Evli Pankly Oy

Mats Ristedt

Nordea Pankki Oy

Markku Savikko

Finnish Association of Securities Dealers
Anu Terho

Svenska Handelsbanken AB Finland
Pekka Virtanen

EQ Pankki Oy

France

Alain Pochet, Chairman
BNP Panbas

Rabert Baconnier
Emectteurs

Roland Bellegarde
Euronext

Pierre-Yves Berthon
AFG

Philippe Castelanelh
HSBC France

Norbert Cron

Natixis

Adrien Decker

Crédit Mutuel/CIC
Jean-Marc Eyssautier
CACEIS

Emmanuel de Fournoux
AMAFI

Chnstophe Hemon
LCH Clearner

Guy de Leusse
Entreprises d'Investssement
Yvon Lucas

Banque de France

Enc de Nexcn

Socréé Générale
Marcel Roncin

AFTI

Jean Tricou

Fédéravion Bancaire Frangaise
Jean-Frangors Viou
AFSF

Dominique De Wit
Groupe Crédic Agnicole SA

Observer
Nelly Cotelle
ICMA/AMTE

Ireland

Brian Healy, Chairman

Insh Stock Exchange

Albert Farrell

Bastow Charlton

Mary Farrell

Central Bank and Financial Services
Authorty of Ireland

Erleen Kelly

Goodbody Stockbrokers

Joe Molany

Computershare

Emer Nolan

Bank of [reland Secuntes Services
Graham O'Brien

NCB Stockbrokers

Pat O'Donoghue

Capita Registrars (Ireland) Limited
Kevin Petley

Irish Stock Exchange

Paui Shiels

National Treasury Management Agency
Graham Shuttlewood

The Royal Bank of Scotland

Helen Young

Central Bank and Financial Services
Authority of Ireland

Sweden

Goran Fors, Charrman
Skandinaviska Enskitda Banken AB
Momica Bergstrom

Svenska Handelsbanken AB

Kerstin Hermansson

Swedish Secunties Dealers Association
Thomas Karlsson

Avanza Bank Holding AB

Robert Mattsson

Nordea AB

Ola Morud

Crabank International plc

Erik Ohman

Swedbank AB

Mattias Persson

Sveries Ruksbank

Carnina Roosmark

Neonet AB

Karin Wernvall

Swedish Nanonal Debt Office
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United Kingdom

Pen Kent CBE, Chairman
Chns Addenbrooke

Capita Financial Group
Richard Barber

Cinbank NA

Verity Barclay

Tullett Prebon

Robert Barnes

UBS

Phulippe Castelanel
HSBC Bank plc

Alison Emblow

Bank of England

Isabelle Hennebelle
Goldman Sachs

Robert Howard

Charles Stanley

Robert Keane

Bank of New York Mellon
Peter Lightfoot

RBS Global Banking & Market
julian Palfreyman
Winterflood Securines Lid
Jason Phillips

UK Debt Management Office
Judy Price

Rensburg Sheppards

Nick Scott

Deutsche Bank AG

Dawid Shrimpton

London Stock Exchange
John Whelan

Merrll Lynch

Cross-border MAC

Alain Pochet, Chairman
BNP Parbas

Charlotte Black

Brewin Dolphin Securities
Nico Blom

Kas Bank NV

Mana Dymarescu
JPMorgan Chase & Co
Jean-Marc Eyssautier
CACEIS

Goran Fors
Skandinaviska Enskalda Banken AB
Gerard fransen
Rabobank Nederland
Brian Healy

Insh Srock Exchange
Enc Hollanders

Bank Mendes Gans
Pen Kent CBE

Kirsi Sakki

Pohjola Bank ple




Euroclear group principal offices

Euroclear plc

Registered office
2 Lamb’s Passage
London EC1Y 8BB, UK

Executive office
Baarermarte
6340 Baar, Switzerland

Euroclear SA/NV
Euroclear Bank SA/NV
Calar Belgium SA/NV

1 Boulevard du Rot1 Albert I1
1210 Brussels, Belgium

Euroclear Belgium’
6, Avenue de Schiphol
1140 Brussels, Belgium

Euroclear Finland Oy
PO Box 1110
00101 Helsinks, Finland

Euroclear France SA
Euroclear Properties

France SAS
115, Rue Réaumur
75081 Paris, Cedex 02, France

Euroclear Nederland?

Euroclear NIEC?
Hetengracht 459-469, 1st Floor
1017 BS Amsterdam, The Netherlands

Euroclear Sweden AB
NCSD Holding AB
NCSD Systems AB

VKI AB
PO Box 7822
103 97 Stockholm, Sweden

Euroclear UK & Ireland Limited

33 Cannon Street
Landon EC4M 58B, UK

EMX Company Limited
2nd Floor Neorth

Charrington’s House

The Causeway

Bishop's Stortford
Hertfordshire CM23 2ER, UK

Euroclear Investments SA
Euroclear Finance 2 SA
Euroclear Re SA

12, Rue Eugéne Ruppert
2453 Luxembourg, Luxembourg

Xtrakter Limited
Seven Lime Harbour
Deocklands

London E14 9NQ, UK

Euroclear SA/NV
Branch Offices

Pans
115, Rue Réaumur
75081 Paris, Cedex 02, France

Amsterdam
Herengrachr 459469, 1st Floor
1017 BS Amstcrdam, The Netherlands

London
33 Cannon Street

London EC4M 55B, UK

Euroclear Bank Branch Office

Hong Kong

Suites 1201-06

12/F One Paafic Place

88 Queensway, Hong Kong

Euroclear Bank
Representative Offices

Beyjing

Euroclear Bank Representative Office
Suite 505 Excel Center

No 6 Wudinghou Street

Xicheng District

Beijing, 10040 China

Frankfurt

Euroclear Bank Representauve Office
Eschersheimer Landstrasse 60

60322 Frankfurc am Main, Germany

New York

Euroclear Bank Representative Office
40 Wall Street, 39th Floor

New York, N Y 10005, USA

Singapore

Euroclear Bank Representatve Office
80 Raffles Place # 30-22

UOB Plaza 2

Singapore 048624

Tokyo

Euroclear Bank Representative Office
‘The Impenal Hotel Tower 9F

1-1 Uchssatwaicho 1-cheme,
Chiyoda-Ku

Tokyo 100-0011, Japan

1 Trade name for Carsse Interprofesstonnelie

de Dépdts et de Virements de Titres/
Interprofessionele Effectendeposito- en
Girokas (CIK) SA/NV

2 Trade name for Nederlands Centraal instituut
voor Giraal Effectenverkeer {NECIGEF) BV
3 Trade name for Nederlands Interprofessioneel

Effectencentrum {NIEC) Bv
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